

DSM410 NMEA 2000[®] Multi-function Color Graphic Display

User's Manual

Revision 1.7.2

Copyright © 2017 Maretron, LLP All Rights Reserved

Maretron Manual Part #: M003091

Revision History

Revision	Description
1.7.2	Original document.



Table of Contents

1	General	1
	1.1 Introduction	1
	1.2 Firmware Revision	1
	1.3 DSM410 Features	1
	1.4 Quick Install	1
2	Installation	2
	2.1 Unpacking the Box	2
	2.2 Choosing a Mounting Location	2
	2.3 Mounting the DSM410	2
	2.3.1 Flush Mounting the DSM410	2
	2.4 Connecting the DSM410	3
	2.4.1 Checking the Connection	3
3	Operating the DSM410	4
	3.1 Turning the DSM410 On	4
	3.2 Turning the DSM410 Off	4
	3.3 Keypad Essentials	5
	3.3.1 Navigating in a Menu	6
	3.3.2 Choosing a Value from a List	6
	3.3.3 Entering a Numeric Value	6
	3.3.4 Entering a Textual Value	6
	3.4 Settings Lock Mode	8
4	Important Concepts	9
	4.1 Favorite Screens	9
	4.2 Categories and Data Types	9
	4.2.1 AC Bus	10
	4.2.2 AC Generator	10
	4.2.3 AC Utility	11
	4.2.4 Anchor Watch	12
	4.2.5 DC	12
	4.2.6 Depth	12
	4.2.7 Electrical	12
	4.2.8 Elec. Distribution	13
	4.2.9 Engine	13
	4.2.10 Environment	14
	4.2.11 Fluid Flow	14
	4.2.12 Fuel Management	15
	4.2.13 GPS	16
	4.2.14 Heading	16
	4.2.15 Humidity	16
	4.2.16 Indicator	16
	4.2.17 Mechanical	17
	4.2.18 Motion	17
	4.2.19 Navigation	17
	4.2.20 Pressure/Vacuum	18
	4.2.21 Rudder	. 18
	4.2.22 SMS (Text) Status	18
	4.2.23 Special Device	18
	• • • • •	

	4.2.24	Speed	.18
	4.2.25	Tank	. 19
	4.2.26	Temperature	. 19
	4.2.27	Time/Date	.19
	4.2.28	Transmission	.20
	4.2.29	VDR	.20
	4.2.30	Vessel	.20
	4.2.31	Wind	.20
	4.3 Ale	erts	.22
	4.3.1	Alert Types	. 22
	4.3.2	Alert Terminology	.22
	4.3.3	Alert Priority	.22
	4.3.4	Vessel Alert Operating Modes	.22
	4.3.5	Alert States	.23
	4.3.6	Available Alert Classes	.24
5	Operating	Modes	.25
	5.1 Fa	vorite screens modes	.25
	5.2 Me	enu Mode	.26
	5.2.1	Alert Setup Menu	.27
	5.2.2	Alert Status	.27
	5.2.3	Configuration Menu	.27
	5.2.4	Display Settings Menu	.29
	5.2.5	Favorite Screens Mode	.36
	5.2.6	Favorite Screens Setup Menu	.36
	5.2.7	Units Menu	.41
-	5.3 Co	ntrol Mode	. 45
6	Device Co	nfiguration	.47
	6.1 Air	mar Depth/Speed/Temperature Transducers	.50
	6.1.1	Advanced Configuration	.50
	6.1.2	Device Instance	.51
	6.1.3	Installation Description	.51
	6.1.4	NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable	.51
	6.1.5		.51
	6.1.6		.52
	6.1.7		.52
	6.1.8	Temperature Calibration	.52
	6.1.9		.53
	6.1.10	I FIP LOG	.54
	6.2 Be	Trine Take Oalibration	. 55
	6.2.1	I rim Tabs Calibration	.55
	6.3 IVI2	Action ACM100 Configuration	.51
	6.3.1		.57
	0.3.2		.00
	0.J.J		.00
	0.3.4		.00
	0.J.D	Layer	.00
	0.3.0	Reset Total Ellergy Recorded	.01
	0.4 IVI2		. 02

6.4.1	Advanced Configuration	62
6.4.2	Instance	63
6.4.3	Label	63
6.4.4	Test Annunciator	64
6.5 Ma	aretron CLM100 Configuration	65
6.5.1	Advanced Configuration	65
6.5.2	Advanced Configuration	66
6.5.3	Channel Configuration	66
6.6 Ma	aretron DCM100 Configuration	68
6.6.1	Advanced Configuration	69
6.6.2	Current Sensor Zero Offset Calibration	70
6.6.3	DC Туре	71
6.6.4	Instance	73
6.6.5	Label	73
6.7 Ma	aretron DCR100 Configuration	74
6.7.1	Advanced Configuration	74
6.7.2	Device Label	76
6.7.3	Instance	76
6.7.4	Channel #1-#6 Configuration	76
6.8 Ma	aretron DSM200 Configuration	79
6.8.1	Remote Device Selection	79
6.9 Ma	aretron DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 Configuration	81
6.9.1	Remote Device Selection	81
6.9.2	Copy alarms settings from local display	82
6.9.3	Copy device selection from local display	83
6.9.4	Copy display settings from local display	84
6.9.5	Copy favorite settings from local display	84
6.9.6	Copy DST100 calibrations from local display	85
6.9.7	Copy all settings from local display	85
6.9.8	Label	86
6.9.9	Remote Device Selection	86
6.10 Ma	aretron DST100 Configuration	88
6.10.1	Advanced Configuration	88
6.10.2	Clear Speed Calibration	89
6.10.3	Speed Calibration	89
6.10.4	Transducer Depth Offset	90
6.10.5	Trip Log	90
6.11 Ma	aretron DST110 Configuration	92
6.11.1	Advanced Configuration	92
6.11.2	Clear Speed Calibration	93
6.11.3	Speed Calibration	94
6.11.4	Clear Temperature Offset	94
6.11.5	Temperature Calibration	94
6.11.6	Transducer Depth Offset	95
6.11.7	Trip Log	96
6.12 Ma	aretron EMS100 Configuration	97
6.12.1	Engine Instance	97
6.12.2	Boost Pressure Gauge Type	97

6.12.3 Boost Pressure Sender Type	98
6.12.4 Boost Pressure Sender Offset	98
6.12.5 Drive Trim Gauge Type	98
6.12.6 Drive Trim Sender Type	98
6.12.7 Drive Trim Sender Offset	99
6.12.8 Oil Pressure Gauge Type	99
6.12.9 Oil Pressure Sender Type	99
6.12.10Oil Pressure Sender Offset	99
6.12.11Water Temperature Gauge Type	100
6.12.12Water Temperature Sender Type	100
6.12.13Water Temperature Sender Offset	100
6.12.14Preset Engine Hours	100
6.12.15Tachometer Flywheel Teeth	101
6.13 Maretron FFM100 Configuration	102
6.13.1 Advanced Configuration	102
6.13.2 Device Label	104
6.13.3 Operating Mode	104
6.13.4 Channel #0	104
6.13.5 Channel #1	109
6.14 Maretron FPM100 Configuration	113
6.14.1 Advanced Configuration	113
6.14.2 Channel #0-5	115
6.15 Maretron GPS100 Configuration	122
6.15.1 Advanced Configuration	123
6.15.2 Cold Start GPS	127
6.15.3 GPS Mode Setting	127
6.15.4 Device Label	128
6.15.5 SBAS (WAAS) Enable/Disable	128
6.16 Maretron GPS200 Configuration	130
6.16.1 Advanced Configuration	130
6.16.2 Cold Start GPS	132
6.16.3 Device Label	132
6.16.4 SBAS (WAAS,EGNOS,MSAS) Enable/Disable	132
6.17 Maretron IPG100 Configuration	134
6.17.2 Device Label	137
6.17.3 N2KServer Password	137
6.17.4 Maretron Cloud Services	137
6.17.5 DHCP	137
6.17.6 IP Address	138
6.17.7 Subnet Mask	138
6.17.8 Default Gateway	138
6.17.9 Default DNS	138
6.18 Maretron J2K100 Configuration	138
6.18.1 Advanced Configuration	139
6.18.2 Device Label	142
6.18.3 NMEA 2000 Instance – Engine	142
6.18.4 I ransmission instance	142
6.18.5 AU/ICEMAKER INSTANCE	143

6.18.6 J1939 Source Address Configuration	144
6.18.7 Refresh J1939 source address list	145
6.19 Maretron NBE100 Configuration	145
6.19.1 Advanced Configuration	145
6.20 Maretron RAA100 Configuration	146
6.20.1 Advanced Configuration	147
6.20.2 Label	148
6.20.3 Rudder Angle Calibration	149
6.20.4 Rudder Number	152
6.20.5 Operating Mode	153
6.20.6 Gauge Resistance, + to Sender	154
6.20.7 Gauge Resistance, - to Sender	154
6.21 Maretron RIM100 Configuration	156
6.21.1 Advanced Configuration	156
6.21.2 Device Label	157
6.21.3 Instance	158
6.21.4 Channel Configuration	158
6.22 Maretron SIM100 Configuration	159
6.22.1 Advanced Configuration	159
6.22.2 Device Label	160
6.22.3 Instance	161
6.22.4 Channel Configuration	161
6.23 Maretron SMS100 Configuration	162
6.23.1 Advanced Configuration	162
6.23.2 Label	163
6.23.3 Test	164
6.24 Maretron SSC200/SSC300 Configuration	165
6.24.1 Advanced Configuration	165
6.24.2 Installation Offset Calibration	168
6.24.3 Inverted Installation Entry	169
6.24.4 Label	170
6.24.5 Magnetic Deviation Calibration	170
6.24.6 Magnetic Deviation Status	171
6.24.7 Rate of Turn Damping Period	171
6.24.8 Rate of Turn Zero Offset Calibration	172
6.24.9 Variation Source Entry	172
6.25 Maretron TLA100 Configuration	176
6.25.1 Advanced Configuration	176
6.25.2 Label	177
6.25.3 Tank Capacity	177
6.25.4 Tank Levels Calibration	178
6.25.5 Tank Number	183
6.25.6 Tank Type	183
6.25.7 Operating Mode	184
6.25.8 Gauge Resistance, + to Sender	185
6.25.9 Gauge Resistance, - to Sender	185
6.26 Maretron TLM100 Configuration	187
6.26.1 Advanced Configuration	187

6.26.2 Label	188
6.26.3 Tank Capacity	188
6.26.4 Tank Levels Calibration	189
6.26.5 Tank Number	194
6.26.6 Tank Type	194
6.27 Maretron TLM150 Configuration	194
6.28 Maretron TLM200 Configuration	194
6.29 Maretron TMP100 Configuration	195
6.29.1 Advanced Configuration	195
6.29.2 Channel Configuration	196
6.29.3 Device Label	197
6.30 Maretron USB100 Configuration	198
6.30.1 Advanced Configuration	198
6.30.2 Remote Device Selection	199
6.31 Maretron VDR100 Configuration	200
6.31.1 Advanced Configuration	200
6.31.2 Label	201
6.31.3 Password	201
6.31.4 DHCP	201
6.31.5 IP Address	201
6.31.6 Subnet Mask	201
6.31.7 Default Gateway	202
6.31.8 Default DNS	202
6.32 Maretron WSO100 Configuration	202
6.32.1 Advanced Configuration	202
6.32.2 Device Label	204
6.32.3 Installation Offset Calibration	205
6.32.4 Wind Data Damping Period	207
6.32.5 Barometric Pressure	207
6.32.6 Outside Humidity	208
6.32.7 Outside Temperature	208
Data Display Types	210
7.1 Anchor Watch Display	210
7.2 Bar Graph	211
7.3 Compass Rose Display	211
7.4 Date	213
7.5 Date/Time	213
7.6 Gauge Display	214
7.7 GPS Status Display	215
7.8 Half Gauge Display	216
7.9 Indicator Light.	216
7.10 Numeric Display	218
7.11 Numeric/Precision	220
7.12 Rolling Road	220
7.13 Line Graph	222
7.14 SMS Status	222
7.15 Time (hh:mm)	223
7.16 Time (hh:mm:ss)	223

7

	7.17 VDR Status	.224
	7.18 Weather Display	.224
	7.19 Wind Rose	.226
	7.20 Moon Phase Display	.226
	7.21 SMS Signal Strength Bar	. 226
	7.22 Trim Tabs Bar Graph Display	. 227
	7.23 Swing Meter Display	.227
	7.24 Tank Gauge Display	.228
	7.25 Watermaker Status	.228
	7.26 Switch/Breaker Display	.229
8	Alerts	.233
-	8.1 Displaving Active Alerts	.233
	8.1.1 Alert Status Screen	.233
	8.2 Accepting or Cancelling an Alert	.234
	8.2.1 From a Favorite Screen	.234
	8.2.2 From the Alert Status Screen	.234
	8.3 Adding an Alert	.235
	8.3.1 Enable/Disable Control	.236
	8.3.2 Alert Type	.236
	8.3.3 Priority	.236
	8.3.4 Trigger Source	.237
	8.3.5 Description	.237
	8.3.6 Location	.237
	8.3.7 Trigger Configuration	.237
	8.3.8 Local Audible	.251
	8.3.9 Tone	.252
	8.3.10 Remote Annunciators	. 252
	8.3.11 SMS (Text) Settings	.253
	8.3.12 Operating Mode Moored	. 254
	8.3.13 Operating Mode Underway	.254
	8.3.14 Operating Mode Anchored	.254
	8.3.15 Scope	. 254
	8.4 Deleting an Alert	.255
	8.5 Editing an Alert	.256
	8.6 Setting the Vessel Operating Mode	.257
	8.7 SMS (Text) Phone Book	.258
	8.8 Advanced Configuration	.261
	8.8.1 Remote Alert Audible	. 262
	8.8.2 Flashing Screen	. 262
	8.9 Restore Factory Defaults	. 262
9	Maintenance	. 263
10	Troubleshooting	.264
11	Technical Specifications	.265
12	Technical Support	.270
13	Installation Template	.271
14	Maretron (2 Year) Limited Warranty	. 272

Table of Figures

Figure 1 – NMEA 2000® Connector Face View	3
Figure 2 – DSM410 Power Up Screen	4
Figure 3 – Powerdown Countdown Screen	5
Figure 4 – Keypad and Key Names	5
Figure 5 – Entering a Textual Value	7
Figure 6 – DSM410 Running in Favorite Screens Mode	.25
Figure 7 – Main Menu	.26
Figure 8 – Configuration Screen	.27
Figure 9 – Device Selection Screen	.28
Figure 10 – DSM410 Display Settings Screen	.29
Figure 11 – DSM410 Advanced Configuration	.29
Figure 12 – DSM410 Primary Device Selection	.30
Figure 13 – DSM410 Advanced Information Screen	.31
Figure 14 – Bus Status Display	.31
Figure 15 – Backlight Menu	.32
Figure 16 – Color Palette Selection Screen	.33
Figure 17 – Color Palette Configuration Screen	.33
Figure 18 – Setting the Demo Mode	.34
Figure 19 – Setting the Keyboard Beep Option	.35
Figure 20 – Editing the DSM410 Label	.35
Figure 21 – Setting the Favorite Screens Mode	.36
Figure 22 – Favorite Screens Setup Screen	.36
Figure 23 – Favorite Screen Parameters	.37
Figure 24 – Setting the Favorite Screen Format	.38
Figure 25 – Setting the Auto Change Interval	.38
Figure 26 – Selecting the Data Category	.39
Figure 27 – Selecting the Data to be displayed	.39
Figure 28 – DSM410 Units Menu	.41
Figure 29 – Device Configuration Screen	.49
Figure 30 – Airmar Depth/Speed/Temperature Transducer Configuration Screen	.50
Figure 31 – Airmar Transducer Advanced Configuration Screen	.51
Figure 32 – Calibrating the Airmar Speed Transducer Speed	.52
Figure 33 – Airmar Temperature Transducer Water Temperature Calibration Screen	.53
Figure 34 – Setting the Transducer Depth Offset in an Airmar Depth Transducer	.53
Figure 35 – Resetting the Airmar Speed Sensor Trip Distance Log	.54
Figure 36 – EP-30 Trim Tabs Configuration Screen	.55
Figure 37 – EP-30 Trim Tabs Calibration Opening Screen	.55
Figure 38 – EP-30 Intermediate Calibration Screen	.56
Figure 39 – EP-30 Calibration Success Message	.56
Figure 40 – ACM100 Configuration Screen	.57
Figure 41 – ACM100 Advanced Configuration Screen	.57
Figure 42 – ACM100 NMEA 2000 [®] PGN Enable/Disable Screen	.59
Figure 43 – Reset Total Energy Recorded Confirmation Screen	.61
Figure 44 – ALM100 Configuration Screen	.62
Figure 45 – ALM100 Advanced Configuration Screen	.62
Figure 46 – ALM100 NMEA 2000 [®] PGN Enable/Disable Screen	.63

Figure 47 – CLM100 Configuration Screen	65
Figure 48 – CLM100 Advanced Configuration Screen	65
Figure 49 – CLM100 NMEA 2000 [®] PGN Enable/Disable Screen	66
Figure 50 – CLM100 Channel Configuration Screen	67
Figure 51 – DCM100 Configuration Screen	68
Figure 52 – DCM100 Advanced Configuration Screen	69
Figure 53 – DCM100 NMEA 2000 [®] PGN Enable/Disable Screen	70
Figure 54 – Current Sensor Zero Offset Calibration Confirmation Screen	71
Figure 55 – Current Sensor Zero Offset Calibration Complete Screen	71
Figure 56 – DCR100 Configuration Screen	74
Figure 57 – DCR100 Advanced Configuration Screen	74
Figure 58 – DCR100 Current Sensor Zero Offset Calibration Screen	75
Figure 59 – DCR100 Current Sensor Zero Offset Calibration Completion Screen	75
Figure 60 – DCR100 NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable Screen	76
Figure 61 – DCR100 Channel Configuration Screen (DCR Mode)	77
Figure 62 – DCR100 Channel Configuration Screen (ALM Mode)	78
Figure 63 – DSM200 Remote Configuration Screen	79
Figure 64 – DSM200 Remote Device Selection Screen	79
Figure 65 – DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 Remote Configuration Screen	81
Figure 66 – DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 Remote Device Selection Screen	82
Figure 67 – DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 Copy alarms settings from local display	83
Figure 68 – DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 Copy device selection from local display	83
Figure 69 – DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 Copy display settings from local display	84
Figure 70 – DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 Copy favorite settings from local display	84
Figure 71 – Favorite Settings Transfer Completion Screen	85
Figure 72 – DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 Copy DST100 calibrations from local display	85
Figure 73 – DSM150/DSM250/DSM410all settings from local display	86
Figure 74 – DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 Label Configuration	86
Figure 75 – DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 Remote Device Selection	87
Figure 76 – DST100 Configuration Screen	88
Figure 77 – DST100 Advanced Configuration Screen	88
Figure 78 – Calibrating the DSM410 for DST100 Speed through Water	89
Figure 79 – Setting the Transducer Depth Offset in a DST100	90
Figure 80 – Resetting the DST100 Trip Distance Log	91
Figure 81 – DST110 Configuration Screen	92
Figure 82 – DST110 Advanced Configuration Screen	92
Figure 83 – DST110 NMEA 2000 [®] PGN Enable/Disable Screen	93
Figure 84 – Calibrating the DST110 Speed	94
Figure 85 - DST110 Water Temperature Calibration Screen	95
Figure 86 – Setting the Transducer Depth Offset in a DST110	95
Figure 87 – Resetting the DST110 Trip Distance Log	96
Figure 88 – EMS100 Configuration Screen (First Screen)	97
Figure 89 – EMS100 Configuration Screen (Second Screen)	97
Figure 90 – FFM100 Configuration Screen	102
Figure 91 – FFM100 Advanced Configuration	102
Figure 92 – FFM100 NMEA PGN Enable/Disable Screen	104
Figure 93 – FFM100 Channel #0 First Configuration Screen (Differential Mode)	105
Figure 94 – FFM100 Channel #0 Second Configuration Screen (Differential Mode)	105

Figure 95 – FFM100 Channel #0 First Configuration Screen (Two Independent Sensors Mode)	107
Figure 96 – FFM100 Channel #0 Second Configuration Screen (Two Independent Sensors Mode)	107
Figure 97 – FFM100 Channel #1 Configuration Screen (Differential Mode)	110
Figure 98 – FFM100 Channel #1 First Configuration Screen (Two Independent Sensors Mode)	111
Figure 99 – FFM100 Channel #1 Second Configuration Screen (Two Independent Sensors Mode)	111
Figure 100 – FPM100 Configuration Screen	113
Figure 101 – FPM100 Advanced Configuration Screen	114
Figure 102 – FPM100 NMEA 2000 [®] PGN Enable/Disable Screen	114
Figure 103 – FPM100 Channel #0 First Configuration Screen (Tank Mode)	115
Figure 104 – FPM100 Channel #0 Second Configuration Screen (Tank Mode)	116
Figure 105 – FPM100 Tank Levels Calibration Menu	117
Figure 106 – Tank Levels Calibration Capacity Estimation	118
Figure 107 – Empty Level Calibration	118
Figure 108 – Intermediate Level Calibration	119
Figure 109 – Full Level Calibration	119
Figure 110 – Custom Tank Level Calibration Confirmation Screen	120
Figure 111 – Rectangular Tank Calibration	120
Figure 112 – FPM100 Channel (Pressure/Vacuum Mode) Configuration	121
Figure 113 – GPS100 Configuration Screen	122
Figure 114 – GPS100 Advanced Configuration Screen	123
Figure 115 – Configuring Antenna Altitude on a GPS100	123
Figure 116 – Configuring Satellite Elevation Mask on a GPS100	124
Figure 117 – Configuring PDOP Mask on a GPS100	125
Figure 118 – Configuring SNR Mask on a GPS100	125
Figure 119 – GPS100 NMEA 2000 [®] PGN Enable/Disable Screen	126
Figure 120 – Restoring Factory Defaults on the GPS100	127
Figure 121 – Performing a Cold Start of the GPS100	127
Figure 122 – Configuring GPS Operating Mode on a GPS100	128
Figure 123 – Configuring SBAS on a GPS100	129
Figure 124 – GPS200 Configuration Screen	130
Figure 125 – GPS200 Advanced Configuration Screen	130
Figure 126 – GPS200 NMEA 2000 [®] PGN Enable/Disable Screen	131
Figure 127 – Restoring Factory Defaults on the GPS200	132
Figure 128 – Performing a Cold Start of the GPS200	132
Figure 129 – Configuring SBAS on a GPS200	133
Figure 130 – IPG100 Configuration Screen	134
Figure 131 – IPG100 Advanced Configuration Screen	134
Figure 132 – IPG100 N2KServer Information Screen	135
Figure 133 – IPG100 Client List Display	136
Figure 134 – IPG100 Maretron Cloud Services Status Display	137
Figure 135 – J2K100 Configuration Screen	139
Figure 136 – J2K100 Advanced Configuration Screen	139
Figure 137 – J2K100 J1939 Diagnostic Messages Configuration	140
Figure 138 – J2K100 Request Engine Hours Configuration	141
Figure 139 – J2K100 NMEA 2000 [®] PGN Enable/Disable Screen	141
Figure 140 – J2K100 Engine Instance Configuration	142
Figure 141 – J2K100 NMEA2000 Transmission Instance Configuration	143
Figure 142 – J2K100 NMEA2000 AC/Icemaker Instance Configuration	144

Figure 143 – J2K100 J1939 Source Address Configuration	144
Figure 144 – NBE100 Configuration Screen	145
Figure 145 – NBE100 Advanced Configuration Screen	146
Figure 146 – RAA100 Configuration Screen	147
Figure 147 – RAA100 Advanced Configuration Menu	147
Figure 148 – RAA100 NMEA 2000 [®] PGN Enable/Disable Screen	148
Figure 149 – RAA100 Label Configuration	149
Figure 150 – RAA100 Rudder Angle Calibration Options	149
Figure 151 – RAA100 Custom Rudder Angle Calibration	150
Figure 152 – RAA100 Starboard Rudder Angle Calibration	150
Figure 153 – RAA100 Center Rudder Angle Calibration	151
Figure 154 – RAA100 Port Rudder Angle Calibration	151
Figure 155 – RAA100 Custom Rudder Calibration Confirmation Screen	152
Figure 156 – RAA100: Setting the Rudder Number	153
Figure 157 – RAA100: Setting the Operating Mode	153
Figure 158 – RAA100: Setting the + to Sender Gauge Resistance	154
Figure 159 – RAA100: Setting the – to Sender Gauge Resistance	155
Figure 160 – RIM100 Configuration Screen	156
Figure 161 – RIM100 Advanced Configuration Screen	156
Figure 162 – RIM100 NMEA 2000 [®] PGN Enable/Disable Screen	157
Figure 162 – RIM100 RMEA 2000 TOR Enable/Disable Ocleen	158
Figure 164 – SIM100 Configuration Screen	150
Figure 165 – SIM100 Advanced Configuration Screen	150
Figure 166 - SIM100 NMEA 2000® PGN Enable/Disable Screen	160
Figure 167 SIM100 Channel Configuration Screen	161
Figure 167 – Silvi 100 Chaliner Configuration Screen	101
Figure 160 – SMS100 Configuration Screen	162
Figure 179 – SMS100 Advanced Configuration Menu	102
Figure 170 - SMS100 NMEA 2000° FGN Ellable/Disable Scieen	103
Figure 171 – SWS100 Test Screen	104
Figure 172 – SSC200/SSC300 Configuration Screen	100
Figure 173 – SSC200/SSC300 Advanced Conliguration Screen	100
Figure 174 – SSC200/SSC300 NMEA 0163 Settings Screen	100
Figure 175 – SSC200/SSC300 NMEA 0183 Sentence/Rate Selection Screen	107
Figure 176 – SSC200/SSC300 Load Default Periodic Rate Selection	107
Figure 177 – SSC200/SSC300 NMEA 2000® PGN Enable/Disable Screen	168
Figure 178 – SSC200/SSC300 Installation Offset Calibration Screen	169
Figure 179 – Setting the Installation Orientation	169
Figure 180 – SSC200/SSC300 Magnetic Deviation Calibration Start Screen	170
Figure 181 – SSC200/SSC300 Magnetic Deviation Calibration Progress Screen	1/1
Figure 182 – SSC200/SSC300 Magnetic Deviation Status Screen	1/1
Figure 183 – Programming SSC200/SSC300 Rate of Turn Damping Period	172
Figure 184 – SSC200/SSC300 Rate of Turn Zero Offset Calibration Screen	172
Figure 185 – Setting Variation Source to NMEA 0183 or NMEA 2000 [®] (factory default)	1/3
Figure 186 – Setting Variation Source to NMEA 0183 Only	1/3
Figure 187 – Setting Variation Source to NMEA 2000 [®] Only	174
Figure 188 – Entering Manual Variation	174
Figure 189 – TLA100 Configuration Screen	176
Figure 190 – TLA100 Advanced Configuration Screen	176

Figure 191 – TLA100 NMEA 2000 [®] PGN Enable/Disable Screen	177
Figure 192 – Configuring the Tank Capacity	178
Figure 193 – Tank Capacity Change Confirmation Screen	178
Figure 194 – Performing Custom Calibration of the Tank Level Adapter	179
Figure 195 – Tank Levels Calibration Capacity Estimation	180
Figure 196 – Empty Level Calibration	180
Figure 197 – Intermediate Level Calibration	181
Figure 198 – Full Level Calibration	181
Figure 199 – Custom Tank Level Calibration Confirmation Screen	182
Figure 200 – American Standard Sender Calibration	182
Figure 201 – European Standard Sender Calibration	183
Figure 202 – Configuring the Tank Number	183
Figure 203 – Configuring the Tank Type	184
Figure 204 – Configuring the Operating Mode	185
Figure 205 – Configuring the + to Sender Gauge Resistance	185
Figure 206 – Configuring the - to Sender Gauge Resistance	186
Figure 207 – TLM100 Configuration Screen	187
Figure 208 – TLM100 Advanced Configuration Screen	187
Figure 209 – TLM100 NMEA 2000 [®] PGN Enable/Disable Screen	188
Figure 210 – Configuring the Tank Capacity	189
Figure 211 – Tank Capacity Change Confirmation Screen	189
Figure 212 – Performing Custom Calibration of the Tank Level Monitor	190
Figure 213 – Tank Levels Calibration Capacity Estimation	191
Figure 214 – Empty Level Calibration	191
Figure 215 – Intermediate Level Calibration	192
Figure 216 – Full Level Calibration	192
Figure 217 – Custom Tank Level Calibration Confirmation Screen	193
Figure 218 – Rectangular Tank Selection	193
Figure 219 – Rectangular Tank Calibration	194
Figure 220 – TMP100 Configuration Screen	195
Figure 221 – TMP100 Advanced Configuration Screen	195
Figure 222 – TMP100 NMEA 2000 [®] PGN Enable/Disable Screen	196
Figure 223 – TMP100 Channel Configuration Screen	197
Figure 224 – USB100 Configuration Screen	198
Figure 225 – USB100 Advanced Configuration Screen	198
Figure 226 – USB100 Device Selection Screen	199
Figure 227 – VDR100 Configuration Screen	200
Figure 228 – VDR100 Advanced Configuration Screen	200
Figure 229 – WSO100 Configuration Screen	202
Figure 230 – WSO100 Advanced Configuration Screen	203
Figure 231 – WSO100 NMEA 2000 [®] PGN Enable/Disable Screen	204
Figure 232 – WSO100 Device Label Menu	205
Figure 233 – WSO100 Installation Offset Screen	205
Figure 234 – WSO100 Configuration Aborted Due to Low Wind Speed	206
Figure 235 – Installation Offset Success Confirmation Screen	206
Figure 236 – Installation Offset Abort Confirmation Screen	207
Figure 237 – Setting the Wind Data Damping Period	207
Figure 238 – Setting the Barometric Pressure	208

Figure 239 – Setting the Outside Humidity	.208
Figure 240 – Setting the Outside Temperature	.209
Figure 241 – Anchor Watch Display Example	.210
Figure 242 – Bar Graph Display Example	.211
Figure 243 – Compass Rose Display (Course Up) Example	.211
Figure 244 – Compass Rose (North Up) Display	.212
Figure 245 – Date Display Example	.213
Figure 246 – Date/Time Display Example	.213
Figure 247 – Gauge Display Example	.214
Figure 248 – Rudder Angle Gauge Display Example	.214
Figure 249 – GPS Status Display Example	.215
Figure 250 – Half Gauge Display Example	.216
Figure 251 – Configuration of Indicator Light Display	.217
Figure 252 – Selection of an Individual Indicator Light	.217
Figure 253 – Configuration of an Individual Indicator Light	.218
Figure 254 – Numeric Display Example	.219
Figure 255 – Numeric/Precision Display Example	.220
Figure 256 – Configuration of Rolling Road Display	.221
Figure 257 – Rolling Road Display.	.222
Figure 258 – Line Graph Display	.222
Figure 259 – SMS Status Display	.223
Figure 260 – Time (hh:mm) Display	.223
Figure 261 – Time (hh:mm:ss) Display	.224
Figure 262 – VDR Status Display	.224
Figure 263 – Weather Display	.225
Figure 264 – Wind Rose Display	.226
Figure 265 – Moon Phase Display	.226
Figure 266 – SMS Signal Strength Bar Display	.227
Figure 267 – Trim Tab Display	.227
Figure 268 – Swing Meter Display	.228
Figure 269 – Tank Gauge Display	.228
Figure 270 – Watermaker Status Display	.229
Figure 271 – Configuration of Switch/Breaker Display	.229
Figure 272 – Selection of an Individual Switch/Breaker	.230
Figure 273 – Configuration of an Individual Switch/Breaker	.230
Figure 274 – Favorite Screen Showing Highlighted Switch/Breaker	.232
Figure 275 – Alert Display	.233
Figure 276 – Alert Status Screen	.234
Figure 277 – Cancelling an Alert from the Alert Status Screen	.234
Figure 278 – The Alert Detail Screen	.235
Figure 279 – Adding a New Alert	.235
Figure 280 – Part of the Alert Edit Screen	.236
Figure 281 – High Alert Parameters	.238
Figure 282 – Trigger Configuration – High Alert	.239
Figure 283 – Low Alert Parameters	.240
Figure 284 – Trigger Configuration – Low Alert	.241
Figure 285 – Trigger Configuration – Data Unavailable Alert	.242
Figure 286 – Trigger Configuration – On Alert	.243

Figure 287 – Trigger Configuration – Off Alert	244
Figure 288 – Trigger Configuration Editor – Tripped Alert	245
Figure 289 – Outside Alert Parameters	246
Figure 290 – Trigger Configuration – Outside Radius Alert	246
Figure 291 – Trigger Configuration – Inside Radius Alert	247
Figure 292 – Trigger Configuration – GPS Quality Alert	249
Figure 293 – Direction Alert Parameters	250
Figure 294 – Trigger Configuration – Direction Alert	250
Figure 295 – Alert Editor – Time Alert	251
Figure 296 – Remote Annunciator Enable/Disable	252
Figure 297 – SMS (Text) Settings Screen	253
Figure 298 – SMS (Text) Phone Number #x Screen	253
Figure 299 – Deleting an Alert	255
Figure 300 – Deleting Alert List	255
Figure 301 – Deleting an Alert: Confirmation	256
Figure 302 – Editing an Alert	256
Figure 303 – Editing an Alert: Alert List	257
Figure 304 – Setting the Vessel Operating Mode	258
Figure 305 – Editing the SMS (Text) Phone Book	259
Figure 306 – SMS (Text) Phone Book Screen	259
Figure 307 – Phone Number Editing	
Figure 308 – Editing the Name of a Phone Book Entry	260
Figure 309 – SMS Phone Book Test Message Popup	261
Figure 310 – Advanced Configuration	261
Figure 311 – Restore Factory Defaults Confirmation	
Figure 312 – Flush Mounting Template	271



1 General

1.1 Introduction

Congratulations on your purchase of the Maretron DSM410 NMEA 2000[®] 4.1" High Bright Graphic Display. Maretron has designed and built your display to the highest standards for years of dependable and accurate service.

Maretron's DSM410 is a high-resolution color display that allows easy interpretation of NMEA 2000[®] instrument and navigation data through custom display configurations, with an easy-to-use five-key illuminated keypad.

The Maretron DSM410 is designed to operate within the harsh demands of the marine environment. However, no piece of marine electronic equipment can function properly unless installed, configured, and maintained in the correct manner. Please read carefully and follow these instructions for installation, configuration, and usage of the Maretron DSM410 in order to ensure optimal performance.

1.2 Firmware Revision

This manual corresponds to DSM410 firmware revision 1.7.2.

1.3 DSM410 Features

The Maretron DSM410 has the following features.

- NMEA 2000[®] Interface
- Waterproof NMEA 2000[®] Connector
- Sealed Waterproof Enclosure
- Powered Directly from NMEA 2000[®] Network
- Flush Mounting
- Backlit Capacitive Touch Keys
- Visual and Audible Alarms
- 16 User Configurable Favorite Screens (Automatic or Manual Scrolling between Screens)
- Capable of Viewing Virtually all NMEA 2000[®] Information including Batteries, Engines, Generators, Shore Power, Tanks, Navigation, Weather and More

1.4 Quick Install

Installing the Maretron DSM410 display involves the following four steps. Please refer to the individual sections for additional details.

- Unpack the Box (Section 2.1)
- Choose a Mounting Location (Section 2.2)
- Mount the DSM410 (Section 2.3)
- Connect the DSM410 (Section 2.4)

2 Installation

2.1 Unpacking the Box

When unpacking the box containing the Maretron DSM410, you should find the following items:

- 1 DSM410 NMEA 2000[®] Multi-function Graphic Display
- 1 DSM410 Bezel
- 4 Mounting Screws
- 1 DSM410 User's Manual USB Flash Drive
- 1 Warranty Registration Card

If any of these items are missing or damaged, please contact Maretron.

2.2 Choosing a Mounting Location

The DSM410 is housed in a waterproof enclosure (IEC IP67 rating – protected against the effects of temporary immersion in water) and can be mounted in either an outdoor location or an indoor location.

2.3 Mounting the DSM410

The DSM410 can be flush mounted. Maretron suggests a location at which the display can be viewed from a relatively straight angle, and at which the keys are easily touched.

2.3.1 Flush Mounting the DSM410

The DSM410 can be directly mounted to any suitable surface. You may choose to secure the DSM410 to the mounting surface with the included wood screws or machine screws, or you may use silicone or a similar adhesive if you do not have easy access to the rear side of the mounting surface. The steps for this type of mounting are as follows:

- 1. Attach the Mounting Template (see Section 13) to the surface where the DSM410 is to be located.
 - a. Make sure the template is level by using one of the horizontal lines as a guide.
 - b. Scotch tape works well for securing the template.
- 2. If securing with machine screws, drill the four mounting holes all the way through the mounting surface at the locations indicated on the *Mounting Template*.
 - a. Use a 4.3mm or 0.17" drill bit.
- 3. Cut a hole for the body of the display.
- 4. Remove the template from the mounting surface.
- 5. Place the DSM410 on the mounting surface, with the body of the DSM410 inserted into the large hole. If mounting with silicone adhesive, apply the adhesive to the portion of the DSM410 that will come into contact with the mounting surface once installed.
- 6. If mounting with machine screws, insert the screws into the front of the DSM410 and tighten to nuts on the back side of the mounting surface.
 - a. Use M3 machine screws.
 - b. Don't over tighten the screws.
- 7. Snap the bezel over the DSM410. Please pay attention to the orientation of the bezel. The top and bottom edges of the bezel and the DSM410 have one snap fitting, while the left and right edges have two snap fittings.



2.4 Connecting the DSM410

The Maretron DSM410 provides a connection to an NMEA 2000[®] interface through a standard Micro NMEA 2000[®] connector that can be found on the back of the unit. The NMEA 2000[®] connector is a five-pin male connector (see Figure 1). You connect the DSM410 to an NMEA 2000[®] network using a Maretron NMEA 2000[®] cable (or compatible cable) by connecting the female end of the NMEA 2000[®] network cable to the male connector on the DSM410 (note the key on the male connector and keyway on the female connector). Be sure the cable is connected securely and that the collar on the cable connector is tightened firmly. Connect the other end of the cable (male) to the NMEA 2000[®] network in the same manner. The DSM410 is designed such that you can plug or unplug it from an NMEA 2000[®] network while the power to the network is connected or disconnected. Please follow recommended practices for installing NMEA 2000[®] network products.



Figure 1 – NMEA 2000® Connector Face View

2.4.1 Checking the Connection

Once the NMEA 2000[®] connection to the Maretron DSM410 has been completed, observe the display to check to see that information is being properly received. One way to verify connectivity is to enter the device selection menu, which is described in Section 5.2.3.2. Refer to Section 10, "Troubleshooting", if no information appears.

3 Operating the DSM410

3.1 Turning the DSM410 On

To turn on the DSM410, press the power key (the leftmost of the five keys on the keypad). The DSM410 will display a warning and ask you to press the Accept key () to acknowledge the warning and continue operation of the DSM410 (see Figure 2 below).



Figure 2 – DSM410 Power Up Screen

Alternatively, you may power down the DSM410 by pressing and holding the power key (see Section 3.2 below for details).

3.2 Turning the DSM410 Off

To turn the DSM410 off, press and hold the power key. The DSM410 will display a countdown screen, which can be seen in Figure 3. If you continue to hold the power key, the DSM410 will power down in approximately three seconds. If you release the power key before these three seconds have elapsed, the DSM410 will return to its current operational state.





Figure 3 – Powerdown Countdown Screen

3.3 Keypad Essentials

The DSM410 has a five-key keypad located below the screen. Each key has slightly different functions depending on the operating mode. Figure 4 below shows the DSM410 keys and their names.



In the normal viewing mode where your favorite screens are displayed, the keys on the DSM250 keypad have the following functions:

- **Power Key** (●) turns the DSM250 off (see section 3.1 on page 4 for details). A momentary press of this key can also be used to accept or cancel an Alert (see section 8.2.1 on page 234 for details).
- Lights Key () a quick press cycles the backlight brightness between three programmed brightness levels (see Section 5.2.4.3 on page 32 for details), while a long press cycles the DSM250 through 8 programmable color palettes (see Section 5.2.4.4 on Page 32).
- **Up Key** (••) switches the display from the current favorite screen to the next highest numbered favorite screen that is enabled for that particular mode.
- **Down Key** (**D**) switches the display from the current favorites screen to the next lowest numbered favorite screen that is enabled for that particular mode

Enter Key () – changes from favorite screens mode to menu mode

In menu mode, a legend appears along the bottom of the screen displaying the function of each of the keys. The functions differ slightly depending on whether a menu is being accessed, a selection is being made from a list of possible data values, or a numeric value is being increased or decreased.

3.3.1 Navigating in a Menu

When accessing a menu, the keys on the DSM410 keypad have the following functions:

- **Power Key** () turns the DSM410 off (see Section 3.1 on page 4 for details).
- **Back Key** () returns to the next higher-level menu. If already at the top-level menu, exits menu mode returns to favorite screens mode. Menu levels are indicated with indentation of the text within the menus.
- Scroll Up Key (
) changes the currently selected (or highlighted) menu item from the presently selected one to the one immediately above it. If the top menu item is already selected, the selection wraps to the bottom menu item.
- Scroll Down Key (●) changes the currently selected (or highlighted) menu item from the presently selected one to the one immediately below it. If the bottom menu item is already selected, the selection wraps to the top menu item.
- Enter Key () if the currently selected menu item has a submenu, opens that submenu. If the currently selected menu item has an editable value (indicated by a colon (:) followed by the data value, moves the selection to the editable value and changes the keys to edit mode.

3.3.2 Choosing a Value from a List

When editing a value chosen from a list, the keys on the DSM410 keypad have the following functions:

Power Key () – turns the DSM410 off (see Section 3.1 on page 4 for details).

Back Key () – aborts the edit and restores the editable value to its previous value

Scroll Up Key (①) – changes the currently selected editable value from the presently selected one to the one immediately above it in the list of possibilities. If the top menu item is already selected, the selection wraps to the bottom menu item.

Scroll Down Key () – changes the currently selected editable value from the presently selected one to the one immediately below it in the list of possibilities. If the bottom menu item is already selected, the selection wraps to the top menu item.

Enter Key () – Accepts the currently displayed value and stores it.

3.3.3 Entering a Numeric Value

When editing a numeric value, the keys on the DSM410 keypad have the following functions:

Power Key (④) – turns the DSM410 off (see Section 3.1 on page 4 for details).

Cancel Key (①) – aborts the edit and restores the editable value to its previous value **Increase Key** (①) – increases the editable value

Decrease Key (\mathbf{O}) – decreases the editable value

Accept Key () – Accepts the currently displayed value and stores it.

3.3.4 Entering a Textual Value

When entering a text string, the following menu will be presented:



Text : Anchor Wind	ch_		
Uppercase : A			
Lowercase : a			
Numeric : 0			
Sign : !			
Space ->			
Back <-			
Exit without savin	q		
Save & Exit			
	Conall	Carall	
Power	Scroll Up	Down	Enter

Figure 5 – Entering a Textual Value

The top line contains the textual string that has already been entered. New characters are appended one at a time to the end of the line, at the position marked by the underscore.

To append an uppercase character, use the **Scroll Up** and **Scroll Down** buttons to select **Uppercase** and then press **Enter** to go across to the characters. Now use the **Scroll Up** and **Scroll Down** buttons again to select the required character, and press **Enter** to transfer the character to the cursor position. If another uppercase character is required, repeat this last step, or press the **Back** button top return to the choices on the left.

To append a lowercase character, use the **Scroll Up** and **Scroll Down** buttons to select **Lowercase** and then press **Enter** to go across to the characters. Now use the **Scroll Up** and **Scroll Down** buttons again to select the required character, and press **Enter** to transfer the character to the cursor position. If another lowercase character is required, repeat this last step, or press the **Back** button top return to the choices on the left.

To append a numeral, use the **Scroll Up** and **Scroll Down** buttons to select **Numeric** and then press **Enter** to go across to the numbers. Now use the **Scroll Up** and **Scroll Down** buttons again to select the required numeral, and press **Enter** to transfer the numeral to the cursor position. If another numeral is required, repeat this last step, or press the **Back** button top return to the choices on the left.

To append a punctuation character or other symbol, use the **Scroll Up** and **Scroll Down** buttons to select **Sign** and then press **Enter** to go across to the sign characters. Now use the **Scroll Up** and **Scroll Down** buttons again to select the required character, and press **Enter** to transfer the character to the cursor position. If another sign character is required, repeat this last step, or press the **Back** button top return to the choices on the left.

To append a space, use the **Scroll Up** and **Scroll Down** buttons to select **Space** and then press **Enter.**

To delete the character immediately preceding the underscore, use the **Scroll Up** and **Scroll Down** buttons to select **Back** and then press **Enter**. Note that it is not possible to delete the entire text string; use the **Back** function repeatedly to delete the characters one at a time.

To abort the entire textual edit, and return to the original field without changing the contents of the field, use the **Scroll Up** and **Scroll Down** buttons to select **Exit without Saving** and then press **Enter.**

To enter the text string in the original field, use the **Scroll Up** and **Scroll Down** buttons to select **Save and Exit** and then press **Enter.**

3.4 Settings Lock Mode

Sometimes, it is desirable to lock the settings of the DSM410 in order to keep them from being inadvertently changed. The DSM410 has a settings lock mode in which the settings of the DSM410 cannot be changed. To enter the lock mode, do the following steps:

- 1. Begin with the DSM410 powered off.
- 2. Press and hold the Up and Enter buttons.
- 3. While you are holding these two buttons, press and release the Power button.
- 4. Once the DSM410 has powered on and is displaying the warning screen, you may release the two buttons you are holding.
- 5. The DSM410 is now in settings lock mode. You can verify this by pressing the Enter key to display the main menu. You should see only the "Alert Status" and "Favorite Screens Mode" menu entries.
- 6. To exit settings lock mode, repeat steps 1-4. When you enter the main menu, you should again see all menu entries appear.



4 Important Concepts

4.1 Favorite Screens

The DSM410 can display many different types of information in many different configurations. It is capable of displaying up to four distinct windows on its screen at one time. Rather than making you select from among the many types of available information any time you want to change the displayed data, the DSM410 has the concept of "Favorite Screens". A "Favorite Screen" is a combination of display settings, data to display, and formats in which to display the data. The DSM410 supports up to 16 different favorite screens.

4.2 Categories and Data Types

The DSM410 is capable of displaying many types of information. In order to make it easier to locate a specific type of information to display, the different types of information are organized into general categories:

- AC Bus
- AC Generator
- AC Utility
- Anchor Watch
- DC
- Depth
- Electrical
- Elec. Distribution
- Engine
- Environment
- Fluid Flow
- Fuel Management
- GPS
- Heading
- Humidity
- Indicator
- Mechanical
- Motion
- Navigation
- Pressure/Vacuum
- Rudder
- SMS (Text) Status
- Special Device
- Speed
- Tank
- Temperature
- Time/Date
- Transmission
- VDR

- Vessel
- Wind

The following sections explore each category in detail and spell out all of the data types that are available for display, if the appropriate sensors are installed in the network.

4.2.1 AC Bus

Average Frequency – displays average frequency of the AC power on the bus Average L-N Voltage – displays average line to neutral RMS voltage of the AC power on the bus Average L-L Voltage – displays average line to line RMS voltage of the AC power on the bus Phase A Frequency – displays frequency of the AC power on phase A of the Bus Phase A L-N Voltage – displays phase A Line-to-Neutral RMS voltage of the AC Bus Phase AB L-L Voltage – displays phase A Line-to-phase B Line RMS voltage of the AC Bus Phase B Frequency – displays frequency of the AC power on phase B of the bus Phase B L-N Voltage – displays phase B Line-to-Neutral RMS voltage of the AC Bus Phase BC L-L Voltage – displays phase B Line-to-Neutral RMS voltage of the AC Bus Phase BC L-L Voltage – displays phase B Line-to-phase C Line RMS voltage of the AC Bus Phase C Frequency – displays frequency of the AC power on phase C of the bus Phase C L-N Voltage – displays phase C Line-to-Neutral RMS voltage of the AC Bus Phase C L-N Voltage – displays phase C Line-to-Neutral RMS voltage of the AC Bus

4.2.2 AC Generator

Average Current – displays the average current of the AC power on the generator **Average Frequency** – displays the average frequency of the AC power on the generator

- Average L-N Voltage displays average line to neutral RMS voltage of the AC power on the generator
- Average L-L Voltage displays average line to line RMS voltage of the AC power on the generator
- Total Real Power displays real power output by the generator
- Total Reactive Power displays reactive power output by the generator
- Total Apparent Power displays apparent power output by the generator
- Total Power Factor displays power factor of the generator
- **Total kWH Export** displays total energy produced by the generator (for the Maretron ACM100, this parameter's value may be reset to zero with the control mode of the display see Section 5.2.7.14 for details)
- **Total kWH Import** displays total energy consumed by the generator (for the Maretron ACM100, this parameter's value may be reset to zero with the control mode of the display see Section 5.2.7.14 for details)
- Phase A Current displays phase A current of the Generator
- Phase A Frequency displays frequency of the AC power on phase A of the Generator
- Phase A L-N Voltage displays phase A Line-to-Neutral RMS voltage of the Generator

Phase AB L-L Voltage – displays phase A Line-to-phase B Line RMS voltage of the Generator

Phase A Real Power – displays real power output on phase A of the generator

- Phase A Reactive Power displays reactive power output on phase A of the Generator
- Phase A Apparent Power displays apparent power output on phase A of the Generator
- Phase A Power Factor displays power factor of phase A of the Generator
- Phase B Current displays phase B current of the Generator

Phase B Frequency – displays frequency of the AC power on phase B of the Generator

Phase B L-N Voltage – displays phase B Line-to-Neutral RMS voltage of the Generator
Phase BC L-L Voltage – displays phase B Line-to-phase C Line RMS voltage of the Generator
Phase B Real Power – displays real power output on phase B of the generator
Phase B Reactive Power – displays reactive power output on phase B of the Generator
Phase B Apparent Power – displays apparent power output on phase B of the Generator
Phase B Power Factor – displays power factor of phase B of the Generator
Phase C Current – displays phase C current of the Generator
Phase C Frequency – displays frequency of the AC power on phase C of the Generator
Phase C L-N Voltage – displays phase C Line-to-Neutral RMS voltage of the Generator
Phase C Real Power – displays phase C Line-to-phase A Line RMS voltage of the Generator
Phase C Reactive Power – displays reactive power output on phase C of the Generator
Phase C Reactive Power – displays phase C Line-to-phase A Line RMS voltage of the Generator
Phase C Reactive Power – displays reactive power output on phase C of the Generator
Phase C Reactive Power – displays reactive power output on phase C of the Generator
Phase C Reactive Power – displays reactive power output on phase C of the Generator
Phase C Apparent Power – displays apparent power output on phase C of the Generator
Phase C Apparent Power – displays apparent power output on phase C of the Generator

4.2.3 AC Utility

Average Current – displays average current of the AC power on the utility

Average Frequency – displays average frequency of the AC power on the utility

Average L-N Voltage – displays average line to neutral RMS voltage of the AC power on the utility

Average L-L Voltage – displays average line to line RMS voltage of the AC power on the utility Total Real Power – displays real power output by the utility

Total Reactive Power – displays reactive power output by the utility

Total Apparent Power – displays apparent power output by the utility

Total Power Factor – displays power factor of the utility

- **Total kWH Export** displays total energy produced by the utility (for the Maretron ACM100, this parameter's value may be reset to zero with the control mode of the display see Section 5.2.7.14 for details)
- **Total kWH Import** displays total energy consumed by the utility (for the Maretron ACM100, this parameter's value may be reset to zero with the control mode of the display see Section 5.2.7.14 for details)

Phase A Current – displays phase A current of the Utility

Phase A Frequency - displays frequency of the AC power on phase A of the Utility

- Phase A L-N Voltage displays phase A Line-to-Neutral RMS voltage of the Utility
- Phase AB L-L Voltage displays phase A Line-to-phase B Line RMS voltage of the Utility

Phase A Real Power - displays real power output on phase A of the Utility

Phase A Reactive Power – displays reactive power output on phase A of the Utility

Phase A Apparent Power – displays apparent power output on phase A of the Utility

Phase A Power Factor - displays power factor of phase A of the Utility

Phase B Current - displays phase B current of the Utility

Phase B Frequency – displays frequency of the AC power on phase B of the utility

Phase B L-N Voltage - displays phase B Line-to-Neutral RMS voltage of the Utility

Phase BC L-L Voltage – displays phase B Line-to-phase C Line RMS voltage of the Utility

Phase B Real Power - displays real power output on phase B of the Utility

Phase B Reactive Power – displays reactive power output on phase B of the Utility

Phase B Apparent Power – displays apparent power output on phase B of the Utility

Phase B Power Factor – displays power factor of phase B of the Utility

Phase C Current – displays phase C current of the Utility

Phase C Frequency – displays frequency of the AC power on phase C of the utility
Phase C L-N Voltage – displays phase C Line-to-Neutral RMS voltage of the Utility
Phase CA L-L Voltage – displays phase C Line-to-phase A Line RMS voltage of the Utility
Phase C Real Power – displays real power output on phase C of the Utility
Phase C Reactive Power – displays reactive power output on phase C of the Utility
Phase C Apparent Power – displays apparent power output on phase C of the Utility
Phase C Power Factor – displays power factor of phase C of the Utility

4.2.4 Anchor Watch

The DSM410 provides a graphical display of the Anchor Alert (section 8.3.7.9) parameters. When the vessel is anchored, the position of vessel at the point of dropping the anchor is entered in to the Anchor Alert plus the maximum distance that the boat can drift from that position (normally a little more than the amount of Anchor Chain that you have let out). If the boat moves beyond that radius, an Alert is triggered. The Anchor Watch display shows the last reported position of the vessel relative to the reported Anchor Drop position and the radius of the alert (see section 7.1 for more details on the display).

You may use the control mode of the display to easily set the Anchor Drop position. See Section 7.1 for details.

4.2.5 DC

The DSM410 supports the display of information for up to 64 DC sources including alternators, batteries, solar cells, wind generators, etc., with special parameters for batteries (i.e., State of Charge, Time Remaining, etc.).

Current – displays electrical current being sourced to/from the battery

Voltage - displays voltage measured at the battery

Battery Temperature – displays battery case temperature

Battery State of Charge – displays estimated state of charge of the battery (please consult the battery monitor's documentation for details)

Battery Time Remaining – displays estimated time remaining for the battery given its current temperature and rate of discharge (please consult the battery monitor's documentation for details)

Ripple Voltage – displays magnitude of the AC component riding on top of the DC voltage **Power** – displays the power produced or consumed by the battery

4.2.6 Depth

Transducer Offset – when negative, it displays distance from the depth transducer to the bottom of the keel, when positive it displays distance between the depth transducer and the waterline

- Water Depth displays the current water depth including the transducer offset. If the transducer offset is programmed to a negative number, then the water depth represents the depth below the keel. If the transducer offset is positive, then the water depth represents water line depth.
- Water Below Transducer displays the distance from the depth transducer to the sea or lake bottom (the transducer offset is not taken into account)

4.2.7 Electrical

Resistance – displays electrical resistance



4.2.8 Elec. Distribution

The DSM410 supports control of the DCR100, Carling OctoPlex AC and DC Boxes, and other electrical distribution devices that utilize NMEA Command of the 127501 Binary Switch Status message for controlling loads.

Switch/Breaker – controls the ON/OFF state of a switch or circuit breaker

Breaker Current – displays current through a switch or circuit breaker

- Hardware OFF Counter displays the value of a hardware counter in Maretron's DCR100, SIM100 and RIM100 that count the number of the times the indicator has transitioned to the OFF state. This counter may be reset with the control mode of the display – see Section 5.2.7.14 for details)
- Hardware ON Counter displays the value of a hardware counter in Maretron's DCR100, SIM100 and RIM100 that count the number of the times the indicator has transitioned to the ON state. This counter may be reset with the control mode of the display – see Section 5.2.7.14 for details)
- Hardware ERROR Counter displays the value of a hardware counter in Maretron's DCR100, SIM100 and RIM100 that count the number of the times the indicator has transitioned to the ERROR state. This counter may be reset with the control mode of the display – see Section 5.2.7.14 for details)
- **Hardware OFF Timer** displays the value of a hardware timer in Maretron's DCR100, SIM100 and RIM100 that accumulates the elapsed time that the indicator has spent in the OFF state. This timer may be reset with the control mode of the display see Section 5.2.7.14 for details)
- Hardware ON Timer displays the value of a hardware timer in Maretron's DCR100, SIM100 and RIM100 that accumulates the elapsed time that the indicator has spent in the ON state. This timer may be reset with the control mode of the display see Section 5.2.7.14 for details)
- Hardware ERROR Timer displays the value of a hardware timer in Maretron's DCR100, SIM100 and RIM100 that accumulates the elapsed time that the indicator has spent in the ERROR state. This timer may be reset with the control mode of the display – see Section 5.2.7.14 for details)

4.2.9 Engine

The DSM410 supports the display of information for up to 64 engines.

Boost Pressure - displays the boost pressure of a supercharger or turbocharger Hours – displays the number of hours of operation reported by the engine **Coolant Pressure** – displays the engine's coolant pressure **Coolant Temp.** – displays the engine's coolant temperature Exhaust Gas Temp. – displays the temperature of the engine's exhaust gas Fuel Pressure – displays the pressure of the fuel for the engine Fuel Rate – displays the rate of fuel consumption for the engine **Oil Pressure** – displays the engine's oil pressure Oil Temp. – displays the engine's oil temperature Tachometer – displays the rotational speed of the engine Tilt/Trim – displays the tilt or trim of the drive Voltage – displays the electrical power supply voltage measured at the engine Fuel Economy (Dis./Vol.) - displays the current fuel economy for the engine Fuel Consumption (Vol./Dis.) - displays the current fuel consumption for the engine Percent Load – displays the current load on the engine as a percentage of rated load **Percent Torgue** – displays the current torgue from the engine as a percentage of rated torgue **Trip Fuel Used** – displays the total amount of fuel consumed by that engine on the present trip (fuel flow transducers that are capable of being reset via the 126208 NMEA 2000[®] command of the Trip Fuel Used field of the 127497 Trip Parameters, Engine message, such as the Maretron FFM100, may be reset with the control mode of the display – see Section 5.2.7.14 for details)

Warning – displays warning conditions generated by the engine

4.2.10 Environment

Barometric – displays the current atmospheric (barometric) pressure Heat Index – displays the current heat index based on air temperature and humidity Humidity Inside – displays the relative humidity from an indoor humidity sensor Humidity Outside – displays the relative humidity for an outdoor humidity sensor Moon Phase – displays the phase of the moon at the current time and position Sunrise – displays the local time of sunrise for the current day and position Sunset – displays the local time of sunset for the current day and position Dew Point – displays the current dew point based on air temperature and humidity Temp Engine Room – displays the air temperature from a sensor mounted in an engine room Temp Inside – displays the air temperature from a sensor mounted inside the vessel Temp Main Cabin – displays the air temperature from a sensor mounted inside the main cabin Temp Outside – displays the air temperature from a sensor mounted inside the main cabin Temp Sea – displays the current temperature from a sensor mounted inside the main cabin

Twilight AM – displays the time of nautical twilight before sunrise for the current day and position

Twilight PM – displays the time of nautical twilight after sunset for the current day and position

Weather – displays a screen with a wide variety of weather-related data (See Section 7.14 for details)

Wind Chill – displays the current wind chill based on air temperature and wind speed

4.2.11 Fluid Flow

Flow Rate – displays the current rate of flow of a fluid

Trip Volume – displays the total volume of fluid through the sensor on the present trip (fluid flow transducers that are capable of being reset via the NMEA 2000 command of the Trip Volume field of the 65287 Trip Volume (Maretron Proprietary) message, such as the Maretron FFM100, may be reset with the control mode of the display – see Section 5.2.7.14 for details)



4.2.12 Fuel Management

WARNING: Maretron fuel management products are designed to be accurate and reliable; however they should be used only as aids for fuel management and not as a replacement for traditional fuel management techniques. BEWARE: Conditions can quickly change that drastically effect time and distance to empty.



You should not use the fuel management data types unless you fully understand all the parameters associated with fuel management. All fuel tanks and all engines must be included when setting up the DSM410 plus there must be accurate fuel rate sensors installed on the vessel and accurate speed information in order for the DSM410 to properly display fuel management information. You should also note that fuel levels may contain significant error if the boat is not sitting level in the water (i.e., sailboat heeled over or a power boat riding bow up won't necessarily report the correct amount of fuel). Even when setup correctly, the DSM410 should be used only as an aid and not the sole source for fuel management information.

- **Total Fuel Economy** displays distance traveled per unit fuel used (for example, miles per gallon or kilometers per liter) using the specified GPS and specified engine instances within the favorite screen setup (see Section 5.2.6.4.2 for details).
- **Total Fuel Rate** displays rate of fuel usage per unit time (for example, gallons or liters per hour) for all engine instances specified within the favorite screen setup (see Section 5.2.6.4.2 for details)
- **Total Fuel Remaining** displays total fuel remaining in all fuel tanks specified within the favorite screen setup (see Section 5.2.6.4.2. In order for the DSM410 to properly calculate total fuel remaining, tank monitors connected to the network must provide tank capacity in addition to fluid level.
- **Distance to Empty** displays the distance you can travel before all fuel is consumed, assuming all conditions remain the same. The DSM410 computes distance to empty using several different parameters including the total fuel remaining (see above) and fuel economy (also discussed above). Remember, conditions can rapidly change that may drastically effect distance to empty. For example, if you are going out to sea with the wind and current behind you, the distance to empty may indicate that there is enough fuel to return home when in fact there isn't enough fuel to return. Distance to empty is only applicable if the conditions remain the same.
- **Time to Empty** displays the amount of time you can travel before all fuel is consumed, assuming all conditions remain the same. The DSM410 computes time to empty using total fuel remaining (see above) and the engine(s) fuel rate. Remember, conditions can rapidly change that may drastically effect time to empty. For example, if you are going out to sea with the wind and current behind you, the time to empty may indicate that there is enough fuel to return home when in fact there isn't enough fuel to return. Time to empty is only applicable if the conditions remain the same.
- **Total Fuel Capacity** displays the total capacity of all fuel tanks. The DSM410 can only compute total fuel capacity assuming all totalized tanks are transmitting their capacity.

Total Fuel Level – displays the percentage of fuel remaining in all fuel tanks.

- Total Fuel Consumption displays the total volume of fuel used per unit of distance traveled (for example, gallons per mile or liters per km) using the specified GPS and specified engine instances within the favorite screen setup (see Section 5.2.6.4.2 for details).
- Total Trip Fuel Used displays the total volume of fuel used on the current trip from by all engines or fuel flow monitors that support the transmission of trip fuel used information on the network (fuel flow transducers that are capable of being reset via the 126208 NMEA 2000® command of the Trip Fuel Used field of the 127497 Trip Parameters, Engine message, such as the Maretron FFM100, may be reset with the control mode of the display - see Section 5.2.7.14 for details).

4.2.13 GPS

Course Over Ground - displays the current Course over Ground (either true or magnetic depending on the "Heading:" setting found under the "Units..." menu item) Lat/Lon – displays the current latitude and longitude of the vessel

Speed Over Ground – displays the current speed over ground

Status - displays the current operating mode and status of the specified GPS receiver

4.2.14 Heading

Magnetic/True – displays the current heading of the vessel (the direction the vessel is pointing) relative to true or magnetic north depending on the unit setting of the heading parameter (see Section 5.2.7.1)

Rate of Turn - displays the angular rate of rotation of the vessel about the vertical axis Variation - displays the magnetic variation used to convert between true and magnetic headings

4.2.15 **Humidity**

Inside - displays the relative humidity from an indoor humidity sensor

Outside - displays the relative humidity from an outdoor humidity sensor

User Defined 129 - User Defined 144 - displays the relative humidity from humidity sensors of user-defined types

4.2.16 Indicator

Status - displays the on/off status of an indicator

- Hardware OFF Counter displays the value of a hardware counter in Maretron's DCR100, SIM100 and RIM100 that count the number of the times the indicator has transitioned to the OFF state. This counter may be reset with the control mode of the display - see Section 5.2.7.14 for details)
- Hardware ON Counter displays the value of a hardware counter in Maretron's DCR100, SIM100 and RIM100 that count the number of the times the indicator has transitioned to the ON state. This counter may be reset with the control mode of the display - see Section 5.2.7.14 for details)
- Hardware ERROR Counter displays the value of a hardware counter in Maretron's DCR100, SIM100 and RIM100 that count the number of the times the indicator has transitioned to the ERROR state. This counter may be reset with the control mode of the display - see Section 5.2.7.14 for details)



- Hardware OFF Timer displays the value of a hardware timer in Maretron's DCR100, SIM100 and RIM100 that accumulates the elapsed time that the indicator has spent in the OFF state. This timer may be reset with the control mode of the display see Section 5.2.7.14 for details)
- Hardware ON Timer displays the value of a hardware timer in Maretron's DCR100, SIM100 and RIM100 that accumulates the elapsed time that the indicator has spent in the ON state. This timer may be reset with the control mode of the display see Section 5.2.7.14 for details)
- Hardware ERROR Timer displays the value of a hardware timer in Maretron's DCR100, SIM100 and RIM100 that accumulates the elapsed time that the indicator has spent in the ERROR state. This timer may be reset with the control mode of the display – see Section 5.2.7.14 for details)

4.2.17 Mechanical

dB – displays a level (sound, power) measured by a sensor that transmits a decibel level **Force** – displays mechanical force from a load cell

Strain - displays the amount of mechanical strain an object is subjected to

4.2.18 Motion

Acceleration – displays acceleration

Angle – displays an angle transmitted by an angle sensor (e.g., mast rotation angle) **Angular Velocity** – displays angular velocity

Angular Acceleration – displays angular acceleration

Distance - displays a linear distance

Rotational Rate - displays rotational rate (e.g., shaft speed)

Velocity - displays linear velocity

4.2.19 Navigation

The DSM410 is not a primary navigation device; that is, it does not provide means for entering and storing waypoint and route data. The DSM410 can receive information on the current leg of the voyage from a primary navigation device (such as a chart plotter or PC with navigation software and NMEA 2000[®] interface) and display this information.

Bearing Orig to Dest – displays the direction from the origin waypoint to the destination waypoint **Bearing To Waypoint** – displays the bearing to the destination waypoint

Course Over Ground – displays the current Course over Ground (always referenced to true north)

Cross Track Error – displays the cross-track error (minimum distance from the boat to the programmed route)

Distance To Waypoint - displays the distance to the destination waypoint

Est. Time of Arrival – displays the Estimated Time of Arrival at the waypoint

Lat/Lon – displays the current latitude and longitude of the vessel

Rolling Road - displays navigation information for the current leg of the route

Set/Drift - displays the direction (set) and speed (drift) of the water current

Speed Over Ground – displays current Speed over Ground (relative to the earth, not the water) **Time To Go** – displays the estimated Time to Go until arrival at the waypoint

VMG to Waypoint – displays the Velocity Made Good; that is, the speed at which the distance to the waypoint is decreasing

Waypoint Number – this displays the number of the destination waypoint

4.2.20 Pressure/Vacuum

Altimeter – displays the current altimeter pressure reading Barometric - displays the current atmospheric (barometric) pressure Compressed Air - displays the current pressure of compressed air Engine Boost - displays the boost pressure of a supercharger or turbocharger Engine Coolant – displays the coolant pressure for an engine Engine Fuel - displays the fuel pressure for an engine Engine Oil - displays the oil pressure for an engine Filter – displays the current pressure at a fuel filter Fuel - displays the current fuel pressure Hydraulic Oil - displays hydraulic oil pressure Oil - displays the current oil pressure Steam - displays steam pressure Transmission Oil – displays oil pressure for an transmission User Defined 129 - User Defined 144 - displays pressure from a pressure sensor of a userdefined type Water – displays water pressure

4.2.21 Rudder

The DSM410 supports the display of information for up to four rudders.

Rudder Angle & Order – displays the angle of the vessel's rudder as indicated by the rudder sensor, as well as the angle to which the rudder has been commanded by an autopilot or steering device

4.2.22 SMS (Text) Status

Status – displays the status of the Maretron SIM100 SMS (Text) device Signal Strength – displays the signal strength of the cellular network Indicator – displays whether the Maretron SIM100 SMS (Text) device has a connection to the cellular network

4.2.23 Special Device

Watermaker – displays a screen with several different parameters associated with Sea Recovery watermakers

4.2.24 Speed

Speed Through Water – displays the speed of the boat relative to the water

Speed Over Ground – displays Speed over Ground (relative to the earth, not the water) Total Log – displays the total distance traveled by the vessel since the log indicator was installed Trip Log – displays the distance traveled by the vessel since the trip indication of the log indicator was last reset (the trip log value from log transducers that are capable of being reset via the NMEA 2000[®] command of the Distance Since Last Reset field of the 128275 Distance Log message, such as the Maretron DST110, may be reset with the control mode of the display – see Section 5.2.7.14 for details)



4.2.25 Tank

The DSM410 supports the display of information for up to sixteen tanks types (16 fuel plus 16 water, etc.).

Capacity – displays the fluid capacity of the tank

Level - displays the level of fluid in the tank as a percentage of its capacity

Remaining – displays the amount of fluid in the tank

4.2.26 Temperature

The display supports the display of temperatures. Each temperature sender on the bus is required to state the source of the temperature, which may be one of:

Bait Well Batterv **Dew Point Engine Coolant Engine Oil** Engine Room Exhaust Gas Freezer **Heat Index Heating System** Inside Live Well Main Cabin Outside Refrigeration Sea **Transmission Oil** User Defined 129 – User Defined 144 Wind Chill

4.2.27 Time/Date

Local Date – displays the current date referenced to the local time offset (see Section 5.2.7.12, on page 43 for details on how to set the local time offset)

UTC Date - displays the current date referenced to Universal Time Coordinated

Moon Phase – displays the phase of the moon at the current time and position

Sunrise – displays the local time of sunrise for the current day and position

Sunset – displays the local time of sunset for the current day and position

- **Local Time** displays the current time referenced to the local time offset (see Section 5.2.7.12, on page 43 for details on how to set the local time offset)
- **UTC Time** displays the current time referenced to Universal Time Coordinated (also known as Greenwich Mean Time, or GMT)
- **Twilight AM** displays the time of nautical twilight (i.e., the time of day when the sun is 12 degrees below the horizon in the morning) for the current day and position
- **Twilight PM** displays the time of nautical twilight (i.e., the time of day when the sun is 12 degrees below the horizon in the evening) for the current day and position

4.2.28 Transmission

The DSM410 supports the display of information for up to four transmissions.

Gear - displays the current gear of the transmission (forward, neutral, or reverse)

Oil Pressure - displays the pressure of the oil in the transmission

Oil Temp. – displays the temperature of the oil in the transmission

Warning – displays warning indications generated by the transmission

4.2.29 VDR

The DSM410 supports display of status of a Vessel Data Recorder.

Status - displays the operating state of the VDR

- Memory Capacity displays the total memory capacity of the USB flash drive in the VDR
- **Memory Used** displays the total amount of memory used on the USB flash drive in the VDR
- **Memory Available** displays the total amount of memory remaining on the USB flash drive in the VDR
- **Percent Used** displays the percentage of the memory capacity of the USB flash drive in the VDR that is filled with data
- **Percent Available** displays the percentage of the memory capacity of the USB flash drive in the VDR that is still available for data storage

4.2.30 Vessel

Heave – displays heave (vessel movement along the vertical axis)

Keel – displays the height of a swing keel

Pitch – displays the pitch of the vessel (rotation about the horizontal axis perpendicular to the ship's keel)

Roll – displays the roll of the vessel (rotation about the horizontal axis parallel to the ship's keel) **Trim Tabs** – displays the position of the vessel's trim tabs

Trim Tab Port – displays the position of the port trim tab

Trim Tab Starboard - displays the position of the starboard trim tab

4.2.31 Wind

- Apparent Direction displays the angle of the wind relative to the vessel center line as it appears to an observer on the deck of a moving or stationary vessel (does not subtract out the speed of the vessel)
- **Ground Direction** displays the angle of the wind relative to true or magnetic north (depending on the unit setting of the "heading" parameter, see Section 5.2.7.1) measured relative to a stationary observer, calculated using heading, course over ground (COG), and speed over ground (SOG)
- **True Direction** displays the angle of the wind relative to the vessel center line (vessel's speed is subtracted from Apparent wind direction), calculated using speed through water (STW) or speed over ground (SOG) (depending on the unit setting of the "Wind True Vessel Ref." Parameter, see Section 5.2.7.6)
- **Apparent Speed** displays the speed of the wind as it appears to an observer on the deck of a moving or stationary vessel (does not subtract out the speed of the vessel)
- **Ground Speed** displays the speed of the wind relative to a stationary observer, calculated using heading, course over ground (COG), and speed over ground (SOG)
- True Speed displays the speed of the wind as it would appear to an observer if the vessel was stopped in the water, calculated using speed through water (STW) or speed over ground


(SOG) (depending on the unit setting of the "Wind True Vessel Ref." Parameter, see Section 5.2.7.6)

4.3 Alerts

An *alert* is a signal to a user that there is either an alarm or warning condition requiring user intervention.

Alerts are integrated in an NMEA2000[®] system. For each Alert, one device acts as a master, or Alert Source, and monitors a parameter against a preset threshold. When the parameter crosses this threshold, the Alert is displayed on the Alert Source and an Alert Message is sent out on the NMEA2000[®] bus to other devices capable of displaying Alerts. Optionally, an Annunciator message is sent to devices capable of sounding an audio alarm (e.g. the ALM100). Currently, the DSM150, DSM250, DSM410, and the N2KView[™] Vessel Monitoring Software are capable of generating and receiving Alert Messages.

The Alert may be accepted or cancelled from any capable device, in which case an Alert Response Message is sent to the Alert Source, which in turn will turn the Annunciators off and inform the devices on the bus of the new Alert Status.

The DSM410 can support the definition of up to 40 alerts.

4.3.1 Alert Types

There are two classes of alerts, which are distinguished by their severity:

- *Alarm* An alarm is a type of alert announcing a condition requiring immediate attention or user intervention. Alarms are shown in red (when Active), and always appear above the warnings on the Alert Status Screen.
- *Warning* A warning is a type of alert announcing a condition requiring non-immediate attention for precautionary reasons. Warnings are shown in yellow (when Active), and always appear below alarms on the Alert Status Screen.

4.3.2 Alert Terminology

The following alert terminology, consistent with International Maritime Organization Code on Alarms and Indicators, is used in N2KView[™] and the DSM410.

- *Accept* The user action of acknowledging the existence of an alert. Alerts are only accepted when they are Active
- *Cancel* The user action of removing an alert from the list of displayed alerts. Alerts may only be cancelled if the condition causing the alert has been removed.
- *Clear* An alert is cleared when the condition causing the alert is removed. This is not a user action.
- *Trigger* An alert is triggered when the condition monitored by the alert is met.

4.3.3 Alert Priority

Each alert has a priority which you can define, ranging from 0 to 4000 with 0 the highest or most important priority and 4000 the lowest or least important priority. Alarms always have a higher priority than Warnings (i.e. an Alarm with a priority of 4000 has a higher priority than a warning with priority 0).

4.3.4 Vessel Alert Operating Modes

You can configure alerts to operate in one or more fixed operating modes, 1) disabled, 2) moored, 3) underway, or 4) anchored. This allows you to easily enable or disable groups of individual alarms

depending on the vessel's operating mode. Setting the vessel alert operating mode is described in section 8.6.

The Operating Mode is one of:

- *Disabled* All alerts are disabled. This mode should be used when the vessel is in storage, dry-dock, or otherwise out of operation.
- *Moored* This mode is used when the vessel is secured to a structure that is permanently attached to the ground like a pier, wharf, dock, or mooring buoy.
- Underway This mode is used when the vessel is not moored nor anchored.
- Anchored This mode is used when the vessel is secured to the sea floor with an anchor.



NOTE

The DSM410 will always display global alerts generated by other devices on the network, regardless of the Operating Mode selected.

Maretron[•]

4.3.5 Alert States

Alerts exist in one of five states.

- Disabled A Disabled Alert is an alarm or warning that has yet to be enabled or activated. In this state, no action will be taken regardless of the value of the monitored parameter. A Disabled Alert May be enabled in which case it transitions to the Inactive state
- Inactive An Inactive alert is an alarm or warning that has been enabled, but the condition causing the alert is not present. If the alert condition becomes true, the alert will become an *Active Alert*. An Inactive alert may be disabled, which causes it to transition to the *Disabled* state. New alerts are created in the Inactive State.
- Active An Active alert is an alarm or warning where the condition to trigger the alert has been
 met, and is still present and the operator has not accepted the alert. An active alert is indicated
 by a flashing indicator on the Alert Status Screen, and by a flashing colored box at the top right
 of the DSM410 screen. This box will be visible on all screens. Also, annunciators that are
 programmed to sound when this alert is active will be sounding during this state. An active
 alert can be accepted by the user (causing it to become an Accepted Alert) or disabled by the
 user (causing it to become a Disabled Alert). If the condition causing the alert is rectified, the
 alert transitions to the Awaiting Cancel state.
- Accepted An Accepted alert is an alarm or warning which was Active and has been accepted by the user. A solid indicator on the Alert Status Screen indicates an Accepted alert; annunciators are silenced. Normally, an alert is a serious matter that requires immediate attention and requires a deliberate attempt to remove the condition that caused the alert. Sometimes it isn't practical to immediately remove the condition that caused the alert; accepting the alert will silence the annunciators while the appropriate user action is being taken.

To prevent an alert that has accepted by the user from being forgotten, an accepted alert will transition back to being Active after a period of time set by the user. If the condition causing the alert is rectified (cleared), the alert will transition to the Inactive state.

- You may disable the alert at this time, causing it to become a Disabled Alert.
- Awaiting Cancel An Alert in the Awaiting Cancel state is an alert where the condition that caused the alarm or warning has been removed without the alert being accepted while it was

Active. To avoid such alerts from being missed by the user, the alert is required to be cancelled. You may cancel the alert at this time, causing it to become an *Inactive Alert*, or you may disable the alert, causing it to become a *Disabled Alert*. Should the condition trigger the alert again, the alert will transition back to the Active state, incrementing a counter which is displayed on the Alert Status Screen in the "What Happened" column.

4.3.6 Available Alert Classes

The DSM410 has several classes of alerts, depending on the parameter for which an alert is being configured.

- Low Alert The alert will become active if the monitored value drops below the value in this alert for longer than the time specified in the Set Delay field.
- *High Alert* The alert will become active if the monitored value rises above the value specified in this alert for longer than the time specified in the Set Delay field.
- Data Unavailable Alert The alert will become active if the monitored value is not received, or is received but with a value of "Data Not Available", for longer than the time specified in the Set Delay field.
- On Alert The alert will become active if the monitored switch or flag becomes "ON" for longer than the time specified in the Set Delay field.
- Off Alert The alert will become active if the monitored switch or flag becomes "OFF" for longer than the time specified in the Set Delay field.
- *Tripped Alert* The alert will become active if the monitored circuit breaker becomes "Tripped" for longer than the time specified in the Set Delay field.
- Course Alert The alert will become active if the monitored course differs from the Reference Direction by more than the Offset COG Set Point for longer than the time specified in the Set Delay field.
- GPS Quality Alert The alert will become active if the GPS Quality drops below the level set in the GPS Quality Alert Set field for longer than the time specified in the Set Delay field.
- Outside Radius Alert The alert will become active if the distance between the current GPS position and the Reference Latitude and Longitude rises above the value in the Outside Radius Alert Set field for longer than the time specified in the Set Delay field.
- Inside Radius Alert The alert will become active if the distance between the current GPS position and the Reference Latitude and Longitude falls below the value in the Outside Radius Alert Set field for longer than the time specified in the Set Delay field.
- Anchor Alert Similar to the Outside Radius Alert, this alert will become active if the distance between the current GPS position and the Reference Latitude and Longitude rises above the value in the Outside Radius Alert Set field for longer than the time specified in the Set Delay field. The Anchor Alert is more suited for smaller radii, and can be displayed graphically in the Anchor Watch Display.
- Direction Alert The alert will become active if the monitored course differs from the Reference Direction by more than the Offset Wind Direction Set Point for longer than the time specified in the Set Delay field.
- *Timer Alert* The alert will become active when the time reaches the time specified in the Alarm Time field, and thereafter after the intervals specified in the Repeat Interval field.



5 Operating Modes

The DSM410 has two main operating modes including normal viewing of information in the favorite screens mode (Section 5.1) and the menu mode (Section 5.2). Also, the control mode is a sub mode of the favorite screens mode, in which certain control and reset functions may be performed (Section 5.2.7.14).

5.1 Favorite screens modes

After the power up screen (see Section 3.1), the DSM410 always enters the favorite screens mode. In the favorite screens modes, the DSM410 displays one of up to sixteen "favorite" screens. Each "favorite" screen can display one, two, three, or four information displays. Each information display can show any displayable data in any display type supported by that data. In favorite screens mode, the DSM410 can operate in one of two ways:

Manual mode – a particular "favorite" screen remains on the display until you select another one, or

Auto mode – the DSM410 automatically cycles between "favorite" screens, at time intervals which are individually programmable for each "favorite" screen.

An example screen of the DSM410 running in favorite screens mode can be seen in Figure 6 below.



Figure 6 – DSM410 Running in Favorite Screens Mode

The very bottom left hand corner of the screen shows two important parameters: 1) it indicates which favorite screen is being displayed (in this case Favorite #5), and 2) it indicates that the DSM410 is currently operating in the *Auto* mode. *Manual* would appear in place of *Auto* if the DSM410 was operating in *Manual* mode.

5.2 Menu Mode

The menu mode is entered while viewing favorite screens by pressing the **Enter** key (). In menu mode, the DSM410 may be configured by scrolling up and down the menu and selecting one of the submenus found there. The DSM410 Main Menu can be seen in Figure 7 below.

Alert Se Alert Sta Configur Display Favorite Favorite Units	tup atus Sattings Screens Screens	 Mode: Setup	Manua	I	
Power	Back	Scr	oll P	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 7 – Main Menu

The menu has the following structure

Alert Setup... (5.2.1) Add New Alert... (8.2) Delete Alert... (8.4) Edit Alert... 8.5) Operating Mode (8.6) SMS (Text) Phone Book... (0) Advanced Configuration... (8.8) Restore Factory Defaults (8.9) Alert Status... (5.2.2) Configuration... Device Configuration... (5.2.3.1) Device Selection... (5.2.3.2) **Display Settings...** Advanced Configuration... (5.2.4.1) Advanced Information... (5.2.4.2) Backlight... (5.2.4.3) Color Setup... (5.2.4.4) Demo Mode (5.2.4.5) Keypad Beep (5.2.4.6) Label (5.2.4.7) Language (5.2.4.8) Software Version (5.2.4.9) Favorite Screens Mode (5.2.4.7) Favorite Screens Setup... (5.2.6) Units... (5.2.6.4.2)



5.2.1 Alert Setup Menu

Selecting **Alert Setup...** from the Main Menu allows you to create, delete, and edit the Alerts stored in the DSM410, and to change the operating mode of the vessel. See section 7.25 for details on the Alerts.

5.2.2 Alert Status

Selecting **Alert Status...** from the Main Menu will display a list of currently active Alerts in the DSM410. See section 8.1.1 for details on the Alert Status Screen.

5.2.3 Configuration Menu

The configuration menu allows you to change the configuration of certain types of Maretron NMEA 2000[®] devices, as well as to select from which NMEA 2000[®] nodes data may be received. The available options within the Configuration screen are shown in Figure 8.



Figure 8 – Configuration Screen

5.2.3.1 Device Configuration

The ability to calibrate and configure other devices on the bus is a major portion of this manual. For this reason it has been given an entire section. See section 6 for details.

5.2.3.2 Device Selection

The "**Device Selection**..." menu allows you to enable and disable the display of data from individual NMEA 2000[®] devices. In this manner, multiple devices of the same type may be used in redundant and fail-safe configurations. A typical "**Device Selection**..." menu for a network configuration can be seen in Figure 9 below.

NOTE: Now that you can select instances for each displayed parameter, you do not need to configure this menu. This menu entry is retained for backward compatibility.

Confi	iguration					
Devi	ce Seleo	stion				
NA	Manufactu	rer Model	SN#	Status	Display	
-	Maretron	RAA 100	2097151	Offline	On	
21	Maretron	GPS 100	1140001	Online	On	
62	Maretron	SSC200	1120002	Online	On	
03	Maretron	DST 100	1180003	Online	On	
54	Maretron	USB 100	1160004	Online	On	
15	Maretron	DSM200	1100005	Online	On	
A8	Maretron	J2K 100	1240008	Online	On	
86	Maretron	WSO 100	1200006	Online	On	
97	Maretron	EMS 100	1220007	Online	On	
B9	Maretron	TLA 100	1260009	Online	On	
Powe	er	Back S	Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Ente	ar

Figure 9 – Device Selection Screen

The "NA" column of the menu displays the node address the device is using.

The "Manufacturer" column of the menu displays the manufacturer of the device.

The "Model" column displays the model number of the device.

- The "**SN#**" column displays the serial number of the device, so that any of two or more devices of the same manufacturer and model number may be distinguished from one another.
- The "**Status**" column indicates whether the device is currently connected to the bus and is responding to queries ("Online"), or has been disconnected from the bus, has lost power, or for some other reason is not responding to queries ("Offline").
- The "**Display**" column indicates whether data from that particular device is accepted for display by the DSM410 ("On") or that the DSM410 ignores data transmitted by this device ("Off"). By scrolling to the device and pressing the Enter key (), you may then use the Scroll Up () and Scroll Down () keys to toggle the "Display" status for this particular device. Once you are satisfied with the state of the "Display" setting, press the Enter key () to accept the setting.

The DSM410 will retain information on devices that have been removed from the bus or powered down ("Offline") so that when they are placed back on the bus, they will assume their prior "Display" setting.



5.2.4 Display Settings Menu

The display settings menu allows you to change parameters related to display operation.

Display S Advanced Backlight Color Set Demo Mo Keypad B Label: Language Software	ettings Configur Informat tup de: Off (N eep: On :: English Version:	ation ion lormal Use 1.6.2.3	e Mode) Scoll	
Power	Back	Up	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 10 – DSM410 Display Settings Screen

5.2.4.1 Advanced Configuration

Advanced Configuration changes some complex parameters within the device, and should only be performed by an advanced user. Typically advanced configuration is only done at installation and should not need to be done while at sea.

Device Installa #1: H #2: Primary Refresh Restore	Instance : tion Descri elm / Device S Network I Factory D	#3 iption: election informatior Defaults	1	
Power	Back	Scroll	Scroll	Enter

Figure 11 – DSM410 Advanced Configuration

5.2.4.1.1 Installation Description

This entry allows you to modify the NMEA 2000 installation description text strings. You can enter any information you like here, such as the date the unit was installed, or the location in which it was installed, for later reference. Tools such as Maretron N2KAnalyzer allow you to view these values later. See section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.

5.2.4.1.2 Primary Device Selection

Not all the data displayed by the DSM410 can be taken directly off the NMEA 2000 bus. Some require calculations with other parameters before the desired value can be displayed. An example would be the display of ground relative wind. In this case, the wind measured by the weather station needs to be combined with the vessel heading, course over ground, and speed over ground. The instance number of the weather station is specified for each control.

This table provides the instance numbers of the other parameters used in the calculations.

Heading Inside Humidity Inside Temp. Navigation	: Any : Any : Any : Any : Any		
Outside Humidity Outside Temp.	: Any : Any		
Speed Inrough Water Time	: Any : Any Scroll	Scroll	Enter

Figure 12 – DSM410 Primary Device Selection

5.2.4.1.3 Refresh Network Information

The Device Configuration (5.2.3.1) and Device Selection (5.2.3.2) menus display a list of devices that have been detected on the NMEA2000 bus. This list is kept in memory permanently to reduce the overhead of requesting device information each time one of these pages is requested. Pressing the Enter key while this selection is highlighted will clear the list of devices. It will be necessary to perform this action to remove traces of devices that have been removed from the bus.

5.2.4.1.4 Restore Factory Defaults

This option restores all settings on the DSM410 device to their factory default state.

5.2.4.2 Advanced Information

The Advanced Information Page displays information pertaining to the permanent setup and configuration of the DSM410.



Display S Advance	Settings d Informat	ion				
Boot Ve	rsion	: 0.0.0				
Bus Sta Device	itus Instance	· 0x03 (3	0			
Hardwar	e Version	: 2.0	,			
Industry	Group	: Marine	(4)			
installat #1∙ H∉	tion Descri	ption:				
#2:	51111					
Label:						
Load E	quivalency	Number:	13 (650	mΑ	Max)	
Manufac	turer :	Maretron	(137)			Ш
Power	Back	Scroll Up	Scroll Down		Ente	ľ

Figure 13 – DSM410 Advanced Information Screen

Most of the items within the Advanced Information... menu are obvious and not described here, although a less obvious menu item (Bus Status...) is described below.

5.2.4.2.1 Bus Status

The DSM410 is capable of monitoring the NMEA 2000[®] network and displaying certain statistics. **Baud Rate**: the speed capability of the connected network given in bits per second (bps), **Voltage**: the network voltage as measured by the DSM410 in Volts,

Traffic: the percent usage of the total available bandwidth measured by the DSM410,

Receive Rate: the DSM410 measured received rate in frames per second (fps),

Transmit Rate: the DSM410 measured transmit rate in frames per second (fps),

Error Count: the DSM410 measured error frames since entering the Bus Status screen,

Receive Counter: the number of DSM410 measured received frames, and

Transmit Counter: the number of DSM410 measured transmitted frames.

Bus Status						
Baud Rate: 250 Voltage :	000 12.1	bps Volt	s			
CAN Frame Traffic Receive Rate Transmit Rate	:	44.4 845 2	% fps fps			
Error Count Receive Count Transmit Cour	: ter nter	4	Time	es 0 0	Frames Frames	
Power Back						

Figure 14 – Bus Status Display

5.2.4.3 Backlight

The DSM410 has three user-programmable lighting levels which may be cycled through using the Lights key () on the keypad while the DSM410 is operating in favorite screens mode. Each time you quick press the Lights key () in favorite screens mode, the DSM410 backlight will transition between the "Low" setting, the "Medium" setting, and the "High" setting Note that a quick press of the Lights key () changes the screen intensity or backlight while a long press changes the color palette as described in Section 5.2.4.4. The Backlight menu allows you to program the "Low", "Medium", and "High" brightness levels. The value that appears next to the appropriate setting is measured in percent of full brightness. The Backlight menu can be seen in Figure 15 below.

Display S Backligh Low 33' Medium High: 10	6ettings t % : 66 % 10 %			
Power	Back	Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 15 – Backlight Menu

5.2.4.4 Color Setup

The DSM410 has eight user-programmable color palettes. The default color palettes are as follows:

- Color Set #1 White Back Ground, Black Foreground
- Color Set #2 Red Back Ground, Black Foreground
- Color Set #3 Blue Back Ground, Black Foreground
- Color Set #4 Green Back Ground, Black Foreground
- Color Set #5 Black Background, White Foreground
- Color Set #6 Black Background, Red Foreground
- Color Set #7 Black Background, Blue Foreground
- Color Set #8 Black Background, Green Foreground

Choosing the "Color Setup..." menu item from the main "Display Settings..." menu takes you to the screen shown in Figure 16.



Power	Back	Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Enter
Restore	Tactory D	Ciaulto		
Color S	Eactory D	afaulte		
Color S	et #/			
Color S	et#6			
Color S	et #5			
Color S	et #4			
Color S	et #3			
Color S	et #2			
Color S	et #1			
Color Se	tup			
isplay S	Settings			

Use the Scroll Up (①) or Scroll Down (①) keys to move the highlight to the color set that you want to change, and then press the Enter key (①). Selecting "Color Set #1" takes you to the screen shown in Figure 17.



Figure 17 – Color Palette Configuration Screen

You can enable or disable Color Set #1 by changing the "Color Set:" to "Off". This will disable Color Set #1 while changing between color palettes when using a long press of the Lights key () when the DSM410 is operating in favorite screens mode. Change the "Color Set:" back to "On" to enable this color palette.

Notice that Color Set #1 has a white background (100% Red, 100% Green, and 100% Blue equals white) and that the foreground color is black. You can adjust the three different colors to achieve different color backgrounds. Use the Scroll Up () or Scroll Down () keys to move the highlight to the color you want to change, and then press the Enter key (). Use the Scroll Up () or Scroll Down () keys with the percentage number selected to change that particular color's intensity. You can also switch the background color to the foreground color by changing the Inverse Background to

"On". The background will switch to black and the percentage color settings are now used to define the foreground color.

The "Restore Factory Defaults" menu selection will restore all of the color sets to their factory default states.

5.2.4.5 Demo Mode

The DSM410 has a demo mode suited for displaying the capabilities of the unit. It causes the DSM410 to operate in a "simulated data" mode, where the DSM410 will install a set of pre-defined favorite screens and other configuration and will then display only the internally generated simulated data and will ignore any data arriving over the NMEA 2000[®] bus. While in demo mode, the DSM410 will display a "Demo" indicator in the upper right hand corner of the screen. Programming this option to "On (Show Room Mode)" or "On (Boat Show Mode, No Auto Reset)" will cause the DSM410 to enter the demo mode while programming this option for "Off (Normal Use Mode)" will cause the DSM410 to SM410 to return to using data from the NMEA 2000[®] bus.

In order to be able to demonstrate all of the DSM410's capabilities, the unit allows the user to setup and configure different screens while in demo mode. However, in a show room environment and five minutes after the last button push (i.e., the customer has walked away the demo unit), the DSM410 will reset itself to the default screens. There are others times where it is important that the DSM410 doesn't automatically reset after five minutes to the default screens, for example at a boat show where it is desired to show specific screens while running in the demo mode and thus the "Boat Show Mode".

WARNING: All data displayed in demo mode is simulated. Do not use this data for vessel monitoring or navigation purposes.

Display S Advanced Advanced Backlight Color Se Demo Ma Keypad I Label:	ettings d Configu d Informat t tup ode: On (6 Beep: On	ration tion Show Roor	n Mode)	
Software	Version:	1.6.2.3		
Power	Back	Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 18 – Setting the Demo Mode

5.2.4.6 Keyboard Beep

The DSM410 has an annunciator that can be programmed to beep every time a key is pressed. Conversely, the keypad beep may be disabled if desired.



Backligh Color Se Demo M Keypad	t stup ode: Off (I Beep: <mark>On</mark>	Normal Us	e Mode)	
Languag Software	e: English Version:	1.6.2.3		
Power	Back	Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 19 – Setting the Keyboard Beep Option

5.2.4.7 Label

Each DSM410 can be given a software label. Normally this label will indicate the position of the DSM410 and is used by the Alert System to identify one DSM410 from another.

Display Settin Advanced Co Advanced Inf Backlight Color Setup Demo Mode: Keypad Beep Label: <u>Bridge</u> Language: En Software Vers	gs nfiguration ormation Off (Normal Use Mode) : On glish sion: 1.6.2.3	
Power Ba	nck	Edit

Figure 20 – Editing the DSM410 Label

5.2.4.8 Language

The DSM410 currently supports two languages: English and Dutch (Nederlands). Support for other languages is planned for future firmware releases. To change the currently used language, use the Scroll Up ($\textcircled{\bullet}$) or Scroll Down ($\textcircled{\bullet}$) keys to move the highlight to the "Language:" menu item, and then press the Enter key ($\textcircled{\bullet}$) to move the highlight to the language selection on the right. Use the Scroll Up ($\textcircled{\bullet}$) or Scroll Down ($\textcircled{\bullet}$) keys to change the selection to the desired value, and then press the Enter key ($\textcircled{\bullet}$) to confirm your selection. The DSM410 will then reset itself, after which the selected language will be used for menus and titles.

5.2.4.9 Software Version

This field displays the version of the Firmware running in the DSM410.

5.2.5 Favorite Screens Mode

The DSM410 supports two methods of operation in favorites mode: "Auto", in which the DSM410 automatically cycles through all favorite screens that have been enabled for Auto mode, and "Manual", in which the DSM410 continues to display the currently displayed favorite screen until you press the Scroll Up () or Scroll Down () keys, in which the DSM410 will display the next higher or lower numbered favorite screen, respectively, that is enabled for Manual mode.



Figure 21 – Setting the Favorite Screens Mode

5.2.6 Favorite Screens Setup Menu

The DSM410 supports the configuration of sixteen favorite screens. The favorite setup screen allows you to select which of the sixteen favorite screens you wish to configure.



Figure 22 – Favorite Screens Setup Screen

Once you have selected a favorite screen to configure, you will see the screen shown in Figure 23. The exact format of the setup screen will depend on the format chosen.



Favorite S Favorite #	creens Se ≇1	etup	#1	#2
Favorite	Mode: Au	to/Man ual		
Format: 4	4 Quarters	3	#3	# 4
Auto Cha	ange Inter	val:5 Sec	onds	
Window	#1			
Data: Fi	ıel Manag	ement Total	Fuel Consum	ption
Type: N	umeric			
GPS in	stance: #0			
Title: De	efault (Tot	al Fuel Co	nsumption)
Window	#2			
Data: A(C Bus Ave	erage Frequ	uency	
Type: N	umeric			
Power	Back	Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Ente

Figure 23 – Favorite Screen Parameters

5.2.6.1 Favorite Mode

This entry allows you to select in which display method of favorite screens mode this particular favorite screen is enabled. This parameter has four possible settings:

Off - this favorite screen is disabled and is not displayed

Auto – this favorite screen is displayed only in Auto mode

Manual – this favorite screen is displayed only in Manual mode

Auto/Manual - this favorite screen is displayed in both Auto and Manual modes

5.2.6.2 Format

The DSM410 offers many methods and formats of displaying multiple data items at a given time. This parameter is used to program how many data items will appear on this particular favorite screen and in what sizes these items will appear. A graphical preview of the selected format will appear in the upper right hand corner of the display. This parameter has the following settings:

- Full Window one parameter will be displayed, taking up the entire screen
- **2/3 Top 1/3 Bottom** two parameters will be displayed, the first occupying the top 2/3 of the screen and the second occupying the bottom 1/3 of the screen
- 1/3 Top 2/3 Bottom two parameters will be displayed, the first occupying the top 1/3 of the screen and the second occupying the bottom 2/3 of the screen
- Half Left Qtr Qtr three parameters will be displayed, the first occupying the left half of the screen, the second occupying the upper right hand corner of the screen and the third occupying the lower right hand corner of the screen
- Qtr Half Qtr three parameters will be displayed, the first occupying the top left hand corner of the screen, the second occupying the upper right hand corner of the screen, and the third occupying the lower right hand corner of the screen
- Half Left/Right two parameters will be displayed, the first occupying the left half of the screen, and the second occupying the right half of the screen
- Half Top/Bottom two parameters will be displayed, the first occupying the top half of the screen and the second occupying the bottom half of the screen

- 2 Qtrs Half Bottom three parameters will be displayed, the first occupying the upper left hand corner of the screen, the second occupying the upper right hand corner of the screen, and the third occupying the bottom half of the screen
- Half Top 2 Qtrs three parameters will be displayed, the first occupying the top of the screen, the second occupying the lower left hand corner of the screen, and the third occupying the lower right hand corner of the screen
- Four Quarters four parameters will be displayed, the first occupying the upper left hand corner of the screen, the second occupying the upper right hand corner of the screen, the third occupying the lower left hand corner of the screen, and the fourth occupying the lower right hand corner of the screen

Favorite S Favorite	Screens Se #1	etup	#1	#2		
Favorite Format:	Mode: Aut 4 Quarters	to/Manual 1	#3	#4		
Auto Ch Window	ange Inter #1	val:5 Sec	onds			
Data: F	uel Manag	ement Tota	l Fuel Consum	nption		
GPS In	Type: Numeric GPS Instance: #0					
Title: D Window	efault (Tot #2	al Fuel Co	onsumptior	ו)		
Data: A Type: N	C Bus Ave lumeric	rage Freq	uency			
Power	Back	Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Enter		

Figure 24 – Setting the Favorite Screen Format

5.2.6.3 Auto Change Interval

In Auto mode, this parameter determines the amount of time this favorite screen is displayed before the DSM410 automatically cycles to the next higher numbered favorite screen in the auto mode. This parameter is programmable to anywhere between 1 second and 180 seconds.

Favorite Favorite	Screens S #1	etup	#1	#2	
Favorite	Mode: Au	ito/Manual	#3	#4	
Auto Cl	hange Inte	s rval: 5 Sec	onds		
Window	#1				
Data: F	uel Manag	gement lota	l Fuel Consum	ption	
Type:	Numeric				Π
GPS I	nstance:#0)			
Title: D)efault (To	tal Fuel Co	onsumption)	
Window	#2				
Data: A	AC Bus Av	erage Freq	uency		
Type: I	Numeric				
Power	Can cel	Increase	Decrease	Accep	t

Figure 25 – Setting the Auto Change Interval



5.2.6.4 Window Data

The Window Data section of the menu allows you to select a particular type of data to be displayed in each part of the screen. Selecting the data to be displayed is a two-step process. First, press the Enter key () and select the category of data to be displayed.

Favorite Favorite Favorite Format:	Screens S #1 Mode: Au Full Wind	etup to/Manual ow	#	* 1
Auto Ch Window Data:	ange Inte #1 /inc Appar	rval: 5 Sec ent Direct	iond s	
Iype: I Instand Title: D	ie:#0 efault (Win	nd #0 App	arent Dire	ction)
Power	Back	Scroll	Scroll	Foter

Figure 26 – Selecting the Data Category

Once you select the category, press the Enter key () to accept this category, at which time the highlight will move to the data type field, where you can display the particular data type from the selected category to be displayed as shown in Figure 27.



Figure 27 – Selecting the Data to be displayed

5.2.6.4.1 Type

Once you have selected the particular data item to be displayed; you may select the type of data display to be used for that data item. The available display types vary depending upon the selected data item, but may include any of the following (see Section 7 for descriptions of the available display types).

• Anchor Watch (See Section 7.1 on page 210)

- Bar Graph (see Section 7.2 on page 211)
- Compass Rose (see Section 7.3 on page 211)
- Date (see Section 7.4 on page 213)
- Date/Time (see Section 7.5 on page 213)
- Gauge (see Section 7.4 on page 213)
- GPS Status (see Section 7.7 on page 215)
- Half Gauge (see Section 7.8 on page 216)
- Indicator Light (see Section 7.9 on page 216)
- Numeric (see Section 7.8 on page 216)
- Numeric/Precision (see Section 7.11 on page 220)
- Rolling Road (see Section 7.11 on page 220)
- Line Graph (see 7.13 on page 222)
- SMS Status (see Section 7.14 on page 222)
- Time (hh:mm) (see Section 7.15 on page 222)
- Time (hh:mm:ss) (see Section 7.16 on page 223)
- VDR Status (see Section 7.17 on page 223)
- Weather Screen (see Section 7.14 on page 222)
- Wind Rose (see Section 7.19 on page 226)
- Moon Phase (see Section 7.20 on page 226)
- SMS Signal Strength Bar (see Section 7.21 on page 226)
- Trim Tabs Bar Graphs (see Section 7.21 on page 226)
- Swing Meter (see Section 7.23 on page 227)
- Tank Gauge (see Section 7.24 on page 228)
- Watermaker Status (see Section 7.25 on page 228)
- Switch/Breaker Display (see Section 7.25 on page 229)

5.2.6.4.2 Instance

Instance is used to specify which product on the network will be used as the source of the displayed information. For example, there may be two GPS's on the network each of which will have a unique instance assuming the network has been properly configured. You use the instance field to tell the DSM410 which GPS to use for displaying data. Most of the time, the DSM410 simply displays a single parameter from a device on the network so you will only see one "Instance" entry. There are other parameters that the DSM410 displays that are a combination of information from multiple products on the network. For example, fuel economy is a combination of fuel rate and Speed Over Ground (SOG) so you will see two "Instance" entries, one to specify the engine(s) and one to specify the GPS for SOG.

5.2.6.4.3 Alert

In setting up the Anchor Watch display type, this field is used to specify the associated Anchor Watch Alert priority. The list from which the selection is made will be limited to the list of Anchor Watch Alerts already created in the system.

5.2.6.4.4 Title

Each display type has a user defined title that is displayed above the control. The contents of the title are specified in this field. There are three options:



- Default the title of the control is the same as the name of the parameter being displayed.
- Label the label of the parameter. The label is programmed into the remote device, and will be transferred to the title when it is received from the remote device. This means that if the label of the remote device is changed, the title of the control will be automatically updated to match the new label.
- Custom the title is entered by the user using the method described in section 3.3.4.

5.2.7 Units Menu

The Units Menu allows you to set the desired display units for the DSM410. The following sections provide more detail on the individual unit settings.



Figure 28 – DSM410 Units Menu

5.2.7.1 Heading

This menu item allows you to select whether heading, course, and bearing information is displayed in true or magnetic measurements. True heading can only be displayed if a variation is available on the NMEA 2000[®] bus.

If the DSM410 is not showing heading or COG (i.e., no needle on compass rose or dashes for digital displays), it's probably a good indication that variation isn't available on the network. The DSM410 can't calculate true heading given magnetic heading from a compass if variation isn't available. Likewise, the DSM410 can't calculate magnetic course given true course from a GPS if variation isn't available. You can setup a favorite screen to display variation, which will help you determine whether or not you have a product on the network broadcasting variation information (Maretron's GPS's use the World Magnetic Model to broadcast variation).

5.2.7.2 Depth

This menu item allows you to select the units to be used for the display of all depth-related information. Units that may be selected are the following:

- Meters
- Fathoms
- Feet

5.2.7.3 Distance

This menu item allows you to select the units to be used for the display of all distance-related information. Units that may be selected are the following:

- Nautical Miles
- km
- Statute Miles

5.2.7.4 Boat Speed

This menu item allows you to select the units to be used for the display of all boat speed-related information. Units that may be selected are the following:

- Knots
- Miles/Hour
- Km/Hour
- Meters/second

5.2.7.5 Wind Speed

This menu item allows you to select the units to be used for the display of all wind speed-related information. Units that may be selected are the following:

- Knots
- Miles/Hour
- Km/Hour
- Beaufort
- Meters/second

5.2.7.6 Wind True Vessel Ref.

This menu items allows you to select whether the true wind direction and speed referenced to the vessel are relative to the water or the ground. Sailors are generally interested in measurements relative to the water while power boaters are interested in measurements relative to the ground. Station is for home applications (i.e., fixed mounting location unlike a vessel that changes direction). Formats that may be selected are the following:

- Water
- Ground
- Station

5.2.7.7 Temperature

This menu item allows you to select the units to be used for the display of all temperature-related information. Units that may be selected are the following:

- °F
- °C



5.2.7.8 Atmospheric Pressure

This menu item allows you to select the units to be used for the display of atmospheric (barometric) pressure. Units that may be selected are the following:

- Inches Mercury (in Hg)
- Bar
- Millibars
- Millimeters Mercury (mm Hg)
- kPa

5.2.7.9 Fluid Pressure

This menu item allows you to select the units to be used for the display of fluid pressure. Units that may be selected are the following:

- Pounds/Square Inch (PSI)
- kPa
- Bar

5.2.7.10 Volume

This menu item allows you to select the units to be used for the display of all liquid volume-related information. Units that may be selected are the following:

- Liters
- Imperial Gallons (UK Gallons)
- Gallons (US Gallons)

5.2.7.11 Time Format

This menu item allows you to select whether measurements indicating a time of day are displayed in 12-Hour (AM/PM) format or 24-Hour (military) format.

5.2.7.12 Local Time Offset

This menu item allows you to indicate the offset of local time relative to Universal Time, Coordinated (UTC, also known as Greenwich Mean Time, or GMT), in hours and minutes. For instance, Eastern Standard Time (EST) would use an offset value of -5:00.

5.2.7.13 Date Format

This menu item allows you to select the format of any displayed dates. Formats that may be selected are the following:

- MM-DD-YYYY (01-31-2005)
- DD-MM-YYYY (31-01-2005)
- MMM-DD-YYYY (JAN-31-2005)
- DD-MMM-YYYY (31-JAN-2005)

DSM410 User's Manual

5.2.7.14 Force

This menu item allows you to select the units to be used for the display of force. Units that may be selected include the following:

- Newtons
- Kilograms
- Pounds

5.2.7.15 Mass

This menu item allows you to select the units to be used for the display of mass. Units that may be selected include the following:

- Kilograms
- Pounds

5.2.7.16 Resistance

This menu item allows you to select the units to be used for the display of resistance. Units that may be selected include the following:

- Ohms
- Kilohms

5.2.7.17 Motion Distance

This menu item allows you to select the units to be used for the display of distance. Units that may be selected include the following:

- mm
- cm
- Meters
- Inches
- Feet

5.2.7.18 Motion Velocity

This menu item allows you to select the units to be used for the display of velocity. Units that may be selected include the following:

- Meters/Second
- Inches/Second
- Feet/Second
- km/Hour
- miles/hour
- knots

5.2.7.19 Motion Velocity

This menu item allows you to select the units to be used for the display of velocity. Units that may be selected include the following:



- Meters/Second
- Inches/Second
- Feet/Second
- km/Hour
- miles/hour
- knots

5.2.7.20 Motion Acceleration

This menu item allows you to select the units to be used for the display of acceleration. Units that may be selected include the following:

- Meters/Second²
- G
- Feet/Second²

5.2.7.21 Angular Velocity

This menu item allows you to select the units to be used for the display of angular velocity. Units that may be selected include the following:

- Degrees/Second
- Degrees/Minute
- Radians/Second
- Radians/Minute
- RPM

5.2.7.22 Angular Acceleration

This menu item allows you to select the units to be used for the display of angular acceleration. Units that may be selected include the following:

- Degrees/Second²
- Degrees/Minute²
- Radians/Second²

5.3 Control Mode

Control mode may be entered from the favorite screens mode of the display to perform certain control and reset functions. The following functions may be performed in control mode:

- Switch/Breaker may be switched on and off (see section 7.25 for details)
- Anchor Watch Anchor Drop position may be set to the current GPS position (see section 7.1 for details)
- Engine Trip Fuel Used may be reset to zero for fuel flow transducers that are capable of being reset via the 126208 NMEA 2000[®] command message, such as the Maretron FFM100
- Trip Volume may be reset to zero for fluid flow transducers that are capable of being reset via the 126208 NMEA 2000[®] command message, such as the Maretron FFM100

 Trip Log – may be reset to zero for log transducers that are capable of being reset via the NMEA 2000[®] command message, such as the Maretron DST110, may be reset with the control mode of the display – see Section 5.2.7.14 for details

For resetting "Engine Total Fuel Used", "Trip Volume", or "Trip Log", use the following procedure to reset the total in the transducer providing the value.

In normal operating mode, use the "Scroll Up" and "Scroll Down" keys to change to the screen containing the display to be reset. Once that screen is displayed, follow these steps to reset the appropriate display:

- 1. Press the "Enter" key for approximately one second. This will place the display into "Control mode", and one of the controllable items on the screen will be highlighted with a thick border.
- 2. If there is more than one controllable item on the screen, you may use the "Scroll Up" and "Scroll Down" keys to change the highlight to the display to be reset.
- 3. Once the display to be reset is selected, then press the "Power" key. You will then see a confirmation popup asking whether it is okay to set the Anchor Drop position to the current position. If you answer "Yes", then the Anchor Drop position will be set to the current GPS position.
- 4. To exit the control mode, press the "Lights" key to return to normal operating mode. The highlight will disappear.



6 Device Configuration

The "Device Configuration..." menu enables you to configure certain types of devices on the NMEA 2000[®] network. Devices that may be configured using the DSM410 include the following:

- Airmar Depth, Speed, and Temperature Transducers (DST800, DT800, P39, P79, B122, ST850, ST800, HT200) reset trip log, set depth offset, speed calibration, and temperature offset (if applicable)
- Bennett EP-30 Calibrate trim tabs.
- **Maretron Alternating Current Monitor (ACM100)** set circuit type, device type, instance number, and label. Reset the total energy recorded.
- Maretron Annunciator (ALM100) set the data instance number and the label. Test the alarm.
- Maretron Current Loop Monitor (CLM100) set the channel operating mode, set transducer characteristics, and set damping
- Maretron Direct Current Monitor (DCM100) set the battery type, and calibrate the current sensor zero offset.
- Maretron Direct Current Relay Module (DCR100) set the operating mode of each channel, lock switches, set power up state, and control state of switches
- Maretron Monochrome Display (DSM200) allows configuration of other DSM200s on the network
- Maretron Color Display (DSM150, DSM250, DSM410) allows configuration of other DSM150s, DSM250s, and DSM410s on network
- Maretron Depth/Speed/Temp. Transducer (DST100) set transducer offset, zero trip distance log
- Maretron Depth/Speed/Temp. Transducer (DST110) reset trip log, set depth offset, speed calibration, and temperature offset
- **Maretron Engine Monitoring System (EMS100)** set the gauge types for boost pressure, drive trim, oil pressure and water temperature. Preset the engine hours.
- Maretron Fuel Flow Monitor (FFM100) Set operating mode, channel direction, K-factor, temperature coefficient.
- **Maretron Fluid Pressure Monitor (FPM100)** set the operating mode of each channel, perform tank levels calibration, and set pressure sender characteristics.
- Maretron GPS Antenna/Receiver (GPS100) enable and disable WAAS functionality, set the GPS mode, program the elevation, PDOP and SNR masks, set the antenna altitude, force a cold start, enable/disable individual PGN transmission, and reset the unit back to its factory defaults.
- Maretron GPS Antenna/Receiver (GPS200) enable and disable WAAS functionality, force a cold start, enable/disable individual PGN transmission, and reset the unit back to its factory defaults.
- Maretron Internet Protocol Gateway (IPG100) set IP connection parameters, set N2KServer password, view N2KServer information, and reset the unit back to its factory defaults.
- Maretron J1939 to NMEA 2000 Gateway (J2K100) set J1939 node address, set NMEA 2000[®] engine/transmission instance, enable pass-through of J1939 diagnostic messages, and enable/disable individual NMEA 2000[®] PGN transmissions.
- Maretron Network Bus Extender (NBE100) set device label.
- Maretron Rudder Angle Adapter (RAA100) set rudder number, operating mode, and calibrate rudder position.

- Maretron Run Indicator Monitor (RIM100) set data instance for the device, and labels for the device and each channel.
- Maretron Switch Indicator Monitor (SIM100) set data instance for the device, and labels for the device and each channel. Set each channel mode.
- Maretron SMS (Text) Module (SMS100) set device instance and installation description for the device, verify cellular network connectivity, and perform send/receive tests.
- Maretron Solid Sate Compass (SSC200) set installation offset, perform magnetic deviation calibration, check magnetic deviation calibration status, invert installation, configure magnetic variation settings, setup NMEA0183 interface, program rate of turn damping, zero the rate-of-turn offset, and enable/disable individual NMEA 2000[®] PGN transmissions.
- Maretron Solid Sate Compass (SSC300) set installation offset, perform magnetic deviation calibration, check magnetic deviation calibration status, invert installation, configure magnetic variation settings, setup NMEA0183 interface, program rate of turn damping, zero the rate-of-turn offset, and enable/disable individual NMEA 2000[®] PGN transmissions.
- **Maretron Tank Level Adapter (TLA100)** set tank type and tank number, set operating mode, set tank capacity, and calibrate for irregular shaped tanks.
- Maretron Tank Level Monitor Shallow (TLM100) set tank type and tank number, set operating mode, set tank capacity, and calibrate for irregular shaped tanks.
- Maretron Tank Level Monitor Gasoline (TLM150) set tank type and tank number, set operating mode, set tank capacity, and calibrate for irregular shaped tanks.
- Maretron Tank Level Monitor Deep (TLM200) set tank type and tank number, set operating mode, set tank capacity, and calibrate for irregular shaped tanks.
- Maretron Temperature Monitor (TMP100) set device label and channel instance, temperature source (type) and label.
- Maretron NMEA 2000 to USB gateway (USB100) allows configuration of USB100s on network Maretron Vessel Data Recorder (VDR100) set device label.
- Maretron Ultrasonic Wind and Weather Station (WSO100) set installation offset, set wind damping rates, and enable/disable individual NMEA 2000[®] PGN transmissions.

More device types will be included in future firmware releases.

In each case, the contents of the Device Configuration menus may vary depending on the version of the firmware within the device.

The "Device Configuration..." menu is shown in Figure 29.



NA Manufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
21 Maretron	GPS 100	1140001	11	14
62 Maretron	SSC200	1120002	10	19
03 Maretron	DST 100	1180003	10	10
54 Maretron	USB 100	1160004	10	16
15 Maretron	DSM200	1100005	12	1.10
86 Maretron	WSO 100	1200006	10	1.0.0
B9 Maretron	TLA 100	1260009	10	10
CO Maretron	RAA 100	1280000	10	10
D8 Lowrance	EP-30	5550008	10	10
Do Lowrance	LF -30	3330000	LU	
^D ower Ba	ck Sc	roll S	Scroll	E

Figure 29 – Device Configuration Screen

The "NA" column of the menu displays the node address the device is using.

The "Manufacturer" column of the menu displays the manufacturer of the device.

The "Model" column displays the model number of the device.

The "**SN#**" column displays the serial number of the device, so that any of two or more devices of the same manufacturer and model number may be distinguished from one another.

The "HW" column shows the device hardware version.

The "SW" column shows the device software version (firmware version).

6.1 Airmar Depth/Speed/Temperature Transducers

The DSM410 supports configuration and calibration of the following Airmar Depth/Speed/Temperature transducers that have NMEA 2000[®] interfaces:

- DST800
- DT800
- P39
- P79
- B122
- ST850
- ST800
- HT200

The following calibration functions are supported (not all functions apply to every model of transducer):

- Reset trip log
- Set depth Offset
- Perform Speed Calibration
- Program Temperature Offset

Configuratio	n				
Device Con	figuratio	n			
NA Manufactu	irer Mod	el SN#	t	HW#	SW#
23 Airmar	DST	200 1933	844	44-127-1-	1.003, 1.0
Advanced	Config	uration			
Clear Sp	eed Cali	bration: (Clear		
Speed Ca	libratio	1			
Clear Ter	nperatur	e Offset:	0.0	°F	
Temperat	ure Cali	bration			
Transduc	er Depti	n Offset:	2.0	ft	
Trip Log:	. Ó.O	nm Res	et		
		Scroll	Sc	roll	
Power	Back	IIn	Do	wn	Enter

Figure 30 – Airmar Depth/Speed/Temperature Transducer Configuration Screen

6.1.1 Advanced Configuration

Advanced Configuration changes some complex parameters within the device, and should only be performed by an advanced user. Typically advanced configuration is only done at installation and should not need to be done while at sea.



Confi Devi	guration ce Configu	ration			
NA	Manufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
23	Airmar	DST200	1933844	44- 127- 1-	1.003, 1.0
Ac D Ir N	ivanced Co evice Insta istallation MEA2000 I	onfigurati Ince:#0 Descripti PGN Ena	on on ble/Disa	ıble	
Powe	r Bac	k Sci U	roll	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 31 – Airmar Transducer Advanced Configuration Screen

6.1.2 Device Instance

This entry allows you to program the NMEA 2000 device instance for the unit. You usually will not need to modify the default value of "0" unless you have multiple units on the network.

6.1.3 Installation Description

This entry allows you to modify the NMEA 2000 installation description text strings. You can enter any information you like here, such as the date the unit was installed, or the location in which it was installed, for later reference. Tools such as Maretron N2KAnalyzer allow you to view these values later. See section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.

6.1.4 NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable

The transducer transmits several different NMEA2000 PGN's which can be turned on or turned off by the DSM410 display. Pressing the **Enter** key with "NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable..." menu item selected causes the DSM410 to display the NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable screen.

You can enable or disable the transmission of these messages, or set the frequency of transmission of the message by pressing the Enter key () on the message to be configured. Options are:

- Off The message will not be transmitted
- **On** The message will be transmitted at its default NMEA 2000[®] rate.

Select the required option using the Scroll Up and Scroll Down keys followed by the Enter key.

6.1.5 Clear Speed Calibration

The **Clear Speed Calibration** configuration parameter shows you the currently used correction factor. All measured STW readings are multiplied by this number before being transmitted over the NMEA 2000[®] network. You can remove the correction factor by pressing the Enter key () with the "Clear Speed Calibration:" menu item selected. And then choose "Clear" using Scroll Up () or Scroll Down () keys followed by the Enter key (). This changes the correction factor back to 1 such that all subsequent measured STW readings are no longer adjusted before begin transmitted over the NMEA 2000[®] network.

6.1.6 Speed Calibration

The Airmar speed transducer speed through water (STW) initial accuracy is significantly affected by the location or placement of the speed transducer within the hull. The speed transducer can be corrected for these inaccuracies using the speed calibration procedure. You calibrate the speed transducer STW by pressing the **Enter** key () with the "Speed Calibration..." menu item selected which results in the screen shown in Figure 78.



Figure 32 – Calibrating the Airmar Speed Transducer Speed

The speed calibration screen shown in Figure 78 indicates the STW as measured by the Airmar speed transducer, which can be changed to the transmitted STW by following these steps. First, pick a speed where you are most concerned with the best accuracy. Next, bring the boat up to the desired speed using some other source, perhaps the GPS speed over ground (SOG). Remember that the SOG does not necessary reflect the STW because of currents, and drift due to winds, so you should do this in an area where you are sure there are no currents and calm winds. Finally, use the Increase (\bigcirc) and Decrease (\bigcirc) keys to adjust the display value until it matches the known speed of the boat. Press the Accept (\bigcirc) key to accept the value when you are satisfied. If you do not wish to perform speed calibration at this time, press the Abort (\bigcirc) key and the speed calibration will not be altered.

6.1.7 Clear Temperature Offset

The **Clear Temperature Offset** configuration parameter shows you the currently used temperature correction offset. All measured sea temperature readings have this value added to them before being transmitted over the NMEA 2000[®] network. You can set the correction offset to zero by pressing the Enter key () with the "Clear Speed Calibration:" menu item selected. And then choose "Clear" using Scroll Up () or Scroll Down () keys followed by the Enter key (). This changes the correction factor back to 0 such that all subsequent measured sea temperature readings are no longer adjusted before begin transmitted over the NMEA 2000[®] network.

6.1.8 Temperature Calibration

The temperature calibration screen shown below indicates the sea temperature as measured by the Airmar temperature transducer, which can be changed to the actual sea temperature by following these steps. Use the Increase () and Decrease () keys to adjust the display value until it



matches the known sea temperature. Press the Accept () key to accept the value when you are satisfied. If you do not wish to perform temperature calibration at this time, press the Abort () key and the temperature calibration will not be altered.



Figure 33 – Airmar Temperature Transducer Water Temperature Calibration Screen

6.1.9 Transducer Depth Offset

The DSM410 can set the transducer depth offset parameter in an Airmar depth transducer. If you are interested in the actual water depth (as opposed to the depth beneath the keel), then you should program a positive value equal to the distance from the waterline to the depth of the depth transducer. The DSM410 will then add the measured depth of the water (as seen by the depth transducer) to the programmed offset value to produce the total water depth. If you are interested in the depth of water beneath the keel, then you should program a negative value equal to the distance between the depth transducer and the bottom of the keel. The display will then subtract the programmed offset from the measured depth of the water (as seen by the depth transducer) showing you the depth of water beneath the keel.

You program the transducer depth offset by pressing the **Enter** key () with the "Transducer Depth Offset:" menu item selected which results in the screen shown in Figure.



Figure 34 – Setting the Transducer Depth Offset in an Airmar Depth Transducer

6.1.10 Trip Log

The DSM410 is capable of clearing the trip log counter within an Airmar speed transducer. You zero the trip log by pressing the Enter key () with the "Trip Log:" menu item selected which results in the screen shown in Figure 80. Pressing the **Accept** () key while the "Reset" menu item is selected will complete the operation. Resetting the trip log zeroes the transducer's trip log such that all displays receive a zeroed value.

Configuration Device Configu	ration		
NA Manufacturer	Model	SN#	HW# SW#
23 Airmar	DST200	1933844	44-127-1- 1.003,1.0
Advanced Co Clear Speed Speed Calibr Clear Tempe Temperature Transducer D Trip Log:	onfigurati Calibrati ation rature Of Calibrati Calibrati Oepth Off 0.0 nm	on on: Clear ifset: 0.0 on iset: - Reset	0°F
Power Cance			Accept

Figure 35 – Resetting the Airmar Speed Sensor Trip Distance Log



6.2 Bennett EP-30 (NMEA1) Trim Tabs Configuration

This describes the configuration of the Bennett EP-30 trim tabs firmware version 1.0.7 ("NMEA1" NMEA 2000 Trim Tab Indicator Kit). The EP-30 configuration menu is shown below in Figure 36 below, and currently has the single entry "Trim Tabs Calibration...".

Configuration Device Configu	ration		
NA Manufacturer	Model	SN#	HW# SW#
00 Lowrance	69-30:Trim Ta	-1	10.0 10.7
Trim Tabs C	alibration.		
	Sara	ll Sora	
Power Bac	sk acro Un	Dow	n Ente

Figure 36 – EP-30 Trim Tabs Configuration Screen

6.2.1 Trim Tabs Calibration

The Bennett EP-30 (NMEA1) trim tabs calibration opening screen is shown in Figure 37 below. The first step in calibration is to move both trim tabs to the full up position, and then press the Accept () key to begin the calibration process. You may also elect to abort the calibration process at this time by pressing the Abort () key.



Figure 37 – EP-30 Trim Tabs Calibration Opening Screen

DSM410 User's Manual

After you press the Accept () key, a screen, shown in Figure 38 below, appears, instructing you to now lower both trim tabs to the full down position. It is important that you do this without stopping in order for the calibration process to succeed.



Figure 38 – EP-30 Intermediate Calibration Screen

After you have lowered both trim tabs to their full down position and a few seconds have elapsed, the screen shown in Figure 39 below should appear, indicating that the calibration of the trim tab sensors has completed successfully. You may now press any key to return to the previous menu.



Figure 39 – EP-30 Calibration Success Message


6.3 Maretron ACM100 Configuration

This describes the configuration of the Maretron ACM100 firmware version 1.0.8.2.



Figure 40 – ACM100 Configuration Screen

6.3.1 Advanced Configuration

Advanced Configuration changes some complex parameters within the device, and should only be performed by an advanced user. Typically advanced configuration is only done at installation and should not need to be done while at sea.

Configuration Device Configu	ration			
NA Manufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
B2 Maretron	ACM 100	1389901	10	10.7
Advanced Co	onfigurati	on		
Current Tra	nsformer	A : 400	A	
Current Tra	nsformer	B : 100	A	
Current Tra	nsformer	C : 100	A	
Current Tra	nsformer	A : Inv	erse In	stall
Current Tra	nsformer	B : Inv	erse In	stall
Current Tra	nsformer	C : No	rmal In	stall
Damping Po	eriod - P	ower :	-	
Damping P	eriod - V	.I.F :	-	
1.5	80		Secol	
Power Bac	k Su	D	Down	Enter

Figure 41 – ACM100 Advanced Configuration Screen

6.3.1.1 Current Transformer A

The ACM100 with firmware revision 1.0.7 or newer supports two different types of current sensors: the 100A current sensor included with the unit and an optional 400A current sensor. This menu entry allows you to indicate which type of current sensor you have installed for phase A.

6.3.1.2 Current Transformer B

The ACM100 with firmware revision 1.0.7 or newer supports two different types of current sensors: the 100A current sensor included with the unit and an optional 400A current sensor. This menu entry allows you to indicate which type of current sensor you have installed for phase B.

6.3.1.3 Current Transformer C

The ACM100 with firmware revision 1.0.7 or newer supports two different types of current sensors: the 100A current sensor included with the unit and an optional 400A current sensor. This menu entry allows you to indicate which type of current sensor you have installed for phase C.

6.3.1.4 Current Transformer A

If you notice that the power measurements of phase A are negative when they should be positive, or vice-versa, then the current transformer has been installed backwards. If this happens, then instead of reconnecting the current transformer, you may change the value of this parameter from the default value of "Normal Install" to "Inverse Install" to correct for this. Valid options are:

- Inverse Install
- Normal Install

Use the **Scroll Up** and **Scroll Down** buttons to select the correct option, and then press **Enter** to save the value.

6.3.1.5 Current Transformer B

If you notice that the power measurements of phase B are negative when they should be positive, or vice-versa, then the current transformer has been installed backwards. If this happens, then instead of reconnecting the current transformer, you may change the value of this parameter from the default value of "Normal Install" to "Inverse Install" to correct for this. Valid options are:

- Inverse Install
- Normal Install

Use the **Scroll Up** and **Scroll Down** buttons to select the correct option, and then press **Enter** to save the value.

6.3.1.6 Current Transformer C

If you notice that the power measurements of phase C are negative when they should be positive, or vice-versa, then the current transformer has been installed backwards. If this happens, then instead of reconnecting the current transformer, you may change the value of this parameter from the default value of "Normal Install" to "Inverse Install" to correct for this. Valid options are:

- Inverse Install
- Normal Install



Use the **Scroll Up** and **Scroll Down** buttons to select the correct option, and then press **Enter** to save the value.

6.3.1.7 Damping Period – Power

If you feel that the monitored Power parameters are changing too quickly or too slowly on the display, you can adjust the damping that is applied to the output readings by adjusting this parameter. The default damping period is 5 seconds. You may change it to a value in the range of 0.2 seconds to 10 seconds. Use the **Increase** and **Decrease** buttons to select the correct option, and then press **Enter** to save the value.

6.3.1.8 Damping Period – V, I, F

If you feel that the monitored Voltage, Current, and Frequency parameters are changing too quickly or too slowly on the display, you can adjust the damping that is applied to the output readings by adjusting this parameter. The default damping period is 0.5 seconds. You may change it to a value in the range of 0.2 seconds to 10 seconds. Use the **Increase** and **Decrease** buttons to select the correct option, and then press **Enter** to save the value.

6.3.1.9 Installation Description

This entry allows you to modify the NMEA 2000 installation description text strings. You can enter any information you like here, such as the date the unit was installed, or the location in which it was installed, for later reference. Tools such as Maretron N2KAnalyzer allow you to view these values later. See section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.

6.3.1.10 NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable

The ACM100 Alternating Current transmits a number of the NMEA2000[®] PGNs which can be turned on or turned off by the DSM410 display. For reasons of compatibility with older NMEA2000 devices, some of these PGNs are redundant; disabling these PGNs will reduce the amount of traffic on the NMEA2000[®] bus. Pressing the **Enter** key with "NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable…" menu item selected causes the DSM410 to display the following screen (Figure 42).

Configurat Device Co NA Manufa	ion onfigu cturer	ratior Model	1 I	SN#		HW#	SW#	1
B1 Maretro	n	ACM1	00	13899	04	10	1.0.6	b2
Advanc NMEA2	ed Co 2000 F	onfigu PGN I	ıratio Enab	n Ie/Di	sabl	e		
65006	Util.	Phase	C AC	React	ve Pe	ower	Off	
65007	Util.	Phase	C AC	Powe	r		Off	
65008	Util.	Phase	C AC	Basic	Quan	ntiti	Off	
65009	Util.	Phase	B AC	Reacti	ve Pe	ower	Off	
65010	Util.	Phase	B AC	Powe	r		Off	
65011	Util.	Phase	B AC	Basic	Quan	ntiti	Off	
65012	Util.	Phase	A AC	Reacti	ve Pe	ower	Off	
Power	Bac	i i	Scro Up		Sc Do	roll wn		Enter

Figure 42 – ACM100 NMEA 2000[®] PGN Enable/Disable Screen

You can enable or disable the transmission of a PGN message, or set the frequency of transmission of the message by pressing the Enter key () on the message to be configured. Options are:

- Off The PGN will not be transmitted
- **On** The PGN will be transmitted at its default NMEA2000 rate.
- **0.5s...5s** The PGN will be transmitted at the interval specified.

Select the required option using the Scroll Up and Scroll Down keys followed by the Enter key.

6.3.1.11 Restore Factory Defaults

This option restores all settings on the ACM100 device to their factory default state.

6.3.2 AC Circuit Type

You must configure the ACM100 as to what type of AC circuit connection it is monitoring. The allowable values for this parameter are as follows:

- **Single-Phase (Phase A)** use this value when power is connected via a single hot wire and a single neutral wire (a typical 110VAC connection in the US, or 220VAC connection in Europe).
- Single-Phase (Phase A, B) use this value when power is connected via two hot wires (180° out of phase with each other) and single neutral wire from a single phase of a transformer (a typical 220VAC connection in the US).
- **3-Phase Y (Phase A, B, C)** use this value when power is connected via the three hot wires (120° out of phase with each other) and single neutral wire from a three-phase "Y" connected circuit.

6.3.3 AC Device Type

You must configure the ACM100 as to what type of AC source it is monitoring. The allowable values for this parameter are as follows:

- **Generator** (default) use this value when you are monitoring the output of an onboard generator.
- **Utility** use this value when you are monitoring shore power.
- **Bus** use this value if you are monitoring power flowing across a cable that is not located directly at the output of a generator or a shore power connection (e.g., an AC selection switch might have as an input the shore power and another input from the generator, connecting the ACM100 at the output of the AC selection switch would require the ACM100 to be configured as "Bus".

6.3.4 Device Instance

This entry allows you to program the NMEA 2000 device instance for the unit. You usually will not need to modify the default value of "0" unless you have multiple ACM100s on the network.

6.3.5 Label

A device label may be assigned to the ACM100 as an aid to identifying the device over the network (i.e., Shore Power or Port Generator, etc.). Typically this label will describe the equipment to which the ACM100 is connected. See section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.



6.3.6 Reset Total Energy Recorded

The ACM100 will accumulate the total amount of energy produced by a Generator or a Utility. Pressing the Enter key, while this item is highlighted will start the process to reset this value to zero. The following confirmation screen is displayed.



Figure 43 – Reset Total Energy Recorded Confirmation Screen

Press Accept to reset the value, or Cancel to return to the previous screen.

6.4 Maretron ALM100 Configuration

This describes the configuration of the Maretron ALM100 firmware version 1.0.5.

Confi Devi NA 19 In La Te	guration ce Configu Manufacturer Maretron Evanced C stance:#0 abel : Bridg est Annund	iration Model ALM100 onfigurati je je iator	SN# 1460041 01	HW# 10	SW# 10.5
Powe	er Bac	k Sc	roll p	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 44 – ALM100 Configuration Screen

6.4.1 Advanced Configuration

Advanced Configuration changes some complex parameters within the device, and should only be performed by an advanced user. Typically advanced configuration is only done at installation and should not need to be done while at sea.

Domigura	tion				
Device C	ontigu	ration	ON#	11111##	ow#
NA Manu	acturer	Model	5N#	HW#	5W#
19 Mareti	on	ALM 100	1460041	10	10.5
Device Install	ation	nce : #3 Descripti	on	hla	
Restor	2000 6	tony Defe	ulto	DIE	
Resto	егас	LOTY Dela	auns		
		Sc	rall	Scroll	

Figure 45 – ALM100 Advanced Configuration Screen

6.4.1.1 Device Instance

This entry allows you to program the NMEA 2000 device instance for the unit. You usually will not need to modify the default value of "0" unless you have multiple units on the network.

6.4.1.2 Installation Description

This entry allows you to modify the NMEA 2000 installation description text strings. You can enter any information you like here, such as the date the unit was installed, or the location in which it was



installed, for later reference. Tools such as Maretron N2KAnalyzer allow you to view these values later. See section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.

6.4.1.3 NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable

The ALM100 Annunciator Module transmits the NMEA2000 PGN #130824 which can be turned on or turned off by the DSM410 display. Pressing the **Enter** key with "NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable..." menu item selected causes the DSM410 to display the following screen (Figure 46).

Configuration Device Config NA Manufacturer 19 Maretron Advanced C NMEA2000	uration ^{Model} ALM100 Configurati PGN Ena	SN# 1460041 ion ible/Disal	HW# 10 ble	SW# 10.5
130824 Ani	nunciator			Off
Power Ba	ck Sc	roll Jp	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 46 – ALM100 NMEA 2000[®] PGN Enable/Disable Screen

You can enable or disable the transmission of the Annunciator message, or set the frequency of transmission of the message by pressing the Enter key () on the message to be configured. Options are:

- **Disable** The Annunciator message will not be transmitted
- **Default** The Annunciator message will be transmitted at its default NMEA2000 rate, and each time the value changes.
- **0.5s...5s** The Annunciator message will be transmitted at the period specified, and each time the value changes.

Select the required option using the Scroll Up and Scroll Down keys followed by the Enter key.

6.4.1.4 Restore Factory Defaults

This option restores all settings on the device to their factory default state.

6.4.2 Instance

From here the instance number used in the Annunciator message may be set.

6.4.3 Label

A label may be assigned to the ALM100 as an aid to identifying the device over the network. Typically this label will describe the location of the ALM100.

See section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.

6.4.4 Test Annunciator

The Annunciator may be tested by scrolling the cursor to highlight this entry and then pressing the **Enter** button. The ALM100 will emit a single beep.



6.5 Maretron CLM100 Configuration

This describes the configuration of the Maretron CLM100 firmware version 1.0.1.6.

Configuration Device Configu NA Manufacturer	uration Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
59 Maretron	CLM 100	1659901	10	10.16
Advanced C	onfigurati	on		
Channel #0.	••			
Channel #1.				
Channel #2.				
Channel #3.				
Channel #4.				
Channel #5.				
Device Labe	1:			
Power Ba	ck Sc U	roll S	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 47 – CLM100 Configuration Screen

6.5.1 Advanced Configuration

Advanced Configuration changes some complex parameters within the device, and should only be performed by an advanced user. Typically advanced configuration is only done at installation and should not need to be done while at sea.

Device C	onfigu	ration			
NA Manufa	acturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
59 Maretro	on	CLM 100	1659901	10	10.16
Installa	ation	Descripti	on	ahla	
NMEA Restor	e Fac	tory Defa	aults	abic	

Figure 48 – CLM100 Advanced Configuration Screen

6.5.1.1 Device Instance

This entry allows you to program the NMEA 2000 device instance for the unit. You usually will not need to modify the default value of "0" unless you have multiple units on the network.

6.5.1.2 Installation Description

This entry allows you to modify the NMEA 2000 installation description text strings. You can enter any information you like here, such as the date the unit was installed, or the location in which it was

installed, for later reference. Tools such as Maretron N2KAnalyzer allow you to view these values later. See section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.

6.5.1.3 NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable

The CLM100 Current Loop Monitor can transmit the NMEA2000 PGNs #65286, 127751, 130313, 130314, 130816, and 130840 which can be turned on or turned off by the DSM410 display. Only the PGN's which correspond to the configuration of the channels will be shown in this list. Pressing the **Enter** key with "NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable..." menu item selected causes the DSM410 to display the following screen (Figure 53).

Configurati Device Co	on nfiau	ration			
NA Manufa	cturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
59 Maretro	n	CLM 100	1659901	1 10	10.16
Advance NMEA	ed Co 2000	nfigurat PGN Er	ion nable/Dis	sable	
130840	Gene	ric Sensor			On
127751	DC V	loltage / C	urrent		On
130316	Temp	perature, E	xtended R	ange	On
130314	Actua	l Pressure			On
130313	Humi	idity			On
65286	Fluid	Flow Rat	e		On
				011	
Power	Bac	5	croll Up	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 49 – CLM100 NMEA 2000[®] PGN Enable/Disable Screen

You can enable or disable the transmission of the these messages, or set the frequency of transmission of the message by pressing the Enter key () on the message to be configured. Options are:

- Disable The message will not be transmitted
- **Default** The message will be transmitted at its default NMEA2000 rate.
- **0.1s...25.0s** The message will be transmitted at the period specified.

Select the required option using the Scroll Up and Scroll Down keys followed by the Enter key.

6.5.1.4 Restore Factory Defaults

This option restores all settings on the device to their factory default state.

6.5.2 Advanced Configuration

Advanced Configuration changes some complex parameters within the device, and should only be performed by an advanced user. Typically advanced configuration is only done at installation and should not need to be done while at sea.

6.5.3 Channel Configuration

Individual channels may be configured by using the **Scroll Up** and **Scroll Down** buttons to highlight the channel, and then pressing the **Enter** key. The following screen will be displayed.



Conf	iguration				
Devi	ice Configu	ration			
NA	Manufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
			4050004	10	10.40
59	Maretro n	CLM 100	1659901	10	10.16
C	hannel #4				
ן	abel : Shaft	Bearing	Temp		
F	unction	Femperat	ure		
i		44			
	nstance .	-4			
5	Source : l	Jser Def	ined 129)	
	/alue at 4 i	mA :0			
<u>۱</u>	alue at 20	mA : 50	0.0 °F		
l r	ata Damni	na Daria	4 . 0.20		
"	ata Dampi	ig Fello	u . U.25		
		Sc	roll	Scroll	
Pow	er Bac	1 30	n	Down	Enter

Figure 50 – CLM100 Channel Configuration Screen

6.5.3.1 Label

A label may be assigned to each channel of the CLM100 as an aid to identifying the parameter that is being displayed. Typically this label will describe the function or location of the sensor.

6.5.3.2 Function

The CLM100 can support 4-20mA current loop transducers of many different types. This field allows you to select the type of parameter that is being monitored by this channel. You may select from the following parameter types (please refer to the *CLM100 User's Manual* for information on the available units, ranges, and resolutions for each function.

- dB (decibels)
- DC Voltage
- DC Current
- Resistance
- Distance
- Velocity
- Acceleration
- Angle
- Angular Velocity
- Angular Acceleration
- Rotational Rate
- Temperature
- Pressure
- Humidity
- Force
- Flow Rate
- Strain
- Disable the channel is disabled and transmits no data over the NMEA 2000 network

6.5.3.3 Instance

From here the instance number used in the message send for this channel may be set.

6.5.3.4 Source

This parameter is present only when the channel has been configured for the function of Temperature, Pressure, Humidity, or Flow Rate. This parameter selects the type of temperature, pressure, humidity, or flow rate measurement being performed so that displays can more easily select the data from the network.

6.5.3.5 Value at 4mA

Program this parameter to match the reading of the current loop transducer when it is sourcing a current of 4mA. You can determine this value by examining the specification of the transducer being used.

6.5.3.6 Value at 20mA

Program this parameter to match the reading of the current loop transducer when it is sourcing a current of 20mA. You can determine this value by examining the specification of the transducer being used.

6.5.3.7 Data Damping Period

You can configure a damping parameter to smooth the parametric readings or make them more responsive. The data damping is configurable between 0.1-25.0 seconds. The default data damping period is 3.0 seconds.

6.6 Maretron DCM100 Configuration

This describes the configuration of the Maretron DCM100 firmware version 1.0.4.

Configura Device C NA Manuf B4 Maretu Advanto Curren	tion onfigura acturer M on D ed Com t Sensou	tion ^{Iodel} CM100 iguratio r Zero O	SN# 1419905 1 ffset Ca	HW# 10 alibratio	SW# 10.4
DC Tyj Instano Label :	c Senson be : Ba e : #1 N2K® F	r Zero O ttery P/S	inset G	andratio	, n
Power	Back	Scro Up		Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 51 – DCM100 Configuration Screen



6.6.1 Advanced Configuration

Advanced Configuration changes some complex parameters within the device, and should only be performed by an advanced user. Typically advanced configuration is only done at installation and should not need to be done while at sea.

Configura Device C NA Manu B4 Maret	ition Configu facturer ron	ration Model DCM 100	SN# 141990)5	HW# 10	SW# 10.4
Advan Curre Devic Instal NMEA Resto	ced Co nt Sen e Insta lation I \2000 F re Fact	nfigurati sor Type nce : #2 Descripti PGN Ena tory Defa	on 200 on ble/Dis ults	A Sable		
Power	Back	Sc L	roll p	Scr Dov	oll wn	Enter

Figure 52 – DCM100 Advanced Configuration Screen

6.6.1.1 Current Sensor Type

Three different current sensors may be attached to the DCM100. Options are:

- **200A** A 200 Amp Current Transducer is connected to the DCM100. This has the part number LEMHTA200-S.
- **400A** A 400 Amp Current Transducer is connected to the DCM100. This has the part number LEMHTA400-S.
- **600A** A 600 Amp Current Transducer is connected to the DCM100. This has the part number LEMHTA600-S.

Select the required transducer using the Scroll Up and Scroll Down keys followed by the Enter key.

6.6.1.2 Device Instance

This entry allows you to program the NMEA 2000 device instance for the unit. You usually will not need to modify the default value of "0" unless you have multiple units on the network.

6.6.1.3 Installation Description

This entry allows you to modify the NMEA 2000 installation description text strings. You can enter any information you like here, such as the date the unit was installed, or the location in which it was installed, for later reference. Tools such as Maretron N2KAnalyzer allow you to view these values later. See section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.

6.6.1.4 NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable

The DCM100 Annunciator Module transmits the NMEA2000 PGNs #127506 and 127508 which can be turned on or turned off by the DSM410 display. Pressing the **Enter** key with "NMEA2000 PGN

Enable/Disable..." menu item selected causes the DSM410 to display the following screen (Figure 53).

Configuratio Device Con NA Manufact B4 Maretron Advancec NMEA20	n figuration ^{urer} Model DCM1 I Configu 00 PGN I	 SN# 00 14199 ration Enable/Di	HW# 105 1.0 sable	SW# 10.4
127506	DC Detailed	Status		On
127508	Battery State	us		On
Power	Back	Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 53 – DCM100 NMEA 2000[®] PGN Enable/Disable Screen

You can enable or disable the transmission of the these messages, or set the frequency of transmission of the message by pressing the Enter key () on the message to be configured. Options are:

- Disable The message will not be transmitted
- **Default** The message will be transmitted at its default NMEA2000 rate.
- **1.0s...5.0s** The message will be transmitted at the period specified.

Select the required option using the Scroll Up and Scroll Down keys followed by the Enter key.

6.6.1.5 Restore Factory Defaults

This option restores all settings on the device to their factory default state.

6.6.2 Current Sensor Zero Offset Calibration

The DCM100 is shipped with a Hall-effect current sensor. In order to match the DCM100 unit and the sensor to one another and ensure maximum accuracy, you should perform this calibration step while there is no current flowing through the current sensor. Move the highlight bar to the Current Sensor Zero Offset Calibration and press the Enter button. The following confirmation screen will be displayed:





Figure 54 – Current Sensor Zero Offset Calibration Confirmation Screen

Make sure that no current is flowing through the sensor, and press **Begin** to execute the calibration process or **Cancel** to return to the previous menu. When the calibration is complete, the following screen will be displayed.



Figure 55 – Current Sensor Zero Offset Calibration Complete Screen

Press the **Back** button to return to the previous menu.

6.6.3 DC Type

You can configure the DCM100 as to what type of DC power source it is monitoring. With the exception of the "Battery" type, the value of this parameter is used only for reporting the power source type over the NMEA 2000 network. However, if you select the "Battery" type, many battery-related options become available.

The following DC Types are selectable:

- Battery
- Alternator
- Convertor

- Solar Cell
- Wind Generator

If the DC Type is set to battery, then the following options may be entered to characterize the battery and allow the estimation of remaining charge etc.

6.6.3.1 Battery Type

The available battery types are

- Flooded/Wet
- Gel
- AGM
- Other

Selecting one of these types causes the remaining parameters to be set to appropriate default values.

6.6.3.2 Nominal Voltage

You may program here the nominal voltage of the battery, which is used only for reporting over the NMEA 2000 network. Available choices are 6, 12, 24, 32, 36, 42, and 48 Volts.

6.6.3.3 Equalization

You may indicate here whether or not the battery supports equalization. This is used only for reporting over the NMEA 2000 network. Available choices are

- Supported
- Not Supported

6.6.3.4 Temperature Coefficient

The capacity of a battery generally increases with increasing temperature. So that the DCM100 can properly calculate the battery's state of charge, program this parameter with the increase in battery capacity, in percent, per increase in temperature, in degrees Celsius. The temperature coefficient can be set to a value between $0\%/^{\circ}C - 5\%/^{\circ}C$.

6.6.3.5 Peukert Exponent

The Peukert Exponent for the battery can be set to a value between 1.0 and 1.5. Please refer to Section 4.8 on page 11 for details.

6.6.3.6 Charge Efficiency Factor

The Charge Efficiency Factor for the battery can be set to a value between 5% and 100%. Please refer to Section 4.6.1 on page 11 for details.

6.6.3.7 Fully Charged Voltage

In order for the DCM100 to determine when a battery is fully charged, it uses three parameters. The "Fully Charged Voltage" indicates the value voltage at which the battery is considered fully charged if the battery voltage remains above this value and the battery current remains below the "Fully Charged Current" for the amount of time defined by the "Fully Charged Time" parameter.



6.6.3.8 Fully Charged Current

In order for the DCM100 to determine when a battery is fully charged, it uses three parameters. The "Fully Charged Voltage" indicates the value voltage at which the battery is considered fully charged if the battery voltage remains above this value and the battery current remains below the "Fully Charged Current" for the amount of time defined by the "Fully Charged Time" parameter.

6.6.3.9 Fully Charged Time

In order for the DCM100 to determine when a battery is fully charged, it uses three parameters. The "Fully Charged Voltage" indicates the value voltage at which the battery is considered fully charged if the battery voltage remains above this value and the battery current remains below the "Fully Charged Current" for the amount of time defined by the "Fully Charged Time" parameter.

6.6.3.10 Battery Temperature

In order for the DCM100 to properly determine battery capacity and state of charge, it must know the temperature of the battery. If you are using a TR3K temperature sensor attached to the battery, you should set this parameter to "Sensor". Otherwise, if no temperature sensor is available, you can set this parameter to the estimated battery temperature, between -25°C and 125°C.

6.6.3.11 Time Remaining Floor

The DCM100 calculates the time, given the current being discharged from the battery, before the battery becomes discharged. By default, the DCM100 considers a battery to be discharged when its state of charge reaches the "Time Remaining Floor" value, which is by default set to 50%. If you desire to use some other state of charge value for the "Time Remaining Floor", you may change this parameter to the desired value.

6.6.3.12 Time Remaining Averaging Period

If loads on the battery are switching on and off frequently, the battery time remaining value calculated by the DCM100 can vary significantly. You may change the time over which current readings are averaged by changing this parameter anywhere in the range of 1 second to 32 minutes.

6.6.3.13 Zero Current Threshold

The current sensor reading can drift slightly at zero current, depending on temperature. Over a long period of time, this can cause the DCM100 to calculate that a battery is discharging slowly, even though it is not. The Zero Current Threshold parameter indicates a reading from the current sensor below which no current is considered to be flowing into or out of the battery.

6.6.4 Instance

This entry allows you to program the NMEA 2000 device instance for the unit. You usually will not need to modify the default value of "0" unless you have multiple units on the network.

6.6.5 Label

A label may be assigned to the DCM100 as an aid to identifying the device over the network. Typically this label will describe the battery or device which the DCM100 is monitoring. See section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.

6.7 Maretron DCR100 Configuration

The DSM410 is capable of configuring the Maretron DCR100 DC Relay device. This section describes the configuration of the Maretron DCR100 firmware version 1.1.1. The main DCR100 configuration screen is shown below.

Configuration Device Config	uration			
NA Manufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
48 Maretron	DCR100	1719999	2.0	1113
Advanced C	onfigurat	ion		
Device Labe	HĚLM	RELAY I	вох	
Instance :	#0			
Channel #1.				
Channel #2.				
Channel #3.				
Channel #4.				
Channel #5.				
Channel #6.				
Power Ba	ch So	roll Jp	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 56 – DCR100 Configuration Screen

6.7.1 Advanced Configuration

Advanced Configuration changes some complex parameters within the device, and should only be performed by an advanced user. Typically advanced configuration is only done at installation and should not need to be done while at sea.

Configura Device C	tion onfigur	ation				
NA Manuf	acturer	Model	SN#		HW#	SW#
48 Maretr	on	DCR 100	171999	9	20	1113
Advance	ed Co	nfigurati	on			
Device Install NMEA Restor	e Instar ation D 2000 P re Facto	ore :#0)escripti GN Ena ory Defa	on ble/Dis ults	able		
Power	Back	Sci U	roll P	Sci	oll wn	Enter

Figure 57 – DCR100 Advanced Configuration Screen

6.7.1.1 Current Sensor Zero Offset Calibration

The DCR100 contains Hall-effect current sensors. In order to ensure maximum accuracy, you should perform this calibration step while there is no current flowing through the current sensors. Move the highlight bar to the Current Sensor Zero Offset Calibration and press the Enter button. The following confirmation screen will be displayed:





Figure 58 – DCR100 Current Sensor Zero Offset Calibration Screen

Press **Begin** to execute the calibration process or **Cancel** to return to the previous menu. During the calibration process, all channels will be turned off. When the calibration is complete, the following screen will be displayed.

Curren	nt Senso	or Zero	Offset	Cal.
Status:	Calibration	Complete	d	
Power	Back			

Figure 59 – DCR100 Current Sensor Zero Offset Calibration Completion Screen

Press the **Back** button to return to the previous menu.

6.7.1.2 Device Instance

This entry allows you to program the NMEA 2000 device instance for the unit. You usually will not need to modify the default value of "0".

6.7.1.3 Installation Description

This entry allows you to modify the NMEA 2000 installation description text strings. You can enter any information you like here, such as the date the unit was installed, or the location in which it was

installed, for later reference. Tools such as Maretron N2KAnalyzer allow you to view these values later. See section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.

6.7.1.4 NMEA 2000 PGN Enable/Disable

The DCR100 transmits a variety of the NMEA2000 PGN's which can be turned on or turned off by the DSM410 display. Pressing the **Enter** key with "NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable..." menu item selected causes the DSM410 to display the following screen (Figure 60).

DCR100 Configurati PGN Ena	1719999 ion ıble/Disab	2.0 Ie	1113
onfigurati PGN Ena	ion Ible/Disab	le	
_			
ary Switch I	Bank Status		On
itch Bank Co	ontrol		-
itch Indicato	r Status		On
Beaker Curr	rent		On
unci ator			Off
	tch Bank Co tch Indicato Beaker Curr nunciator	tch Bank Control tch Indicator Status Beaker Current nunciator	tch Bank Control tch Indicator Status Beaker Current nunciator

Figure 60 – DCR100 NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable Screen

6.7.1.5 Restore Factory Defaults

This option restores all settings on the device to their factory default state.

6.7.2 Device Label

This entry allows you to assign a text label to the device. This label is visible in Maretron analysis and display products and allows you to easily identify the particular device.

6.7.3 Instance

This field identifies the particular switch bank instance which is transmitted by this DCR100. This instance number is used by display products to select the particular bank of switches to be controlled or monitored.

6.7.4 Channel #1-#6 Configuration

Each channel may be programmed into one of two different operating modes: DCR Mode or ALM Mode.

6.7.4.1 Channel #1-#6 Configuration (DCR Mode)



Confi	iguration	uration			
NA	Manufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
06	Maretro n	DCR100	17 19999	2.0	113.1
	hannel #1 Label: Operating N Switch Lock Power Up S Switch Com Reset Count Reset Timer	lode:Nor state:Ur trole:Of ter	mal Nocked evious f		
Powe	er Bac	k Sc	roll Ip	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 61 – DCR100 Channel Configuration Screen (DCR Mode)

6.7.4.1.1 Label

This entry allows you to assign a text label to the device. This label is visible in Maretron analysis and display products and allows you to easily identify the particular device.

6.7.4.1.2 Operating Mode

The operating mode of each channel may be set to either DCR (DC Relay), in which case the state of the channel is controlled by "Circuit Breaker / Switch" controls in N2KView or "Switch/Breaker" favorite screens in the DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 displays. This section of the manual assumes the operating mode has been set to "DCR".

6.7.4.1.3 Switch Lock

The default state of a channel in DCR Switch Lock mode is "Unlocked". In the Unlocked mode, the channel may be turned on and off from network display devices. By setting the Switch Lock mode of the channel to "Lock", then channel will not change state until the Switch Lock mode has once again been set to "Unlocked".

6.7.4.1.4 Power Up State

This entry defines the state of the channel when the DCR100 is powered up. You may set this entry of "Off", in which the channel powers up in the Off state (the solid-state relay is open). You may also set this entry to "On", in which the channel powers up in the On state (the solid-state relay is closed). Finally, you may set this entry to "Previous", in which the channel powers up to the state it was in when power was previously removed.

6.7.4.1.5 Switch Control

This entry will show the current state of the relay channel, either "Off" (open) or "On" closed. You may use this menu entry to turn the relay channel on or off.

6.7.4.1.6 Reset Counter

This resets the hardware counter associated with this channel to zero.

6.7.4.1.7 Reset Timer

This resets the hardware timer associated with this channel to zero.

6.7.4.2 Channel #1-#6 Configuration (ALM Mode)



Figure 62 – DCR100 Channel Configuration Screen (ALM Mode)

6.7.4.2.1 Label

This entry allows you to assign a text label to the device. This label is visible in Maretron analysis and display products and allows you to easily identify the particular device.

6.7.4.2.2 Operating Mode

The operating mode of each channel may be set to either DCR (DC Relay), in which case the state of the channel is controlled by "Circuit Breaker / Switch" controls in N2KView or "Switch/Breaker" favorite screens in the DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 displays. This section of the manual assumes the operating mode has been set to "ALM".

6.7.4.2.3 ALM Instance

This entry allows you to program the instance number for the ALM function. You may use a value between 0 and 15. This instance number is used by the DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 or N2KView when selecting annunciators to sound when programming an alert.

6.7.4.2.4 Test Annunciator

Select this entry to verify functionality of the channel in ALM mode. This will cause the annunciator to sound or light briefly.



6.8 Maretron DSM200 Configuration

You can use the DSM410 to configure other remotely-located DSM200 units by using the Remote DSM200 configuration menu shown in Figure 63 below. This describes the configuration of the Maretron DSM200 firmware version 1.10. There is one configurable item for the remote DSM200 configuration and that is "**Remote Device Selection...**".

Confi Devi NA 15	iguration ice Configu Manufacturer Maretron emote Devi	Iration Model DSM200 ce Selec	SN# 1100005 tion	HW# 12	SW# 1.10
Powe	er Bac	k Sc	roll 9 Ip 1	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 63 – DSM200 Remote Configuration Screen

6.8.1 Remote Device Selection

A DSM410 unit can be used to configure a remote DSM200 to set which NMEA 2000[®] devices are selected for display on the remote DSM200 unit. In this manner, multiple devices of the same type may be used on a NMEA 2000[®] network in a fail-safe configuration. For example, a certain compass unit out of several may be selected for display on the remote DSM200. The "**Remote Device Selection...**" menu for an example network configuration can be seen in Figure 64 below. **WARNING**: Do not select multiple devices of the same type for display. This will result in multiple and possibly conflicting readings.

Config	uration				
Device	e Configui	ration			
NA M	anufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
11 M	aretron	DSM200	1100105	12	1. 15.0AT
Ren	note Devid	e Selectio	on		
NA	Manuf.	Model	SN#	Stat	Disp
20	Maretron	GPS 100	1140232	OnL	On
49	Maretron	SSC200	1120437	OnL	On
10	Maretron	DSM250	1109000	OnL	On
50	Maretron	USB 100	1160111	OnL	On
80	Maretron	WSO 100	2097151	OnL	On
		Sara	II 90	-	
Power	Bac	Up	n Sc Do	wn	Enter

Figure 64 – DSM200 Remote Device Selection Screen

The "NA" column of the menu displays the node address the device is using.

The "Manuf." column of the menu displays the manufacturer of the device.

The "Model" column displays the model number of the device.

- The "**SN#**" column displays the serial number of the device, so that any of two or more devices of the same manufacturer and model number may be distinguished from one another.
- The "**Stat**" column indicates whether the device is currently connected to the bus and is responding to queries ("Online"), or has been disconnected from the bus, has lost power, or for some other reason is not responding to queries ("Offline").
- The "**Disp**" column indicates whether data from that particular device is accepted for display by the remote DSM200 ("On") or that the remote DSM200 ignores data transmitted by this device ("Off"). By scrolling to the device and pressing the Enter key (), you may then use the Scroll Up () and Scroll Down () keys to toggle the "Display" status for this particular device. Once you are satisfied with the state of the "Display" setting, press the Enter key () to accept the setting.

The remote DSM200 will retain information on devices that have been removed from the bus or powered down ("Offline") so that when they are placed back on the bus, they will assume their prior "Display" setting.



6.9 Maretron DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 Configuration

You can use the DSM410 to configure other remotely-located DSM150, DSM250, and DSM410 units by using the Remote DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 configuration menu as shown in Figure 65 below. This describes the configuration of the Maretron DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 firmware version 1.7.2. There are three configurable items for the remote DSM150/DSM250/DSM410: "Remote Device Selection...", "Copy device selection from local display", and "Copy favorite settings from local display".

Configuration				
Device Configu	iration			
NA Manufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
17 Maretron	DSM250	1300178	10	13.10
Advanced C	onfigurati	on		
Copy alarms	settings	from lo	cal dis	play
Copy device	selectio	n from I	ocal dis	splay
Copy displa	y setting	from le	ocal dis	play
Copy favorit	e setting	s from l	ocal dis	play
Copy DST10	0 calibra	tions fro	m loca	display
Copy all set	tings fro	m local	display	
Label : Test				
Remote Dev	ice Selec	tion		
		roll	Scroll	
Power Bac	k 30	D	Down	Enter

Figure 65 – DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 Remote Configuration Screen

6.9.1 Remote Device Selection

A DSM410 unit can be used to configure a remote DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 to set which NMEA 2000[®] devices are selected for display on the remote DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 unit. In this manner, multiple devices of the same type may be used on a NMEA 2000[®] network in a fail-safe configuration. For example, a certain compass unit may be selected from several available compasses for display on the remote DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 Device Selection Menu for an example network configuration can be seen in Figure 66 below.

WARNING: Do not select multiple devices of the same type for display. This will result in multiple and possibly conflicting readings.

Configu Device NA Ma 11 Ma	uration Configu anufacturer aretron	ration Model DSM250	SN# 1309901	HW# 10	SW# 1.0.1b12
Rem	note Devi	ce Selecti	on	-	
NA	Manuf.	Model	SN#	Stat	Disp
80	Maretron	WSO 100	2097151	OnL	On
50	Maretron	USB 100	1160111	OnL	On
10	Maretron	DSM250	1109000	OnL	On
49	Maretron	SSC200	1120437	OnL	On
20	Maretron	GPS 100	1140232	OnL	On
Power	Bac	scra Up	oll Sci Do	roll wn	Enter

Figure 66 – DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 Remote Device Selection Screen

The "NA" column of the menu displays the node address the device is using.

- The "Manuf." column of the menu displays the manufacturer of the device.
- The "Model" column displays the model number of the device.
- The "**SN#**" column displays the serial number of the device, so that any of two or more devices of the same manufacturer and model number may be distinguished from one another.
- The "**Stat**" column indicates whether the device is currently connected to the bus and is responding to queries ("Online"), or has been disconnected from the bus, has lost power, or for some other reason is not responding to queries ("Offline").
- The "**Disp**" column indicates whether data from that particular device is accepted for display by the remote DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 ("On") or that the remote DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 ignores data transmitted by this device ("Off"). By scrolling to the device and pressing the Enter key (), you may then use the Scroll Up () and Scroll Down () keys to toggle the "Display" status for this particular device. Once you are satisfied with the state of the "Display" setting, press the Enter key () to accept the setting.

The remote DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 will retain information on devices that have been removed from the bus or powered down ("Offline") so that when they are placed back on the bus, they will assume their prior "Display" setting.

6.9.2 Copy alarms settings from local display

It is possible to copy the alarm settings from a DSM410 unit to a remotely located DSM150/DSM250/DSM410. This should be done with care because if more than one Alert Source is monitoring the same parameter, then multiple alerts will be generated when the parameter goes out of bounds, and each one will need to be independently accepted or cancelled. Any alarms existing on the remote DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 will be deleted. This command will also copy the SMS (Text) Phone Book settings. Figure 67 below shows this menu item highlighted.



Configura	tion	ration			
NA Manu	facturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
17 Maret	ron	DSM250	1300 178	10	13.10
Advan	ced Co	onfigurati	on		
Copy Copy Copy Copy Copy Copy Label Remot	device display favorite DST100 all set : Test e Devi	settings selection settings settings calibrat tings from ce Selec	from 1 n from s from s from tions fro m local tion	ocal dis local dis local dis local dis local dis om local display	play play play play display
Power	Bac	k Sc	roll P	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 67 – DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 Copy alarms settings from local display

After you select this menu item and press **Enter**, the alarm settings from this DSM410 unit will be copied to the selected remote DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 unit.

6.9.3 Copy device selection from local display

Since it is normally desirable for all DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 units on a network to display the same sensors, it is possible to copy the device selection settings from a DSM410 unit to a remotely located DSM150/DSM250/DSM410. In this way, it is possible to make all device selection changes on a single DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 unit and then quickly and conveniently duplicate these new device selection settings on other DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 units attached to the network. Figure 68 below shows this menu item highlighted.

Configuration				
Device Config	uration			
NA Manufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
17 Maretron	DSM250	1300178	10	1.3.10
Advanced C	onfigurat	ion		
Copy alarm	s settings	from lo	cal dis	play
Copy device	e selectio	n from I	ocal dis	splay
Copy displa	y setting	s from le	ocal dis	play
Copy favori	te setting	s from l	ocal dis	play
Copy DST10	00 calibra	tions fro	m local	display
Copy all se	ttings fro	m local	display	
Lahel . Test	unge ne	in revai	aropiaj	
Barneta Day	ica Calas	tion		
Remote Dev	ice Selec			
Power Ba	ch Se	roll Ja	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 68 – DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 Copy device selection from local display

After you select this menu item and press **Enter**, the device selection settings from this DSM410 unit will be copied to the selected remote DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 unit.

6.9.4 Copy display settings from local display

Configuration. Device Config	 uration			
NA Manufacture	r Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
17 Maretron	DSM250	1300 178	10	13.10
Advanced Copy alarn Copy devic Copy displ Copy favor Copy DST1 Copy all s Label : Tes Remote De	Configura ns setting e selection ite setting 100 calibr ettings fro t vice Sele	tion is from lo on from is from l gs from ations fro om local oction	ocal dis local dis ocal dis ocal dis ocal dis display	play play play play display display
Power B	ack S	icroll Up	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 69 – DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 Copy display settings from local display

6.9.5 Copy favorite settings from local display

It is also possible to copy the favorite screen settings from one DSM410 to a remote DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 unit. This menu item can be seen selected in Figure 70 below.

Powe	er Bac	s Sc	roll	Scroll	Enter
R	emote Devi	ce Selec	tion		
La	abel : Test				
C	opy all set	tings fro	m local	display	
C	opy DST10) calibra	tions fro	m loca	display
C	opy favorit	e setting	s from I	ocal dis	play
C	opy display	setting:	s from l	ocal dis	play
C	opy device	selectio	n from I	ocal dis	splay
C	opy alarms	settings	from lo	cal dis	play
A	dvanced Co	onfigurati	on		
17	Maretron	DSM250	1300178	10	13.10
NA	Manufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
Devi	ce Configu	ration			
Confi	guration				

Figure 70 – DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 Copy favorite settings from local display

By selecting this menu item and pressing Enter, all the favorite screen settings will be copied from the local DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 to the selected remote DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 unit. After copying favorite screen settings, it is necessary to restart the remote unit. A screen, which can be seen in Figure 71 below will appear indicating that favorite settings have been successfully transferred to the remote DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 and that the remote DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 must be restarted to complete the operation. Press Enter to restart the remote DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 unit, complete the favorite settings transfer operation, and return to the previous menu selection.





Figure 71 – Favorite Settings Transfer Completion Screen

6.9.6 Copy DST100 calibrations from local display

DST100 calibration data is not stored in the DST100 device. Rather each DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 needs to apply its own set of calibration parameters to the raw data received. This operation allows one DSM410 to copy its calibration table to a second DSM150/DSM250/DSM410.

Configuration.				
Device Config	uration	100000	1000000	100000
NA Manufacture	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
17 Maretron	DSM250	1300178	10	13.10
Advanced (Copy alarm Copy devic Copy displa Copy favori	Configurat is settings e selectio ay setting ite setting	ion s from lo n from lo s from lo s from lo	cal dis ocal dis ocal dis ocal dis	play splay splay splay
Copy DST1	00 calibra	tions fro	m local	display
Copy all se Label : Test Remote De	ettings fro t vice Selec	m local	display	
Power Ba	ick So	roll Jp	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 72 – DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 Copy DST100 calibrations from local display

6.9.7 Copy all settings from local display

This is the single operation that makes it easy to have multiple DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 displays on a boat. Set one DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 up so that all its settings are correct, and quickly transfer all the alarms, device settings and display setting to another DSM150/DSM250/DSM410. Then go in and update the following information to customize the new device.

- Display Settings \rightarrow Advanced Configuration \rightarrow Installation Descriptions
- Display Settings → Label

Also use this function to copy settings from an old DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 to a new DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 when replacing the device.

Configuratio	on				
Device Co	nfigurat	tion			
NA Manufac	turer M	odel	SN#	HW#	SW#
17 Maretron	n D	SM250	1300 178	10	1.3.10
Advance	d Conf	iguratio	n		
Copy ala	arms s	ettinas	from lo	cal dis	play
Copy de	vice se	election	from I	ocal dis	splay
Copy di	splay s	ettinas	from I	ocal dis	play
Copy fay	vorite s	ettings	from I	ocal dis	play
Copy DS	ST100	alibrati	ons fro	m local	display
Copy al	settin	as from	local	display	
Label :	Test	9			6
Remote	Device	Select	ion		
Power	Back	Scr	oll	Scroll	Enter

Figure 73 – DSM150/DSM250/DSM410all settings from local display

6.9.8 Label

The Label of the DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 is used by the Alert System to identify the source of an alert. Here, the label can be changed using the method described in section 3.3.4.

Configuration Device Configu	ration			
NA Manufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
17 Maretron	DSM250	1300178	10	1.3.10
Advanced Co Copy alarms Copy device Copy display Copy favorit Copy DST10 Copy all set Label : IESI Remote Devi	onfigurati settings selectio y setting e setting 0 calibra tings fro	ion from log from log from log from log tions from m logal g tion	cal dis ocal dis ocal dis ocal dis n local display	play splay splay splay I display
Power Back	4			Edit

Figure 74 – DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 Label Configuration

6.9.9 Remote Device Selection



Configu	uration					_
Device	Configu	ration				
NA M	anufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#	
17 M	aretron	DSM250	1300178	10	13.10	
Rem	note Devi	ce Selecti	on			
NA	Manuf.	Model	SN#	Stat	Disp	
21	Maretron	GPS 100	211	OnL	On	Γ
-	Maretron	DSM250	1309901	OffL	On	
8A	Maretron	WSO 100	1200421	OnL	On	
01	Maretron	USB 100	1160258	OnL	On	
02	Maretron	DST 100	55148	OnL	On	
-	Maretron	DSM250	1309910	OffL	On	
08	Maretro n	USB 100	1160253	OnL	On	Ľ
Power	Bac	k Scro Up	oll Sc Do	roll wn	En	ter

Figure 75 – DSM150/DSM250/DSM410 Remote Device Selection

6.10 Maretron DST100 Configuration

The DSM410 is capable of configuring Maretron's DST100 for several different parameters including trip log resetting, transducer depth offset, and speed calibration. This describes the configuration of the Maretron DST100 firmware version 1.0.1.

NA Manufa	onfigur acturer	ation Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
00 Maretr	on	DST 100	9999	10	10.162
Clear S Speed Transd Trip Lo	Speed Calibra ucer D og:	Calibrati ation epth Off 0.0 nm	on: 1.0 fset: Reset	000 0.0 ft	

Figure 76 – DST100 Configuration Screen

6.10.1 Advanced Configuration

Advanced Configuration changes some complex parameters within the device, and should only be performed by an advanced user. Typically advanced configuration is only done at installation and should not need to be done while at sea.

Configuration Device Configu NA Manufacturer 00 Maretron Advanced Co <u>Device Insta</u> Installation	ration Model DST 100 onfigurati nce #0 Descripti	SN# 9999 on on	HW# 10	SW# 10. 1 62
Power Bac	k Sc U	D	Down	Enter

Figure 77 – DST100 Advanced Configuration Screen

6.10.1.1 Device Instance

This entry allows you to program the NMEA 2000 device instance for the unit. You usually will not need to modify the default value of "0" unless you have multiple units on the network.



6.10.1.2 Installation Description

This entry allows you to modify the NMEA 2000 installation description text strings. You can enter any information you like here, such as the date the unit was installed, or the location in which it was installed, for later reference. Tools such as Maretron N2KAnalyzer allow you to view these values later. See section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.

6.10.2 Clear Speed Calibration

The **Clear Speed Calibration** configuration parameter shows you the currently used correction factor. All STW readings for the particular DST100 (indicated by the SN#) are multiplied by this number to arrive at the displayed number. You can remove the correction factor by pressing the Enter key () with the "Clear Speed Calibration:" menu item selected. And then choose "Clear" using Scroll Up () or Scroll Down () keys followed by the Enter key (). This changes the correction factor back to 1 such that all subsequent STW readings are no longer adjusted before displaying by the DSM410.

6.10.3 Speed Calibration

The DST100 speed through water (STW) initial accuracy is significantly affected by the location or placement of the DST100 within the hull. The DSM410 can correct for these inaccuracies using the speed calibration procedure. You calibrate the DSM410 for the DST100 STW by pressing the **Enter** key () with the "Speed Calibration..." menu item selected which results in the screen shown in Figure 78.



Figure 78 – Calibrating the DSM410 for DST100 Speed through Water

The speed calibration screen shown in Figure 78 indicates the STW as measured by the DST100, which can be changed to the actual STW by following these steps. First, pick a speed where you are most concerned with the best accuracy. Next, bring the boat up to the desired speed using some other source, perhaps the GPS speed over ground (SOG). Remember that the SOG does not necessary reflect the STW because of currents, and drift due to winds, so you should do this in an area where you are sure there are no currents and calm winds. Finally, use the Increase () and Decrease () keys to adjust the display value until it matches the known speed of the boat. Press the Accept () key to accept the value when you are satisfied. If you do not wish to perform installation offset calibration at this time, press the Abort () key and the speed calibration will not

Revision 1.7.2

DSM410 User's Manual

be altered. The speed calibration process provides a method for the actual STW reading produced by the DST100 to be adjusted within the DSM410 (i.e., calibration data is not stored within the DST100). WARNING: Unlike resetting the trip log and setting the depth offset, which actually programs the DST100 so that all displays receive the same information, speed calibration must be performed at individual displays in order to show calibrated speed through water.

6.10.4 Transducer Depth Offset

The DSM410 can set the transducer depth offset parameter in a DST100 depth/speed/temperature transducer. If you are interested in the actual water depth (as opposed to the depth beneath the keel), then you should program a positive value equal to the distance from the waterline to the depth of the DST100. The DSM410 will then add the measured depth of the water (as seen by the DST100) to the programmed offset value to produce the total water depth. If you are interested in the depth of water beneath the keel, then you should program a negative value equal to the distance between the DST100 and the bottom of the keel. The display will then subtract the programmed offset from the measured depth of the water (as seen by the DST100) showing you the depth of water beneath the keel.

You program the transducer depth offset by pressing the **Enter** key () with the "Transducer Depth Offset:" menu item selected which results in the screen shown in Figure 79.



Figure 79 – Setting the Transducer Depth Offset in a DST100

6.10.5 Trip Log

The DSM410 is capable of clearing the trip log counter within a DST100 depth/speed/temperature transducer. You zero the trip log by pressing the Enter key () with the "Trip Log:" menu item selected which results in the screen shown in Figure 80. Pressing the **Accept** () key while the



"Reset" menu item is selected will complete the operation. Resetting the trip log zeroes the DST100's trip log such that all displays receive a zeroed value (i.e., you don't have to perform the operation from other display locations).

NA Manufacturer Model SN# HW# SW# OE Maretron DST100 ID: 50825 D235-S1v: 3.0 Advanced Configuration Clear Speed Calibration: 1.000 Speed Calibration Transducer Depth Offset: 0.8 ft Trip Log: 0.0 nm Reset	Configurat	ion			
OE Maretron DST100 ID: 50825 D235-S1v: 3.0 Advanced Configuration Clear Speed Calibration: 1.000 Speed Calibration Transducer Depth Offset: 0.8 ft Trip Log: 0.0 nm Reset	nufacturer M	odel	SN#	HW# S	W#
Advanced Configuration Clear Speed Calibration: 1.000 Speed Calibration Transducer Depth Offset: 0.8 ft Trip Log: 0.0 nm Reset	retron D	ST 100	ID: 50825	D235-S1v:	3.010
Transducer Depth Offset: 0.8 ft Trip Log: 0.0 nm Reset	r Speed Cont ed Calibrati	iguration ilibration on	n n: 1.000		
	sducer Dep Log: 0	th Offso .0 nm	et: 0.8 Teset	ft	

Figure 80 – Resetting the DST100 Trip Distance Log

6.11 Maretron DST110 Configuration

The DSM410 is capable of configuring Maretron's DST110 for several different parameters including trip log resetting, transducer depth offset, temperature calibration, and speed calibration.

NA Manufa	cturer Mo	del SI	#	HW#	SW#
23 Maretro	n DS	ST 110 *		D235- S	11.003, 1.0
Advanc	ed Confi	guration			
Clear S	peed Ca	libration:	Clear		
Speed	Calibrati	on			
Clear T	emperati	ure Offset	: 0.0	°F	
Temper	ature Ca	libration.			
Transdu	icer Dep	th Offset:	6.0	ft	
Trip Lo	a: 0	0 nm Re	set		
	<u>j</u>				
_	_	Scroll	Ser		

Figure 81 – DST110 Configuration Screen

6.11.1 Advanced Configuration

Advanced Configuration changes some complex parameters within the device, and should only be performed by an advanced user. Typically advanced configuration is only done at installation and should not need to be done while at sea.

Configuration Device Cont	1 figuratio	n		
NA Manufactu	irer Mode	el SN#	HW#	SW#
23 Maretron	DST	110 *	D235	S11.003, 1.0
Advanced	Config	uration		
Device II	nstance	#0		
Instance	Temper	ature : #3		
Installatio	on Desc	ription		
NMEA200	0 PGN	Enable/D	isable	
Power	Back	Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 82 – DST110 Advanced Configuration Screen

6.11.1.1 Device Instance

This entry allows you to program the NMEA 2000 device instance for the unit. You usually will not need to modify the default value of "0" unless you have multiple units on the network.


6.11.1.2 Instance Temperature

The Data Instance of the Temperature (as sent in PGNs 130310, 130311, and 130312) is set in this field. Use the **Increase** and **Decrease** buttons to select the correct instance number, and the press the **Enter** button to store it.

6.11.1.3 Installation Description

This entry allows you to modify the NMEA 2000 installation description text strings. You can enter any information you like here, such as the date the unit was installed, or the location in which it was installed, for later reference. Tools such as Maretron N2KAnalyzer allow you to view these values later. See section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.

6.11.1.4 NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable

The DST110 transmits several different NMEA2000 PGN's which can be turned on or turned off by the DSM410 display. Pressing the **Enter** key with "NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable..." menu item selected causes the DSM410 to display the following screen.

Configuration	on			
Device Co	nfigurati	on		
NA Manufac	turer Mo	del SN#	¥ HW#	SW#
23 Maretro	n DS	T110 *	D235-	S11.003, 1.0
Advance NMEA2	d Config 000 PGN	guration I Enable/D)isable	
128259	Speed			On
128267	Water	Depth		On
130310	Enviro	n mental Para	ameters	On
130311	Enviro	nmental Para	ameters	Off
130312	Tempe	erature		Off
128275	Distan	ce Log		On
		Q	6	
Power	Back	Scroll	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 83 – DST110 NMEA 2000[®] PGN Enable/Disable Screen

You can enable or disable the transmission of these messages, or set the frequency of transmission of the message by pressing the Enter key () on the message to be configured. Options are:

- Off The message will not be transmitted
- **On** The message will be transmitted at its default NMEA 2000[®] rate.

Select the required option using the Scroll Up and Scroll Down keys followed by the Enter key.

6.11.2 Clear Speed Calibration

The **Clear Speed Calibration** configuration parameter shows you the currently used correction factor. All measured STW readings are multiplied by this number before being transmitted over the NMEA 2000[®] network. You can remove the correction factor by pressing the Enter key () with the "Clear Speed Calibration:" menu item selected. And then choose "Clear" using Scroll Up () or Scroll Down () keys followed by the Enter key (). This changes the correction factor back to 1 such that all subsequent measured STW readings are no longer adjusted before begin transmitted over the NMEA 2000[®] network.

6.11.3 Speed Calibration

The DST110 speed through water (STW) initial accuracy is significantly affected by the location or placement of the DST110 within the hull. The DST110 can be corrected for these inaccuracies using the speed calibration procedure. You calibrate the DST110 STW by pressing the **Enter** key () with the "Speed Calibration..." menu item selected which results in the screen shown in Figure 78.



Figure 84 – Calibrating the DST110 Speed

The speed calibration screen shown in Figure 78 indicates the STW as measured by the DST110, which can be changed to the transmitted STW by following these steps. First, pick a speed where you are most concerned with the best accuracy. Next, bring the boat up to the desired speed using some other source, perhaps the GPS speed over ground (SOG). Remember that the SOG does not necessary reflect the STW because of currents, and drift due to winds, so you should do this in an area where you are sure there are no currents and calm winds. Finally, use the Increase () and Decrease () keys to adjust the display value until it matches the known speed of the boat. Press the Accept () key to accept the value when you are satisfied. If you do not wish to perform speed calibration at this time, press the Abort () key and the speed calibration will not be altered.

6.11.4 Clear Temperature Offset

The **Clear Temperature Offset** configuration parameter shows you the currently used temperature correction offset. All measured sea temperature readings have this value added to them before being transmitted over the NMEA 2000[®] network. You can set the correction offset to zero by pressing the Enter key () with the "Clear Speed Calibration:" menu item selected. And then choose "Clear" using Scroll Up () or Scroll Down () keys followed by the Enter key (). This changes the correction factor back to 0 such that all subsequent measured sea temperature readings are no longer adjusted before begin transmitted over the NMEA 2000[®] network.

6.11.5 Temperature Calibration

The temperature calibration screen shown below indicates the sea temperature as measured by the DST110, which can be changed to the actual sea temperature by following these steps. Use the Increase () and Decrease () keys to adjust the display value until it matches the known sea temperature. Press the Accept () key to accept the value when you are satisfied. If you do not



wish to perform temperature calibration at this time, press the Abort () key and the temperature calibration will not be altered.



Figure 85 - DST110 Water Temperature Calibration Screen

6.11.6 Transducer Depth Offset

The DSM410 can set the transducer depth offset parameter in a DST110 depth/speed/temperature transducer. If you are interested in the actual water depth (as opposed to the depth beneath the keel), then you should program a positive value equal to the distance from the waterline to the depth of the DST110. The DSM410 will then add the measured depth of the water (as seen by the DST110) to the programmed offset value to produce the total water depth. If you are interested in the depth of water beneath the keel, then you should program a negative value equal to the distance between the DST110 and the bottom of the keel. The display will then subtract the programmed offset from the measured depth of the water (as seen by the DST110) showing you the depth of water beneath the keel.

You program the transducer depth offset by pressing the **Enter** key () with the "Transducer Depth Offset:" menu item selected which results in the screen shown in Figure 79.

Configurati Device Co	on nfigurati	on		
NA Manufa	cturer Mo	del SN	# HW#	SW#
23 Maretro	n DS	T110 *	D235	S11.003, 1.0
Advance Clear S Speed (Clear T Tempera Transdu Trip Lo	ed Config peed Cal Calibratic emperatu ature Cal icer Dept g: 0.	guration libration: on re Offset: libration th Offset: 0 nm Res	Clear 0.0 °F <u>6.0 ft</u> et	
Power	Cancel	Increase	Decrease	Accept

Figure 86 – Setting the Transducer Depth Offset in a DST110

DSM410 User's Manual

6.11.7 Trip Log

The DSM410 is capable of clearing the trip log counter within a DST110 depth/speed/temperature transducer. You zero the trip log by pressing the Enter key () with the "Trip Log:" menu item selected which results in the screen shown in Figure 80. Pressing the **Accept** () key while the "Reset" menu item is selected will complete the operation. Resetting the trip log zeroes the DST110's trip log such that all displays receive a zeroed value (i.e., you don't have to perform the operation from other display locations).

Configuration	ration				
NA Manufacturer	Model	SN#		HW#	SW#
23 Maretron	DST 110	*		D235-	S11.003,10
Advanced Co Clear Speed Speed Calibu Clear Tempe	onfigurat Calibrat ration rature O	ion ion: Cle ffset:	ar 0.0	°F	
Transducer [Transducer [Trip Log:	Calibrat Depth Of 0.0 nm	fset: n <mark>Reset</mark>	6.0	ft	
Power Cance	el				Accept

Figure 87 – Resetting the DST110 Trip Distance Log



6.12 Maretron EMS100 Configuration

This describes the configuration of the Maretron EMS100 firmware version 1.4.1. The EMS100 is configured to match the engine to which it is connected. The EMS100 Configuration changes some complex parameters within the device, and should only be performed by an advanced user. Typically advanced configuration is only done at installation and should not need to be done while at sea.



Figure 89 – EMS100 Configuration Screen (Second Screen)

6.12.1 Engine Instance

This entry allows you to program the NMEA 2000 device instance for the unit. You usually will not need to modify the default value of "0" unless you have multiple engines on the network. By convention, the Port Engine is given an instance number of #0, and the Starboard Engine an instance number of #1. If there is a third center engine, it should be given an instance number of #2.

6.12.2 Boost Pressure Gauge Type

The EMS100 comes from the factory preprogrammed with the characteristics of boost pressure gauge types for supported engines. If the EMS100 is used with an analog boost pressure gauge, you

must select the correct type of gauge for this setting in order for the data to be displayed correctly. Valid options are:

- No Gauge select this option if there is no boost pressure gauge present.
- YANMAR

Select the required option using the Scroll Up and Scroll Down keys followed by the Enter key.

6.12.3 Boost Pressure Sender Type

The EMS100 comes from the factory preprogrammed with the characteristics of boost pressure senders for supported engines. If the engine to which you are connecting the EMS100 has a boost pressure sender, you must select the correct type of boost pressure sender for this setting in order for the data to be displayed correctly. Valid options are:

- **Disabled** select this option if there is no boost pressure sender present.
- YANMAR
- YANMAR W/THRESHOLD

Select the required option using the Scroll Up and Scroll Down keys followed by the Enter key.

6.12.4 Boost Pressure Sender Offset

Often, the characteristics of individual boost pressure senders vary from their specified values. This setting allows you to apply an offset to the resistance value of the boost pressure sender in order to allow you to bring the digital value reported by the EMS100 into agreement with that displayed by the analog gauge.

6.12.5 Drive Trim Gauge Type

The EMS100 comes from the factory preprogrammed with the characteristics of drive trim gauge types for supported engines. If the EMS100 is used with an analog drive trim gauge, you must select the correct type of gauge for this setting in order for the data to be displayed correctly. Valid options are:

- No Gauge select this option if there is no trim gauge present.
- YANMAR

Select the required option using the Scroll Up and Scroll Down keys followed by the Enter key.

6.12.6 Drive Trim Sender Type

The EMS100 comes from the factory preprogrammed with the characteristics of drive trim senders for supported engines. If the engine to which you are connecting the EMS100 has a drive trim sender, you must select the correct type of drive trim sender for this setting in order for the data to be displayed correctly. Valid options are:

- **Disabled** select this option if there is no drive trim sender present.
- YANMAR
- MERCURY



Select the required option using the Scroll Up and Scroll Down keys followed by the Enter key.

6.12.7 Drive Trim Sender Offset

Often, the characteristics of individual drive trim senders vary from their specified values. This setting allows you to apply an offset to the resistance value of the drive trim sender in order to allow you to bring the digital value reported by the EMS100 into agreement with that displayed by the analog gauge. Valid options are:

• -100...100 – number of ohms of resistance to add to the sender reading

Select the required option using the Increase and Decrease keys followed by the Enter key.

6.12.8 Oil Pressure Gauge Type

The EMS100 comes from the factory preprogrammed with the characteristics of oil pressure gauge types for supported engines. If the EMS100 is used with an analog oil pressure gauge, you must select the correct type of gauge for this setting in order for the data to be displayed correctly. Valid options are:

- No Gauge select this option if there is no oil pressure gauge present.
- YANMAR
- YANMAR W/THRESHOLD
- YANMAR / VDO
- YANMAR/VDO W/THRESHOLD

Select the required option using the Scroll Up and Scroll Down keys followed by the Enter key.

6.12.9 Oil Pressure Sender Type

The EMS100 comes from the factory preprogrammed with the characteristics of oil pressure senders for supported engines. If the engine to which you are connecting the EMS100 has an oil pressure sender, you must select the correct type of oil pressure sender for this setting in order for the data to be displayed correctly. Valid options are:

- **Disabled** select this option if there is no oil pressure sender present.
- YANMAR
- YANMAR / VDO

Select the required option using the Scroll Up and Scroll Down keys followed by the Enter key.

6.12.10 Oil Pressure Sender Offset

Often, the characteristics of individual oil pressure senders vary from their specified values. This setting allows you to apply an offset to the resistance value of the oil pressure sender in order to allow you to bring the digital value reported by the EMS100 into agreement with that displayed by the analog gauge. Valid options are:

• **-100...100** – number of ohms of resistance to add to the sender reading

Select the required option using the Increase and Decrease keys followed by the Enter key.

6.12.11 Water Temperature Gauge Type

The EMS100 comes from the factory preprogrammed with the characteristics of water temperature gauge types for supported engines. If the EMS100 is used with an analog water temperature gauge, you must select the correct type of gauge for this setting in order for the data to be displayed correctly. Valid options are:

- **No Gauge** select this option if there is no water temperature gauge present.
- YANMAR
- YANMAR / VDO

Select the required option using the Scroll Up and Scroll Down keys followed by the Enter key.

6.12.12 Water Temperature Sender Type

The EMS100 comes from the factory preprogrammed with the characteristics of water temperature senders for supported engines. If the engine to which you are connecting the EMS100 has a water temperature sender, you must select the correct type of water temperature sender for this setting in order for the data to be displayed correctly. Valid options are:

- **Disabled** select this option if there is no water temperature sender present.
- YANMAR
- YANMAR / VDO

Select the required option using the Scroll Up and Scroll Down keys followed by the Enter key.

6.12.13 Water Temperature Sender Offset

Often, the characteristics of individual water temperature senders vary from their specified values. This setting allows you to apply an offset to the resistance value of the water temperature sender in order to allow you to bring the digital value reported by the EMS100 into agreement with that displayed by the analog gauge. Valid options are:

• -100...100 - number of ohms of resistance to add to the sender reading

Select the required option using the **Increase** and **Decrease** keys followed by the **Enter** key.

6.12.14 **Preset Engine Hours**

The EMS100 reports engine hours based on how long the EMS100 has been powered from the engine. The EMS100 comes from the factory preprogrammed with an engine hours reading of 0 hours. If you are installing the EMS100 on an engine that has been in service, or if you have overhauled an engine, you can use this setting to preset the engine hours reading to the desired value. Valid options are:

• 0...999999 – hours

Select the required option using the Increase and Decrease keys followed by the Enter key.



6.12.15 Tachometer Flywheel Teeth

The EMS100 needs to know the number of flywheel teeth on the engine (or the number of alternator pulses per revolution) in order to correctly calculate engine RPM. Use this setting to program the EMS100 with the number of flywheel teeth or alternator pulses per revolution for the engine to which the EMS100 is connected. Valid options are:

• 0...400 – pulses per revolution

Select the required option using the **Increase** and **Decrease** keys followed by the **Enter** key.

6.13 Maretron FFM100 Configuration

The DSM410 is capable of configuring the Maretron FFM100 Fluid Flow Monitor. This describes the configuration of the Maretron FFM100 firmware version 1.1.2.

Configu Device	ration Configu	ration			
NA Mar	ufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
69 Mar	etro n	FFM 100	167999	9 10	1121
Devic Open Chan Chan	neta Co ce Label ating M(nel #0 nel #1	: PORT E ode : Dif	NGINE FU ferentia	iel flow I	INTERFACE
Power	Bac	S	roll Jp	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 90 – FFM100 Configuration Screen

6.13.1 Advanced Configuration

Advanced Configuration changes some complex parameters within the device, and should only be performed by an advanced user. Typically advanced configuration is only done at installation and should not need to be done while at sea.

Configu Device	ration Configu	ration				
NA Mar	nufacturer	Model	SN#	- 1	W#	SW#
69 Mar	retro n	FFM 100	16799	99 '	10	1121
Adva	nced Co	onfigurati	on			
Devi	ice Insta	nce : #1				
Cha	nnel- 0	: Normal	Insta	llatior	1	
Cha	nnel- 1	: Normal	Insta	llatior	1	
Cha	nnel- 0 🖌	Allow neg	jative	flow	Yes	
Cha	nnel- 1 🖌	Allow ne	jative	flow	Yes	
Diffe	rential I	Mode Ali	ow ne	gative	flow	: No
Inst	allation	Descripti	on	-		
NME	A2000	PGN Ena	ble/Di	sable.		
		Sc	roll	Scro	11	_
Power	Bac	ើ	D	Dow	n	Enter

Figure 91 – FFM100 Advanced Configuration

6.13.1.1 Device Instance

This entry allows you to program the NMEA 2000 device instance for the unit. You usually will not need to modify the default value of "0" unless you have multiple units on the network.

6.13.1.2 Channel 0 Installation

Leave this entry at the default value of "Normal Installation" if the flow sensor connected to Channel 0 of the FFM100 is installed such that the direction of the fuel flow is in the same direction as the arrow



on the fuel flow sensor label. Change this entry to "Reverse Installation if the direction of the fuel flow is in the opposite direction as the arrow on the fuel flow sensor label.

6.13.1.3 Channel 1 Installation

Leave this entry at the default value of "Normal Installation" if the flow sensor connected to Channel 1 of the FFM100 is installed such that the direction of the fuel flow is in the same direction as the arrow on the fuel flow sensor label. Change this entry to "Reverse Installation if the direction of the fuel flow is in the opposite direction as the arrow on the fuel flow sensor label.

6.13.1.4 Channel 0 Allow negative flow

Leave this entry at the default value of "Yes" for the FFM100 to output negative fuel flow values if the direction of fuel flow for the Channel 0 sensor is opposite the direction of the arrow on the fuel flow sensor label. Set this entry to "No" to output zero for the fuel flow rate if the direction of fuel flow is opposite the direction of the arrow on the fuel flow sensor label.

6.13.1.5 Channel 1 Allow negative flow

Leave this entry at the default value of "Yes" for the FFM100 to output negative fuel flow values if the direction of fuel flow for the Channel 0 sensor is opposite the direction of the arrow on the fuel flow sensor label. Set this entry to "No" to output zero for the fuel flow rate if the direction of fuel flow is opposite the direction of the arrow on the fuel flow sensor label.

6.13.1.6 Differential Mode Allow negative flow

Leave this entry at the default value of "No" for the FFM100 to output zero for the fuel flow rate if the computed net fuel flow rate is negative. Set this entry to "Yes" for the FFM100 to output negative values for the fuel flow rate if the computed net fuel flow rate is negative.

6.13.1.7 Installation Description

This entry allows you to modify the NMEA 2000 installation description text strings. You can enter any information you like here, such as the date the unit was installed, or the location in which it was installed, for later reference. Tools such as Maretron N2KAnalyzer allow you to view these values later.

6.13.1.8 NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable

The FFM100 Fuel Flow Module transmits a number of the NMEA2000[®] PGNs which can be turned on or turned off by the DSM410 display. Pressing the **Enter** key with "NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable..." menu item selected causes the DSM410 to display the following screen (Figure 92).

Configurati Device Co	on nfigurat	ion		
NA Manufa	cturer M	odel SN	# HW#	SW#
69 Maretro	n FF	M 100 167	9999 1.0	1121
Advance NMEA2 127489	Off			
127497	Trip Pa	rameters, Engi	ine	Off
130312	Tempera	ture		On
65286	Fluid Fl	ow Rate		On
65287	Trip Vo	lume		On
		0		
Power	Back	Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 92 – FFM100 NMEA PGN Enable/Disable Screen

You can enable or disable the transmission of a PGN message, or set the frequency of transmission of the message by pressing the Enter key () on the message to be configured. Options are:

Off - The PGN will not be transmitted

On – The PGN will be transmitted at its default NMEA2000 rate.

0.5s...5s – The PGN will be transmitted at the interval specified.

Select the required option using the Scroll Up and Scroll Down keys followed by the Enter key.

6.13.1.9 Restore Factory Defaults

This option restores all settings on the device to their factory default state.

6.13.2 Device Label

A label may be assigned to the FFM100 as an aid to identifying the device over the network. Typically this label will describe the location of the FFM100.

6.13.3 Operating Mode

The FFM100 can operate in one of two user-selectable operating modes:

Differential – this mode is used for diesel engines that recirculate unused fuel back into the fuel take. These engines will have separate supply and return fuel lines.

Two Independent Sensors – the FFM100 can measure flow rates from two independent sources; for example, a water flow rate on one channel and a gasoline fuel flow rate on another channel.

6.13.4 Channel #0...

This submenu contains configuration parameters for Channel #0. This menu looks different depending on whether the FFM100's operating mode has been set to "Differential" or "Two Independent Sensors".



6.13.4.1 Channel #0 (Differential Mode)

This section describes the Channel #0 configuration parameters when the FFM100's operating mode has been set to "Differential". The Channel #0 (Differential Mode) menu is too large to fit on a single screen, so it is shown in two separate screenshots below.

Conf	iguration	ration				
NA	Manufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#	
69	Maretro n	FFM 100	1679999	10	1121	
C	hannel #0					
0	Channel : S	Supply				
Ē	Ingine Inst	ance :#0				
E	Engine Lab	el : PORT	ENGIN	E		
۲ I	(- Factor : 1	1001				
0)ata Dampi	ng Perio	d:3.0s			
F	Reset Total	Volume	Recorde	d		Г
Т	emperature	Instance	e:#0			
Т	emperature	Source	: User D)efined	129	L
Pow	er Bac	k Sci U	roll D	Scroll Down	Ent	er

Figure 93 – FFM100 Channel #0 First Configuration Screen (Differential Mode)



Figure 94 – FFM100 Channel #0 Second Configuration Screen (Differential Mode)

6.13.4.1.1 Channel Supply/Return

You may select whether the Channel #0 fuel flow sensor is connected to the supply fuel line or the return fuel line.

6.13.4.1.2 Engine Instance

Program this parameter to match the desired engine instance number of the flow rate and total fuel used for this channel. You can program this parameter to any value between 0 and 252.

6.13.4.1.3 Engine Label

Each channel has a text label you can set to identify the load controlled by that channel (for example, "PORT ENGINE" or "COOLING WATER FLOW"). For each channel, set this to a value which describes the flow being monitored so that you can easily identify it in display devices.

6.13.4.1.4 K-Factor

Program this parameter to match the K-factor that appears on the flow sensor connected to this channel.

6.13.4.1.5 Data Damping Period

You can configure a damping parameter to smooth the flow rate readings or make them more responsive. The data damping is configurable between 0.2-25.0 seconds. The default data damping period is 3.0 seconds.

6.13.4.1.6 Reset Total Volume Recorded

The FFM100 maintains the total volume recorded in EEPROM, so that it is maintained across power cycles. Select this menu entry to reset the total volume recorded to zero.

6.13.4.1.7 Temperature Instance

Program this parameter to match the desired instance number of the temperature reading for this channel. You can program this parameter to any value between 0 and 252. The default value for this parameter is 0.

6.13.4.1.8 Temperature Source

Program this parameter to match the desired source type of the temperature reading for this channel. The default value for this parameter is 129 (User Defined).

6.13.4.1.9 Temperature Label

Program this parameter with a text string which identifies the particular temperature parameter being monitored by this channel. Maretron display products will display this label text when you are selecting data to display.

6.13.4.1.10 Flow Instance

Program this parameter to match the desired instance number of the fluid flow reading for this channel. You can program this parameter to any value between 0 and 252. The default value for this parameter is 0.

6.13.4.1.11 Flow Label

Program this parameter with a text string which identifies the particular fluid flow parameter being monitored by this channel. Maretron display products will display this label text when you are selecting data to display.



6.13.4.1.12 Volume Instance

Program this parameter to match the desired instance number of the volume reading for this channel. You can program this parameter to any value between 0 and 252. The default value for this parameter is 0.

6.13.4.1.13 Volume Label

Program this parameter with a text string which identifies the particular volume parameter being monitored by this channel. Maretron display products will display this label text when you are selecting data to display.

6.13.4.2 Channel #0 Configuration Menu (Two Independent Sensors Mode)

This section describes the Channel #0 configuration parameters when the FFM100's operating mode has been set to "Two Independent Sensors". The Channel #0 (Two Independent Sensors Mode) menu is too large to fit on a single screen, so it is shown in two separate screenshots below.

Configuration Device Configu	iration							
NA Manufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#				
69 Maretro n	FFM 100	1679999	10	1121				
Channel #0								
Sensor :	3-Phase							
Engine Inst	ance :#0							
Engine Lab	el : PORT	ENGINI	Ξ					
K-Factor : '	1001							
Data Dampi	ng Period	1:3.0s						
Reset Total	Volume	Recorde	d					
Temperature Instance : #2								
Temperature	e Source	:User D	efined	129	\square			
Power Bac	k Scr U	oll S p I	Scroll Down	Ent	er			

Figure 95 – FFM100 Channel #0 First Configuration Screen (Two Independent Sensors Mode)

Confi Devi	iguration ice Configu	ration							
NA	Manufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#				
69	Maretro n	FFM 100	1679999	10	1121				
C	hannel #0								
Т	emperature	Instanc	e :#2		Π				
T	emperature	Source	: User D)efined	129				
T	emperature	Label :	PORT F	UEL TE	MP				
F	luid Type	: Fuel							
F	low Instan	ce:#0							
F	low Label	: PORT I	UEL FL	.ow					
<u>۷</u>	Volume Instance : #0								
N	/olume Lab	el : POR	T FUEL	VOLUM	E				
Powe	er Bacl	k Sc U	roll p	Scroll Down	Enter				

Figure 96 – FFM100 Channel #0 Second Configuration Screen (Two Independent Sensors Mode)

6.13.4.2.1 Sensor

You may select whether this channel is connected to a "3-phase" sensor (Maretron fuel flow sensors with three pulse outputs), or a "1-phase" sensor (other manufacturer's fluid flow sensors with a single pulse output).

6.13.4.2.2 Engine Instance

Program this parameter to match the desired engine instance number of the flow rate and total fuel used for this channel. You can program this parameter to any value between 0 and 252. NOTE: If the operating mode is set to "Differential Flow Rate", then this parameter is unavailable for Channel #0.

6.13.4.2.3 Engine Label

Each channel has a text label you can set to identify the load controlled by that channel (for example, "PORT ENGINE" or "COOLING WATER FLOW"). For each channel, set this to a value which describes the flow being monitored so that you can easily identify it in display devices.

6.13.4.2.4 K-Factor

Program this parameter to match the K-factor that appears on the flow sensor connected to this channel.

6.13.4.2.5 Data Damping Period

You can configure a damping parameter to smooth the flow rate readings or make them more responsive. The data damping is configurable between 0.2-25.0 seconds. The default data damping period is 3.0 seconds.

6.13.4.2.6 Reset Total Volume Recorded

The FFM100 maintains the total volume recorded in EEPROM, so that it is maintained across power cycles. Select this menu entry to reset the total volume recorded to zero.

6.13.4.2.7 Temperature Instance

Program this parameter to match the desired instance number of the temperature reading for this channel. You can program this parameter to any value between 0 and 252. The default value for this parameter is 0.

6.13.4.2.8 Temperature Source

Program this parameter to match the desired source type of the temperature reading for this channel. The default value for this parameter is 129 (User Defined).

6.13.4.2.9 Temperature Label

Program this parameter with a text string which identifies the particular temperature parameter being monitored by this channel. Maretron display products will display this label text when you are selecting data to display.



6.13.4.2.10 Fluid Type

Program this parameter to match the type of fluid whose flow is being monitored.

6.13.4.2.11 Flow Instance

Program this parameter to match the desired instance number of the fluid flow reading for this channel. You can program this parameter to any value between 0 and 252. The default value for this parameter is 0.

6.13.4.2.12 Flow Label

Program this parameter with a text string which identifies the particular fluid flow parameter being monitored by this channel. Maretron display products will display this label text when you are selecting data to display.

6.13.4.2.13 Volume Instance

Program this parameter to match the desired instance number of the volume reading for this channel. You can program this parameter to any value between 0 and 252. The default value for this parameter is 0.

6.13.4.2.14 Volume Label

Program this parameter with a text string which identifies the particular volume parameter being monitored by this channel. Maretron display products will display this label text when you are selecting data to display.

6.13.5 Channel #1...

This submenu contains configuration parameters for Channel #1. This menu looks different depending on whether the FFM100's operating mode has been set to "Differential" or "Two Independent Sensors".

1.1.1.1 Channel #1 (Differential Mode)

This section describes the Channel #1 configuration parameters when the FFM100's operating mode has been set to "Differential".

Conf Devi	iguration ce Configu	ration			
NA	Manufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
69	Maretro n	FFM 100	1679999	10	1121
	hannel #1 hannel F - Factor : 1 emp. Coeff emperature emperature emperature	Return 1001 iicient : I Instanc Source Label :	Diesel ((e : #2 : User STBD	0.083%/°(Defined FUEL TE	C) 129 MP
Powe	er Bacl	, Sc	roll n	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 97 – FFM100 Channel #1 Configuration Screen (Differential Mode)

6.13.5.1.1 Channel Supply/Return

If the Operating Mode is set to Differential, you may select whether the Channel #1 fuel flow sensor is connected to the supply or the return fuel line.

6.13.5.1.2 K-Factor

Program this parameter to match the K-factor that appears on the flow sensor connected to this channel.

6.13.5.1.3 Temp. Coefficient

Program this entry with the coefficient of expansion of the fluid being monitored in order to properly compensate for thermal expansion of the fluid as it is heated while passing through the engine. The default value for this parameter is 0.033%/°C, which corresponds to Diesel fuel. This parameter is not available when the Operating Mode is set to "Two Individual Flow Sensors".

6.13.5.1.4 Temperature Instance

Program this parameter to match the desired instance number of the temperature reading for this channel. You can program this parameter to any value between 0 and 252. The default value for this parameter is 0.

6.13.5.1.5 Temperature Source

Program this parameter to match the desired source type of the temperature reading for this channel. The default value for this parameter is 129 (User Defined).

6.13.5.1.6 Temperature Label

Program this parameter with a text string which identifies the particular temperature parameter being monitored by this channel. Maretron display products will display this label text when you are selecting data to display.



6.13.5.2 Channel #0 Configuration Menu (Two Independent Sensors Mode)

This section describes the Channel #0 configuration parameters when the FFM100's operating mode has been set to "Two Independent Sensors". The Channel #0 (Two Independent Sensors Mode) menu is too large to fit on a single screen, so it is shown in two separate screenshots below.

Conf Devi	iguration ce Configu	ration								
NA	Manufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#					
69	Maretro n	FFM 100	1679999	10	1121					
C	hannel #1									
8	Sensor : S	8- Phase								
Ē	ngine Insta	ance : #1								
E	ingine Lab	el : STBD	ENG							
- M	(- Factor : 1	001								
0)ata Dampiı	ng Period	: 3.0s							
F	Reset Total	Volume	Recorde	d						
T	Temperature Instance : #2									
T	emperature	Source	:User D	efined	129	\square				
Powe	er Bacl	scr U	oll D	Scroll Down	Ent	er				

Figure 98 – FFM100 Channel #1 First Configuration Screen (Two Independent Sensors Mode)



Figure 99 – FFM100 Channel #1 Second Configuration Screen (Two Independent Sensors Mode)

6.13.5.2.1 Sensor

You may select whether this channel is connected to a "3-phase" sensor (Maretron fuel flow sensors with three pulse outputs), or a "1-phase" sensor (other manufacturer's fluid flow sensors with a single pulse output).

6.13.5.2.2 Engine Instance

Program this parameter to match the desired engine instance number of the flow rate and total fuel used for this channel. You can program this parameter to any value between 0 and 252.

6.13.5.2.3 Engine Label

Each channel has a text label you can set to identify the load controlled by that channel (for example, "PORT ENGINE" or "COOLING WATER FLOW"). For each channel, set this to a value which describes the flow being monitored so that you can easily identify it in display devices.

6.13.5.2.4 K-Factor

Program this parameter to match the K-factor that appears on the flow sensor connected to this channel.

6.13.5.2.5 Data Damping Period

You can configure a damping parameter to smooth the flow rate readings or make them more responsive. The data damping is configurable between 0.2-25.0 seconds. The default data damping period is 3.0 seconds.

6.13.5.2.6 Reset Total Volume Recorded

The FFM100 maintains the total volume recorded in EEPROM, so that it is maintained across power cycles. Select this menu entry to reset the total volume recorded to zero.

6.13.5.2.7 Temperature Instance

Program this parameter to match the desired instance number of the temperature reading for this channel. You can program this parameter to any value between 0 and 252. The default value for this parameter is 0.

6.13.5.2.8 Temperature Source

Program this parameter to match the desired source type of the temperature reading for this channel. The default value for this parameter is 129 (User Defined).

6.13.5.2.9 Temperature Label

Program this parameter with a text string which identifies the particular temperature parameter being monitored by this channel. Maretron display products will display this label text when you are selecting data to display.

6.13.5.2.10 Fluid Type

Program this parameter to match the type of fluid whose flow is being monitored.

6.13.5.2.11 Flow Instance

Program this parameter to match the desired instance number of the fluid flow reading for this channel. You can program this parameter to any value between 0 and 252. The default value for this parameter is 0.



6.13.5.2.12 Flow Label

Program this parameter with a text string which identifies the particular fluid flow parameter being monitored by this channel. Maretron display products will display this label text when you are selecting data to display.

6.13.5.2.13 Volume Instance

Program this parameter to match the desired instance number of the volume reading for this channel. You can program this parameter to any value between 0 and 252. The default value for this parameter is 0.

6.13.5.2.14 Volume Label

Program this parameter with a text string which identifies the particular volume parameter being monitored by this channel. Maretron display products will display this label text when you are selecting data to display.

6.14 Maretron FPM100 Configuration

The DSM410 is capable of configuring the Maretron FPM100 Fluid Pressure Monitor. This describes the configuration of the Maretron FPM100 firmware version 1.0.1.

Confi Devi	guration. ce Confi	 guration			
NA	Manutactur	er Model	2N#	HW	# 5W #
58	Maretro n	FPM 10	0 1659	999 1.0	10.1
A	dvanced	Configu	ration		
C	hannel #)			
C	hannel #*	1			
C	hannel #2	2			
C	hannel #X	3			
C	hannel #4	4			
C	hannel #	5			
De	evice Lab	el: ENG	INE RO	OM FPN	100
Powe	er B	lack	Up	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 100 – FPM100 Configuration Screen

6.14.1 Advanced Configuration...

Advanced Configuration changes some complex parameters within the device, and should only be performed by an advanced user. Typically advanced configuration is only done at installation and should not need to be done while at sea.

58 Maretron Advanced C	FPM 100 Configurati	1659999	10	101
Advanced C	onfigurati			LU. 1
Installation NMEA2000 Restore Fac	Descripti PGN Ena ctory Defa	on ble/Disab ults	le	

Figure 101 – FPM100 Advanced Configuration Screen

6.14.1.1 Device Instance

This entry allows you to program the NMEA 2000 device instance for the unit. You usually will not need to modify the default value of "0" unless you have multiple units on the network.

6.14.1.2 Installation Description

This entry allows you to modify the NMEA 2000 installation description text strings. You can enter any information you like here, such as the date the unit was installed, or the location in which it was installed, for later reference. Tools such as Maretron N2KAnalyzer allow you to view these values later.

6.14.1.3 NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable...

The FPM100 Fluid Pressure Module transmits a number of the NMEA2000[®] PGNs which can be turned on or turned off by the DSM410 display. Pressing the **Enter** key with "NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable..." menu item selected causes the DSM410 to display the following screen (Figure 102).

Configurati Device Co	on nfigurati	on		
NA Manufa	cturer Mo	del SN#	¥ HW;	# SW#
58 Maretro	n FP	M 100 165	9999 1.0	10.1
Advance NMEA2	ed Confi 000 PGN	guration Enable/[73])isable	Off
130314	Actual P	ressure		On
Power	Back	Scroll Un	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 102 – FPM100 NMEA 2000[®] PGN Enable/Disable Screen



You can enable or disable the transmission of a PGN message, or set the frequency of transmission of the message by pressing the Enter key () on the message to be configured. Options are:

Off – The PGN will not be transmitted

On – The PGN will be transmitted at its default NMEA2000 rate.

0.5s...5s – The PGN will be transmitted at the interval specified.

Select the required option using the Scroll Up and Scroll Down keys followed by the Enter key.

6.14.1.4 Restore Factory Defaults

This option restores all settings on the device to their factory default state.

6.14.2 Channel #0-5

This submenu contains configuration parameters for each of the six channels. These menus look different depending on whether the channel's Function has been set to "Tank" or "Pressure/Vacuum".

6.14.2.1 Channel #0-5 (Tank)

This section describes the channel configuration menu when the channel 's Function has been set to "Tank" mode. The Channel #0-5 (Tank Mode) menu is too large to fit on a single screen, so it is shown in two separate screenshots below.

Config Device	uration Configu	ration					
NA M	anufacturer	Model		#	HW#	SW#	
58 M	aretro n	FPM 10	0 16	59999	10	10.1	
Cha	nnel #0						
Fu	nction : ⁻	Tank					
La	oel: AFT	FUEL	TANK				
Pre	essure at	4mA	: 0.0	PSI			
Pre	essure at	20mA	: 5.0	PSI			
Tai	nk Capac	ity :	1893	Liter	s		
Tai	nk Levels	Calib	ration.				
Tai	nk Numb	er :	#0				
Tai	ık Type	:	Fuel				
Power	Bac	k	Scroll Up	Ş	Scroll Jown	Ente	r

Figure 103 – FPM100 Channel #0 First Configuration Screen (Tank Mode)

Conf Devi	iguration ce Configu	ration				
NA	Manufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#	
58	Maretro n	FPM 100	1659999	10	10.1	
C	hannel #0					
L	abel: AFT	FUEL T#	NK			
F	ressure at	4mA :	0.0 PSI			
F	ressure at	20mA :	5.0 PSI			
T	ank Capaci	ity:1	893 Lite	rs		
T	ank Levels	Calibrat	ion			
T	ank Numb	er : #	0			
T	ank Type	: F	uel			
	ata Dampi	ng Perio	d : 3.0s			
Powe	er Bacl	sa L	roll Ip	Scroll Down	Ent	er

Figure 104 – FPM100 Channel #0 Second Configuration Screen (Tank Mode)

6.14.2.1.1 Function

You can set the channel's Function to "Disabled", "Tank", or "Pressure/Vacuum". This section of the manual assumes that the channel's function has been set to "Tank".

6.14.2.1.2 Label

This entry allows you to assign a text label to the device. This label is visible in Maretron analysis and display products and allows you to easily identify the particular device.

6.14.2.1.3 Pressure at 4mA

Program this parameter to match the pressure reading of the pressure transducer when it is sourcing a current of 4mA. You can determine this value by examining the specification of the pressure transducer being used.

6.14.2.1.4 Pressure at 20mA

Program this parameter to match the pressure reading of the pressure transducer when it is sourcing a current of 20mA. You can determine this value by examining the specification of the pressure transducer being used.

6.14.2.1.5 Tank Capacity

In addition to indicating the fluid level within a tank, the FPM100 also has the ability to be configured or programmed with the attached tank's capacity. This way, you will be able to view the tank's capacity as well as the amount of liquid remaining anywhere on the vessel where there is an NMEA 2000[®] compatible display.

6.14.2.1.6 Tank Levels Calibration...

In order for the FPM100 to indicate an accurate tank level, it must know the geometry of the tank. There are two methods of calibrating an FPM100 channel in Tank mode:



- Custom Calibration use for non-rectangular tanks (also, most accurate in any case, but requires more effort)
- Rectangular Tank By inputting some dimensions of a rectangular tank, the FPM100 is able to interpolate the volume of liquid from the bottom of the tank to the surface.

Confi Devi	iguration ce Configu	ration			
NA	Manufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
58	Maretro n	FPM 100	1659999	10	10.3.1
С	hannel #0				
Т	ank Levels	Calibra	tion		
	Custom Ca	libration			
	Rectangula	r Tank			
1					
Powe	er Bac	k Sa	roll Jp	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 105 – FPM100 Tank Levels Calibration Menu

1.1.1.1.1 Custom Calibration

The Custom Calibration setting will provide the most accurate tank level readings under any circumstances, but it requires that you go through a process in which you gradually fill the tank, stopping periodically to input the current fluid level. The TLA100 will measure the sender resistance at each point and create a custom calibration map which relates the resistance of the sender with the fluid levels. Custom calibration is necessary for non-rectangular tanks and for non-standard values of resistances for tank level senders. To perform custom calibration of the tank level sender, use the Scroll Up (\bigcirc) or Scroll Down (\bigcirc) keys to move the highlighted cursor over the "Custom Calibration..." menu item. Then, press the Enter key (\bigcirc) to confirm your selection and begin the calibration process.

The first step in custom calibration of the tank level sender is to provide an estimated capacity of the tank. This estimated capacity must be within +/- 25% of the actual capacity. To set the estimated tank capacity, use the arrow keys to adjust the displayed value until the desired value is shown. Then, press the Accept key to confirm your selection and continue with the calibration process. If you desire to stop the calibration process, pressing the **Back** Key () will end the process and return you to the Tank Levels Calibration menu.



Figure 106 – Tank Levels Calibration Capacity Estimation

The next step in the calibration process is to fill the tank and indicate the volume of fluid in the tank at various points while filling the tank. This process should be started with an empty tank. You only need to indicate two calibration points for a rectangular tank, and can use up to 16 calibration points for a tank with a more complex shape. Figure 107 shows a screenshot of the first calibration step. Enter the first calibration point with an empty tank (0.0 Gallons/liters) by pressing the **Accept** key. The "Current Point" highlight will advance to the next point.



Figure 107 – Empty Level Calibration

Each time you press **Accept** during this process and after the Current Point highlight advances, put more fluid into the tank, and note the total volume of fluid pumped into the tank at this point. Use the **Increase** and **Decrease** keys to set the current tank level to the appropriate value, and then press the **Accept** key to store the current calibration point and advance to the next calibration point. Figure 108 shows a screenshot of these intermediate calibration points.





Figure 108 – Intermediate Level Calibration

Once the tank is completely full, instead of pressing the **Accept** key to store the current calibration point, press the **Complete** key. This will complete the calibration process and will also adjust the tank capacity to the currently indicated level. Figure 109 below shows the calibration screen at the last point with the full tank level (and thus the tank capacity) set to 101 gallons.



Figure 109 – Full Level Calibration

After you press accept, a confirmation screen will appear showing completion of the calibration process and the new tank capacity value. A screenshot of this calibration screen is shown below in Figure 110.



Figure 110 – Custom Tank Level Calibration Confirmation Screen

1.1.1.1.1.2Rectangular Tank

This menu allows calibration of the FPM100 for tanks with a rectangular cross-section.

Empty Tank Depth - enter the depth of the fluid when the tank is empty (this distance is usually zero) **Full Tank Depth** - enter the depth of the fluid when the tank is full (this is the distance from the surface of the fluid to the bottom of the tank)

Fluid Density - enter the density of the fluid whose depth is being measured. There are preset values for various types of diesel fuels, as well as gasoline and water.

Config Devic	juration e. Configu	ration			
NA N	lanufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
58 N	laretro n	FPM 100	1659999	10	10.1
Cha	annel #0				
Ta	nk Levels	Calibrati	on		
R	ectangular	Tank	_		
	mpty Tank D	epth :0"		*	- Full
F	ull Tank Dep	th :169	.		
F	luid Density :	Diesel Fue	20 (820	Full Tank	Depth
				Empty T	- Empty ank Depth ∎ Sensor
Power	Back	Scr	oll	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 111 – Rectangular Tank Calibration

6.14.2.1.7 Tank Number

The Tank Number is the Data Instance used in the data message. This can be set from #0 to #15.

6.14.2.1.8 Tank Type

This is set to the type of fluid in the tank. Values are:



- Fuel
- Fresh Water
- Waste Water
- Live Well
- Oil
- Black Water
- **Reserved-1**...**Reserved-7** These values may be used when the contents of the tank does not fit into one of the categories above.

6.14.2.1.9 Data Damping Period

If the channel's Function is set to Tank, the default data damping period is 16.0 seconds. If the channel's Function is set to Pressure/Vacuum, the default data damping period is 3.0 seconds.

6.14.2.2 Channel #0-5 (Pressure/Vacuum)

This section describes the channel configuration menu when the channel's Function has been set to "Pressure/Vacuum" mode. The Channel #0-5 (Pressure/Vacuum Mode) menu is shown below.

NA Manu	facturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
58 Maret	ron	FPM 100	1659999	10	10.1
Chann	el #0				
Funct	ion : P	ressure	Vacuun	n	
Instar	nce :#C)			
Label	: AFT F	UEL TA	NK		
Press	ure at 4	4mA :	0.0 PSI		
Press	ure at 2	20mA :	5.0 PSI		
Sourc	e :W	ater Pr	essure		
Data	Dampin	g Perio	d : 3.0s		
		-			
Denner	Deel	Sc	roll	Scroll	F -4-4
Power	Back	Ũ	D	Down	Enter

Figure 112 – FPM100 Channel (Pressure/Vacuum Mode) Configuration

6.14.2.2.1 Function

You can set the channel's Function to "Disabled", "Tank", or "Pressure/Vacuum". This section of the manual assumes that the channel's function has been set to "Pressure/Vacuum".

6.14.2.2.2 Instance

This entry sets the instance number to be used in the Pressure message. This entry may be set to ay value between 0 and 252.

6.14.2.2.3 Label

A label may be assigned to each channel of the FPM100 as an aid to identifying the pressure that is being displayed. Typically this label will describe the function or location of the pressure sensor.

DSM410 User's Manual

6.14.2.2.4 Pressure at 4mA

Enter the pressure measured by the pressure sensor when it is outputting a 4mA current (this will usually be zero).

6.14.2.2.5 Pressure at 20mA

Enter the pressure measured by the pressure sensor when it is outputting a 20mA current.

6.14.2.2.6 Source

In the NMEA2000[®] PGNs, each pressure is associated with a source type. Possible values are:

Water Pressure Atmospheric Pressure Compressed Air Pressure Hydraulic Pressure Steam Pressure User Defined Temperature #129...#144 – Use this when none of the above options are suitable.

6.14.2.2.7 Data Damping Period

If the channel's Function is set to Tank, the default data damping period is 16.0 seconds. If the channel's Function is set to Pressure/Vacuum, the default data damping period is 3.0 seconds.

6.15 Maretron GPS100 Configuration

This describes the configuration of the Maretron GPS100 firmware version 2.0.1. Some versions of the GPS100 have a different set of firmware that is currently at version 1.6.14. The configuration of these devices is identical to version 2.0.1 shown here. The GPS100 has several different programmable parameters that are configurable by the DSM410 display. Normally, it is not necessary to configure the GPS100 although there may be some circumstances where configuration is desirable. The following sections describe the different configuration modes including the "Restore Factory Defaults" configuration, which allows you to return the GPS100 to the factory settings.



Figure 113 – GPS100 Configuration Screen



6.15.1 Advanced Configuration

Advanced Configuration changes some complex parameters within the device, and should only be performed by an advanced user. Typically advanced configuration is only done at installation and should not need to be done while at sea. The Advanced Configuration Screen is shown below.

Configura Device C	tion onfigura	ation			
NA Manuf	facturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
2C Maret	ron (GPS 100	1140027	7 11	1.6.14
Advan	ced Con	figuratio	n		
Devic	e Instan	ce :#0			
GPS	Ante nna	Altitude	: 0	.00 m	
GPS	Elevatio	n Mask	: 7	.5°	
GPS	PDOP N	lask	: D	isable	
GPS	SNR Ma	sk	: 2	8.00 dB	
Instal	lation D	escriptio	n		
NMEA	2000 PC	GN Enab	le/Disa	able	
Resto	re Facto	ory Defau	ilts		
Power	Back	Scro Up		Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 114 – GPS100 Advanced Configuration Screen

6.15.1.1 Device Instance

The Device Instance will be used to identify the GPS100 device on the network. Unless there are multiple GPSs on the network, this should be left at zero.

6.15.1.2 GPS Antenna Altitude

The DSM410 is capable of setting the antenna altitude on a Maretron GPS100. You can choose this setting by pressing the Enter key () with the "Antenna Altitude:" menu item selected which causes the screen shown in Figure 115 to be displayed.

Configuration				
Device Configu	ration			
NA Manufacturer	Model SN	#	HW#	SW#
21 Maretron	GPS100 21	1	21	2.0.1
Advanced Co	onfiguration			
Device Insta	ince : #211			
GPS Antenn	na Altitude	5.00	m	
GPS Elevati	ion Mask	7.5°		
GPS PDOP	Mask	Disab	le	
GPS SNR M	lask	28.00	dB	
Installation	Description	2		
NMEA2000	PGN Enable/	Disable.		
Restore Fac	tory Defaults			
Power Canco	el Increase	Decre	ase	Accept

Figure 115 – Configuring Antenna Altitude on a GPS100

The allowable values for the Antenna Altitude are between -100m and 100m. This number represents the altitude or the GPS100, and is used to improve the quality of the position fix if only a twodimensional fix is obtainable. If a three-dimensional position fix is obtainable, this value is not used.

6.15.1.3 Elevation Mask

The DSM410 is capable of setting the Elevation Mask on a Maretron GPS100. You can choose this setting by pressing the Enter key () with the "Elevation Mask:" menu item selected which causes the screen shown in Figure 116 to be displayed.

Device Instan GPS Antenna GPS Elevatio GPS PDOP I	nce : #211 a Altitude on Mask Mask	:	0.00 m 7.5°	
GPS Antenna GPS Elevatio GPS PDOP	a Altitude on Mask Mask	:	0.00 m 7.5°	
GPS Elevatio	on Mask Mask	: 1	7.5°	
GPS PDOP	Mask			
CDC CNP M		•	Disable	
GFS SNR M	ask		28.00 dB	
Installation D	Description			
NMEA2000 P	GN Enable	/Di	sable	
Restore Fact	ory Default	S		

Figure 116 – Configuring Satellite Elevation Mask on a GPS100

The allowable values for Elevation Mask are between -90° and 90°. This number represents the elevation of a satellite above the horizon. Satellites with 0° elevation are at the horizon, while satellites with 90° elevation are directly overhead. The GPS will exclude satellites with an elevation lower than the value of this parameter from the position solution.

6.15.1.4 PDOP Mask

The DSM410 is capable of setting the PDOP Mask on a Maretron GPS100. You can choose this setting by pressing the Enter key () with the "PDOP Mask:" menu item selected which causes the screen shown in Figure 117 to be displayed.



Configurati	ion						
Device Co	onfigurat	ion					
NA Manufa	cturer Me	odel	SN#		HW#	SW#	
21 Maretro	n Gl	PS 100	211		21	2.0.1	
Advance	ed Confi Instanc	iguratio e :#21	n 1				
GPS A	ntenna	Altitude	8.8	0.00	m		
GPS E	levation	Mask	:	7.5°			
GPS P	DOP Ma	isk	:	4			
GPS S	NR Mas	k	:	28.00	dB		
Installa	tion De	scriptio	n				
NMEA2	000 PG	N Enab	le/Di	sable			
Restore	e Factor	y Defau	lts				
Power	Cancel	Increa	se	Decr	ease	Accep	t

Figure 117 – Configuring PDOP Mask on a GPS100

The allowable values for PDOP Mask are between 1 and 20. This number represents the Position Dilution of Precision, which indicates the accuracy of the computed position and is a function of the positions of the received satellites. If the PDOP of a given position solution is above the value of this parameter, then the GPS100 will report that no fix is obtained. Disabling the PDOP Mask by setting the value to "-") will cause the GPS100 to report any position fixes obtained, regardless of the accuracy of the fix.

6.15.1.5 SNR Mask

The DSM410 is capable of setting the SNR (Signal to Noise Ratio) Mask on a GPS100. You choose this setting by pressing the Enter key () with the **GPS SNR Mask** menu item selected which results in the screen shown in Figure 118.

Configura	tion					
Device C	onfigura	ation				
NA Manuf	facturer	Model	SN#		HW#	SW#
21 Maret	ron I	GPS 100	211		21	2.0.1
Advan	ced Con e Instan	figuration ce : #21	n 1			
GPS .	Antenna	Altitude	: :	0.00	m	
GPS	Elevatio	n Mask	:	7.5°		
GPS	PDOP N	lask		Disa	ble	
GPS	SNR Ma	sk	:	28.00	dB	
Install NMEA Resto	ation D 2000 PC re Facto	escriptio GN Enab ory Defau	n le/D ults	isabl	e	
Power	Cancel	Incre	ase	Deci	rease	Accept

Figure 118 – Configuring SNR Mask on a GPS100

The allowable values for the SNR Mask are between 1 dB and 60 dB. This number represents the signal to noise ratio of a satellite's signal as received by the GPS100. Higher numbers indicate a

better quality signal. The GPS will exclude satellites with signal to noise ratios lower than the value of this parameter from the position solution.

6.15.1.6 Installation Description

This entry allows you to modify the NMEA 2000 installation description text strings. You can enter any information you like here, such as the date the unit was installed, or the location in which it was installed, for later reference. Tools such as Maretron N2KAnalyzer allow you to view these values later. See section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.

6.15.1.7 NMEA 2000[®] PGN Enable/Disable

The GPS100 transmits several different messages, which can be turned on or turned off by the DSM410 display. Pressing the Enter key () with "NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable…" menu item selected causes the DSM410 to display the screen shown in Figure 119.

Power	Bac	Sc	roll	Scroll	E	nter
129539	GNSS	S DOPs			Off	
129029	GNSS	S Position	Data		Off	
129026	COG	and SOG,	Rapid Upo	late	Off	
129025	Posit	ion, Rapid	Update		Off	
128259	Spee	d			Off	
127258	Magn	etic Variati	on		Off	
126992	Syste	m Time			Off	
21 Maretro Advance NMEA2	n ed Co 000 F	GPS100 onfigurati PGN Ena	211 on ble/Disa	2.1 ble	2.0.1	10_
Configurati Device Co	on nfigu	ration	SN#	HW#	SW#	

Figure 119 – GPS100 NMEA 2000[®] PGN Enable/Disable Screen

You can enable or disable specific transmissions by scrolling (\bullet or \bullet) through the different transmitted messages and pressing the Enter key (\bullet) on the message to be configured. Select whether you want the message to be transmitted ("On") or disabled ("Off") using the Scroll Up (\bullet) or Scroll Down (\bullet) keys followed by the Enter key (\bullet).

6.15.1.8 Restore Factory Defaults

The DSM410 is capable of restoring all programmable settings on a Maretron GPS100 to the factory default condition. You can choose this setting by pressing the Enter key () with the "Restore Factory Defaults" menu item selected which causes the screen shown in Figure 120 to be displayed. This will cause the GPS100 to set all programmable settings to the factory default condition.



Power	Back	Scrol Up	1	Sc Do	roll wn	Ente
Resto	re Facto	ry Defau	lts			
NMEA	2000 PC	SN Enabl	e/D	isable		
Instal	lation D	accrintion		20.00	, uD	
GPS	SNR Ma	ek		28 00	AB (
GPS	PDOP M	lask	•	Disa	ble	
GPS	Elevation	n Mask	:	7.5°		
GPS	Antenna	Altitude	:	0.00	m	
Devic	e Instan	ce : #211				
Advan	ced Con	figuration	n			
21 Maret	ron (SPS 100	211		21	2.0.1
NA Manu	facturer	Aodel	SN#		HW#	SW#
Device C	onfigura	tion				
Configura	tion					

Figure 120 – Restoring Factory Defaults on the GPS100

6.15.2 Cold Start GPS

The DSM410 is capable of restarting the GPS algorithm on a Maretron GPS100. You can choose this setting by pressing the Enter key () with the "Cold start GPS Engine" menu item selected which causes the screen shown in Figure 121 to be displayed. This will cause the GPS100 to discard all position and satellite data and compute a position fix.

Pow	er Bac	S	roll	Scroll	Enter
G Li S	PS Mode : abel : GPS2 BAS (WAAS	Auto 211 JP15 S,EGNOS	SHIEL (MSAS)	D : Enab	le
A	dvanced Co old start G	onfigurat PS Engi	ion ne		
21	Maretron	GPS 100	211	21	2.0.1
Devi	ice Configu Manufacturer	Iration Model	SN#	HW#	SW#

Figure 121 – Performing a Cold Start of the GPS100

6.15.3 GPS Mode Setting

The DSM410 is capable of setting the minimum operating mode on a Maretron GPS100. You can choose this setting by pressing the Enter key () with the "GPS Mode:" menu item selected which causes the screen shown in Figure 122 to be displayed.

Device Confi	 guratior	1		
NA Manufacture	er Mode	I SN#	HW#	SW#
21 Maretron	GPS1	00 211	21	2.0.1
Cold start GPS Mode Label : GP SBAS (WA	GPS E : AUI S211 JI AS,EGN	ngine 3 P15 SHIE IOS,MSAS	LD 3): Enab	le
Power B	Back	Scroll	Scroll	Enter

Figure 122 – Configuring GPS Operating Mode on a GPS100

The allowable options for GPS Mode are "1D" which allows the GPS to report data when only a onedimensional fix (time only) or better is obtained; "2D", which allows the GPS to report data only when a two-dimensional fix or better is obtained; "3D", which allows the GPS to report data only when a three-dimensional fix or better is obtained, or "Auto" (default), which allows the GPS to report any available data, regardless of the quality of the fix.

6.15.4 Device Label

A label may be assigned to the GPS100 as an aid to identifying the device over the network. Typically this would describe the location of the GPS on the vessel.

See section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.

6.15.5 SBAS (WAAS) Enable/Disable

The DSM410 is capable of enabling or disabling the SBAS (WAAS) function on a Maretron GPS Antenna/Receiver (GPS100). You can change this setting by pressing the Enter key () with the "SBAS: WAAS,EGNOS,MSAS:" menu item selected which causes the screen shown in Figure 123 to be displayed.

GPS Mode Label : GPS SBAS (WA)	SPS Engl : Auto S211 JP15 AS,EGNOS	SHIEL (MSAS)	D : Enab	e
Advanced	Configurati	ion		
21 Maretron	GPS 100	211	21	2.0.1
Device Config NA Manufacture	 juration r Model	SN#	HW#	SW#


Figure 123 – Configuring SBAS on a GPS100

The allowable option for SBAS configuration are either "Disable" which causes the GPS100 not to use SBAS satellites, or "Enable" which causes the GPS100 to use SBAS satellites for developing a position fix.

6.16 Maretron GPS200 Configuration

This describes the configuration of the Maretron GPS200 firmware version 3.5.0. The GPS200 has several different programmable parameters that are configurable by the DSM410 display. Normally, it is not necessary to configure the GPS200 although there may be some circumstances where configuration is desirable. The following sections describe the different configuration modes including the "Restore Factory Defaults" configuration, which allows you to return the GPS200 to the factory settings.

Config Devic NA 1 28 1 28 1 Co Lal SB	juration e Configu Manufacturer Maretron Vanced Co Id start G bel : - AS (WAAS	ration ^{Model} GPS200 <u>Iniigurati</u> PS Engin S,EGNOS	SN# 121345 on ne ,MSAS)	HW# 10 : Enable	SW# 3.4
Power	Bac	k Sci U	roll P	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 124 – GPS200 Configuration Screen

6.16.1 Advanced Configuration

Advanced Configuration changes some complex parameters within the device, and should only be performed by an advanced user. Typically advanced configuration is only done at installation and should not need to be done while at sea. The Advanced Configuration Screen is shown below.

Configuration Device Configu	uration			
NA Manufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
28 Maretron	GPS200	121345	10	3.4
Advanced C Device Inst Installation NMEA2000 Restore Fac	onfigurati ance :#0 Descripti PGN Ena ctory Defa	on on ble/Disal iults	ble	

Figure 125 – GPS200 Advanced Configuration Screen

6.16.1.1 Device Instance

The Device Instance will be used to identify the GPS200 device on the network. Unless there are multiple GPSs on the network, this should be left at zero.

6.16.1.2 Installation Description

This entry allows you to modify the NMEA 2000 installation description text strings. You can enter any information you like here, such as the date the unit was installed, or the location in which it was installed, for later reference. Tools such as Maretron N2KAnalyzer allow you to view these values later. See section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.

6.16.1.3 NMEA 2000[®] PGN Enable/Disable

The GPS200 transmits several different messages, which can be turned on or turned off by the DSM410 display. Pressing the Enter key () with "NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable..." menu item selected causes the DSM410 to display the screen shown in Figure 119.

Configurati Device Co NA Manufae 28 Maretro Advance	on nfigura turer n ed Cor	ation ^{Model} GPS200 nfigurati	SN# 121345 on	HW# 10	SW 3.4	#
NMEA2	000 P	GŇ Ena	ble/Disa	ble	_	
126992	Systen	n Time			On	
127258	Magne	Magnetic Variation				
129025	Positio	Position, Rapid Update				
129026	COG a	nd SOG,	Rapid Upd	ate	On	
129029	GNSS	Position	Data		On	
129539	GNSS DOPs					
129540	GNSS	Sats in V	iew		On	
Power	Back	Sci	p P	Scroll Down		Enter

Figure 126 – GPS200 NMEA 2000[®] PGN Enable/Disable Screen

You can enable or disable specific transmissions by scrolling (\bullet or \bullet) through the different transmitted messages and pressing the Enter key (\bullet) on the message to be configured. Select whether you want the message to be transmitted ("On") or disabled ("Off") using the Scroll Up (\bullet) or Scroll Down (\bullet) keys followed by the Enter key (\bullet).

6.16.1.4 Restore Factory Defaults

The DSM410 is capable of restoring all programmable settings on a Maretron GPS200 to the factory default condition. You can choose this setting by pressing the Enter key () with the "Restore Factory Defaults" menu item selected which causes the screen shown in Figure 120 to be displayed. This will cause the GPS200 to set all programmable settings to the factory default condition.

Configuration. Device Confi	 guratio	n					
NA Manufactur	er Mode	I SN#	HV	V# SW#			
2B Maretron	GPS2	200 1213	45 10	3.4			
Advanced Configuration Device Instance : #0 Installation Description NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable Restore Factory Defaults							
Power B	lack	Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Enter			

Figure 127 – Restoring Factory Defaults on the GPS200

6.16.2 Cold Start GPS

The DSM410 is capable of restarting the GPS algorithm on a Maretron GPS200. You can choose this setting by pressing the Enter key () with the "Cold start GPS Engine" menu item selected which causes the screen shown in Figure 121 to be displayed. This will cause the GPS200 to discard all position and satellite data and compute a position fix.

Configurati Device Co	ion Infigura	tion			
NA Manufa	cturer	lodel	SN#	HW#	SW#
28 Maretro	n (GPS200	121345	10	3.4
Advance	ed Con	figuratio	on		
Cold st	art GP	SĔngin	e		
Label :	-		-		
SBAS (WAAS,	EGNOS,	MSAS)	: Enabl	e
Power	Back	Scr U	oll p	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 128 – Performing a Cold Start of the GPS200

6.16.3 Device Label

A label may be assigned to the GPS200 as an aid to identifying the device over the network. Typically this would describe the location of the GPS on the vessel.

See section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.

6.16.4 SBAS (WAAS,EGNOS,MSAS) Enable/Disable

The DSM410 is capable of enabling or disabling the SBAS (WAAS) function on a Maretron GPS Antenna/Receiver (GPS200). You can change this setting by pressing the Enter key () with the "SBAS: WAAS,EGNOS,MSAS:" menu item selected which causes the screen shown in Figure 123 to be displayed.

Page 132



Pow	er Bac	nk So	roll I p	Scroll Down	Enter
22 A C Li	Maretron dvanced Co old start G abel: - BAS (WAA	GPS200 onfigurat PS Engi S,EGNOS	1158001 ion ne ,MSAS)	10 Disab	10.6 le
Conf Devi NA	iguration ice Configu Manufacturer	ıration Model	SN#	HW#	SW#

Figure 129 – Configuring SBAS on a GPS200

The allowable option for SBAS configuration are either "Disable" which causes the GPS200 not to use SBAS satellites, or "Enable" which causes the GPS200 to use SBAS satellites for developing a position fix.

6.17 Maretron IPG100 Configuration

This describes the configuration of the Maretron IPG100 firmware version 3.6.0. The DSM410 is capable of configuring settings for the Internet Protocol Gateway (IPG100). A screenshot of the IPG100 configuration menus is shown in Figure 130 below.

Configuration				
Device Configu	ration			
NA Manufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
09 Maretro n	IPG 100	1620002	10	3.6.1
Advanced Co	onfigurati	on		
Device Label	: Alex IF	'G		
N2KServer P	assword.			
Maretron Clo	ud Serv	ices : Er	nable	
DHCP : Yes				
IP Address	: 10	.0.0.67		
Subnet Mask	:25	5.255.25	5.0	
Default Gate	wav : 10	.0.0.1		
Default DNS	: 10	0.0.31		
Power Bac	k Sc	roll	Scroll	Enter
		νp	10 W I	

Figure 130 – IPG100 Configuration Screen

1.1.2 Advanced Configuration

Advanced Configuration changes some complex parameters within the device, and should only be performed by an advanced user. Typically advanced configuration is only done at installation and should not need to be done while at sea.

NA Manu	facturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
09 Maret	ron	IPG 100	1620002	10	3.6.1
Devic Instal N2KS Maret	e Insta lation erver I ron Cl re Eac	nce : #2 Descripti Informatic oud Serv tory Defa	on on vices Stat	us	
Resto	IC TAU	lony Done			

Figure 131 – IPG100 Advanced Configuration Screen

6.17.1.1 Device Instance

Program this parameter to the desired instance number for this device. You can program this parameter to any value between 0 and 252. The default device instance is 0.



6.17.1.2 Installation Description

This entry allows you to modify the NMEA 2000[®] installation description text strings. You can enter any information you like here, such as the date the unit was installed, or the location in which it was installed, for later reference. Tools such as Maretron N2KAnalyzer[®] allow you to view these values later. The default installation description is blank text.

6.17.1.3 N2KServer Information

This entry allows you to view various information about the N2KServer running on the IPG100. The following sections describe the entries in this menu.

Device Config NA Manufacture	guratio er Mod	n el S	N#	HW#	SW#
29 Maretron	IPG	100 1	620002	10	1.0. 1 59
Advanced N2KServer Client II N2KServe License	Config r Infori 1 r Vers Key Nu	uration mation. ion ımber	: 3.2.2 : 500	011020	8
Platinum Basic Lic	Licens	ses	:2/:	20 N	
		0 1			
Power B	ack	Scroll		lown	Enter

Figure 132 – IPG100 N2KServer Information Screen

6.17.1.3.1 Client List

For each N2KView client connected to the IPG100, this entry displays the following information:

- Lic. (License) this field indicates the type of N2KView license in use by the client. It will indicate "P" for a platinum license, and "B" for a basic license.
- Inst. (Instance) this field indicates the instance number used by this N2KView client.
- **IP Address** this field indicates the IP address of the N2KView client. If it is followed by the letter "E", this indicates that the connection is encrypted.
- Label this field indicates the label assigned to the N2KView client

Configuratio	on			
NA Manufac	turer Mo	del St	I# H	IW# SW#
29 Maretror	n IPG	100 16	20002 1	LO 1.0.169
Advance N2KServ Client Lic. Ins P 20 P 21	d Config ver Infor List t IP Add 1000012 10.0.0.1	guration rmation ress Lab <u>Genefic</u> 41 E Lab	iel III I- Mini - 01	
Power	Back	Scroll Up	Scro Dow	ll Enter n

Figure 133 – IPG100 Client List Display

6.17.1.3.2 N2KServer Version

This entry shows the version number of the N2KServer software currently running on the IPG100.

6.17.1.3.3 License Key Number

This entry shows the serial number of the Hardware Licensee Key currently plugged into the IPG100.

6.17.1.3.4 Platinum Licenses

This entry shows the number of platinum licenses in use, followed by a slash, followed by the total number of platinum licenses.

6.17.1.3.5 Basic Licenses

This entry shows the number of basic licenses in use, followed by a slash, followed by the total number of basic licenses.

6.17.1.4 Maretron Cloud Services Status...

This entry shows a window displaying the current status of the connection to Maretron Cloud Services. Maretron Technical Support personnel may ask for the information in this window if there is a problem connecting to Maretron Cloud Services.



Configura	tion	
Device C	onfiguration	
NA Manu	000 141-	SW#
09 Maret	uus. late	3.6.1
Advan		
Devic		
Instal		
N2KS		
Maret		
Resto		
Power	Back	

Figure 134 – IPG100 Maretron Cloud Services Status Display

6.17.1.5 Restore Factory Defaults

This option restores all settings on the IPG100 device to their factory default state.

6.17.2 Device Label

Program this parameter with a text string which identifies this device. Maretron display products will display this label text when you are selecting data to display. The default device label is blank.

6.17.3 N2KServer Password

Program this parameter with a text password. Any connecting N2KView[®] clients must be programmed with the same password in the "Connections Settings -> N2KServer[®] Connection - >Password" field in the N2KView[®] software. The default password is blank.

6.17.4 Maretron Cloud Services

This entry allows you to enable the IPG100 to use Maretron Cloud Services. Maretron Cloud Services allows you to easily connect to the IPG100 from any N2KView[®] client, whether it is a Windows PC, or an iOS or Android smartphone or tablet. If you have an active Maretron Cloud Services account, you must change this setting to "Enable" so that the IPG100 will connect to Maretron Cloud Services. If you do not use Maretron Cloud Services, change this setting to "Disable".

6.17.5 DHCP

This parameter determines whether or not the IPG100 obtains its LAN connection settings from a DHCP server on the local area network. When set to "Yes" (the default value), the IPG100 will obtain all necessary connection settings (IP Address, Subnet Mask, Default Gateway, and Default DNS) from a DHCP server on the local area network. Most routers have the capability to act as a DHCP server. Consult the user documentation for your network's router for details.

If there is no DHCP server on the local area network (or if the IPG100 is connected directly to a DSM800 or directly to an MBB100), set the "DHCP" parameter to "No" and manually configure the IP Address (section 6.17.6), Subnet Mask (section 6.17.7), Default Gateway (section 6.17.8), Default DNS (section 6.17.9).

6.17.6 IP Address

This parameter is the IP (Internet Protocol) address used by the IPG100. You will need to specify this address to N2KView[®] clients in order to allow them to connect to the IPG100. If the "DHCP" parameter is set to "Yes", you do not need to configure this parameter. If the "DHCP" parameter is set to "No", you will need to configure this parameter.

6.17.7 Subnet Mask

This is a mask used to divide an IP Address into subnets. Basically, it tells the computer how much of the IP Address defines the network, and how much may be used by computers on the network. For most networks, the first three parts of the IP address define the network (i.e., every computer on the network must have the same values), and the last part defines the computer (i.e., every computer on the network must have a different value). Where the value 255 appears in the subnet mask, the values define the network and must be the same.

The most common value is 255.255.255.0.

If the "DHCP" parameter is set to "Yes", you do not need to configure this parameter. If the "DHCP" parameter is set to "No", you will need to configure this parameter.

6.17.8 Default Gateway

This is the IP address of the router. If the "DHCP" parameter is set to "Yes", you do not need to configure this parameter. If the "DHCP" parameter is set to "No", you will need to configure this parameter.

6.17.9 Default DNS

This is the IP address of a computer on the Internet that can identify and locate computer systems and resources on the internet. In most cases, this should not be required by the IPG100 and may be left blank. If the "DHCP" parameter is set to "No", you will need to configure this parameter.

6.18 Maretron J2K100 Configuration

This describes the configuration of the Maretron J2K100 firmware version 1.0.13.2. The DSM410 is capable of configuring settings for the J1939 to NMEA 2000® Gateway (J2K100). A screenshot of the J2K100 configuration menu is shown in Figure 135 below.



Configuration					
Device Configu	ration				
NA Manufacturer	Model	SN#	1	HW#	SW#
A8 Maretron	J2K 100	1240	800	10	1.0.11
Advanced Co	onfigura	tion			
Device Labe	: -				
NMEA2000 II	nstance				
Engine	: -				
Transmiss	ion: -				
AC/Ice mak	er:#0				
J1939 Sourc	e Addre	ss: -			
Refresh J193	9 sour	ce addi	ress li	st	
J1939 SA: None					
Power Bac	k ⁹	Scroll Up	Scro Dow	oll In	Enter

Figure 135 – J2K100 Configuration Screen

6.18.1 Advanced Configuration

Advanced Configuration changes some complex parameters within the device, and should only be performed by an advanced user. Typically advanced configuration is only done at installation and should not need to be done while at sea.

Configuration Device Con NA Manufactu	n figuratior _{Irer} Model	1 I SN#	н	# SW#
A0 Maretron	J2K10	0 12599	99 2.0	2211
Advanced	Configu	ration		
Data Dar Fuel F Device I Installati J1939 Di Request NMEA200	nping Rate : 0 meter : 0 nstance on Descr agnostic Engine 00 PGN	.0s .0s :#0 iption Message Hours : D Enable/Di	s: Disa isable sable	ble
Power	Back	Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 136 – J2K100 Advanced Configuration Screen

6.18.1.1 Data Damping

In order to smooth the results viewed on a display, you may individually change the data damping period that the J2K100 uses when sending fuel rate and tachometer (engine RPM) information. The default is to use no damping (0.0 seconds). You may program the damping from none up to 5 seconds.

6.18.1.2 Device Instance

The Device Instance will be used to identify the J2K100 module on the network. If a GenSet is connected to the J1939 network, and the AC parameters passed through the J2K100 interface, the GenSet will also be identified using Device Instance number.

6.18.1.3 Installation Description

This entry allows you to modify the NMEA 2000 installation description text strings. You can enter any information you like here, such as the date the unit was installed, or the location in which it was installed, for later reference. Tools such as Maretron N2KAnalyzer allow you to view these values later. See section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.

6.18.1.4 J1939 Diagnostic Messages

The J2K100 can optionally pass through J1939 diagnostic messages, used to indicate fault conditions on engines and transmissions, from the J1939 interface to the NMEA2000[®] network so that NMEA 2000[®] connected displays can interpret these diagnostic codes. To change the transmission status of the J1939 diagnostic messages, use the Scroll Up (••) or Scroll Down (••) keys to move the highlighted cursor to the "J1939 Diagnostic Messages:" menu item. Then, press the Enter key (••) to move the highlight to the value field, which displays either Enable or Disable. Use the Scroll Up (••) or Scroll Down (••) keys to change the value to the desired value, and then press the Enter key (••) to accept the new value and store it within the J2K100.

Configura Device C	tion onfigura	tion			
NA Manuf	acturer M	odel	SN#	HW#	SW#
AO Mareti	on J	2K 100	1259999	20	2211
Advand	ed Cont	figuratio	n		
Data I	Damping	5			
Fue	l Rate	:0.0s			
Tac	hometer	:0.0s			
Device	e Instanc	;e :#0			
Install	ation De	scriptio	n		
J1939	Diagnos	stic Mes	sages:	Enable	
Reque	st Engin	1e Hour	s :Disa	ble	
NMEA	2000 PG	N Enab	le/Disal	ole	
Power	Back	Scro Up		Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 137 – J2K100 J1939 Diagnostic Messages Configuration

6.18.1.5 Request Engine Hours

Some engines do not transmit their engine hours over the J1939 bus without receiving a request for engine hours from another device on the J1939 network. If there is no other device to request the engine hours from these engines, then you will not be able to see engine hours on NMEA 2000 displays. Setting this parameter to "Enable" will case the J2K100 to periodically transmit a request for engine hours to the engine, allowing the engine hours to be seen on the NMEA 2000 network and connected displays.



Configurat	ion				
Device Co	onfiguratio	on			
NA Manufa	cturer Mo	del SN	#	HW#	SW#
A0 Maretro	on J2K	100 125	9999	20	2211
Advanc	ed Config	guration			
Data D	amping	-			
Fuel	Rate :	0.0s			
Tach	nometer :	0.0s			
Device	Instance	:#0			
Installa	ation Des	cription			
J1939	Diagnosti	ic Messad	aes: 🗖	nable	. I
Reques	st Engine	Hours :	Disabl	e	
NMEA2	2000 PGN	Enable/	Disable		
		Queell	0		L
Power	Back	Un	Sci	'Oll Win	Enter

Figure 138 – J2K100 Request Engine Hours Configuration

6.18.1.6 NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable

The J2K100 interface transmits several different messages, which can be turned on or turned off by the DSM410 display. Pressing the **Enter** key () with "NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable..." menu item selected causes the DSM410 to display the following screen.

5030	Gen.	Avg. Ba	sic AC Qua	ntities	Off	
27493	Tran	smission	Parameters	,Dynamic	Off	
27489	Engi	ne Param	eters, Dyna	mic	Off	
27488	Engi	ne Param	eters, Rapi	d Update	Off	
MEA2	000 I	PGN Er	nable/Dis	able		
Maretro	n	J2K 100	124011	0 10	10	.7
Manufad	turer	Model	SN#	HW	# SW	#
e Co	nfigu	ration				
	gurati ce Co Manufad Maretro vance VAR2 27493 27493 5030	guration ce Configu Manufacturer Maretron vanced Co MEA2000 27493 Engi 27493 Tran 5030 Gen.	guration e Configuration Manufacturer Model Maretron J2K100 vanced Configura MEA2000 PGN Er 27483 Engine Param 27489 Engine Param 27493 Transmission 5030 Gen. Avg. Ba	guration e Configuration Manufacturer Model SN# Maretron J2K100 124011 vanced Configuration MEA2000 PGN Enable/Dis 27493 Engine Parameters, Repi 27499 Engine Parameters, Dyna 27493 Transmission Parameters 5030 Gen. Avg. Basic AC Qua	guration e Configuration Manufacturer Model SN# HW Maretron J2K100 1240110 1.0 vanced Configuration MEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable 27483 Engine Parameters, Repid Update 27489 Engine Parameters, Dynamic 27493 Transmission Parameters, Dynamic 5030 Gen. Avg. Basic AC Quantities	guration e Configuration Manufacturer Model SN# HW# SW Maretron J2K100 1240110 1.0 1.0 vanced Configuration MEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable 27483 Engine Parameters, Rapid Update Off 27489 Engine Parameters, Dynamic Off 27493 Transmission Parameters, Dynamic Off 5030 Gen. Avg. Basic AC Quantities Off

Figure 139 – J2K100 NMEA 2000[®] PGN Enable/Disable Screen

You can enable or disable specific transmissions by scrolling (\bullet or \bullet) through the different transmitted messages and pressing the Enter key (\bullet) on the message to be configured. Select whether you want the message to be transmitted ("On") or disabled ("Off") using the Scroll Up (\bullet) or Scroll Down (\bullet) keys followed by the Enter key (\bullet).

6.18.1.7 Restore Factory Defaults

This option restores all settings on the device to their factory default state.

6.18.2 Device Label

A label may be assigned to the J2K100 as an aid to identifying the device over the network. See section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.

6.18.3 NMEA 2000 Instance – Engine

This entry allows the engine to be mapped to an NMEA2000 instance number. Each engine on an NMEA 2000[®] network must have a unique instance identifier, to allow display devices to distinguish it from other engines on the network. The "NMEA2000 Engine Instance:" menu item allows you to configure the engine instance identifier which will be sent over the NMEA 2000[®] network along with engine-related NMEA 2000[®] messages. In order to configure this parameters, use the Scroll Up (••) or Scroll Down (••) keys to move the highlighted cursor to the "NMEA2000 Engine Instance:" menu item. Then, press the Enter key (••) to move the highlight to the numeric value on the right, as shown in Figure 140 below.

Because only one such mapping can take place, each engine on the J1939 network must have its own J2K100 Gateway. The J1939 Source Address (see section 6.18.4) identifies the engine on the J1939 network, the Engine Instance identifies the engine to the NMEA2000 network.



Figure 140 – J2K100 Engine Instance Configuration

Use the **Scroll Up and Scroll Down** keys to change the value to the desired value you wish to use as the engine instance identifier, and then press the **Enter** key to accept the value and store it within the J2K100.

6.18.4 Transmission Instance

This entry allows a transmission to be mapped to an NMEA2000 instance number. Each transmission on an NMEA 2000[®] network must have a unique instance identifier, to allow display devices to distinguish it from other transmissions on the network. The "NMEA2000 Transmission Instance:" menu item allows you to configure the transmission instance identifier which will be sent over the NMEA 2000[®] network along with transmission-related NMEA 2000[®] messages. In order to configure this parameters, use the Scroll Up () or Scroll Down () keys to move the highlighted cursor to the "NMEA2000 Transmission Instance:" menu item. Then, press the Enter key () to move the highlight to the numeric value on the right, as shown in Figure 141 below. Because only one such mapping can take place, each Transmission and each Engine on the J1939 network must have its



own J2K100 Gateway. The J1939 Source Address (see section 6.18.4) identifies the transmission on the J1939 network, the Transmission Instance identifies the transmission to the NMEA2000 network.

Configuration. Device Config	 juration			
NA Manufacture	r Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
A8 Maretron	J2K 100	1240008	10	1.0.11
Advanced (Configura	tion		
Device Lab	el: -			
NMEA2000	Instance			
Engine	: -			
Transmis	sion: #0			
AC/lcema	ker : #0			
J1939 Sour	ce Addre	ss: -		
Refresh J19	939 sour	e addres	ss list	
J1939 SA: None				
Power B	ack S	Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 141 – J2K100 NMEA2000 Transmission Instance Configuration

Use the Scroll Up ($\textcircled{\bullet}$) or Scroll Down ($\textcircled{\bullet}$) keys to change the value to the desired value you wish to use as the transmission instance identifier, and then press the Enter key ($\textcircled{\bullet}$) to accept the value and store it within the J2K100.

6.18.5 AC/Icemaker Instance

This entry allows an air conditioner or icemaker to be mapped to an NMEA2000 instance number. Each air conditioner or icemaker on an NMEA 2000[®] network must have a unique instance identifier, to allow display devices to distinguish it from other air conditioners or icemakers on the network. The "AC/Icemaker:" menu item allows you to configure the air conditioner or instance identifier which will be sent over the NMEA 2000[®] network along with air conditioner or icemaker-related NMEA 2000[®] messages. In order to configure this parameters, use the Scroll Up () or Scroll Down () keys to move the highlighted cursor to the "AC/Icemaker:" menu item. Then, press the Enter key () to move the highlight to the numeric value on the right, as shown in Figure 142 below. Because only one such mapping can take place, each air conditioner or icemaker on the J1939 network must have its own J2K100 Gateway. The J1939 Source Address (see Section 6.18.4) identifies the air conditioner or icemaker on the CAN network, the AC/Icemaker Instance identifies the air conditioner or icemaker to the NMEA2000 network.

Configuration Device Configu	ıration			
NA Manufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
A8 Maretron	J2K 100	1240008	10	1.0.11
Advanced Co Device Labe NMEA2000 In Engine Transmiss AC/Icemak J1939 Sourc Refresh J193 J1939 SA: None	onfigurati I: - nstance ion: - ior: #0 e Addres 19 source	ion s: - e address	a list	
Power Canc	el Inci	rease Do	ecrease	Accept

Figure 142 – J2K100 NMEA2000 AC/Icemaker Instance Configuration

Use the Scroll Up (①) or Scroll Down (①) keys to change the value to the desired value you wish, and then press the Enter key (④) to accept the value and store it within the J2K100.

6.18.6 J1939 Source Address Configuration

A J1939 engine/genset and transmission has its own source address on the J1939 network, which is different from NMEA 2000[®] addresses. The J2K100 is capable of serving as a gateway between a single J1939 engine/genset or a single transmission and the NMEA 2000[®] network. This setting identifies the J1939 source address of the engine/genset and a transmission for which the J2K100 will serve as a gateway.

For air conditioners or icemakers, the "J1939 source address" refers to the source address of the air conditioner or icemaker on the AC/Icemaker CAN network.

Configura Device C	tion onfigurat	ion			
NA Manuf	acturer M	odel S	SN#	HW#	SW#
A8 Maretr	ron J2	K 100	240008	10	1.0.11
Advand	ed Conf	iguration			
Device	Label :	-			
NMEA2	2000 Insta	ance			
Engi	ne	: -			
Tran	smission	: -			
AC/I	ce maker	:#0			
J1939	Source A	ddress:	0		
Refresh	n J1939 s	source a	ddress	list	
J1939 SA:	None				
Power	Back	Scroll Up	S	icroll Iown	Enter

Figure 143 – J2K100 J1939 Source Address Configuration

To set the J1939 source address, use the **Scroll Up** and **Scroll Down** keys to move the highlighted cursor to the "J1939 Source Address:" menu item. Press the **Enter** key to move the cursor over to the source address value on the right, as shown in Figure 143 above. Then, use the **Scroll Up** and



Scroll Down keys to change the J1939 Source Address value until it matches the J1939 source address of the engine/genset or transmissions for which you desire this J2K100 to translate data onto the NMEA 2000[®] network.

6.18.7 Refresh J1939 source address list

The configuration screen for the J2K100 will examine the bus to determine to which devices it can connect. This is presented in a list at the bottom of the screen. To update the list after adding a device, highlight this entry, and press the **Enter** button.

6.19 Maretron NBE100 Configuration

The DSM410 is capable of configuring the Maretron NBE100 Network Bus Extender. This describes the configuration of the Maretron NBE100 firmware version 1.0.0. The NBE100 configuration menu is shown in Figure 144 below.

Power Bac	k Sc	roll I p	Scroll Down	Enter
Advanced Co Device Labe	Forwar	d Bus	Extende	r
Device Configu NA Manufacturer BC Maretron	Model NBE 100	SN# 124026	HW# 3 10	SW# 10.0
Configuration				

Figure 144 – NBE100 Configuration Screen

6.19.1 Advanced Configuration

Advanced Configuration changes some complex parameters within the device, and should only be performed by an advanced user. Typically advanced configuration is only done at installation and should not need to be done while at sea.

Device Configuration NA Manufacturer Model SN# HW# SW# BC Maretron NBE100 1240263 1.0 1.0.0 Advanced Configuration Device Instance #0 Installation Description Restore Factory Defaults			S	roll	Scroll	Ente
Device Configuration NA Manufacturer Model SN# HW# SW# BC Maretron NBE100 1240263 1.0 1.0.0 Advanced Configuration Device Instance : #0 Installation Description Restore Factory Defaults						
	Restor	e Facto	ory Def	aults		

Figure 145 – NBE100 Advanced Configuration Screen

1.1.2.1 Device Instance

This entry allows you to program the NMEA 2000 device instance for the unit. You usually will not need to modify the default value of "0" unless you have multiple units on the network.

1.1.2.2 Installation Description

This entry allows you to modify the NMEA 2000 installation description text strings. You can enter any information you like here, such as the date the unit was installed, or the location in which it was installed, for later reference. Tools such as Maretron N2KAnalyzer allow you to view these values later.

1.1.2.3 Restore Factory Defaults

This option restores all settings on the device to their factory default state.

6.20 Maretron RAA100 Configuration

This describes the configuration of the Maretron RAA100 firmware version 1.4.9. Maretron RAA100 rudder angle adapters on the network may be configured using the DSM410. The RAA100 configuration menu is shown in Figure 146 below.



Configuration.					
NA Manufacture	r Model		N#	HW#	SW#
62 Maretron	RAA 10	0 1	299991	10	14.9
Advanced Label : Stb Rudder An Rudder Nu Operating I Gauge Res Gauge Res	Configura d gle Calil mber: # Mode: N istance, istance,	ation bratio 1 (Dua MEA + to - to	n al rudder 2000 sender: sender:	starbo 135 199	oard)
Power B	ack	Scroll Up	Scr Dov	roll wn	Enter

Figure 146 – RAA100 Configuration Screen

6.20.1 Advanced Configuration

Advanced Configuration changes some complex parameters within the device, and should only be performed by an advanced user. Typically advanced configuration is only done at installation and should not need to be done while at sea.

Configuration	on nfiaur	ation			
NA Manufac	turer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
62 Maretro	n	RAA 100	1299991	10	14.9
Advance Device Installat NMEA20 Restore	d Cor Instanti tion D D00 P Facto	nfigurati 1 <u>ce :</u> #0 Iescripti GN Ena ory Defa	on on ble/Disa ults	able	
Power	Back	Sc	roll	Scroll	Enter

Figure 147 – RAA100 Advanced Configuration Menu

6.20.1.1 Device Instance

This entry allows you to program the NMEA 2000 device instance for the unit. You usually will not need to modify the default value of "0" unless you have multiple units on the network.

6.20.1.2 Installation Description

This entry allows you to modify the NMEA 2000 installation description text strings. You can enter any information you like here, such as the date the unit was installed, or the location in which it was installed, for later reference. Tools such as Maretron N2KAnalyzer allow you to view these values later. See Section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.

6.20.1.3 NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable

The RAA100 Rudder Angle Adapter transmits the NMEA2000 PGN #127245 which can be turned on or turned off by the DSM410 display. Pressing the **Enter** key with "NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable..." menu item selected causes the DSM410 to display the following screen (Figure 148).

NMEA2000 127245	PGN En Rudder	able/Disat	ole	On
60 Maretron Advanced C	RAA 100 Configura	1299992 tion	10	14.9
Device Config NA Manufacturer	uration Model	SN#	HW#	SW#

Figure 148 – RAA100 NMEA 2000[®] PGN Enable/Disable Screen

You can enable or disable the transmission of the Rudder message by pressing the Enter key on the message to be configured. Options are:

- **Disable** The status message will not be transmitted
- **Default** The status message will be transmitted at its default NMEA2000 rate.

Select the required option using the Scroll Up and Scroll Down keys followed by the Enter key.

6.20.1.4 Restore Factory Defaults

This option restores all settings on the device to their factory default state.

6.20.2 Label

A label may be assigned to the RAA100 as an aid to identifying the device over the network. Typically this label will describe the rudder to which the RAA100 is connected (e.g. Port Rudder).



Configuratio	n figuration			
NA Manufact	urer Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
62 Maretron	RAA 100	1299991	10	14.9
Advanced Label : S Rudder A Rudder N Operating Gauge R Gauge R	l Configurat Ingle Calibr Iumber: #1 Mode: NM esistance, + esistance, -	tion (Dual rudd MEA2000 & to sende to sende	er starb & Analo er: 135 er: 199	oard) og Gauge
Power	Back			Edit

Figure 149 – RAA100 Label Configuration

See Section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.

6.20.3 Rudder Angle Calibration

In order for the RAA100 to indicate an accurate rudder angle, it must know how the resistance of the resistive rudder angle sender corresponds to the rudder angle. The following screen will be displayed:



Figure 150 – RAA100 Rudder Angle Calibration Options

There are three methods of calibrating the rudder angle sender:

6.20.3.1 Custom Calibration

The Custom Calibration setting will provide the most accurate rudder angle readings under any circumstances, but it requires that you go through a process in which you set the rudder to full port, then center, and then full starboard, each time indicating the angle of the rudder to the DSM410. The RAA100 will measure the sender resistance at each point and create a custom calibration map which relates the resistance of the sender with the rudder angle. Custom calibration is necessary for non-

standard values of resistances for rudder angle senders and for rudders with maximum port and starboard angles of anything other than 45°.

To perform custom calibration of the rudder angle sender, use the Scroll Up (①) or Scroll Down () keys to move the highlighted cursor over the "Custom Calibration…" menu item. Then, press the Enter key (④) to confirm your selection and begin the calibration process. Figure 151 shows the DSM410 with the Custom Rudder Calibration menu item highlighted.

Configurati Device Co	on nfigurat	ion			
NA Manufac	cturer M	odel	SN#	HW#	SW#
60 Maretro	n R	AA 100	1280008	10	12
Rudder Custom	Angle (Calibr	Calibra ation	tion		
Set to	America	an Sta	ndard (240-33	ohm)
Set to	Europea	an Sta	ndard (10-180	ohm)
Power	Back	Sc	roll Ip	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 151 – RAA100 Custom Rudder Angle Calibration

The first step in the custom rudder angle sender calibration process is to turn the wheel hard over to starboard, and to measure the angle or the rudder (angle from center) with a protractor or other instrument. Use the Increase and Decrease keys until the highlighted rudder angle value is at the measured value, and then press Enter to accept the value and store it within the RAA100. Figure 152 shows a screenshot of the starboard rudder calibration screen. You may also press the Abort Key (



Figure 152 – RAA100 Starboard Rudder Angle Calibration



The second step in the custom rudder angle sender calibration process is to turn the wheel so that the rudder is centered as much as possible. Next, press Enter to accept the value and store it within the RAA100. Figure 153 shows a screenshot of the center rudder calibration screen. You may also press the Abort Key () to end the calibration process.



Figure 153 – RAA100 Center Rudder Angle Calibration

The third step in the custom rudder angle sender calibration process is to turn the wheel hard over to port, and to measure the angle or the rudder (angle from center) with a protractor or other instrument. Use the Increase and Decrease keys until the highlighted rudder angle value is at the measured value, and then press Enter to accept the value and store it within the RAA100. Figure 152 shows a screenshot of the starboard rudder calibration screen. You may also press the Abort Key () to end the calibration process.



Figure 154 – RAA100 Port Rudder Angle Calibration

Once you have accepted the port rudder angle value, a confirmation screen appears indicating that the rudder angle calibration has been successfully completed. Figure 155 below shows a screenshot of this confirmation screen.



Figure 155 – RAA100 Custom Rudder Calibration Confirmation Screen

6.20.3.2 Set to American Standard (240-33 ohm)

Use the option for rudders using a rudder angle sender with the standard American resistance range (240 ohms at full port 45°, 33 ohms at full starboard 45°).

6.20.3.3 Set to European Standard (0-180 ohm)

Use this option for rudders using a rudder angle sender with the standard European resistance range (0 ohms at full port 45°, 180 ohms at full starboard 45°).

6.20.4 Rudder Number

First, the rudder number must be configured. For a vessel with a single rudder, the number should be set to "0". For a vessel with two rudders, the port rudder should be set to "0" and the starboard rudder should be set to "1". Each rudder must have a rudder number that is different from all other rudders. A screenshot of rudder number configuration is shown in Figure 156 below.

In order to configure the rudder number, use the Scroll Up () or Scroll Down () keys to move the highlighted cursor to "Rudder Number:", then press the Enter key () to move the cursor over to the rudder number value. Use the Scroll Up () or Scroll Down () keys to select the desired rudder number. Finally, press the Enter key () to confirm your selection and store the new rudder number within the RAA100.



Power	Back	Sc	roll	Scro	11 n	j	Inter
Gauge	Resista	ance, -	to sen	der:	199		
Gauge	Resista	ance, +	to sen	der:	135		
Operati	ng Mo	de: NM	EA2000				
Rudder	Numb	er: #1	Dual ru	dder s	starbo	bard)	
Rudder	Angle	Calibra	tion				
Label :	Stbd						
Advanc	ed Co	nfigurati	on				
62 Maretr	on	RAA 100	129999	1 1	LO	14.9	
NA Manuf	acturer	Model	SN#	H	W#	SW#	
Device C	onfigur	ation					
Configurat	tion						

Figure 156 – RAA100: Setting the Rudder Number

6.20.5 Operating Mode

The RAA100 can be operated in one of two operating modes, depending on the installation.

- NMEA 2000 (the only thing that is connected to the resistive sender is the RAA100)
- NMEA 2000 & Analog Gauge (in addition to the RAA100, the resistive sender is also connected to a dual-coil analog gauge).

It is important that this setting be performed correctly in order for the RAA100 to produce correct angle measurements. A screenshot showing configuration of the operating mode appears in Figure 157 below. To configure the operating mode, use the Scroll Up (•••) or Scroll Down (•••) keys to move the highlighted cursor over the "Operating Mode:" menu item, then press the Enter key (•••) to move the highlight over the operating mode value. Use the Scroll Up (•••) or Scroll Down (•••) keys to change the operating mode to the desired value, and finally, press the Entry key to confirm your selection and store the operating mode within the RAA100.

Configura	tion					
Device C	onfigu	ration				
NA Manu	facturer	Model	SN#	H	W#	SW#
62 Maret	ron	RAA 100	129999	1 1	LO	14.9
Advan Label Rudde Rudde Operat Gauge Gauge	ced Co : Stbd r Angle r Numl ing Mo Resist Resist	nfigurati e Calibra ber: #1 (ode: <u>NM</u> tance, + tance, -	on Dual ru <u>JAV000</u> to ser to ser	dder s & A nder: nder:	tarboa Inalio 135 199	ard) g Gauge
Power	Back	Sc U	roll P	Scro Dow	ll n	Enter

Figure 157 – RAA100: Setting the Operating Mode

6.20.6 Gauge Resistance, + to Sender

If the desired operating mode is "NMEA 2000 & Analog Gauge", the two gauge resistances must be programmed (please refer to the *RAA100 User's Manual* for details on how to perform these measurements). A screenshot of the + to sender gauge resistance configuration is shown in Figure 158 below. To program the + to sender gauge resistance, use the Scroll Up (••) or Scroll Down (••) keys to move the highlighted cursor over the "Gauge Resistance, + to Sender:" menu item. Then, press the Enter key (••) to move the highlight over the numerical resistance value. Use the "Increase" and "Decrease" keys to change the value to the measured resistance value, and finally, press the Enter key (••) to confirm your selection and store the value within the RAA100.

Device Config	juration	014	100.4	0.00
NA Manufacture	r Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
62 Maretron	RAA 100	1299991	10	14.9
Label : Sto Rudder And Rudder Nui Operating I	d gle Calibr mber: #1 Mode: NN istance +	ation (Dual rudo MEA2000	ler starb & Anal er:	oard) og Gauge I
Gauge Resi	istance, .	to senu		
Gauge Resi Gauge Resi	istance, -	to send	er: 199	

Figure 158 – RAA100: Setting the + to Sender Gauge Resistance

6.20.7 Gauge Resistance, - to Sender

If the desired operating mode is "NMEA 2000 & Analog Gauge", the two gauge resistances must be programmed (please refer to the *RAA100 User's Manual* for details on how to perform these measurements). A screenshot of the - to sender gauge resistance configuration is shown in Figure 159 below. To program the - to sender gauge resistance, use the Scroll Up () or Scroll Down () keys to move the highlighted cursor over the "Gauge Resistance, - to Sender:" menu item. Then, press the Enter key () to move the highlight over the numerical resistance value. Use the "Increase" and "Decrease" keys to change the value to the measured resistance value, and finally, press the Enter key () to confirm your selection and store the value within the RAA100.



Configuration	uration				
NA Manufacturer	Model	SN#	H	W# 9	SW#
62 Maretron	RAA 100	129999	1 1	.0	14.9
Advanced C Label : Stbd Rudder Ang Rudder Nun Operating M Gauge Resis Gauge Resis	onfigurat le Calibra nber: #1 lode: NN stance, + stance, -	ion ation (Dual ru IEA200 to ser to ser	udders 0 & A nder: nder:	tarboa nalog 135 199	rd) Gauge
Power Cano	el Inc	rease	Decrea	ise	Accept

Figure 159 – RAA100: Setting the – to Sender Gauge Resistance

6.21 Maretron RIM100 Configuration

This describes the configuration of the Maretron RIM100 firmware version 1.1.1. The DSM410 may be used to configure the channels on the Run Indicator Module (RIM100). After selecting the RIM100 from the list of devices on the network, the following screen will be displayed.

Configuration Device Configu	ıration			
NA Manufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
D4 Maretron	RIM 100	1440012	10	111
Advanced C	onfigurati	on		
Device Labe	l: engine	room		
Instance: #2				
Channel #1	•			
Channel #2				
Channel #3				
Channel #4				
Channel #5				
Channel #6	•			
Power Bac	k Sc U	roll p	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 160 – RIM100 Configuration Screen

6.21.1 Advanced Configuration

Advanced Configuration changes some complex parameters within the device, and should only be performed by an advanced user. Typically advanced configuration is only done at installation and should not need to be done while at sea.

Configuration Device Configu NA Manufacturer D4 Maretron Advanced Co <u>Device Insta</u> Installation NMEA2000 I Restore Fac	Ination Model RIM 100 Denfigurati Descripti PGN Ena tory Defa	SN# 1440012 on on ble/Disa bults	HW# 10 ble	SW# 111
Power Bac	k 30	p	Down	Enter

Figure 161 – RIM100 Advanced Configuration Screen

6.21.1.1 Device Instance

This entry allows you to program the NMEA 2000 device instance for the unit. You usually will not need to modify the default value of "0" unless you have multiple units on the network.



6.21.1.2 Installation Description

This entry allows you to modify the NMEA 2000 installation description text strings. You can enter any information you like here, such as the date the unit was installed, or the location in which it was installed, for later reference. Tools such as Maretron N2KAnalyzer allow you to view these values later. See Section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.

6.21.1.3 NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable

The RIM100 Run Indicator Module transmits the NMEA2000 PGN #127501 which can be turned on or turned off by the DSM410 display. Pressing the **Enter** key with "NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable..." menu item selected causes the DSM410 to display the following screen (Figure 162).

Configura	tion			
Device C	onfiguratio	ວກ ພ. ຄາ#	uw	* ew#
DA Marete	acturer mot on RIM	100 11.10	012 10	+ 5m# 111
	ed Confic	urstion		
	2000 PGN	Fnable/D	isable	
127501	Binary Sv	vitch Bank St	atus	-
				_
Power	Back	Scroll Un	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 162 – RIM100 NMEA 2000[®] PGN Enable/Disable Screen

You can enable or disable the transmission of the Binary Switch Status message, or set the frequency of transmission of the message by pressing the Enter key () on the message to be configured. Options are:

- Disable The status message will not be transmitted
- **Default** The status message will be transmitted at its default NMEA2000 rate, which is once every 15 seconds, and each time the value changes.
- **1s...15s** The status message will be transmitted at the period specified, and each time the value changes.

Select the required option using the Scroll Up and Scroll Down keys followed by the Enter key.

6.21.1.4 Restore Factory Defaults

This option restores all settings on the device to their factory default state.

6.21.2 Device Label

A label may be assigned to the RIM100 as an aid to identifying the device over the network. Typically this label will describe the location of the RIM100. See Section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.

DSM410 User's Manual

6.21.3 Instance

From here the instance used in the data message may be set.

6.21.4 Channel Configuration

To configure an individual channel, use the Scroll Up and Scroll Down buttons to highlight the channel, and then press Enter. The following screen will be displayed.



Figure 163 – RIM100 Channel Configuration Screen

6.21.4.1 Mode

Each Channel may be enabled or disabled. Valid Modes are:

- **Disable** the channel is not being used
- Enable- the channel is being used

Select the required option using the Scroll Up and Scroll Down keys followed by the Enter key.

6.21.4.2 Label

A label may be assigned to a channel as an aid to identifying the channel over the network. Typically this label will describe the equipment to which the channel is connected. See Section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.

6.21.4.3 Reset Counter

This resets the hardware counter associated with this channel to zero.

6.21.4.4 Reset Timer

This resets the hardware timer associated with this channel to zero.



6.22 Maretron SIM100 Configuration

This describes the configuration of the Maretron SIM100 firmware version 1.1.1. The DSM410 may be used to configure the channels on the Switch Indicator Module (SIM100). After selecting the SIM100 from the list of devices on the network, the following screen will be displayed.

Configuration	ration			
NA Manufacturer	Model	QN#	UW#	ew#
D2 Marstron	MODEI QILI 400	3H# 4420002	10	444
DS Mareuon	3114 100	H29902	LU	
Advanced Co	ntigurati	on		
Device Labe	: P/H DC	CKTS		
Instance:#0				
Channel #1				
Channel #2				
Channel #3				
Channel #4				
Channel #5				
Channel #6				
Power Bac	k Sc U	p	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 164 – SIM100 Configuration Screen

6.22.1 Advanced Configuration

Advanced Configuration changes some complex parameters within the device, and should only be performed by an advanced user. Typically advanced configuration is only done at installation and should not need to be done while at sea.

Configura Device C	tion onfigu	ration					
NA Manuf	acturer	Model	SN#		HW#	SW#	
D3 Mareti	ro n	SIM 100	142990	2	10	111	
D3 Maretron SIM100 1429902 10 111 Advanced Configuration Device Instance : #0 Installation Description NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable Restore Factory Defaults							
Power	Bac	Sc U	roll P	Scr Dor	oll wn	Enter	

Figure 165 – SIM100 Advanced Configuration Screen

6.22.1.1 Device Instance

This entry allows you to program the NMEA 2000 device instance for the unit. You usually will not need to modify the default value of "0" unless you have multiple units on the network.

6.22.1.2 Installation Description

This entry allows you to modify the NMEA 2000 installation description text strings. You can enter any information you like here, such as the date the unit was installed, or the location in which it was installed, for later reference. Tools such as Maretron N2KAnalyzer allow you to view these values later. See Section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.

6.22.1.3 NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable

The SIM100 Switch Indicator Module transmits the NMEA2000 PGN #127501 which can be turned on or turned off by the DSM410 display. Pressing the **Enter** key with "NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable..." menu item selected causes the DSM410 to display the following screen (Figure 166).

Configuration Device Configu NA Manufacturer D3 Maretron Advanced Co NMEA2000	Iration Model SIM 100 onfigurati PGN Ena	SN# 1429902 ion ble/Disa	HW# 10 able	SW# 111
127501 Bina	ry Switch I	Bank Statu	5	-
		rall	Secol	
Power Bac	k ^{sc}	lp	Down	Enter

Figure 166 – SIM100 NMEA 2000[®] PGN Enable/Disable Screen

You can enable or disable the transmission of the Binary Switch Status message, or set the frequency of transmission of the message by pressing the Enter key () on the message to be configured. Options are:

- **Disable** The status message will not be transmitted
- **Default** The status message will be transmitted at its default NMEA2000 rate, which is once every 15 seconds, and each time the value changes.
- **1s...15s** The status message will be transmitted at the period specified, and each time the value changes.

Select the required option using the Scroll Up and Scroll Down keys followed by the Enter key.

6.22.1.4 Restore Factory Defaults

This option restores all settings on the device to their factory default state.

6.22.2 Device Label

A label may be assigned to the SIM100 as an aid to identifying the device over the network. Typically this label will describe the location of the SIM100. See Section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.



6.22.3 Instance

From here the instance used in the data message may be set.

6.22.4 Channel Configuration

To configure an individual channel, use the Scroll Up and Scroll Down buttons to highlight the channel, and then press Enter. The following screen will be displayed.

Configuration Device Configu	iration			
NA Manufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
D0 Maretron	SIM 100	1439999	10	114.1
Channel #1				
Mode: ⊟nd	Of Line	Resistor		
Label: Eng	Rm Smo	oke Det		
Reset Coun	ter			
Reset Time	r			
Power Bac	k Se	roll In	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 167 – SIM100 Channel Configuration Screen

6.22.4.1 Mode

To be able to detect broken connections, a SIM100 channel may be configured to detect an $8k\Omega$ resistor at the end of the circuit in the open state. In this case a fully open circuit will reported as a fault condition. See the manual for details. Valid Modes are:

- **Disable** the channel is not being used
- End Of Line Resistor an open circuit is a fault condition.
- No End Of Line Resistor an open circuit is not a fault condition. •

Select the required option using the Scroll Up and Scroll Down keys followed by the Enter key.

6.22.4.2 Label

A label may be assigned to a channel as an aid to identifying the channel over the network. Typically this label will describe the function of the switch connected to the channel. See Section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.

6.22.4.3 **Reset Counter**

This resets the hardware counter associated with this channel to zero.

6.22.4.4 **Reset Timer**

This resets the hardware timer associated with this channel to zero.

6.23 Maretron SMS100 Configuration

This describes the configuration of the Maretron SMS100 firmware version 2.0.1.9. The display may be used to configure the Device Instance and Installation Description on the SMS (Text) Module (SMS100). After selecting the SMS100 from the list of devices on the network, the following screen will be displayed.

Power	Cance	Incr	ease	Decrease	Accept
NA Manu 78 Mare Advan Instan Label Test	infacturer tron icce : E : SMS1	Model SMS 100 nfigurati 0 00 Text	SN# 1739921 on Device	HW# 20	SW# 2.0.19
Configura	ation				

Figure 168 – SMS100 Configuration Screen

6.23.1 Advanced Configuration

Advanced Configuration changes some complex parameters within the device, and should only be performed by an advanced user. Typically, advanced configuration is only done at installation and should not need to be done while at sea.

Configura Device C	tion onfigu	ration					
NA Manuf	acturer	Model	SN#	H	W#	SW#	
78 Maret	on	SMS 100	173992	12	0	20.19	
Advanced Configuration Device Instance : #0 Installation Description NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable Restore Factory Defaults							
Power	Bac	, Sc	roll p	Scrol Dowr	11 n	Enter	

Figure 169 – SMS100 Advanced Configuration Menu

6.23.1.1 Device Instance

Program this parameter to the desired instance number for this device. You can program this parameter to any value between 0 and 252. You usually will not need to modify the default value of "0".

6.23.1.2 Installation Description...

This entry allows you to modify the NMEA 2000[®] installation description text strings. You can enter any information you like here, such as the date the unit was installed, or the location in which it was installed, for later reference. Tools such as Maretron N2KAnalyzer® allow you to view these values later. The default installation description is blank text. See Section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.

NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable... 6.23.1.3

The SMS100 SMS (Text) Module transmits the NMEA2000 PGN #12 which can be turned on or turned off by the display. Pressing the Enter key () with "NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable..." menu item selected causes the display to show the following screen (Figure 170).

Configuratio	n figuratio	on		
NA Manufact	urer Mod	lel SN	¢ н	W# SW#
D3 Maretron	SIM	100 142	9902 1	l0 111
Advanced	d Config	uration		
NMEA20	00 PGŇ	Enable/[)isable	
127501	Binary Sw	ritch Bank S	itatus	-
Power	Back	Scroll Up	Scro Dowr	n Enter

Figure 170 – SMS100 NMEA 2000[®] PGN Enable/Disable Screen

You can enable or disable the transmission of the various messages, or set the frequency of transmission of the messages by pressing the Enter key () on the message to be configured. Options are:

- Disable The status message will not be transmitted
- Default The status message will be transmitted at its default NMEA2000 rate, which is once every 15 seconds, and each time the value changes.
- **1s...15s** The status message will be transmitted at the period specified.

Select the required option using the Scroll Up and Scroll Down keys followed by the Enter key.

6.23.1.4 **Restore Factory Defaults**

This option restores all settings on the SMS100 device to their factory default states.

6.23.2 Label

A label may be assigned to a channel as an aid to identifying the device over the network. Typically this label will describe the function or location of the device.

See Section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.

6.23.3 Test...

This screen allows you to perform some basic diagnostics of the SMS100 and its connection to the cellular network. If you select the "Test..." item in the SMS100 configuration menu, the screen in Figure 171 will be displayed.

SIM Card: Operator: A Phone #: 1	SIM INSERTI 17&T 6023272 226	ED Signal Bit Err	Strength: 1 or Rate: 0.8% 1	to 1.6%
Phone N Message Send	umber: :SMS To	est		
+154135040	16 : Status			
Power	Back	Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 171 – SMS100 Test Screen

The top section of the screen shows the current operating status of the SMS100.

- **SIM Card** This entry shows the status of the SIM card. Normally, it should show "SIM INSERTED".
- **Operator** This entry identifies the cellular provider the SMS100 is currently connected to.
- **Phone #** This entry identifies the phone number used by the SMS100. This phone number is defined by the SIM card which is installed in the SMS100.
- **Signal Strength** This entry shows the signal strength of the cellular network as seen by the SMS100. This signal strength is shown on a scale of one to five bars.
- **Bit Error Rate** This entry shows the bit error rate of the cellular network connection. This figure may be requested by Maretron technical support personnel.

The middle section of the screen allows you to send a SMS text message to an arbitrary phone number. To send a test message, enter the phone number to which you wish to send the message into the "Phone Number" field, then enter the text of the message to be sent into the "Message" field, and finally, scroll to the "Send" field and press the Enter key. The text in the Message field will be sent to the telephone number in the "Phone Number" field.

The bottom section of the screen displays the SMS text messages most recently received by the SMS100. You can test SMS100 message reception by using a cellular telephone to send a SMS text message to the telephone number of the SMS100, and then watching for the message to appear on this section of the screen within a few seconds to a minute or longer, depending on the cellular network.


6.24 Maretron SSC200/SSC300 Configuration

This section describes the configuration of the Maretron SSC200 firmware version 5.0.3 and SSC300 firmware version 1.0. Nine configurable parameters for the Maretron SSC200/SSC300 solid state compass may be configured using the Maretron DSM410 display. The Maretron SSC200/SSC300 configuration menu can be seen in Figure 172 below.

Confi	guration				
Devie	ce Configu Manufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
49	Maretron	SSC200	1120224	1 20	2.0.11
ins Inv La Ma Ma Ra Ra Va	stallation (vert Install bel : - ognetic De ognetic De te of Turn te of Turn riation So	Offset Ca lation: N viation C viation S Dampin Zero Of urce: NI	libratio ormal alibrati tatus g Perio fset Ca MEA018	n Installatio on od: 2.0s Ilibration 3 or NM	en EA2000
Powe	r Bac	k Sc	roll p	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 172 – SSC200/SSC300 Configuration Screen

6.24.1 Advanced Configuration

Advanced Configuration changes some complex parameters within the device, and should only be performed by an advanced user. Typically advanced configuration is only done at installation and should not need to be done while at sea.

NA Manu 49 Maret	facturer l	Model SSC200	SN# 1120224	HW# 2.0	SW# 2.0.11
Advan Devie Instal NMEA NMEA Resto	ced Con Instan ation D 0183 Se 2000 PC re Facto	figuratio cc:#0 escriptio ettings GN Enab ory Defau	n n Ie/Disa Ilts	ble	
Power	Back	Scre	511	Scroll	Enter

Figure 173 – SSC200/SSC300 Advanced Configuration Screen

6.24.1.1 Device Instance

This entry allows you to program the NMEA 2000 device instance for the unit. You usually will not need to modify the default value of "0" unless you have multiple units on the network.

6.24.1.2 Installation Description

This entry allows you to modify the NMEA 2000 installation description text strings. You can enter any information you like here, such as the date the unit was installed, or the location in which it was installed, for later reference. Tools such as Maretron N2KAnalyzer allow you to view these values later. See Section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.

6.24.1.3 NMEA0183 Settings

Several characteristics of the NMEA 0183 interface of the SSC200/SSC300 may be programmed using the DSM410 display. This can be used for initial programming of a SSC200/SSC300 compass even if only the NMEA 0183 interface is to be used after installation is complete. Figure 174 below shows the possible programming options for the NMEA 0183 interface.



Figure 174 – SSC200/SSC300 NMEA 0183 Settings Screen

6.24.1.3.1 Baud Rate

The SSC200/SSC300 compass supports NMEA0183 communication at both 4800 baud and 38400 baud. All SSC200/SSC300 Compasses are shipped with a baud rate of 4800 baud. This value may be changed by selecting the Baud Rate option in the menu, and pressing **Enter**. The use the **Scroll Up** and **Scroll Down** buttons to select the desired baud rate and press **Enter** to save the value.

6.24.1.3.2 Sentence / Rate Selection

The NMEA 0183 interface is a very low bandwidth interface. The SSC200/SSC300 is capable of transmitting a wide variety of NMEA 0183 sentences, and can exceed the bandwidth of the NMEA 0183 interface if all sentences are transmitted at maximum rates, causing lost data in NMEA 0183 multiplexers or on the SSC200/SSC300 interface itself. It is important, therefore, to limit the types of NMEA 0183 sentences transmitted only to those that are necessary for other products which are connected to the NMEA 0183 interface. Figure 175 below shows the SSC200/SSC300 NMEA 0183 Settings -> Sentence/Rate Selection menu. In this menu, you can selectively enable and disable the different NMEA 0183 sentences that the SSC200/SSC300 can transmit, and you can program the transmission interval for the enabled sentences. In the figure, you can see that the HDG and ROT sentences will be transmitted every 0.1 second (10 times/second), the ATT sentence will be transmitted once per second, and the HDM and HDT sentences are disabled.



The last line in the menu enables you to program the lifetime of the variation data received by the SSC200/SSC300. In Figure 175, you can see that the "Variation Time" has been programmed to 5.0 seconds. This means that if the compass has not received magnetic variation for five seconds, it will no longer transmit true heading data, as the variation data it has received is now expired. On the NMEA2000 side, the Heading PGN has separate fields for heading sensor reading and variation. The SSC200/SSC300 always has magnetic heading available; when variation is not available (timeout or invalid) the variation field is set to N/A. The default value of 5.0 seconds should be adequate for the majority of applications, but it may need to be increased for variation sources that transmit less frequently.



Figure 175 – SSC200/SSC300 NMEA 0183 Sentence/Rate Selection Screen

6.24.1.3.3 Load Default Sentence / Rate Selection

The Load Default Sentence / Rate Selection option will reset the NMEA 0183 sentence enable/disable status, along with transmission intervals and variation time, to their factory default settings.



Figure 176 – SSC200/SSC300 Load Default Periodic Rate Selection

6.24.1.4 NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable

The SSC200/SSC300 compass transmits several different messages, which can be turned on or turned off by the DSM410 display. Pressing the **Enter** key () with "NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable..." menu item selected causes the DSM410 to display the following screen.

Configurati Device Co	ion onfigu	ration			
NA Manufa	cturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
49 Maretro	n	SSC200	1120224	20	2.0.11
Advance NMEA2	ed Co 000 F	onfigurati OGN Ena	on ble/Disa	ble	1 0a
127251	Rate	Of Turn			On
127257	Attitu	de			On
127258	Magn	etic Variati	on		Off
Power	Bac	Sc U	roll p	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 177 – SSC200/SSC300 NMEA 2000[®] PGN Enable/Disable Screen

You can enable or disable specific transmissions by scrolling (\bullet or \bullet) through the different transmitted messages and pressing the Enter key (\bullet) on the message to be configured. Select whether you want the message to be transmitted ("On") or disabled ("Off") using the Scroll Up (\bullet) or Scroll Down (\bullet) keys followed by the Enter key (\bullet).

6.24.1.5 Restore Factory Defaults

This option restores all settings on the device to their factory default state.

6.24.2 Installation Offset Calibration

The installation offset (i.e., misalignment of installed SSC200/SSC300 with vessel's center line) may be calibrated using the Maretron DSM410 display. While executing "Installation Offset Calibration", the vessel must stay still with no pitch and roll because SSC200/SSC300 will also calibrate pitch and roll at this time. Once the compass is installed, point the vessel at a known heading, and then select the compass from the "Device Configuration…" menu. Scroll down () the menu items to the line entitled "Installation Offset Calibration…" and press enter () which takes you to the screen shown in Figure 178.



Install	ation O	ffset Ca	alibration	ו
1) Select	t Current	Heading:		
2) Press	<accept></accept>	95.()° ete	
Power	Abort	Increase	Decrease	Accept

Figure 178 – SSC200/SSC300 Installation Offset Calibration Screen

Use the Increase (
) and Decrease (
) keys to adjust the display value until it matches the known heading to which the boat is pointed. Press the Accept (
) key to accept the value when you are satisfied. If you do not wish to perform installation offset calibration at this time, press the Abort (
) key and the installation offset will not be altered.

6.24.3 Inverted Installation Entry

Normally, the SSC200/SSC300 is mounted so that the label on the compass is facing up and the NMEA 2000[®] and NMEA 0183 connectors are facing towards the bow of the vessel. A recent version of SSC200/SSC300 firmware supports mounting the compass upside-down (for instance, to a ceiling), or backwards (with connectors facing towards the stern of the vessel, so that the SSC200/SSC300 can be mounted to the aft side of a bulkhead). If either of these mounting options is used, the DSM410 can be used to inform the SSC200/SSC300 of this fact so that it can adjust heading, rate or turn, pitch, and roll readings to be corrected accordingly.

Rate of Variatio	Turn Zon Sourc	ero Offset e: NMEA0	Calibration 183 or NM	 IEA2000
Magnet Rate of	tic Deviat	tion Status	 riod 20s	
Magnet	tic Deviat	ion Calibra	ation	
Label :	-			
Invert	Installatio	n: Norma	Installati	on
Advand	tion Offe	guration	ion	
49 Maretr	on SS	SC200 1120	224 2.0	2.0.11
NA Manuf	acturer Mo	odel SN#	HW#	SW#
Configurat Device C	tion onfigurat	ion		

Figure 179 – Setting the Installation Orientation

The choices that are offered are "Normal Installation" (default), "Backward Installation", "Upside-Down Installation", or "Upside Down and Backward".

6.24.4 Label

This menu item allows you to set a text label for the device. This text label will help you to identify a particular device when you have more than one of the same type in the system, and appears when selecting devices in both the DSM410 and in N2KView.

See Section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.

6.24.5 Magnetic Deviation Calibration

The DSM410 is capable of performing magnetic deviation calibration on a Maretron SSC200/SSC300 solid state compass. The Rate of Turn Offset Calibration (Section 6.24.8) should be done before the Deviation Calibration. The first screen (Figure 180) gives instructions for performing the procedure. First, begin to turn the boat in a slow circle (either clockwise or counter-clockwise) at about 3 to 12 degrees per second.



Figure 180 – SSC200/SSC300 Magnetic Deviation Calibration Start Screen

Once you have begun the turn, press Begin ($\textcircled{\bullet}$) to start the calibration procedure. If you do not wish to perform magnetic deviation calibration at this time, press Abort ($\textcircled{\bullet}$), and the currently stored deviation tables will be retained. If you are in a large vessel, it may be difficult to turn the vessel in a small enough circle to avoid significant centrifugal force applied to the compass during magnetic deviation calibration. This can cause the built-in tilt sensors inside the compass to mistakenly believe that the compass is tilted during the magnetic deviation calibration, which can adversely affect the quality of the magnetic deviation calibration, especially in northerly latitudes where magnetic inclination (magnetic dip) is higher. If this is the case, instead of pressing the Begin ($\textcircled{\bullet}$) key, press the No Acc ($\textcircled{\bullet}$) key. This will cause the compass to ignore its tilt sensors and assume that the compass is level to the earth's surface during the calibration. You must keep the boat level during calibration if you choose this option. After you press the Begin ($\textcircled{\bullet}$) key or the No Acc ($\textcircled{\bullet}$) key, a status screen will appear (Figure 181).



Magnetic Deviation	Calibration
Completed 0 of 3 circles	
Heading	Rate of Turn
37.9	3.7
Degrees Magnetic	Degrees/second
Current Status : Deviation (Last Status : Idle)	in Progress
Power Abort	

Figure 181 – SSC200/SSC300 Magnetic Deviation Calibration Progress Screen

This progress screen shows the number of circles completed, the current heading, the current rate of turn, and the current status of compass calibration. If you do not wish to continue magnetic deviation calibration at this time, press Abort (), and the currently stored deviation tables will be retained. Once calibration is successful, a completion screen will appear. If calibration is unsuccessful, a screen will appear indicating this, and you should repeat the calibration procedure.

6.24.6 Magnetic Deviation Status

Pressing the Enter key () with the "Magnetic Variation Status..." menu item selected causes the screen shown in Figure 182 to be displayed.



Figure 182 – SSC200/SSC300 Magnetic Deviation Status Screen

6.24.7 Rate of Turn Damping Period

The SSC200/SSC300 is capable of transmitting the rate of turn of a vessel. Different applications may require different damping for the rate of turn measurement. The DSM410 may be used to set the damping period for the rate of turn measurement to anywhere between 0.1 seconds and 60 seconds. Figure 183 shows an example of the damping period set to 2 seconds.

Configura	ation Configur	ation			
NA Manu	facturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
49 Maret	tron	SSC200	1120224	20	2.0.11
Install Invert Label Magne Ragne Rate o Variati	ation Of Installat : - etic Devi etic Devi of Turn of Turn	ffset Cali tion: No iation Ca iation Sta Damping Zero Offs rce: NM	bration rmal li libratio atus Perio set Cal FA0183	n nstallatio on d: <u>2105</u> libration or NM	pn ΕΔ2000
Power	Cancel	Increa	ise	Decrease	Accept

Figure 183 – Programming SSC200/SSC300 Rate of Turn Damping Period

6.24.8 Rate of Turn Zero Offset Calibration

The DSM410 is capable of displaying rate of turn information from a Maretron SSC200/SSC300 compass. Although the compass provides very accurate rate of turn information, it can drift off of zero even though the vessel is not turning. Fortunately, the SSC200/SSC300 can learn the zero offset for different conditions found on the vessel. You teach the compass these zero offset values by pressing the Enter key () with the "Rate of Turn Zero Offset Calibration..." menu item selected which causes the DSM410 to display the screen shown in Figure 184. The Rate of Turn Offset Calibration should be done before the Deviation Calibration (Section 6.24.5).



Figure 184 – SSC200/SSC300 Rate of Turn Zero Offset Calibration Screen

6.24.9 Variation Source Entry

The SSC200/SSC300, being a magnetic compass, transmits heading information referenced to the magnetic north pole (magnetic heading). The SSC200/SSC300 is capable of transmitting heading information referenced to the earth's geographic North Pole (true heading). In order to produce true heading, information regarding the magnetic variation at the current location is required. Please see



the SSC200/SSC300 User's Manual for more details on the use of magnetic variation by the SSC200/SSC300 compass.

By default, the SSC200/SSC300 is capable of receiving variation information on either its **NMEA 0183 or NMEA 2000**[®] interfaces. This causes the SSC200/SSC300 to use variation data from either the NMEA 0183 interface or the NMEA 2000[®] interface.

Configurati	on oficuratio	n		
NA Manufac	turer Mode	I SN#	HW#	SW#
49 Maretro	n SSC	200 11202	24 2.0	2.0.11
Installat Invert In Label : Magneti Magneti Rate of Rate of Variatio	ion Offset nstallation c Deviatio c Deviatio Turn Dan Turn Zero n Source:	Calibrati Normal On Calibra On Status. Ning Per Offset (NINI=7401	on Installati tion iod: 2.0s Calibration 183 or NM	on IEA2000
Power	Back	Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 185 – Setting Variation Source to NMEA 0183 or NMEA 2000® (factory default)

You should need to alter this setting only if:

- There are variation sources available on both the NMEA 2000® and NMEA 0183 interfaces, or
- There is no magnetic variation source available.

If variation sources are available on both the NMEA 2000[®] and NMEA 0183 interfaces, you must tell the SSC200/SSC300 which source to use. Figure 186 below shows the NMEA 0183 source selected. This causes the SSC200/SSC300 to use variation data from the NMEA 0183 interface and ignore all other variation sources (i.e., NMEA 2000[®] interface and manual entries).

Powe	r Bac	ak So	roll	Scroll	Enter
Ra Va	ate of Turr ariation So	urce: 🕅	fiset Ca MEA018	libration 3	
Ra	ate of Turn	1 Dampin	g Peri	od: 2.0s	l.
M	agnetic De	viation S	tatus		
M	agnetic De	viation C	alibrati	on	
La	ıbel: -				
In	vert Install	ation: N	ormal	Installati	on
In	stallation	Offset Ca	libratio	n	
A	dvanced C	onfigurat	on		
49	Maretron	SSC200	112022	4 20	2.0.11
NA	Manufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
Devi	ce Configu	iration			
Confi	guration				

Figure 186 – Setting Variation Source to NMEA 0183 Only

Figure 187 below shows the NMEA 2000[®] source selected.

Pow	er Bac	k Sc	roll	Scroll	Enter
V	ariation So	urce: 🕅	MEA200	0	
R	ate of Turn	Zero Of	fset Ca	libration.	
R	ate of Turn) Dampin	g Perio	od: 2.0s	
M	agnetic De	viation S	tatus		
M	agnetic De	viation C	alibrati	on	
L	abel : -				
In	vert Install	ation: N	ormal I	nstallatio	on
In	stallation (Offset Ca	libration	n	
A	dvanced C	onfigurati	on		
49	Maretron	SSC200	1120224	20	2.0.11
NA	Manufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
Devi	ce Configu	ration			
Cont	iguration				

Figure 187 – Setting Variation Source to NMEA 2000® Only

If there is no magnetic variation source available on either the NMEA 2000[®] or the NMEA 0183 interface, and you wish to display true heading information, you may manually enter a magnetic variation. To set a manual variation value, you must change the variation source by pushing the Enter key () with the "Variation Source:" menu item selected. This highlights the next field where you select "Manual Entry:" by scrolling (or) through the options until you reach "Manual Entry:". Pressing the Enter key () with the "Manual Entry:" menu item selected takes you to the screen shown in Figure 188.

Configura	tion	NI ALESSIC					
Device C	onfigur	ation					
NA Manu	facturer	Model	SN#		HW#	SW	#
49 Maret	ron	SSC200	11202	24	20	20	11
Installa Invert Label Magne Rate o Rate o Variati	ced Co ation O Installa : - tic Dev tic Dev f Turn f Turn on Sou	ffset Ca tion: N iation C iation S Dampin Zero Of irce: Ma	on libratio ormal alibra tatus g Per fset C anual	on Insta tion iod: Calibra Entry	allatio 2.0s ation. 7: 100	on .∵	
Power	Back	Sc	p	Scr	oll Mn		Enter

Figure 188 – Entering Manual Variation

Press the Scroll Up () or Scroll Down () key to change the amount of East or West variation. Press the Accept Key () when the desired number is shown. You may also disable manual variation by setting the value to "Disable"; this option appears between the values 0.0°E and 0.1°W when scrolling through the values. When manual variation is disabled, the SSC200/SSC300 will not



transmit any variation information and heading information will be available only in magnetic heading format.

WARNING: Magnetic variation changes as your location on the earth changes; therefore magnetic variation should be adjusted with changes in position. Neither the DSM410 nor the SSC200/SSC300 will make these changes automatically; they are the responsibility of the user.

6.25 Maretron TLA100 Configuration

Maretron TLA100 tank level adapters on the network may be configured using the DSM410. This describes the configuration of the Maretron TLA100 firmware version 1.6.15. The TLA100 configuration menu is shown in Figure 189 below.

NA Manufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
73 Maretron	TLA 100	2097151	10	16.14
Advanced C	configurati	ion		
Label : Aft I	Fuel			
Tank Capac	ity : 1	0 Gallor	15	
Tank Levels	Calibrati	on		
Tank Numb	er : #	6		
Tank Type	: F	uel		
Operating N	lode · M	MEA2000		
operating in				

Figure 189 – TLA100 Configuration Screen

6.25.1 Advanced Configuration

Advanced Configuration changes some complex parameters within the device, and should only be performed by an advanced user. Typically advanced configuration is only done at installation and should not need to be done while at sea.

Configura Device C	tion onfigur	ation			
NA Manu	facturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
73 Maret	ron	TLA 100	2097151	10	16.14
Advan David Instal NMEA Resto	ced Co e Insta lation E 2000 P re Fact	nfigurati nce:#0 Descripti GN Ena ory Defa	on on ble/Disa ults	ble	
Power	Back	Sc	roll	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 190 – TLA100 Advanced Configuration Screen

6.25.1.1 Device Instance

This entry allows you to program the NMEA 2000 device instance for the unit. You usually will not need to modify the default value of "0" unless you have multiple units on the network.



6.25.1.2 Installation Description

This entry allows you to modify the NMEA 2000 installation description text strings. You can enter any information you like here, such as the date the unit was installed, or the location in which it was installed, for later reference. Tools such as Maretron N2KAnalyzer allow you to view these values later. See Section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.

6.25.1.3 NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable

The TLA100 Tank Level Adapter transmits the NMEA2000 PGN #127505 which can be turned on or turned off by the DSM410 display. Pressing the **Enter** key with "NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable..." menu item selected causes the DSM410 to display the following screen (Figure 191).

Configuration Device Configu NA Manufacturer 73 Maretron Advanced Co NMEA2000	Iration Model TLA 100 onfigurati PGN Ena	SN# 2097151 on ble/Disa	HW# 10	SW# 16.14
127505 F	luid Level			On
				_
Power Bac	k Sc	p	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 191 – TLA100 NMEA 2000[®] PGN Enable/Disable Screen

You can enable or disable the transmission of the Fluid Level message, or set the frequency of transmission of the message by pressing the Enter key () on the message to be configured. Options are:

- Off The status message will not be transmitted
- **On** The status message will be transmitted at its default NMEA2000 rate.

Select the required option using the Scroll Up and Scroll Down keys followed by the Enter key.

6.25.1.4 Restore Factory Defaults

This option restores all settings on the device to their factory default state.

6.25.2 Label

See Section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.

6.25.3 Tank Capacity

In order for the TLA100 to produce readings of the amount of fluid remaining in the tank, the tank capacity must be programmed into the TLA100 adapter. Figure 192 below shows a screen shot of the tank capacity being configured.

DSM410 User's Manual

To program the tank capacity, use the Scroll Up $(\textcircled{\bullet})$ or Scroll Down $(\textcircled{\bullet})$ keys to move the highlighted cursor over the "Tank Capacity:" menu item. Then, press the Enter key $(\textcircled{\bullet})$ to move the highlight over the numerical tank capacity value. Use the "Increase" and "Decrease" keys to change the value to the desired tank capacity value, and finally, press the Enter key $(\textcircled{\bullet})$ to confirm your selection and store the value within the TLA100.

Tank Levels	Calibrat	ion.		
Tank Number	r : #	#6		
Tank Type Operating Mo	: I de : N	Fuel MEA2000	& Analog	Gauge
Gauge Resist	tance, +	to sende	& Analog er: 25	Gauge

Figure 192 – Configuring the Tank Capacity

After you have pressed the Enter key (), a confirmation screen will appear that warns you that the fluid remaining measurement will change as a result of this change. Press the Accept key to accept the change and store the new tank capacity value within the TLA100, or Press the Cancel Key () to cancel the change and leave the old tank capacity programmed into the TLA100.



Figure 193 – Tank Capacity Change Confirmation Screen

6.25.4 Tank Levels Calibration

In order for the TLA100 to indicate an accurate tank level, it must know how the resistance of the resistive tank level sender corresponds to the level of fluid in the tank. There are three methods of calibrating the tank level sender:



- Custom Calibration use for non-rectangular tanks or non-standard sensors (also, most accurate in any case, but requires more effort)
- Set to American Standard (240-33 ohm) use for rectangular tanks using a tank level sender with the standard American resistance range (240 ohms at full, 33 ohms at empty).
- Set to European Standard (0-180 ohm) use for rectangular tanks using a tank level sender with the standard European resistance range (0 ohms at full, 180 ohms at empty).

6.25.4.1 Custom Calibration

The Custom Calibration setting will provide the most accurate tank level readings under any circumstances, but it requires that you go through a process in which you gradually fill the tank, stopping periodically to input the current fluid level. The TLA100 will measure the sender resistance at each point and create a custom calibration map which relates the resistance of the sender with the fluid levels. Figure 194 below shows a screenshot of the DSM410 with the Custom Calibration option highlighted. Custom calibration is necessary for non-rectangular tanks and for non-standard values of resistances for tank level senders. To perform custom calibration of the tank level sender, use the Scroll Up () or Scroll Down () keys to move the highlighted cursor over the "Custom Calibration..." menu item. Then, press the Enter key () to confirm your selection and begin the calibration process.

Configura Device C NA Manut 70 Maret	tion configura facturer l ron l	tion Model FLA 100	SN# 2097151	HW# 1.0	SW# 14
Set to Set to	_evels C m Calib o Americ o Europe	alibrati ration an Sta an Sta	on I ndard (ndard (240-33 10-180	ohm) ohm)
Power	Back	Sc	roll Ip	Scroll Down	Ente

Figure 194 – Performing Custom Calibration of the Tank Level Adapter

The first step in custom calibration of the tank level sender is to provide an estimated capacity of the tank. This estimated capacity must be within +/- 25% of the actual capacity. To set the estimated tank capacity, use the arrow keys to adjust the displayed value until the desired value is shown. Then, press the Accept key to confirm your selection and continue with the calibration process. If you desire to stop the calibration process, pressing the **Back** Key () will end the process and return you to the Tank Levels Calibration menu.



Figure 195 – Tank Levels Calibration Capacity Estimation

The next step in the calibration process is to fill the tank and indicate the volume of fluid in the tank at various points while filling the tank. This process should be started with an empty tank. You only need to indicate two calibration points for a rectangular tank, and can use up to 16 calibration points for a tank with a more complex shape. Figure 196 shows a screenshot of the first calibration step. Enter the first calibration point with an empty tank (0.0 Gallons/liters) by pressing the **Accept** key. The "Current Point" highlight will advance to the next point.



Figure 196 – Empty Level Calibration

Each time you press **Accept** during this process and after the Current Point highlight advances, put more fluid into the tank, and note the total volume of fluid pumped into the tank at this point. Use the **Increase** and **Decrease** keys to set the current tank level to the appropriate value, and then press the **Accept** key to store the current calibration point and advance to the next calibration point. Figure 197 shows a screenshot of these intermediate calibration points.





Figure 197 – Intermediate Level Calibration

Once the tank is completely full, instead of pressing the **Accept** key to store the current calibration point, press the **Complete** key. This will complete the calibration process and will also adjust the tank capacity to the currently indicated level. Figure 198 below shows the calibration screen at the last point with the full tank level (and thus the tank capacity) set to 101 gallons.



Figure 198 – Full Level Calibration

After you press accept, a confirmation screen will appear showing completion of the calibration process and the new tank capacity value. A screenshot of this calibration screen is shown below in Figure 199.



Figure 199 – Custom Tank Level Calibration Confirmation Screen

6.25.4.2 American Standard Sender Calibration

If you have a rectangular tank, and a sender with the standard American resistance range (240 ohms full, 33 ohms empty), and you know the capacity of the tank, you can easily calibrate the sender by using the "Set to American Standard (240-33 ohm)" menu item. Figure 200 below shows this option highlighted. Use the Scroll Up () or Scroll Down () keys to move the highlight over this menu item, and then press the Enter key () to write the calibration values within the TLA100 and complete the calibration process.

Configuration Device Configu	ıration			
NA Manufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
70 Maretron	TLA 100	209715	1 10	14
Tank Levels Custom Cal	Calibrati ibration	on		
Set to Ame	rican Sta	ndard (240-33	ohm)
Set to Euro	pean Sta	ndard ((10-180	ohm)
Power Bac	∶k Sc	roll	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 200 – American Standard Sender Calibration

6.25.4.3 European Standard Sender Calibration

If you have a rectangular tank, and a sender with the standard European resistance range (0 ohms full, 180 ohms empty), and you know the capacity of the tank, you can easily calibrate the sender by using the "Set to European Standard (0-180 ohm)" menu item. Figure 201 below shows this option highlighted. Use the Scroll Up () or Scroll Down () keys to move the highlight over this menu item, and then press the Enter key () to store the calibration values within the TLA100 and complete the calibration process.



Configura Device C	tion onfigura	ation			
NA Manuf	acturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
70 Mareti	on	TLA 100	2097151	1 10	14
Custo Set to Set to	m Calib Americ Europ	ean Sta	ndard (ndard (<u>240-33</u> (10-180	ohm) ohm)
Power	Back	Sc	roll Jp	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 201 – European Standard Sender Calibration

6.25.5 Tank Number

Next, the tank number must be configured. A tank number can have a value between 0 and 15. Each tank of a particular type must have a tank number that is different from all other tanks of the same type. For instance, only one TLA100 on a fuel tank may have tank number equal to "0". A screenshot of tank number configuration is shown in Figure 202 below. In order to configure the tank number, use the Scroll Up () or Scroll Down () keys to move the highlighted cursor to "Tank Number:", then press the Enter key () to move the cursor over to the tank number value. Use the Scroll Up () or Scroll Down () keys to select the desired tank number. Finally, press the Enter key () to confirm your selection and store the new tank number within the TLA100.

Power	Bac	k Sc U	roll :	Scroll Down	Enter
Operat	ting M	ode : N	IMEA2000)	
Tank	Type	: F	uel		
Tank	Numbe	r : 🖁	6		
Tank	Levels	Calibrati	on		
Tank	Capacit	ty :1	.0 Gallor	15	
Label	: Aft F	uel			
Advan	ced Co	onfigurati	on		
73 Maret	TON	TLA 100	2097151	10	16.14
NA Manu	facturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
Device C	configu	ration			
connigura	100	100220000			

Figure 202 – Configuring the Tank Number

6.25.6 Tank Type

The TLA100 can be used in tanks containing any of a number of different types of fluids. So that network-connected monitoring devices can determine easily what sort of fluid is in the monitored tank, the TLA100 must be programmed to indicate the fluid type it is monitoring. Figure 203 below shows a screen shot of the tank type being configured. First, use the Scroll Up () or Scroll Down ()

DSM410 User's Manual

keys to position the highlighted cursor over "Tank Type:", then press the Enter key () to move the highlight to the tank type data itself. Now, use the Scroll Up () or Scroll Down () keys to change the tank type data to the type desired. Finally, press the Enter key () to confirm the selection and store the value within the TLA100. Available tank types are as follows:

- Fuel
- Fresh Water
- Waste Water
- Live Well
- Oil
- Black Water

There are also a number of reserved tank types to accommodate possible future undefined tank types.

	mouti	3N#	HW#	5W#
73 Maretron	TLA 100	2097151	10	16.14
Label : Aft F Tank Capacit Tank Levels	uel ty : 1 Calibrati	.0 Gallor	IS	
Tank Numbe	r : #	6		
Tank Type	: 6	uel		
Operating M	ode : N	MEA2000	i i	

Figure 203 – Configuring the Tank Type

6.25.7 Operating Mode

The TLA100 can be operated in one of two operating modes, depending on the installation.

- **NMEA 2000** (the only thing that is connected to the resistive sender is the TLA100)
- **NMEA 2000 & Analog Gauge** (in addition to the TLA100, the resistive sender is also connected to a dual-coil analog gauge).

It is important that this setting be performed correctly in order for the TLA100 to produce correct level measurements. A screenshot showing configuration of the operating mode appears in Figure 204 below. To configure the operating mode, use the Scroll Up () or Scroll Down () keys to move the highlighted cursor over the "Operating Mode:" menu item, then press the Enter key () to move the highlight over the operating mode value. Use the Scroll Up () or Scroll Down () keys to change the operating mode to the desired value, and finally, press the Entry key to confirm your selection and store the operating mode within the TLA100.



del	SN#	HW#	SW#
uer	on#		311#
A 100	209/151	10	16.14
gurati : 1 ibrati : # : F	on .0 Gallor on 6 uel	IS	
: 1	MEA2000	& Analo	g Gauge
Sc	roll	Scroll	Enter
	on del gurati ibrati : # : F : N	on del SN# A 100 2097151 guration : 1.0 Gallor libration : #6 : Fuel : [NIMEA2000]	on del SN# HW# A100 2097151 10 guration : 1.0 Gallons libration : #6 : Fuel : NMEA2000 & Analo

Figure 204 – Configuring the Operating Mode

6.25.8 Gauge Resistance, + to Sender

If the desired operating mode is "NMEA 2000 & Analog Gauge", the two gauge resistances must be programmed (please refer to the *TLA100 User's Manual* for details on how to perform these measurements). A screenshot of the + to sender gauge resistance configuration is shown in Figure 205 below. To program the + to sender gauge resistance, use the Scroll Up (•••) or Scroll Down (•••) keys to move the highlighted cursor over the "Gauge Resistance, + to Sender:" menu item. Then, press the Enter key (•••) to move the highlight over the numerical resistance value. Use the "Increase" and "Decrease" keys to change the value to the measured resistance value, and finally, press the Enter key (•••) to confirm your selection and store the value within the TLA100.

Configurat	tion				
Device C	onfigurati	on			
NA Manufa	acturer Mo	del	SN#	HW#	SW#
73 Maretr	on TL	A 100	2097151	10	16.14
Advanc Label :	ed Confi Aft Fuel	gurati	on		
Tank C	apacity	: 1	.0 Gall	ons	
Tank L	evels Ca	librati	on		
Tank N	lumber	: #	6		
Tank T	ype	: F	uel		
Operati	ng Mode	: N	MEA2000	& Analo	og Gauge
Gauge	Resistan	ce, +	to sen	der: 25	170 (TU) -
Gauge	Resistan	ce, -	to send	der: 364	
Power	Cancel	Incr	ease	Decrease	Accept

Figure 205 – Configuring the + to Sender Gauge Resistance

6.25.9 Gauge Resistance, - to Sender

If the desired operating mode is "NMEA 2000 & Analog Gauge", the two gauge resistances must be programmed (please refer to the *TLA100 User's Manual* for details on how to perform these measurements). A screenshot of the - to sender gauge resistance configuration is shown in Figure 206 below.

DSM410 User's Manual

To program the - to sender gauge resistance, use the Scroll Up () or Scroll Down () keys to move the highlighted cursor over the "Gauge Resistance, - to Sender:" menu item. Then, press the Enter key () to move the highlight over the numerical resistance value. Use the "Increase" and "Decrease" keys to change the value to the measured resistance value, and finally, press the Enter key () to confirm your selection and store the value within the TLA100.

Configuration				
Device Configu	ration			
NA Manufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
73 Maretron	TLA 100	2097151	10	16.14
Advanced Co Label : Aft F	onfigurati uel	on		
Tank Capacit	ty : 1	.0 Gallo	ns	
Tank Levels	Calibrati	on		
Tank Numbe	r :#	6		
Tank Type	: F	uel		
Operating M	ode : N	MEA2000	& Analo	g Gauge
Gauge Resis	tance, +	to send	er: 25	251 (31) v
Gauge Resis	tance, -	to send	er: 364	l.
Power Cance	el Incr	ease D	ecrease	Accept

Figure 206 – Configuring the - to Sender Gauge Resistance



6.26 Maretron TLM100 Configuration

The DSM410 may be used to configure and calibrate the Tank Level Monitor (TLM100 / TLM150 / TLM200). This describes the configuration of firmware version 1.1.6. After selecting the TLM100 from the list of devices on the network, the following screen will be displayed.

Device Conf NA Manufactu	iguration. _{rer Model}	 SN#	HW#	SW#
73 Maretron	TLM 10	0 2097151	10	114
Advanced Label Po Tank Cap Tank Leve Tank Num Tank Typ	Configur ort Mid acity : els Calibr aber : e :	ation 81.4 Gal ation #2 Fuel	lons	
Power	Back	Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 207 – TLM100 Configuration Screen

6.26.1 Advanced Configuration

Advanced Configuration changes some complex parameters within the device, and should only be performed by an advanced user. Typically advanced configuration is only done at installation and should not need to be done while at sea.

Configurat Device C NA Manufa 73 Maretr Advanc Device Installa NMEA Restor	tion onfigu acturer on ed Co Insta ation 2000 F e Fac	ration Model TLM 100 onfigurati nce #0 Descripti PGN Ena tory Defa	SN# 20971 ion on ble/Dis aults	51 sable	HW# 10	SW# 114
Power	Bac	ະ 5ແ	roll Ip	Scr Dov	oli Vn	Enter

Figure 208 – TLM100 Advanced Configuration Screen

6.26.1.1 Device Instance

This entry allows you to program the NMEA 2000 device instance for the unit. You usually will not need to modify the default value of "0" unless you have multiple units on the network.

6.26.1.2 Installation Description

This entry allows you to modify the NMEA 2000 installation description text strings. You can enter any information you like here, such as the date the unit was installed, or the location in which it was installed, for later reference. Tools such as Maretron N2KAnalyzer allow you to view these values later.

6.26.1.3 NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable

The TLM100 Tank Level Module transmits the NMEA2000 PGN #127505 which can be turned on or turned off by the DSM410 display. Pressing the **Enter** key with "NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable..." menu item selected causes the DSM410 to display the following screen (Figure 209).

Device Configu NA Manufacturer	ıration Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
73 Maretron	TLM 100	2097151	10	114
Advanced Co NMEA2000	onfigurati PGN Ena	ion Ible/Disat	ole	
127505 F	luid Level			On

Figure 209 – TLM100 NMEA 2000[®] PGN Enable/Disable Screen

You can enable or disable the transmission of the Binary Switch Status message by pressing the Enter key () on the message to be configured. Options are:

- Off The fluid level message will not be transmitted
- **On** The fluid level message will be transmitted at its default NMEA2000 rate, which is once every 2.5 seconds.

Select the required option using the Scroll Up and Scroll Down keys followed by the Enter key.

6.26.1.4 Restore Factory Defaults

This option restores all settings on the device to their factory default state.

6.26.2 Label

A label may be assigned to the TLM100 as an aid to identifying the device over the network. Typically this label will describe the location of the TLM100, and a description of the contents of the tank.

6.26.3 Tank Capacity

In order for the TLM100 to produce readings of the amount of fluid remaining in the tank, the tank capacity must be programmed into the TLM100 adapter. Figure 210 below shows a screen shot of the tank capacity being configured. To program the tank capacity, use the **Scroll Up** or **Scroll Down**



keys to move the highlighted cursor over the "Tank Capacity:" menu item. Then, press the **Enter** key to move the highlight over the numerical tank capacity value. Use the **Increase** and **Decrease** keys to change the value to the desired tank capacity value, and finally, press the **Accept** key to confirm your selection.

Configuration Device Configu	iration			
NA Manufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
73 Maretron	TLM 100	2097151	10	114
Advanced Co Label : Port Tank Capaci Tank Levels Tank Numbe Tank Type	onfigurati Mid ty : S Calibrati r : # : F	on 1.4 Gallo on 2 uel	ons	
Power Canc	el Incr	ease De	crease	Accept

Figure 210 – Configuring the Tank Capacity

After you have pressed the **Accept** key, a confirmation screen will appear that warns you that the fluid remaining measurement will change as a result of this change. Press the **Accept** key to accept the change and store the new tank capacity value within the TLM100, or Press the **Cancel** Key to cancel the change and leave the old tank capacity programmed into the TLM100.



Figure 211 – Tank Capacity Change Confirmation Screen

6.26.4 Tank Levels Calibration

In order for the TLM100 to indicate an accurate tank level, it must know the geometry of the tank. There are two methods of calibrating the tank level sender:

 Custom Calibration – use for non-rectangular tanks (also, most accurate in any case, but requires more effort) • Rectangular Tank – By inputting some dimensions of a rectangular tank, the TLM100 is able to interpolate the volume of liquid from the distance to the surface.

6.26.4.1 Custom Calibration

The Custom Calibration setting will provide the most accurate tank level readings under any circumstances, but it requires that you go through a process in which you gradually fill the tank, stopping periodically to input the current fluid level. The TLM100 will measure the distance to the surface at each point and create a custom calibration map which relates the fluid levels to the volume in the tank. Figure 194 below shows a screenshot of the DSM410 with the Custom Calibration option highlighted. Custom calibration is necessary for non-rectangular tanks. To perform custom calibration of the tank level sender, use the Scroll Up ($\textcircled{\bullet}$) or Scroll Down ($\textcircled{\bullet}$) keys to move the highlighted cursor over the "Custom Calibration..." menu item. Then, press the Enter key ($\textcircled{\bullet}$) to confirm your selection and begin the calibration process.

Configuration. Device Config NA Manufacture	juratio r Mode	n I SN#	HW	# SW#
73 Maretron Tonk Lovel	TLM1	100 2097 watiow	151 1.0	114
Custom Ca	s Cann allarati	onation		
Rectangula	r Tanl	(
j				
Power B	ick	Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 212 – Performing Custom Calibration of the Tank Level Monitor

The first step in custom calibration of the tank level monitor is to provide an estimated capacity of the tank. This estimated capacity must be within +/- 25% of the actual capacity. To set the estimated tank capacity, use the **Increase** and **Decrease** keys to adjust the displayed value until the desired value is shown. Then, press the **Accept** key to confirm your selection and continue with the calibration process. If you desire to stop the calibration process, pressing the **Abort** key () will end the process and return you to the Tank Levels Calibration menu.





Figure 213 – Tank Levels Calibration Capacity Estimation

The next step in the calibration process is to fill the tank and indicate the volume of fluid in the tank at various points while filling the tank. This process should be started with an empty tank. You only need to indicate two calibration points for a rectangular tank, and can use up to 16 calibration points for a tank with a more complex shape. Figure 214 shows a screenshot of the first calibration step. Enter the first calibration point with an empty tank (0.0 Gallons/liters) by pressing the **Accept** key. The "Current Point" highlight will advance to the next point.



Figure 214 – Empty Level Calibration

Each time you press **Accept** during this process and after the Current Point highlight advances, put more fluid into the tank, and note the total volume of fluid pumped into the tank at this point. Use the **Increase** and **Decrease** keys to set the current tank level to the appropriate value, and then press the **Accept** key to store the current calibration point and advance to the next calibration point. Figure 215 shows a screenshot of these intermediate calibration points.



Figure 215 – Intermediate Level Calibration

Once the tank is completely full, instead of pressing the **Accept** key to store the current calibration point, press the **Complete** key. This will complete the calibration process and will also adjust the tank capacity to the currently indicated level. Figure 216 below shows the calibration screen at the last point with the full tank level (and thus the tank capacity) set to 101 gallons.



Figure 216 – Full Level Calibration

After you press accept, a confirmation screen will appear showing completion of the calibration process and the new tank capacity value. A screenshot of this calibration screen is shown below in Figure 217.





Figure 217 – Custom Tank Level Calibration Confirmation Screen

6.26.4.2 Rectangular Tank

If you have a rectangular tank, and you know the capacity of the tank, you can easily calibrate the sender by using the "Rectangular Tank" menu item. Figure 218 below shows this option highlighted. Use the Scroll Up () or Scroll Down () keys to move the highlight over this menu item, and then press the Enter key ().

Configuration Device Configu NA Manufacturer 73 Maretron Tank Levels Custom Cal Rectangular	uration Model TLM 100 Calibrati libration Tank	SN# 2097151 on	HW# 5	SW# 114
Power Bac	∶k Sc U	roll S Ip D	own	Enter

Figure 218 – Rectangular Tank Selection

The following screen will be displayed.

Configu Device	ration Configu	ration			
NA Mar	nufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
73 Mai	retro n	TLM 100	2097151	1 10	114
Tank	Levels	Calibrati	on		
Rect	langular	Tank			
Em	pty Tan	< Depth	40.0	•	
Ful	I Tank D)epth	: 2.0"		
Power	Bac	i Sci U	roll P	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 219 – Rectangular Tank Calibration

Enter the distance from the face of the TLM100 sensor to the bottom of the tank for the **Empty Tank Depth**, and the distance from the face of the TLM100 sensor to the top of the liquid when the tank is full for the **Full Tank Depth**.

After entering the values, use the **Back** button to return the parent menu.

6.26.5 Tank Number

The Tank Number is the Data Instance used in the data message. This can be set from #0 to #15.

6.26.6 Tank Type

This is set to the type of fluid in the tank. Values are:

- Fuel
- Fresh Water
- Waste Water
- Live Well
- Oil
- Black Water
- **Reserved-1**..**Reserved-7** These values may be used when the contents of the tank does not fit into one of the categories above.

6.27 Maretron TLM150 Configuration

The TLM150 is the gasoline version of the TLM100. The configuration of the two devices is the same; see Section 6.26 for details.

6.28 Maretron TLM200 Configuration

The TLM200 is the deep tank version of the TLM100. The configuration of the two devices is the same; see Section 6.26 for details.



6.29 Maretron TMP100 Configuration

Maretron Temperature Modules (TMP100) may be configured using the DSM410. This describes the configuration of the Maretron TMP100 firmware version 1.1.1. The top level of the TMP100 configuration menu is shown below.

Configuration Device Con	n figuratio	on			
NA Manufactu	irer Moo	iel Si	#	HW#	SW#
29 Maretron	TM	P100 14	80009	10	111
Advanced	Config	uration.			
Channel	#0		-		
Channel	#1				
Channel	# 2				
Channel	#3				
Channel	#4				
Channel	#5				
Device La	bel: IN	SIDE BO	х		
		e	e		
Power	Back	Scroll Up	Do	wn	Enter

Figure 220 – TMP100 Configuration Screen

6.29.1 Advanced Configuration

Advanced Configuration changes some complex parameters within the device, and should only be performed by an advanced user. Typically advanced configuration is only done at installation and should not need to be done while at sea.

Configurat Device Co NA Manufa 29 Maretro Advanc Device Installa NMEA2 Restore	ion onfigurati cturer Mo on Th ed Confi Instance tion Des 2000 PGI e Factory	ion odel Si (P100 14 iguration. Scription. N Enable y Default	N# 180009 /Disabl s	HW# 10	SW# 111
Power	Back	Scroll Up	S D	croll own	Enter

Figure 221 – TMP100 Advanced Configuration Screen

6.29.1.1 Device Instance

This entry allows you to program the NMEA 2000 device instance for the unit. You usually will not need to modify the default value of "0" unless you have multiple units on the network.

6.29.1.2 Installation Description

This entry allows you to modify the NMEA 2000 installation description text strings. You can enter any information you like here, such as the date the unit was installed, or the location in which it was installed, for later reference. Tools such as Maretron N2KAnalyzer allow you to view these values later.

6.29.1.3 NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable

The TMP100 Temperature Module transmits a number of the NMEA2000[®] PGNs which can be turned on or turned off by the DSM410 display. For reasons of compatibility with older NMEA2000 devices, some of these PGNs are redundant; disabling these PGNs will reduce the amount of traffic on the NMEA2000[®] bus. Pressing the **Enter** key with "NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable…" menu item selected causes the DSM410 to display the following screen (Figure 222).

Configurati Device Co	on nfigurat	tion				
NA Manufa	cturer M	odel	SN#	HW#	SW	¢.
29 Maretro	n T	MP 100	1480009	10	11	1
Advance NMEA2	olo PG	N Enal	on ble/Disal	ble	_	
130310	Environ	mental P	arameter s		Off	
130311	Environ	mental P	arameter s		On	
130312	Tempera	ature			On	
130823	Tempera	ature, Hig	jh Range		Off	
Power	Back	Scr U	oll D	Scroll Down		Enter

Figure 222 – TMP100 NMEA 2000[®] PGN Enable/Disable Screen

You can enable or disable the transmission of a PGN message, or set the frequency of transmission of the message by pressing the Enter key () on the message to be configured. Options are:

Off – The PGN will not be transmitted

On – The PGN will be transmitted at its default NMEA2000 rate.

0.5s...5s – The PGN will be transmitted at the interval specified.

Select the required option using the Scroll Up and Scroll Down keys followed by the Enter key.

6.29.1.4 Restore Factory Defaults

This option restores all settings on the device to their factory default state.

6.29.2 Channel Configuration

Individual channels may be configured by using the **Scroll Up** and **Scroll Down** buttons to highlight the channel, and then pressing the **Enter** key. The following screen will be displayed.



Configuration Device Configu NA Manufacturer 29 Maretron Channel #0 Instance : Source : I Label: Lobby	ration Model TMP100 Sinside Te y	SN# 1480009 :mperatu	HW# 1.0 re	SW# 111
Power Cance	el Incr	ease D	ecrease	Accept

Figure 223 – TMP100 Channel Configuration Screen

6.29.2.1 Instance

The Data Instance of the Temperature (as sent in PGNs 130311, 130312, and 130823) is set in this field. Use the **Increase** and **Decrease** buttons to select the correct instance number, and the press the **Enter** button to store it.

6.29.2.2 Source

In the NMEA2000[®] PGNs, each temperature is associated with a source type. Possible values are:

Bait Well Temperature Engine Room Temperature Exhaust Gas Temperature Freezer Temperature Heating System Temperature Inside Temperature Live Well Temperature Main Cabin Temperature Outside Temperature Refrigeration Temperature Sea Temperature User Defined Temperature #129...#144 – Use this when none of the above options are suitable.

Use the **Scroll Up** and **Scroll Down** buttons to select the correct source, and the press the **Enter** button to store it.

6.29.2.3 Label

A label may be assigned to each channel of the TMP100 as an aid to identifying the temperature that is being displayed. Typically this label will describe the function or location of the temperature sensor.

6.29.3 Device Label

A label may be assigned to the TMP100 as an aid to identifying the device over the network. Typically this label will describe the location of the TMP100.

6.30 Maretron USB100 Configuration

Maretron USB100 gateways on the network may be configured using the DSM410. This describes the configuration of the Maretron USB100 firmware version 1.8.3. The USB100 configuration menu is shown in Figure 224 below. There is one configurable item for the USB100 and that is "Remote Device Selection...".

Devi NA 56	ce Configu Manufacturer Maretron	Iration Model USB 100	SN# 1160544	HW# 10	SW#
A	dvanced Co emote Devi	onfigurati ce Selec	ion tion		

Figure 224 – USB100 Configuration Screen

6.30.1 Advanced Configuration

Advanced Configuration changes some complex parameters within the device, and should only be performed by an advanced user. Typically advanced configuration is only done at installation and should not need to be done while at sea.

Device C NA Manuf 56 March	onfigu facturer	Model	SN#	HW# 10	SW#
Advan Device Install	ced Co Insis ation	nfigurat nce # Descript	tion 1 ion		
Resto	re Fac	tory Def	aults		

Figure 225 – USB100 Advanced Configuration Screen

6.30.1.1 Device Instance

This entry allows you to program the NMEA 2000 device instance for the unit. You usually will not need to modify the default value of "0" unless you have multiple units on the network.



6.30.1.2 Installation Description

This entry allows you to modify the NMEA 2000 installation description text strings. You can enter any information you like here, such as the date the unit was installed, or the location in which it was installed, for later reference. Tools such as Maretron N2KAnalyzer allow you to view these values later.

6.30.1.3 Restore Factory Defaults

This option restores all settings on the device to their factory default state.

6.30.2 Remote Device Selection

The Maretron NMEA 2000[®] to NMEA 0183 gateway (USB100) can be configured to select which NMEA 2000[®] devices are selected for display on the computer attached to the USB interface of the USB100. In this manner, multiple devices of the same type may be used on a NMEA 2000[®] network in a fail-safe configuration. The USB100 Device Selection Menu for an example network configuration can be seen in Figure 226.

WARNING: Do not select multiple devices of the same type for display. This will result in multiple and possibly conflicting readings.

56 Maretron	USB 100	1160544	10	18.2
NA Manuf.	ce Select	SN#	Stat	Disp
77 Maretron	TLM 100	1500082	OnL	On
A3 Maretron	DSM250	1320016	OnL	On
B2 Maretron	DCM 100	1400046	OnL	On
B4 Maretron	DCM 100	14 19905	OnL	On
49 Maretron	SSC200	1120224	OnL	On
C5 Maretron	DSM250	1309912	OnL	On
2B Maretron	GPS 100	1140027	OnL	On

Figure 226 – USB100 Device Selection Screen

The "NA" column of the menu displays the node address the device is using.

The "Manuf." column of the menu displays the manufacturer of the device.

The "Model" column displays the model number of the device.

- The "**SN#**" column displays the serial number of the device, so that any of two or more devices of the same manufacturer and model number may be distinguished from one another.
- The "**Stat**" column indicates whether the device is currently connected to the bus and is responding to queries ("Online"), or has been disconnected from the bus, has lost power, or for some other reason is not responding to queries ("Offline").
- The "**Disp**" column indicates whether data from that particular device is accepted for display by the USB100 ("On") or that the USB100 ignores data transmitted by this device ("Off"). By scrolling to the device and pressing the Enter key (), you may then use the Scroll Up () and Scroll Down () keys to toggle the "Display" status for this particular device. Once you

are satisfied with the state of the "Display" setting, press the Enter key () to accept the setting. The USB100 will retain information on devices that have been removed from the bus or powered down ("Offline") so that when they are placed back on the bus, they will assume their prior "Display" setting.

6.31 Maretron VDR100 Configuration

The DSM410 is capable of performing configuration of the VDR100 Vessel Data Recorder. This describes the configuration of the Maretron VDR100 firmware version 2.0.0.4. Figure 227 below shows a screenshot of the VDR100 configuration menu.

Configuration Device Configuration									
NA Manufa	cturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#				
29 Maretro	on	VDR 100	1779901	10	110				
Advanced Configuration									
Label : Vessel Data Recorder									
Passwo	rd								
DHCP :	Yes								
IP Add	ress	: 10	.0.0.202						
Subnet	Mask	: 25	5.255.25	5.0					
Default	Gatew	navy :10	.0.0.1						
Default	DNS	: 10	.0.0.31						
Power	Back	Sc U	roll p	Scroll Down	Enter				

Figure 227 – VDR100 Configuration Screen

6.31.1 Advanced Configuration

Advanced Configuration changes some complex parameters within the device, and should only be performed by an advanced user. Typically advanced configuration is only done at installation and should not need to be done while at sea.



Figure 228 – VDR100 Advanced Configuration Screen


1.1.2.4 Device Instance

This entry allows you to program the NMEA 2000 device instance for the unit. You usually will not need to modify the default value of "0" unless you have multiple units on the network.

6.31.1.1 Installation Description

This entry allows you to modify the NMEA 2000 installation description text strings. You can enter any information you like here, such as the date the unit was installed, or the location in which it was installed, for later reference. Tools such as Maretron N2KAnalyzer allow you to view these values later.

6.31.1.2 Restore Factory Defaults

This option restores all settings on the device to their factory default state.

6.31.2 Label

A device label may be assigned to the VDR100 as an aid to identifying the device over the network. See Section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.

6.31.3 Password

Program this parameter with a text password. Any connecting N2KExtractor[™] clients must be programmed with the same password in the "Connections Settings->Password" field in the N2KExtractor[™] software. The default password is blank.

6.31.4 DHCP

This parameter determines whether or not the VDR100 obtains its LAN connection settings from a DHCP server on the local area network. When set to "Yes" (the default value), the VDR100 will obtain all necessary connection settings (IP Address, Subnet Mask, Default Gateway, and Default DNS) from a DHCP server on the local area network. Most routers have the capability to act as a DHCP server. Consult the user documentation for your network's router for details.

If there is no DHCP server on the local area network (or if the VDR100 is connected directly to a PC running N2KExtractor[™]), set the "DHCP" parameter to "No" and manually configure the IP Address (Section 6.17.6), Subnet Mask (Section 6.17.7), Default Gateway (Section 6.17.8), Default DNS (Section 6.17.9).

6.31.5 IP Address

This parameter is the IP (Internet Protocol) address used by the VDR100. You will need to specify this address to N2KExtractor[™] clients in order to allow them to connect to the VDR100. If the "DHCP" parameter is set to "Yes", you do not need to configure this parameter. If the "DHCP" parameter is set to "No", you will need to configure this parameter.

6.31.6 Subnet Mask

This is a mask used to divide an IP Address into subnets. Basically, it tells the computer how much of the IP Address defines the network, and how much may be used by computers on the network. For most networks, the first three parts of the IP address define the network (i.e., every computer on the

network must have the same values), and the last part defines the computer (i.e., every computer on the network must have a different value). Where the value 255 appears in the subnet mask, the values define the network and must be the same.

The most common value is 255.255.255.0.

If the "DHCP" parameter is set to "Yes", you do not need to configure this parameter. If the "DHCP" parameter is set to "No", you will need to configure this parameter.

6.31.7 Default Gateway

This is the IP address of the router. If the "DHCP" parameter is set to "Yes", you do not need to configure this parameter. If the "DHCP" parameter is set to "No", you will need to configure this parameter.

6.31.8 Default DNS

This is the IP address of a computer on the Internet that can identify and locate computer systems and resources on the internet. In most cases, this should not be required by the VDR100 and may be left blank. If the "DHCP" parameter is set to "No", you will need to configure this parameter.

6.32 Maretron WSO100 Configuration

The DSM410 is capable of performing configuration of the WSO100 Wind/Weather Sensor. This describes the configuration of the Maretron WSO100 firmware version 2.0.13. Figure 229 below shows a screenshot of the WSO100 configuration menu.

8A Maretron WSO100 1200421 2.0 2.0.1 Advanced Configuration Device Label: ROOF Installation Offset Calibration Wind Data Damping Period: 4.0s Barometric Pressure: 29.80 Inches Mercury Outside Humidity: 13 Percent Outside Temperature: 82 °F	A Maretron WSO100 1200421 2.0 2.0.12 Advanced Configuration Device Label: ROOF Installation Offset Calibration Wind Data Damping Period: 4.0s Barometric Pressure: 29.80 Inches Mercury Outside Humidity: 13 Percent Outside Temperature: 82 °F	NA Manufacturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
Advanced Configuration Device Label: ROOF Installation Offset Calibration Wind Data Damping Period: 4.0s Barometric Pressure: 29.80 Inches Mercury Outside Humidity: 13 Percent Outside Temperature: 82 °F	Advanced Configuration Device Label: ROOF Installation Offset Calibration Wind Data Damping Period: 4.0s Barometric Pressure: 29.80 Inches Mercury Outside Humidity: 13 Percent Outside Temperature: 82 °F	8A Maretron	WSO 100	1200421	20	20.12
Outside Temperature: 82 °F	Outside Temperature: 82 °F	Device Labe Installation Wind Data D Barometric	1: ROOF Offset Cal Damping F Pressure:	ibration. Period: 29.80 In	4.0s ches M	ercury
		Outside Hun	nidity: 13	Percen	L.	

Figure 229 – WSO100 Configuration Screen

6.32.1 Advanced Configuration

Advanced Configuration changes some complex parameters within the device, and should only be performed by an advanced user. Typically advanced configuration is only done at installation and should not need to be done while at sea.



Power	Bac	k Sc U	roll P	Scroll Down	Ente
Resto	re fac	tory Defa	ults		
NMEA	2000	PGN Ena	ble/Disal	ble	
Install	ation	Descripti	on		
Instan	ce-Te	mperatur	e:#0		
Instan	ce-Pre	essure	: #0		
Instan	ce-Hu	midity	: #0		
Device	e Insta	ince : #1			
Advan	ced Co	onfigurati	on		
8A Maret	on	WSO 100	1200421	20	2.0.12
NA Manut	acturer	Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
Device C	onfigu	ration			
onfigura	tion				

Figure 230 – WSO100 Advanced Configuration Screen

6.32.1.1 Device Instance

This entry allows you to program the NMEA 2000 device instance for the unit. You usually will not need to modify the default value of "0" unless you have multiple units on the network. Device instance is always used in the Wind PGNs.

6.32.1.2 Instance – Humidity

This entry allows you to program the NMEA 2000 device instance for the humidity transmitted in PGN 130313. You usually will not need to modify the default value of "0" unless you have multiple humidity sensors on the network.

6.32.1.3 Instance – Pressure

This entry allows you to program the NMEA 2000 device instance for the air pressure transmitted in PGN 130314. You usually will not need to modify the default value of "0" unless you have multiple pressure sensors on the network.

6.32.1.4 Instance – Temperature

This entry allows you to program the NMEA 2000 device instance for the temperature transmitted in PGN 130312. You usually will not need to modify the default value of "0" unless you have multiple temperature sensors on the network. Note that the TMP100 module also generates these PGNs.

6.32.1.5 Installation Description

This entry allows you to modify the NMEA 2000 installation description text strings. You can enter any information you like here, such as the date the unit was installed, or the location in which it was installed, for later reference. Tools such as Maretron N2KAnalyzer allow you to view these values later.

6.32.1.6 NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable

The WSO100 Ultrasonic Wind and Weather Station transmits a number of NMEA2000 PGNs which can be turned on or turned off by the DSM410 display. For the vast majority of installations, the factory setting is appropriate, but if it becomes necessary to disable one of the transmitted messages

from the WSO100, for instance, if you have a separate thermometer / humidity sensor / barometer on the network, it is possible to do so with the DSM410.Pressing the **Enter** key with "NMEA2000 PGN Enable/Disable..." menu item selected causes the DSM410 to display the following screen (Figure 231).

Configurati Device Co	on nfigurat	tion				
NA Manufa	cturer M	odel	SN#	HW#	SW#	
8A Maretro	n W	SO 100	1200421	2.0	2.0.12	
Advance						
NMEA2	000 PG	Ň Enab	le/Disal	ble		
130306	Wind Da	ata			On	
130310	Environ	mental Pa	rameters		On	
130311	Environ	mental Pa	rameters		On	
130312	Tempera	Temperature				
130313	Humidit	Humidity				
130314	Actual F	On				
Power	Back	Scre Up		Scroll Down	Enter	

Figure 231 – WSO100 NMEA 2000® PGN Enable/Disable Screen

You can enable or disable the transmission of the messages by pressing the **Enter** key () on the message to be configured. Options are:

Disable – The message will not be transmitted

Default – The message will be transmitted at its default NMEA2000 rate.

0.5s...5.0s – The message will be transmitted at the interval specified.

Select the required option using the **Scroll Up** and **Scroll Down** keys followed by the **Enter** key. Notice that by default, the old Environmental Parameters message (PGN 130310) is disabled while the new Environmental Parameters message (PGN 130311) is enabled. The reason for this is that the old message has been discontinued by the National Marine Electronics Association (NMEA) in favor of the new message. If you find that a particular display is not showing particular information (i.e., temperature, humidity, or barometric pressure), go ahead and enable the old message to see if data then becomes available.

6.32.1.7 Restore Factory Defaults

This option restores all settings on the device to their factory default state.

6.32.2 Device Label

A device label may be assigned to the WSO100 as an aid to identifying the device over the network. See Section 3.3.4 for details on how to enter a textual value.



Power	Back				Edit
Advand Device Installa Wind D Barom Outside	ed Co Label tion (Data D etric F e Hum e Tem	onfigurati : [<u>ROOF</u> Offset Cal amping I Pressure: hidity: 13 perature:	on Period: 4 29.80 Inc 8 Percent 80 °F	4.0s ches M	ercury
NA Manuf	acturer	Model WSO 100	SN#	HW#	SW#
Configurat Device C	tion onfigu	ration		10.000.000	15.545-001

Figure 232 – WSO100 Device Label Menu

6.32.3 Installation Offset Calibration

The WSO100 comes from the factory with a preset orientation, so that mounting it with the orientation marks facing the bow of the vessel, the sensor will read 0° apparent wind angle when the vessel is sailing directly into the wind (please refer to the *WSO100 User's Manual* for details). However, the WSO100 can be installed in any orientation with respect to the vessel and any misalignment with respect to the factory preset can be easily compensated for using the Installation Offset calibration menu item. To perform installation offset calibration, use the Scroll Up (1) or Scroll Down (1) keys to move the highlighted cursor to the "Installation Offset Calibration..." menu item, and then press the Enter key (2). The Installation Offset screen then appears, which is shown in Figure 233 below.



Figure 233 – WSO100 Installation Offset Screen

Turn the vessel directly into the wind and motor forward. When you are satisfied that the apparent wind is directly on the bow of the vessel, press the Accept key to set this angle to read 0° apparent wind on the WSO100. The WSO100 will only calibrate if the apparent wind speed is greater than 2.2

miles/hour. If the apparent wind speed is lower than this, then an error message will appear, which is shown in Figure 234 below, and the calibration process will be aborted.



Figure 234 – WSO100 Configuration Aborted Due to Low Wind Speed

If the wind speed is sufficient, then a confirmation screen, shown in Figure 235 below, will appear, indicating that a successful installation offset calibration has completed.



Figure 235 – Installation Offset Success Confirmation Screen

You may instead abort calibration by pressing the Abort Key (). If you do this, the installation offset calibration process will be aborted and a message will appear noting that this has happened, which appears in Figure 236 below.





Figure 236 – Installation Offset Abort Confirmation Screen

6.32.4 Wind Data Damping Period

The WSO100 comes from the factory preset with a damping period of 1.5 seconds, which should be appropriate for most applications. However, you may use the DSM410 to tune the damping period to anywhere between 0.1 seconds and 5.0 seconds if you desire. To do this, use the Scroll Up (\bigcirc) or Scroll Down (\bigcirc) keys to move the highlighted cursor to the "Wind Data Damping Period:" menu item, then press the Enter key (\bigcirc) to move the highlight to the numerical value on the right. This is shown in Figure 237 below. Use the Increase and Decrease keys to adjust the damping period to the desired value, and then press the Enter key (\bigcirc) to accept the value and store it within the WSO100.

NA Manufactur	er Model	SN#	HW#	SW#
8A Maretron	WSO 100	1200421	20	2.0.12
Installation	Offset Ca	libration.		
Wind Data Barometric Outside Hi Outside Te	Damping Pressure: umidity: 1 mperature:	Period: 29.80 In 3 Percent : 80 °F	4.0s ches M	ercury

Figure 237 – Setting the Wind Data Damping Period

6.32.5 Barometric Pressure

The WSO100 has an internal barometer, which is pre-calibrated before leaving the factory. If the unit requires re-calibrating, then this field allows the entry of the actual pressure. This may be necessary if the vessel is on a lake with an altitude other than sea level, and the user wishes to normalize the barometric pressure to sea level.

Configurat	tion onfigura	tion					
NA Manuf	acturer h	lodel	SN#		HW#	SW#	
8A Maretr	on V	VSO 100	120042	21	20	2.0.12	
Advanc Device Installa Wind D Barome Outside Outside	tion Off tion Off ata Dar tric Pro Humic Tempo	ROOF set Cal nping F ssure: lity: 13 erature:	ibratic Period 29.80 Perc 82 °	on : 4.0 Inch ent F)s es M	ercury	
Power	Cancel	Incre	ase	Decr	ease	Accept	

Figure 238 – Setting the Barometric Pressure

Use the **Increase** and **Decrease** buttons to select the correct pressure, and the press the **Enter** button to store it.

6.32.6 Outside Humidity

The Humidity is pre-calibrated before leaving the factory, and should not require adjustment. However the current humidity level may be entered in this screen to re-calibrate the WSO100 should this be required.

8A Maretron	WSO 100	4200424		
	1100 100	1200421	20	2.0.12
Device Labe Installation Wind Data I Barometric Outside Hur Outside Ten	I: ROOF Offset Cal Damping Pressure: nidity: E nperature:	libration Period: 4 29.80 Inc Pereen 82 °F	4.0s thes M	ercury

Figure 239 – Setting the Outside Humidity

Use the **Increase** and **Decrease** buttons to select the correct humidity, and the press the **Enter** button to store it.

6.32.7 Outside Temperature

The Temperature sensor is pre-calibrated before leaving the factory, and should not require adjustment. However the current temperature may be entered in this screen to re-calibrate the WSO100 should this be required.



Configuratio	n figurati	on			
NA Manufact	turer Mo	del	SN#	HW#	SW#
8A Maretron	W	SO 100	1200421	2.0	2.0.12
Device L Installatio Wind Dat Barometr Outside Outside	a conn abel: R on Offs ta Dam ric Pres Humidi Temper	guration OOF et Calit ping Pe ssure: 29 ty: 12 rature:	oration. eriod: 9.80 In Percen 31 °F	4.0s ches M t	ercury
Power	Cancel	Increa	se D	ecrease	Accept

Figure 240 – Setting the Outside Temperature

Use the **Increase** and **Decrease** buttons to select the correct temperature, and the press the **Enter** button to store it.

7 Data Display Types

7.1 Anchor Watch Display

The Anchor Watch Display is a graphical representation of an Anchor Alert. See Section 8.3.7.9 for details on how to set up the Anchor Alert.



Figure 241 – Anchor Watch Display Example

The display is centered on the position at which the anchor is dropped; this point is represented by the anchor symbol. The control is always oriented North-up, with the boundary circle located at the Alert Set Point distance from the anchor position. The position of the vessel is represented by the boat symbol. This is oriented according to the heading of the boat.

You may use the control mode of the display to easily set the Anchor Drop position as follows. In order to set the Anchor Drop position using the display, create a screen with an Anchor Watch display.

In normal operating mode, use the "Scroll Up" and "Scroll Down" keys to change to the screen containing the Anchor Watch display. Once that screen is displayed, follow these steps to set the Anchor Drop position:

- 1. Press the "Enter" key for approximately one second. This will place the display into "Control mode", and one of the controllable items on the screen will be highlighted with a thick border.
- 2. If there is more than one controllable item on the screen, you may use the "Scroll Up" and "Scroll Down" keys to change the highlight to the Anchor Watch display.
- 3. Once the Anchor Watch display is selected, then press the "Power" key. You will then see a confirmation popup asking whether it is okay to set the Anchor Drop position to the current position. If you answer "Yes", then the Anchor Drop position will be set to the current GPS position.



4. To exit the control mode, press the "Lights" key to return to normal operating mode. The highlight will disappear.

7.2 Bar Graph

The bar graph display shows a parameter on a vertical bar graph with ten segments. The numeric value of the parameter is shown above the bar graph. A full-screen example of a bar graph display can be seen in Figure 242 below.



Figure 242 – Bar Graph Display Example

7.3 Compass Rose Display

The compass rose display shows a heading, bearing, or course parameter on a compass rose display. There are two types of compass roses, 1) "Course Up" where the needle is always pointing straight up and the compass rose rotates to indicate the heading pointed to by the needle (Figure 243), and 2) "North Up" where the rose always has North straight up and the needle rotates pointing in the direction of the heading, bearing or course parameter (Figure 244).



Figure 243 – Compass Rose Display (Course Up) Example



Figure 244 – Compass Rose (North Up) Display



7.4 Date

The date display shows a date. The format of the date shown can be set using the "Units..." menu (please refer to 5.2.7.13 for details on how to set the date format). A full-screen of a date display can be seen in Figure 245 below.



Figure 245 – Date Display Example

7.5 Date/Time

The Date/Time display shows a date and time on a single display. The format of the date shown can be set using the "Units…" menu (please refer to 5.2.7.13 for details on how to set the date format). The format of the time shown can be set using the "Units…" menu (please refer to Section 5.2.7.11 for details on how to set the time format). A full-screen example of a Date/Time display can be seen in Figure 246 below.



Figure 246 – Date/Time Display Example

7.6 Gauge Display

The gauge display shows the selected data in a graphical format resembling an analog gauge. There is a general gauge format for most types of display, and a specialized rudder gauge display. A full-screen example of a tachometer display can be seen in Figure 247 below.



Figure 247 – Gauge Display Example

A full-screen example of the rudder gauge display can be seen in Figure 248 below.



Figure 248 – Rudder Angle Gauge Display Example



7.7 GPS Status Display

The GPS Status display shows the following data about the selected GPS receiver:

- GPS operating mode (2D, 3D, DGPS)
- Satellite signal strength (up to 12 satellites)
- Satellite azimuth and elevation (up to 12 satellites)
- Position
- HDOP
- Time
- Date
- Accuracy of position

An example of a full-screen GPS Status display can be seen below in Figure 249.





7.8 Half Gauge Display

The Half Gauge display shows the selected parameter value in a graphical format resembling a semicircular analog gauge. A full screen example of a half gauge display can be seen in below.



Figure 250 – Half Gauge Display Example

7.9 Indicator Light

The DSM410 is capable of displaying the state of binary (ON/OFF) sensors on the network with an indicator light display that emulates a status light on a control panel.

The display may be set up in several different configurations:

- Single-Indicator Light this creates a single indicator light
- 2 rows this creates four rows of single indicator lights
- 3 rows this creates three rows of single indicator lights
- 4 rows this creates four rows of single indicator lights
- 2 rows, 2 columns this creates two rows by two columns of a single indicator light

Figure 271 below shows a Favorite Screens Setup screen with a single window configured with the "4 rows" configuration.



Favorite S Favorite Format: F Auto Cha Window # Data: Inc Type: 4	creens Si f1 Mode: Au Full Wind Inge Inter ≇1 dicator S rows	etup ito/Manual ow rval: 5 Sec Status	ond s	'1
Power	Back	Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 251 – Configuration of Indicator Light Display

The maximum number of indicator lights you can have on a single screen is 16 (the "4 Quarters" format, with all four windows set to use the "4 rows" or "2 rows, 2 column" indicator light configurations.

In order to configure the individual indicator lights, press the "Enter" key with the selected type highlighted to display a menu with entries for each indicator light in the window being configured, as shown in Figure 272 below.

Favorite Favorite	Screens S #1	etup	LAZ SMOI	Æ
Window	s #1 or		ENG ROOM H	ATCH
Indica	tor #1		AFT BILG	E
Indica	tor#2 tor#3		ENG ROOM I	IEAT
Indica Restor	tor #4 re Factory	Defaults		
Power	Back	Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 252 – Selection of an Individual Indicator Light

Figure 273 below shows the configuration menu for each individual indicator light.

Favorite S Favorite	Screens Se #1	tup	LAZ SMO	Œ			
Windows	; #1 .r		ENG ROOM H	АТСН			
Indicat	or #1		AFT BILGI	E			
Color- Color-	Off :Gr On :Re	een d	ENG ROOM H	IEAT			
Color- Instan Chann Title: I Font S Restor	Color- Error : None Instance : #0 (AFT SIM) Channel : #1 (LAZ SMOKE) Title: Label (LAZ SMOKE) Font Size : Large Restore Factory Defaults						
Power	Back	Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Enter			

Figure 253 – Configuration of an Individual Indicator Light

Each indicator light has several configurable parameters:

- Color-Off select the color to be displayed when the indicator is in the OFF state. The default color is gray.
- Color-On select the color to be displayed when the indicator is in the ON state. The default color is green.
- Color-Error select the color to be displayed when the indicator is in the ERROR state, which may indicate faulty sensor or connection. The default color is red.
- Instance the instance number of the switch bank containing the indicator to be monitored.
- Channel the channel number of the indicator to be monitored.
- Title Sets the text string to be displayed on the indicator light. Please refer to Section 5.2.6.4.4 for details.
- Font Size Sets the size of the font used to display the label on the indicator light. You may select Small, Medium, or Large (default).
- Restore Factory Defaults This restores the indicator light to factory default settings.

7.10Numeric Display

The numeric display shows the selected parameter in a numeric format on the screen. A full-screen example of the current depth display can be seen below in Figure 254.





Figure 254 – Numeric Display Example

The upper left hand corner indicates the parameter being displayed and the center of the screen shows the numeric value for the indicated parameter. The bottom right hand corner shows the units.

7.11 Numeric/Precision

The numeric/precision display shows the selected parameter in a numeric format on the screen, but at a higher resolution (or precision) than the numeric display. A full-screen example of the current depth display can be seen below in Figure 254.



Figure 255 – Numeric/Precision Display Example

The upper left hand corner indicates the parameter being displayed and the center of the screen shows the numeric value for the indicated parameter. The bottom right hand corner shows the units.

7.12Rolling Road

The DSM410 supports a "Rolling Road", or navigation highway display. This display repeats transmitted navigation data from a primary navigator, such as a chart plotter or a personal computer running navigation software. Figure 256 below shows the favorites screen setup menu with the rolling road selected. When the rolling road is selected the displayed navigation data, the "Type:" submenu changes to four "Item:" submenus. The rolling road display can show numerical displays of four navigation-related data items in addition to the graphical display of boat position and progress towards the desired waypoint.



Favorite S Favorite Format: Auto Ch Window Data: N Item 0 Item 1: Item 1: Item 3:	Screens S #1 Mode: Au Full Wind ange Inter 1 2 SOG ETA DTW	etup ito/Manual ow rval: 5 Sec Rolling Ro	onds ad	
Power	Back	Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 256 – Configuration of Rolling Road Display

The following data items may be displayed on the rolling road display:

- COG (Course Over Ground)
- SOG (Speed Over Ground)
- BTW (Bearing to Waypoint)
- DTW (Distance to Waypoint)
- VMG (Velocity Made Good)
- ETA (Estimated Time of Arrival)
- TTG (Time to Go)
- XTE (Cross Track Error)
- Set
- Drift
- BOD (Bearing, Origin to Destination)
- HDG (Heading)

Figure 257 below shows a rolling road display. The navigation parameters that have been selected are COG, SOG, ETA, and TTG. On the navigation highway itself, the waypoint name, if available, is displayed on the upper left and the waypoint number, if available, is displayed on the upper right. The dashed vertical line along the center of the highway represents the current leg of the route. The distance of the boat to the left or the right of the line represents the XTE (Cross Track Error). The angle of the boat relative to the vertical line represents the difference between the boat's COG (Course Over Ground) and the BTW (Bearing to Waypoint). The scale of the XTE display can be selected by setting a value for the XTE alarm (See Section 5.2.1, "Alert Setup Menu", on page 27 for details).



Figure 257 – Rolling Road Display

7.13Line Graph

The line graph display shows the value of a parameter displayed on the horizontal axis versus time on the vertical axis. Figure 258 below shows the line graph display for barometric pressure over a time period of one day. The line graph display can show the selected data over a time period of 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, or 7 days. Line graph displays are supported only for barometric pressure.



Figure 258 – Line Graph Display

7.14SMS Status

The SMS Status display shows the status of an SMS100 SMS (Text) Module on the network. It will show whether the SMS100 is connected to the cellular network, and if it is connect, the cellular carrier along with the phone number used by the SMS100. Figure 259 below shows an example of this type of display.





7.15Time (hh:mm)

The Time (hm:mm) display shows a time value in an hours and minutes format. Figure 260 below shows an example of this type of display.



7.16Time (hh:mm:ss)

The Time (hm:mm:ss) display shows a time value in an hours, minutes, and seconds format. Figure 261 below shows an example of this type of display.



7.17VDR Status

The VDR Status display shows the status of a VDR100 Vessel Data Recorder on the network. The normal state for the VDR is "Recording". Please refer to the VDR100 User's Manual for other status that could be displayed on the VDR Status display. Figure 262 below shows an example of this type of display.



Figure 262 – VDR Status Display

7.18Weather Display

The DSM410 supports a single-screen weather display that shows a wide variety of weather-related information. A screen shot of the weather display appears in Figure 263 below.





Figure 263 – Weather Display

The weather display shows the following information:

- Wind Direction (Ground Referenced)
- Wind Speed (Ground Referenced)
- Heat Index / Wind Chill
- Outside Temperature
- Outside Humidity
- Barometric Pressure
- Inside Temperature
- Inside Humidity
- Dew Point
- Moon Phase
- Sunrise
- Sunset

7.19Wind Rose

The DSM410 supports a wind rose display, which displays apparent wind direction and speed measured relative to the moving vessel, or true wind direction and speed measured relative to the moving vessel, depending on the parameter selected. A screen shot of a wind rose appears in Figure 264 below.



Figure 264 – Wind Rose Display

7.20Moon Phase Display

The DSM410 supports a moon phase display which shows the current phase of the moon at the current location. An example screenshot of the moon phase display appears in Figure 265 below.



Figure 265 – Moon Phase Display

7.21 SMS Signal Strength Bar

The SMS Signal Strength Bar display shows the signal strength detected by the SMS100 SMS (Text) Module from the connected cellular network. Figure 266 below shows an example of this type of display.





Figure 266 – SMS Signal Strength Bar Display

7.22Trim Tabs Bar Graph Display

The DSM410 supports a trim tab display in which the relative positions of the port and starboard trim tabs are displayed on a dual bar graph. A screenshot of the trim tab display appears in Figure 267 below.



Figure 267 – Trim Tab Display

7.23 Swing Meter Display

The DSM410 supports a swing meter display, similar to those found on dedicated swing meters, for displaying the rate of turn of the vessel in degrees per minute. The swing meter is available in ranges of +/- 30°/minute, +/- 100°/minute, or +/- 300°/minute. A screenshot of the swing meter display appears in Figure 268 below.



7.24 Tank Gauge Display

The DSM410 supports a tank level gauge display type which shows percentage of fluid remaining in a tank on an analog gauge with 180° of travel. A screenshot of a tank gauge display showing a fuel tank's level appears in Figure 269 below.



Figure 269 – Tank Gauge Display

7.25Watermaker Status

The DSM410 supports a watermaker status display type which shows the operating status of a Sea Recovery watermaker connected on the network. A screenshot of a watermaker status display showing a fuel tank's level appears in Figure 270 below.



Watermaker	#0	Demo	
Operation State	Pre Filter Pres.	Pre Filter	
Running	56.0 PSI	OK	
Production Rate	Post Filter Pres. 57.0 PSI	Post Filter OK	
0.08	Operation Pres.	Operation	
Gal/Hour	57.9 PSI	OK	
Salinity Status	ilter Status	System Status	
OK	OK	OK	
1 Manual			

Figure 270 – Watermaker Status Display

7.26Switch/Breaker Display

The DSM410 is capable of controlling loads controlled by a Maretron DCR100 DC Relay, a Carling OctoPlex AC Box or DC Box, or other NMEA 2000[®] load controller which uses NMEA Command of the 127501 Binary Switch Bank Status PGN for control.

The display may be set up in several different configurations:

- Single-Indicator Light this creates a single switch/breaker
- 2 rows this creates four rows of single switches/breakers
- 3 rows this creates three rows of single switches/breakers
- 4 rows this creates four rows of single switches/breakers
- 2 rows, 2 columns this creates two rows by two columns of a single switch/breaker

Figure 271 below shows a Favorite Screens Setup screen with a single window configured with the "4 rows" configuration.



Figure 271 – Configuration of Switch/Breaker Display

DSM410 User's Manual

The maximum number of switches/breakers you can have on a single screen is 16 (the "4 Quarters" format, with all four windows set to use the "4 rows" or "2 rows, 2 column" switch/breaker configurations.

In order to configure the individual switch/breaker controls, press the "Enter" key with the selected type highlighted to display a menu with entries for each switch/breaker in the window being configured, as shown in Figure 272 below.



Figure 272 – Selection of an Individual Switch/Breaker

Figure 273 below shows the configuration menu for each individual switch/breaker.

Favorite Favorite	Screens Se #16	tup		HELM L	JGHTS
Window: Switch/	s #1 Bresker		0	NAV LI	GHTS
Switch	/Breaker #	1	Ο	NAV E	LECT.
Color	Offi Gr	ay een	0	VHF R	ADIO
Color-Error : Red Type : Toggle Switch Instance : #0 (HELM RELAY BOX) Channel : #1 (HELM LIGHTS) Title: Label (HELM LIGHTS) Font Size : Large					
Power	Back	Scrol Up		Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 273 – Configuration of an Individual Switch/Breaker

Each switch/breaker has several configurable parameters:

- Color-Off select the color to be displayed when the controlled load is in the OFF state. The default color is gray.
- Color-On select the color to be displayed when the controlled load is in the ON state. The default color is green.
- Color-Error select the color to be displayed when the controlled load is in the ERROR state, which may indicate a tripped breaker. The default color is red.



- Type you may choose between the default value of "Toggle", in which case the switch/breaker changes state every time you press the power button while it is highlighted, or "Momentary", in which case the switch-breaker is turned on only while you are pressing the power button while it is highlighted.
- Instance the instance number of the switch bank containing the switch/breaker to be controlled.
- Channel the channel number of the switch/breaker to be controlled.
- Title Sets the text string to be displayed on the switch/breaker. Please refer to Section 5.2.6.4.4 for details.
- Font Size Sets the size of the font used to display the label on the switch/breaker. You may select Small, Medium, or Large (default).
- Restore Factory Defaults This restores the switch/breaker to factory default settings.

In order to control a switch/breaker using the DSM410, create a screen with a switch/breaker which has been configured to refer to the switch bank instance and indicator number of the switch/breaker you want to control.

In normal operating mode, use the "Scroll Up" and "Scroll Down" keys to change to the screen containing the switch/breaker. Once that screen is displayed, follow these steps to change a load's state:

- 1. Press the "Enter" key for approximately one second. This will place the display into "Control mode", and one of the switches/breakers on the screen will be highlighted with a thick border, as shown in Figure 274 below.
- 2. If there is more than one switch/breaker on the screen, you may use the "Scroll Up" and "Scroll Down" keys to change the highlight to a different switch/breaker.
- 3. Once the switch/breaker for the load you want to control is selected, then press the "Power" key. The load referenced by the switch/breaker will be commanded to change state, and the changed state will be reflected in the switch/breaker.
- 4. To change other loads, repeat the process.
- 5. To stop controlling loads, press the "Lights" key to return to normal operating mode. The highlight will disappear.



Figure 274 – Favorite Screen Showing Highlighted Switch/Breaker



8 Alerts

The DSM410 can act as both an Alert Source and an Alert Monitor. An Alert Source monitors parameters received on the NMEA2000[®] bus against a user entered threshold, and displays alerts when parameters go out of range. It will also transmit this Alert information to other Alert Monitors on the bus (Platinum copies of N2KView[™] or other DSM410s) and sound the ALM100 annunciators as required. Operators may accept or cancel the Alerts from the buttons on the front of the DSM410. An Alert Monitor, the DSM410 monitors the bus for Alert messages from Alert Sources, and displays the remote Alert information on the DSM410's screen. Operators may accept or cancel the remote Alerts from the buttons on the front of the DSM410 monitors screen. Operators may accept or cancel the remote Alerts from the buttons on the front of the DSM410, in which case an Alert Command Message is sent back to the Alert Source.

8.1 Displaying Active Alerts

Active Alerts are overlaid on all the favorite screens.



Figure 275 – Alert Display

The number of Alerts with pending operator actions is shown in the top right corner. This will be colored red if the highest pending Alert is an Alarm and yellow if it is a Warning. The description of the active Alert with the highest priority is shown at the bottom left of the screen. This will be colored red if it is an Alarm and yellow if it is a Warning. In addition, the state of the alert (0) will be shown as follows:

Active – The enclosing box will flash between a solid red or yellow and white.

Accepted – The enclosing box will be a solid red or yellow.

Awaiting Cancel – The enclosing box will be outlined in red or yellow, as shown in Figure 275.

8.1.1 Alert Status Screen

The list of Active Alerts is displayed in tabular form on the Alert Status Screen. This Screen may be displayed by selecting the **Alert Status** option from the Main Menu.



Figure 276 – Alert Status Screen

8.2 Accepting or Cancelling an Alert

Active Alerts may be accepted (4.3.2) by the operator to indicate that the operator has taken responsibility for the Alert. Alerts that have been triggered and the cause removed without being accepted by a user must be cleared.

8.2.1 From a Favorite Screen

The Alert with the highest priority that requires accepting or cancelling is shown at the bottom left of the screen (see Figure 275). This Alert may easily be accepted or cancelled without changing screens by pressing the Power button .

8.2.2 From the Alert Status Screen

Alert	Status.		0	D:	Alert(s) Pend	ling 1
Time		State	Source	Pn.	Description	
08/07	10:49:39	Inactive	Local	3	Anchor Watch	
08/07	10:46:49	Awaiting	Local	5	Motion	
			Samell		Secoll	
Power		Back	Un		Down	Enter

Figure 277 – Cancelling an Alert from the Alert Status Screen

Use the **Scroll Up** and **Scroll Down** buttons to select the Alert to be accepted or cancelled, and then press the **Enter** button. An Alert Description screen will be displayed with the details of the Alert and the cursor positioned over the **Accept/Cancel Alert** entry.



Time : 2009-08-07 11:57:19 Status : Active Source : Local Type : Alarm ID/Priority : 5 (0x2005) Description : Motion Location : Lobby What's happend: Went ACTIVE (26 times) Accept/Cancel Alert Edit Alert	
Power Back	Enter

Figure 278 – The Alert Detail Screen

Pressing the Enter button at this point will Accept or Cancel the Alert.

8.3 Adding an Alert

Alerts are created by selecting the parameter to be monitored (e.g. Depth), and then selecting the type of Alert (e.g. High Alert). Start by going to the **Add New Alert** entry in the **Alert Setup Menu**.

Alert Setup Add New Delete Ale Edit Alert Operating Advanced Restore Fa	Alert rt Mode: U Configur actory De	Underway ration afaults	0	
Power	Back	Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 279 – Adding a New Alert

Pressing Enter brings up the Alert Edit Screen.

Alert Det	ail			
Enable/D	isable Cor	ntrol : Ena	able	
Alert Ty	pe : Alarm			
Priority	: -			
Trigger	Source			
Туре	: -			
Data	: -			
Instanc	e : -			
Descripti	ion:-			
Location	: -			
Trigger	Configurati	on		
Trigger	Туре	: -		
Re-trig	ger Period	:0:00 m	in:sec	Ц
Power	Back	Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 280 – Part of the Alert Edit Screen

This allows the entry of all the alert parameters, which can vary depending on the type of alert chosen. These parameters are:

8.3.1 Enable/Disable Control

This allows individual alerts to be enabled or disabled. The decision to disable an Alert must be made very carefully, as it nullifies the purpose for having alerts. The options here are:

- Enable
- Disable

The desired option is selected using the Scroll Up and Scroll Down buttons.

8.3.2 Alert Type

This allows the selection of the type of Alert (see paragraph 4.3.1). The options here are:

- Alarm
- Warning

The desired option is selected using the Scroll Up and Scroll Down buttons.

8.3.3 Priority

Each Alarm has a unique priority ranging from 0 (highest priority) to 3999 (lowest priority). Each Warning has a unique priority in the same range; however the entire set of Warning Priorities is considered lower than the Alarm Priorities. No two Alarms / Warnings may have the same priorities, and, when scrolling through the priorities, numbers that are already in use will be omitted from the list. The desired option is selected using the Scroll Up and Scroll Down buttons.


8.3.4 Trigger Source

This allows the selection of the parameter to be monitored. The parameters are laid out as per Section 4.2. The trigger source is specified in three parts, which when combined will uniquely identify a single parameter on the bus.

8.3.4.1 Type

The Type corresponds to the category of data. The desired option is selected using the Scroll Up and Scroll Down buttons.

8.3.4.2 Data

The Data corresponds to the Data Type of data. The desired option is selected using the Scroll Up and Scroll Down buttons.

8.3.4.3 Instance

The Instance corresponds to the instance of the data type on the bus. The desired option is selected using the Scroll Up and Scroll Down buttons.

8.3.5 Description

This is a textual field that will be displayed on the DSM410 and transmitted to Alert Slave devices. It is intended to describe the alert (e.g. Fire).

8.3.6 Location

This is a textual field that will be displayed on the DSM410 and transmitted to Alert Slave devices. It is intended to describe the location at which the problem was detected (e.g. Main Stateroom).

8.3.7 Trigger Configuration

This set of fields is used to describe the condition under which the alert will be triggered. The subfields will vary depending on the Trigger Type, which, in turn, is determined by the Trigger Source.

8.3.7.1 Trigger Type is High Alert

A high alert is used to signal you when a parameter value rises above a threshold you determine. For example, you can set an alert to occur whenever the freezer temperature rises above 0°C.

8.3.7.1.1 Description

A high alert and associated diagram are shown in the figure below.



Figure 281 – High Alert Parameters

A high alert is triggered (i.e. becomes an active alert) once an input signal has risen above the *High Alert Set Point* and the *Set Delay* time has elapsed. If the *Set Delay* is set to zero, then the alert is immediately triggered once the input signal rises above the *High Alert Set Point*. The *Set Delay* is used to reduce false or spurious alerts. As an example, setting the *Set Delay* to 5 seconds will eliminate any temporary transitions of the input signal above the *High Alert Set Point* lasting less than 5 seconds from triggering an alert. Once the alert is triggered, it becomes an active alert. An alert remains active until

- The input signals falls below the *High Alert Clear Point* and the *Clear Delay* time has elapsed. If the *Clear Delay* is set to zero, then the alert immediately transitions to the Awaiting Cancel once the input signal falls below the *High Alert Clear Point* (as shown in the example above).
- The user accepts the alert in which case it transitions into the Accepted state.

The Clear Delay is used to reduce false or spurious alerts.

8.3.7.1.2 Trigger Configuration



Alert Detail			
Trigger Type	: High A	lert	П
Re-trigger Period	: 0:00 m	in:sec	
Alert Set Point	:- Ga	al/hr	
Alert Set Delay	:0:00 m	in:sec	
Alert Clear Point	: - Ga	al/hr	
Alert Clear Delay	:0:00 m	in:sec	
Local Audible : En	able		
Tone : Continuous			
Remote Annunciato	or(s)		
SMS (Text) Settings	s		
Operating Mode Me	oored :	Enable	
Operating Mode Ur	nderway:	Enable	
Power Back	Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 282 – Trigger Configuration – High Alert

- **Re-trigger Period** When you accept an alert, it will change to the "Accepted" state, and annunciators that are sounding for that alert will stop sounding. If the condition which caused the alert remains true after the amount of time in this field, the alert will return to the "Active" state, and annunciators will begin sounding again for that alert. The value is entered as minutes:seconds. If only one number is entered, it will be interpreted as seconds. If a value of 0:00 is entered, then the alert will never re-trigger.
- Alert Set Point If the value of the parameter being monitored rises above the value in this field, the alert will become active.
- Alert Set Delay The parameter being monitored must rise above the Alert Set Point value for longer than the time in this field in order for an alert to become active. This can be used to prevent false alerts caused by parameter values that briefly have a value that would cause an alert but quickly return to the normal value range. The value is entered as minutes:seconds. If only one number is entered, it will be interpreted as seconds.
- Alert Clear Point If the alert is active and the parameter value falls below the value in this field, the alert will become inactive.
- Alert Clear Delay The parameter being monitored must fall below the Alert Clear Point value for longer than the time in this field in order for the alert to become inactive. The value is entered as minutes:seconds. If only one number is entered, it will be interpreted as seconds.

8.3.7.2 Trigger Type is Low Alert

A low alert is used to signal you when a parameter value falls below a threshold you determine. For example, you can set an alert to occur whenever the port engine oil pressure rises falls below 40 PSI.

8.3.7.2.1 Parameters

A low alert and associated diagram are shown in the figure below.



Low Alert Parameters

Figure 283 – Low Alert Parameters

A low alert is triggered (i.e. becomes an active alert) once an input signal has dropped below the *Low Alert Set Point* and the *Set Delay* time has elapsed. If the *Set Delay* is set to zero, then the alert is immediately triggered once the input signal drops below the *Low Alert Set Point*. The *Set Delay* is used to reduce false or spurious alerts. As an example, setting the *Set Delay* to 5 seconds will eliminate any temporary transitions of the input signal above the *Low Alert Set Point* lasting less than 5 seconds from triggering an alert. Once the alert is triggered, it becomes an active alert. An alert remains active until:

- The input signals rises above the *Low Alert Clear Point* and the *Clear Delay* time has elapsed. If the *Clear Delay* is set to zero, then the alert immediately becomes inactive once the input signal falls below the *Low Alert Clear Point*. The *Clear Delay* is used to reduce false or spurious alerts.
- The user accepts the alert (as shown in the example above).

8.3.7.2.2 Trigger Configuration

Alert Detail			
Trigger Type	:Low A	ert	Π
Re-trigger Period	:0:00 m	in:sec	
Alert Set Point	:- Ga	l/hr	
Alert Set Delay	:0:00 m	in:sec	
Alert Clear Point	:- Ga	l/hr	
Alert Clear Delay	:0:00 m	in:sec	
Local Audible : Ena	able		
Tone : Continuous			
Remote Annunciato	or(s)		
SMS (Text) Settings	s		
Operating Mode M	oored :	Enable	
Operating Mode Ur	nderway:	Enable	
Power Back	Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Enter



Figure 284 – Trigger Configuration – Low Alert

- **Re-trigger Period** When you accept an alert, it will change to the "Accepted" state, and annunciators that are sounding for that alert will stop sounding. If the condition which caused the alert remains true after the amount of time in this field, the alert will return to the "Active" state, and annunciators will begin sounding again for that alert. If a value of 0:00 is entered, then the alert will never re-trigger.
- Alert Set Point If the value of the parameter being monitored falls below the value in this field, the alert will become active.
- Alert Set Delay The parameter being monitored must fall below the Low Alert Set Point value for longer than the time in this field in order for an alert to become active. This can be used to prevent false alerts caused by parameter values that briefly have a value that would cause an alert but quickly return to the normal value range. The value is entered as minutes:seconds. If only one number is entered, it will be interpreted as seconds.
- Alert Clear Point If the alert is active and the parameter value rises above the value in this field, the alert will become inactive.
- Alert Clear Delay The parameter being monitored must rise above the Low Alert Clear Point value for longer than the time in this field in order for the alert to become inactive. The value is entered as minutes:seconds. If only one number is entered, it will be interpreted as seconds.

In this example, the set point may be described in more than one unit, so additional fields have been supplied so that the user can select the units of depth. Changing the units of the set point will also change the units of the clear point. The initial units displayed in these fields will correspond to those set in the Units Dialog (see Section 5.2.7).

8.3.7.3 Trigger Type is Data Unavailable Alert

The Data Unavailable Alert can be used in conjunction with other alert types when you need to know if a particular parameter is no longer being received on the network or is flagged as "not available" by the transmitting device. For instance, you probably would want to use a Data Unavailable Alert for the Depth->Current Depth parameter, since it would be advisable to know if the depth sounder were to stop transmitting a depth reading or became unable to determine the depth due to fouling or some other reason. On the other hand, if you were to set a Data Unavailable Alert on Engine->Engine Water Temperature parameter, you would then get an alert every time the ignition was switched off and the engine's ECU stopped transmitting data.

8.3.7.3.1 Trigger Configuration

Alert Detail Instance :#1 Description : - Location : -			
Trigger Configurat Trigger Type Re-trigger Period Alert Set Delay Alert Clear Delay Local Audible : Er Tone : Continuous Remote Annunciat SMS (Text) Setting	ion : <u>Data U</u> : 1:00 mi : 0:10 mi : 0:10 mi nable or(s)	navailable in:sec in:sec in:sec	Alert
Power Back	Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 285 – Trigger Configuration – Data Unavailable Alert

- **Re-trigger Period** When you accept an alert, it will change to the "Accepted" state, and annunciators that are sounding for that alert will stop sounding. If the condition which caused the alert remains true after the amount of time in this field, the alert will return to the "Active" state, and annunciators will begin sounding again for that alert. If a value of 0:00 is entered, then the alert will never re-trigger.
- Alert Set Delay If a valid value for the parameter being monitored is continually not received or has an invalid value for the amount of time specified in this field, the alert will become active.
- Alert Clear Delay The parameter being monitored must continually be received with a valid value for longer than the time in this field in order for the alert to become inactive.

8.3.7.4 Trigger Type is On Alert

As opposed to high and low alerts that are associated with analog input signals (i.e., many different possible input values), there are also switch alerts that are associated with a binary input value (sometimes called on or off, yes or no, enabled or disabled, set or reset, active or inactive). The switch alert is similar to the high and low alert except that there are no set or reset points. The mere fact that the switch is seen as On causes the alert to become an active alert (assuming the Set Delay is set to zero). Likewise, if the switch being monitored is seen as false (i.e., binary 0), then the alert becomes inactive (assuming the Clear Delay is set to zero). If the delays are not programmed to zero, then the switch must remain On for the Set Delay before the alert becomes active, and must remain Off for the Clear Delay before the alert becomes inactive.



8.3.7.4.1 Trigger Configuration

Alert Deta	il			
Channel	:#1 (Aft	Bilge P	ump)	Π
Descripti	on : -	-	••	
Location	: -			
Trigger (Configurati	on		
Trigger	Туре	: On Al	ert	
Re-trigg	er Period	: 1:00 m	nin:sec	
Alert Se	t Delay	:0:10 m	nin:sec	
Alert Cl	ear Delay	:0:10 m	nin:sec	
Local Au	dible : Ena	able		
Tone : C	ontinuous			
Remote /	Annunciato	r(s)		
SMS (Te	ct) Settings	s		
Power	Back	Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 286 – Trigger Configuration – On Alert

- **Re-trigger Period** When you accept an alert, it will change to the "Accepted" state, and annunciators that are sounding for that alert will stop sounding. If the condition which caused the alert remains true after the amount of time in this field, the alert will return to the "Active" state, and annunciators will begin sounding again for that alert. If a value of 0:00 is entered, then the alert will never re-trigger.
- Alert Set Delay The condition for the parameter being monitored must be in its error condition for at least the set delay time before the alert will become active. An interesting use of the set delay when monitoring a bilge pump (for example) is to set the Set Delay to a large value (say 20 minutes). Now, if the bilge pump runs for more than 20 minutes at a time the alert will be triggered.
- Alert Clear Delay The condition for the parameter being monitored must be not in its error condition for at least the clear delay time before the alert will become cleared.

8.3.7.5 Trigger Type is Off Alert

As opposed to high and low alerts that are associated with analog input signals (i.e., many different possible input values), there are also switch alerts that are associated with a binary input value (sometimes called on or off, yes or no, enabled or disabled, set or reset, active or inactive). The switch alert is similar to the high and low alert except that there are no set or reset points. The mere fact that the switch is seen as Off causes the alert to become an active alert (assuming the Set Delay is set to zero). Likewise, if the switch being monitored is seen as On, then the alert becomes inactive (assuming the Clear Delay is set to zero). If the delays are not programmed to zero, then the switch must remain Off for the Set Delay before the alert becomes active, and must remain On for the Clear Delay before the alert becomes active.

8.3.7.5.1 Trigger Configuration

Alert Deta	nil			
Channe	:#1 (Aft	Bilge Pu	mp)	П
Descripti	on : -	0	• *	
Location	: -			
Trigger (Configurati	on		
Trigger	Туре	: Off Ale	rt	
Re-trig	ger Period	: 1:00 mi	n:sec	
Alert S	et Delay	:0:10 mi	n:sec	
Alert C	ear Delay	:0:10 mi	n:sec	
Local Au	dible : En	able		
Tone : C	ontinuous			
Remote /	Annunciate	or(s)		
SMS (Te	xt) Setting	s		
Power	Back	Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 287 – Trigger Configuration – Off Alert

- **Re-trigger Period** When you accept an alert, it will change to the "Accepted" state, and annunciators that are sounding for that alert will stop sounding. If the condition which caused the alert remains true after the amount of time in this field, the alert will return to the "Active" state, and annunciators will begin sounding again for that alert. If a value of 0:00 is entered, then the alert will never re-trigger.
- Alert Set Delay If the switch being monitored is in the Off state for the amount of time specified in this field, the alert will become active.
- Alert Clear Delay If the switch being monitored is in a state other than "Off" for the amount of time specified in this field, the alert will become inactive.

8.3.7.6 Trigger Type is Error Alert

When monitoring circuit breakers, the error alert can be used to raise an alert when the circuit breaker trips due to over current. As with the On and Off alerts, the Set Delay and Clear Delay values are used to prevent spurious triggering.

8.3.7.6.1 Trigger Configuration



Alart Date				
Alen Deta				_
Channe	I:#1(Aft	Bilge Pu	mp)	
Descripti	on : -	0	• •	
Location	: -			
Trigger	Configurati	on		
Trigger	Туре	: Error A	lert	
Re-trigg	ger Period	: 1:00 mi	n:sec	
Alert S	et Delay	:0:10 mi	n:sec	
Alert C	ear Delay	:0:10 mi	n:sec	
Local Au	ıdible : En	able		
Tone : C	ontinuous			
Remote	Annunciat	ar(e)		
		JI(3)		
SMS (Ie	xt) Setting	s		
Power	Back	Scroll	Scroll	Enter
- www		Up	Down	Linter

Figure 288 – Trigger Configuration Editor – Tripped Alert

- **Re-trigger Period** When you accept an alert, it will change to the "Accepted" state, and annunciators that are sounding for that alert will stop sounding. If the condition which caused the alert remains true after the amount of time in this field, the alert will return to the "Active" state, and annunciators will begin sounding again for that alert. If a value of 0:00 is entered, then the alert will never re-trigger.
- Alert Set Delay If the switch being monitored is in the Tripped state for the amount of time specified in this field, the alert will become active.
- **Alert Clear Delay** If the switch being monitored is in a state other than "Tripped" for the amount of time specified in this field, the alert will become inactive.

8.3.7.7 Trigger Type is Outside Radius Alert

The Outside Radius Alert is used to signal an alert whenever the vessel moves outside a programmable distance in any direction away from a reference point (expressed as a longitude and latitude). This alert is useful when the vessel is anchored or moored and the vessel should not drift outside a perimeter and if it does, an alert is activated. The point of reference can be selected from the current position or it can be manually entered. Figure 289 shows an Outside Radius Alert and associated parameters. The Outside Radius Alert and the Anchor Alert are very similar. The radius of the Outside Radius Alert is specified in either Nautical Miles or Kilometers, while the radius of the Anchor Alert is specified in Feet or Meters.

8.3.7.7.1 Parameters



Outside Radius Alert Parameters

Figure 289 – Outside Alert Parameters

8.3.7.7.2 Trigger Configuration – Outside Radius Alert

Alert Detail Trigger Configura Trigger Type Re-trigger Perio Alert Set Point Alert Set Delay Alert Clear Poin Alert Clear Delay Latitude : 33 Longitude : 112 Get Current Posit	tion : Onteicle d : 5:00 mi : 3.00 Na : 0:06 mi t : 2.50 Na y : 0:06 mi 3°34.080'N 2°06.530'W tion mable	Radius Aleri in:sec iutical Miles in:sec iutical Miles in:sec	3
Tone : Continuou	S Scroll	Scroll	
Power Back	Up	Down	Enter

Figure 290 – Trigger Configuration – Outside Radius Alert

- **Re-trigger Period** When you accept an alert, it will change to the "Accepted" state, and annunciators that are sounding for that alert will stop sounding. If the condition which caused the alert remains true after the amount of time in this field, the alert will return to the "Active" state, and annunciators will begin sounding again for that alert. If a value of 0:00 is entered, then the alert will never re-trigger.
- Alert Set Point If the distance between the current GPS position and the reference position rises above the value in this field, the alert will become active.
- Alert Set Delay The distance between the current GPS position and the reference position must rise above the Outside Radius Alert Set value for longer than the time in this field in order for an alert to become active.
- Alert Clear Point If the alert is active and the distance between the current GPS position and the reference position falls below the value in this field, the alert will become inactive.



- Alert Clear Delay The distance between the current GPS position and the reference position must fall below the Outside Radius Alert Clear value for longer than the time in this field in order for an alert to become inactive.
- Latitude The latitude of the reference position. This may be typed in as <degrees>:<minutes> followed by an N or S. If the N or S is missing, North is assumed. Moving the cursor to another field will reformat the contents of this field.
- Longitude The longitude of the reference position. This may be typed in as <degrees>:<minutes> followed by an E or W. If the E or W is missing, East is assumed. Moving the cursor to another field will reformat the contents of this field.
- **Get Current Position** Selecting this will transfer the current GPS position into the Latitude and Longitude fields.

8.3.7.8 Trigger Type is Inside Radius Alert

The Inside Radius Alert is similar to the Outside Radius Alert except that an alert is activated if the vessel comes within a certain distance or radius of a reference point (expressed as a longitude and latitude). Figure 291 shows an Inside Radius Alert and associated parameters.

8.3.7.8.1 Trigger Configuration

Alert Detail Trigger Configuration Trigger Type Re-trigger Period Alert Set Point Alert Set Delay Alert Clear Point Alert Clear Delay Latitude : 33°3 Longitude : 112°0 Get Current Positio Local Audible : Ena Tone : Continuous	on : [Inside : 5:00 n : 3.00 N : 0:06 n : 3.50 N : 0:06 n 34.080'N 06.530'W n able	Radius nin:sec lautical nin:sec lautical nin:sec	Alert Miles Miles	
Power Back	Scroll	Scro	oll VD	Enter

Figure 291 – Trigger Configuration – Inside Radius Alert

- **Re-trigger Period** When you accept an alert, it will change to the "Accepted" state, and annunciators that are sounding for that alert will stop sounding. If the condition which caused the alert remains true after the amount of time in this field, the alert will return to the "Active" state, and annunciators will begin sounding again for that alert.
- Alert Set Point If the distance between the current GPS position and the reference position falls below above the value in this field, the alert will become active.
- Alert Set Delay The distance between the current GPS position and the reference position must fall below the Inside Radius Alert Set value for longer than the time in this field in order for an alert to become active.
- Alert Clear Point If the alert is active and the distance between the current GPS position and the reference position rises above the value in this field, the alert will become inactive.

- Alert Clear Delay The distance between the current GPS position and the reference position must rise above the Inside Radius Alert Clear value for longer than the time in this field in order for an alert to become inactive.
- Latitude The latitude of the reference position. This may be typed in as <degrees>:<minutes> followed by an N or S. If the N or S is missing, North is assumed. Moving the cursor to another field will reformat the contents of this field.
- Longitude The longitude of the reference position. This may be typed in as <degrees>:<minutes> followed by an E or W. If the E or W is missing, East is assumed. Moving the cursor to another field will reformat the contents of this field.
- **Get Current Position** Selecting this line will transfer the current GPS position into the Latitude and Longitude fields.

8.3.7.9 Trigger Type is Anchor Alert

The Anchor Alert is a special case of the Outside Radius Alert (Section 8.3.7.7). It is used to signal an alert whenever the vessel moves outside a programmable distance in any direction away from a reference point (expressed as a longitude and latitude). This alert is useful when the vessel is anchored or moored and the vessel should not drift outside a perimeter and if it does, an alert is activated. The point of reference can be selected from the current position or it can be manually entered.

The Outside Radius Alert and the Anchor Alert are very similar. The Anchor Alert is designed to allow the input of relatively small radius values, and may be displayed graphically through the Anchor Watch Display (Section 7.1). The radius of the Outside Radius Alert is specified in either Nautical Miles or Kilometers, while the radius of the Anchor Alert is specified in Feet or Meters. See Section 8.3.7.7 for details of the configuration of the Anchor Alert.

8.3.7.10 Trigger Type is GPS Quality Alert

The accuracy, or quality, of a position fix provided by a GPS is dependent on the number of satellites used to compute the position. A position based on less than three satellites is considered a "1D" lock, three satellites is a "2D" lock, more than three satellites is a "3D" lock, and more than three satellites with SBAS is a "3D-DGPS" lock. These different locks are indicative of the quality or accuracy of the given position with 1D having the lowest quality and 3D-DGPS providing the highest quality. The GPS Quality Alert is used to alert you if the quality of the position falls below a specified quality level.

8.3.7.10.1 Trigger Configuration – GPS Quality Alert



Figure 292 – Trigger Configuration – GPS Quality Alert

- **Re-trigger Period** When you accept an alert, it will change to the "Accepted" state, and annunciators that are sounding for that alert will stop sounding. If the condition which caused the alert remains true after the amount of time in this field, the alert will return to the "Active" state, and annunciators will begin sounding again for that alert. If a value of 0:00 is entered, then the alert will never re-trigger.
- Alert Set Point The Alert will be triggered when the qaulity of the GPS fix, as reported by the GPS drops lower than the value specified in this field.

Possible Values are:

- 3D-DGPS (best quality)
- 3D-GPS
- 2D-GPS
- 1D-GPS
- No fix
- Alert Set Delay When the quality of the GPS fix becomes lower than the quality specified in the Alert Set Point field for longer than the time specified in the Alert Set Delay field, the alert will become active.
- Alert Clear Point The Alert will be cleared when the quality of the GPS fix, as reported by the GPS becomes better than the value specified in this field.

Possible values are the same as the Alert Set Point.

Alert Clear Delay – If the alert is active and the quality of the GPS fix becomes higher than the quality specified in the Alert Clear Point field for longer than the time specified in the Clear Delay field, the alert will become inactive.

8.3.7.11 Trigger Type is Direction Alert

A Direction Alert is used to indicate that a heading or wind direction has changed from the reference direction more than a programmable amount. For example, once a heading has been established, an alert can be generated if the heading changes more than a specified amount. Direction Alerts may also be set for wind direction. The reference direction can be selected from the current direction (heading or wind direction) or it can be manually entered. Figure 293 shows a Direction Alert and associated parameters.



Direction Alert Parameters

Figure 293 – Direction Alert Parameters

8.3.7.11.1 Trigger Configuration – Direction Alert



Figure 294 – Trigger Configuration – Direction Alert

Re-trigger Period – When you accept an alert, it will change to the "Accepted" state, and annunciators that are sounding for that alert will stop sounding. If the condition which caused the alert remains true after the amount of time in this field, the alert will return to the "Active" state, and annunciators will begin sounding again for that alert. If a value of 0:00 is entered, then the alert will never re-trigger.

Offset Set Point, Offset Set Delay – If the direction being monitored differs from the reference direction by more than the Offset Heading Set Point for longer than the time specified in the Set Delay field, the alert will become active.



- **Offset Clear Point, Offset Clear Delay** If the alert is active and the direction being monitored differs from the reference direction by less than the Offset Heading Clear Point for longer than the time specified in the Clear Delay field, the alert will become inactive.
- **Reference Heading / Reference Direction / Reference Course** Enter the desired reference heading or direction into this field. If the monitored value differs from this value by more than the Offset Heading Set Point, the alert will be triggered.
- Get Current Heading / Get Current Direction / Get Current Course Pressing or clicking on this button will transfer the current value of the heading or direction being monitored into the Reference Heading / Reference Direction Field.

8.3.7.12 Trigger Type is Time Alert

The DSM410 can be configured with alerts that go active at a predetermined time, such as an alarm clock. These alerts can also be configured to become active periodically, making them useful for signaling watch changes (for example, every four hours) or as a personnel alarm (making sure a crew member is at the helm every 15 minutes).

When a Time Alert with a Repeat Interval of zero is accepted, it will be disabled to prevent further triggering. When a Time Alert with a Repeat Interval greater than zero is accepted, it will transition to the Inactive state, waiting for the next time it should trigger.

8.3.7.12.1 Trigger Configuration – Time Alert



Figure 295 – Alert Editor – Time Alert

Alert Time – The alert will become active at the time specified in this field. If the time specified has already passed, then the alarm will be set for the next day. Entering a number without the colon will assume that the hours are zero.

Repeat Interval – The alert will become active again after the period specified in this field. For example, if the Alarm Time were set to 8:00 and the Repeat Interval were set to 1:00 (1 hour, zero minutes), the Alarm would become active again at 9:00, 10:00, and so on.

8.3.8 Local Audible

If the Local Audible field is set to **Enabled**, the speaker internal to the DSM410 will be activated when this Alert is triggered.

8.3.9 Tone

If Local Audible is enabled, the tone that is sounded on the DSM410 and the Remote Annunciators can be set here. This allows the user to configure the Alerts so that the alert can be identified from the tone. The values for Tone are:

Beeps – A continuous series of half second on, half second off beeps is sounded. This corresponds to the requirements for IMO Code 3.a

- **Continuous** A continuous tone is sounded. This corresponds to the requirements for IMO Code 2
- **General Emergency** A series of seven one second on, one second off tones are sounded, followed by a single tone of 7 seconds on. The sequence is repeated. This corresponds to the requirements for IMO Code 1a (7 pulse) (General Emergency Alarm, SOLAS III/50, III/6.4)
- **Carbon Monoxide** This is a series of four one tenth second on, one tenth second off beeps followed by one and a half seconds of silence. The sequence is repeated. This corresponds to the requirements for Temporal 4 alarms *(T4, CO)
- Fire This is a series of three half a second on, half a second off beeps followed by one and a half seconds of silence. The sequence is repeated. This corresponds to the requirements for Code-3 (ISO 8201, Smoke/Fire)

8.3.10 Remote Annunciators

Selecting the Remote Annunciators option will bring up a list of 16 ALM100 devices. If the Annunciator is active on the NMEA2000[®] bus, and the Annunciator has been given a label, the label will be displayed, in parenthesis, alongside the instance number.

Note: the DSM410 is limited to working with annunciators with data instance numbers in the range 0-15.

Alert Deta Remote	iil Annunciat	or(s)		
Instance		1	Tone	
#0 (Bridg	e)		Enable	
#1			Disable	
#2			Disable	
#3		1	Disable	
#4		1	Disable	
#5		1	Disable	
#6		1	Disable	
#7		1	Disable	
#8		1	Disable	
#9		I	Disable	
Power	Back	Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 296 – Remote Annunciator Enable/Disable

To enable a specific Annunciator, use the **Scroll Up** and **Scroll Down** buttons to position the cursor, and then press the **Enter** button to move to the Tone column. The options here are

- Enable
- Disable



The desired option is selected using the **Scroll Up** and **Scroll Down** buttons, and then pressing the **Enter** button again. The tone of the Annunciator will be the same as that set in 8.3.9.

8.3.11 SMS (Text) Settings...

For each alert, you may select up to three phone numbers from the phone book to send an alert message to. For each phone number, you may choose to send a message when the alert is triggered, when the alert is cleared, or both when the alert is triggered and when the alert is cleared. After you select this entry and press "Enter" the screen changes to show the "SMS (Text) Settings..." screen as shown in Figure 297 below.

Alert Detai				
SMS (Text	t) Settings			
Send when	Send when	Phone	Number	
Triggere d	Cleared			
Yes	Yes	60255512	12 (Capt. Bob)	
Yes	No	95455512	12 (First Mate)	
No	Yes	419555121	12 (Engineer)	
Restore	SMS Sett	ings Fa	ctory Defaults	
		0		
Power	Back	Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 297 – SMS (Text) Settings... Screen

Use the "Scroll Up" and "Scroll Down" keys to highlight the desired entry, and press "Enter" to edit it. The screen will change to the "SMS (Text) Phone Number #x" screens shown in Figure 298 below.

SMS(Text) Send wh Send wh Phone N	Phone N en Trigge en Cleare umber: 6	umber #1 red Ena d : Ena 025551212	ble ble (Capt. Bob))
Power	Back	Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 298 – SMS (Text) Phone Number #x Screen

This contains the following fields:

- Send When Triggered an "Enable" value in this field will cause a SMS text message to be sent to the number in the "Phone Number" field whenever the alert is triggered. A "Disable" value will cause the display to not send a text message to this number in this case.
- Send When Cleared an "Enable" value in this field will cause a SMS text message to be sent to the number in the "Phone Number" field whenever the alert is cleared. A "Disable" value will cause the display to not send a text message to this number in this case.
- **Phone Number** use this field to select one of the phone number entries from the phone book.

8.3.12 Operating Mode Moored

See Section 4.3.4 for a description of Operating Modes. For this Alert to be triggered when the vessel is in the **Moored** state, this option must be set to Enabled. The options here are

- Enable
- Disable

The desired option is selected using the **Scroll Up** and **Scroll Down** buttons, and then pressing the **Enter** button again.

8.3.13 Operating Mode Underway

See Section 4.3.4 for a description of Operating Modes. For this Alert to be triggered when the vessel is in the **Underway** state, this option must be set to Enabled. The options here are

- Enable
- Disable

The desired option is selected using the **Scroll Up** and **Scroll Down** buttons, and then pressing the **Enter** button again.

8.3.14 Operating Mode Anchored

See Section 4.3.4 for a description of Operating Modes. For this Alert to be triggered when the vessel is in the **Anchored** state, this option must be set to Enabled. The options here are

- Enable
- Disable

The desired option is selected using the **Scroll Up** and **Scroll Down** buttons, and then pressing the **Enter** button again.

8.3.15 Scope

Alerts may be constrained to be displayed only on the DSM410 where they are detected. In this case the Alert message is not sent out on the NMEA2000 bus, and other devices will not display the alert, or allow Accepting of Cancelling. The Scope does not affect the generation of Annunciator messages. The options here are



- Local the Alert messages are not transmitted
- Global the Alert messages are transmitted

The desired option is selected using the **Scroll Up** and **Scroll Down** buttons, and then pressing the **Enter** button again.

8.4 Deleting an Alert

From the Alert Setup Menu, select the menu item Delete Alert....



Figure 299 – Deleting an Alert

This brings up the list of Alerts managed by the DSM410.



Figure 300 – Deleting Alert List

Scroll up and down using the **Scroll Up** and **Scroll Down** buttons until the alert that must be deleted is highlighted, and press the **Enter** button.

A confirmation message is displayed.



Figure 301 – Deleting an Alert: Confirmation

Press the Accept button to delete the Alert or the Cancel button to return to the previous screen without deleting the Alert.

8.5 Editing an Alert

From the Alert Setup Menu, select the menu item Edit Alert....



Figure 302 – Editing an Alert



This brings up the list of Alerts managed by the DSM410.

Alert S Edit A	Setup Alert.) 				
Priority	y Enal	b. Type		Descrip	tion	
0	Yes	Global	Alarm			
1	Yes	Global	Alarm			
2	Yes	Global	Alarm			
3	Yes	Global	Alarm	Anchor	Watch	
4	Yes	Global	Alarm			
5	Yes	Global	Alarm			
6	Yes	Global	Alarm			
9	Yes	Global	Alarm	Lat/Lon		
11	Yes	Global	Alarm			
21	Yes	Global	Alarm			
Power		Back		Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 303 – Editing an Alert: Alert List

The following information is shown for each alert that is in the system.

Priority – The priority of the Alert (see 8.3.3).

Enab. – Whether the Alert is Enabled or Disabled.

Type – The Type of Alert. This is a combination of whether the Alert is Local or Global (8.3.15) and whether the Alert is an Alarm or a Warning (4.3.1)

Description – The textual description of the Alert (8.3.5)

Scroll up and down using the **Scroll Up** and **Scroll Down** buttons until the alert that must be edited is highlighted, and press the **Enter** button.

The Alert Editor is opened, pre-populated with the parameters of the chosen Alert. See Section 8.1 for details of these parameters.

8.6 Setting the Vessel Operating Mode

The Vessel Operating Mode must be set on each DSM410. This is a potentially risky operation, in that Alerts that are Active in the existing mode may be ignored in the new Operating Mode. The DSM410 will warn the operator about these Alerts to minimize the risk. However, if the new vessel status was transmitted to other Alert Sources that are unmanned, then the warnings would be lost. For this reason, the Vessel Operating mode must be changed at each DSM410 or N2Kview, and those alerts, which would be disabled, noted by the user.

The Vessel Operating Mode is set through the Alert Setup Screen. **Scroll Down** to the required Operating Mode entry, press **Enter** and then use the **Scroll Up** / **Scroll Down** buttons to select the new Mode. Press **Enter** to complete the operation.



Figure 304 – Setting the Vessel Operating Mode

The options here are

- Disable
- Moored
- Anchored
- Underway



NOTE

The DSM410 will always display global alerts generated by other devices on the network, regardless of the Operating Mode selected.

8.7 SMS (Text) Phone Book

The display is able to transmit SMS (text) messages via a Maretron SMS100 SMS (Text) Module in the event of an alert. This menu allows you to program up to eight different phone numbers to which the display will send alert messages. Each alert can send a message to up to three of the numbers in the phone book. To edit the SMS (Text) Phone Book, scroll to the "SMS (Text) Phone Book..." entry on the "Alert Setup..." menu as shown in Figure 305.



Alert Setu Add New Delete Al Edit Alert Operating Alert Sou SMS (Tex Advanced Restore A	p Alert t Mode: A irce Instan () Phone Configue Alert Setu	Anchored nce:3 Book ation pFactory	Defaults	
Power	Back	Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Enter

Figure 305 – Editing the SMS (Text) Phone Book

Once you have pressed "Enter", the screen will change to display the SMS (Text) Phone Book, as shown in the figure below:

Phone Number	Name
6025551212	Capt. Bob
9545551212	First Mate
4195551212	Engineer
3305551212	Security Service
+441752251234	UK Phone
+16025551212	US from anywhere
+467050902345	Sweden mobile number
+33567234567	French Phone Number

Figure 306 – SMS (Text) Phone Book Screen

To edit a number in the phone book, press Scroll Up and Scroll Down until the desired entry is highlighted, and then press Enter. A popup window will enable you to edit the phone number for the entry as shown in the figure below:

Alert Set SMS (Te Phone No 60255512	up xt)Phone umber N 12 0	Book Iame Apt. Bob		_	
Phone Number 6025551212_					
Power	Back	Scroll Up	Scroll Down	Enter	

Figure 307 – Phone Number Editing

See Section 3.3.4 for details on editing the phone number. Starting the phone number with the international "+" prefix will allow the number to work regardless of what country the phone's SIM card phone number is registered in.

After you have edited the phone number and saved it by pressing Enter a second time after the last digit is entered, you will then be given the chance to edit the name for the phone number as shown in Figure 308 below. The purpose of this name is simply to make it easy to remember who the phone number is for.



Figure 308 – Editing the Name of a Phone Book Entry

See Section 3.3.4 for details on editing the phone book entry name. After you have entered the name, you will be given the opportunity to send a test message, as shown in Figure 309 below.



Alert Setup SMS (Text) Phon	e Book	
Phone Number	Name	
6025551212	Capt. Bob	
9545551212	First Mate	
4195551212	Engineer	
3 + Do you want +	to send test message now?	
+467050902345	Sweden mobile number	
+33567234567	French Phone Number	
Power No		Yes

Figure 309 – SMS Phone Book Test Message Popup

Press "Yes" to send a test message, or press "No" to skip sending the test message. You will be returned to the "SMS (Text) Phone Book..." screen.

Once you have created all of the phone book entries you need, press the "Back" key to exit the "SMS (Text) Phone Book..." screen.

8.8 Advanced Configuration

The Advanced Parameters of the Alert System may be configured through this Screen. Enter the screen though the **Alert Setup** menu, and select the **Advanced Configuration** option.



Figure 310 – Advanced Configuration

The following parameters may be set.

8.8.1 Remote Alert Audible

If Remote Alerts are enabled, and an active alert is received from another device on the bus, the DSM410 will respond by adding the Alert to its list of Active Alerts (Section 8.1), and sounding the internal speaker. The sounding of the speaker may be disabled (i.e. only visual indications are displayed) by setting this parameter to Disable. The options here are

- Enable
- Disable

8.8.2 Flashing Screen

As an extra means to gain the operator's attention to an Active Alert, the DSM410 may be set up to flash the entire screen between Red (for Alarms) or Yellow (for Warnings) and Black. The flashing may be disabled by setting this option to Disable. The options here are

- Enable
- Disable

8.9 Restore Factory Defaults

The Alert parameters of the DSM410 may be restored to the factory defaults by pressing the Enter button while this item is highlighted. The operator will be prompted to confirm this action before it taken.



Figure 311 – Restore Factory Defaults Confirmation



9 Maintenance

Regular maintenance is important to ensure continued proper operation of the Maretron DSM410. Perform the following tasks periodically:

- Clean the unit with a soft cloth. Do not use chemical cleaners as they may remove paint or markings or may corrode the DSM410 enclosure or seals. Do not use any cleaners containing acetone, as they will deteriorate the plastic enclosure.
- Ensure that the unit is mounted securely and cannot be moved relative to the mounting surface. If the unit is loose, tighten the mounting screws.
- Check the security of the cable connected to the NMEA 2000[®] interface and tighten if necessary.

10 Troubleshooting

If you notice unexpected operation of the Maretron DSM410, follow the troubleshooting procedures in this section to remedy simple problems.

Symptom	Troubleshooting Procedure
No activity on the display	Check the connection to the NMEA 2000 [®] and connector and tighten if necessary
	Ensure that power is supplied to the connected NMEA 2000 [®] cable
Expected data appears as a dash "-"	Use the N2KAnalyzer tool to verify whether the
instead of a value	device providing the data to the network is in
	transmitting a valid data value.
Data fluctuates between two different	Two devices on the network are transmitting the
values	same data. Check the Instance Numbers on all
	devices transmitting that data.

If these steps do not solve your problem, please contact Maretron Technical Support (refer to Section 12 for contact information).

Warning: There are no user-serviceable components inside the Maretron DSM410. Opening the DSM410 will expose the sensitive electronic components to adverse environmental conditions that may render the unit inoperative. Please do not open the DSM410, as this will automatically void the warranty. If service is required, please return the unit to an authorized Maretron service location.



11 Technical Specifications

Specifications

Parameter	Value	Comment
NMEA 2000 [®]	DeviceNet Micro-C	
Connector		
Display Technology	Active Matrix TFT LCD	Sunlight Readable
Display Resolution	320 x 240 Pixels	QVGA Resolution
Display Viewable Area	82.56mm W x 61.92mm H	4.1" Diagonal
Display Backlighting	LED	3 User-Programmed Levels 0-100%
Body Construction	Anodized Aluminum	
Keyboard	5 Capacitive Touch Keys	LED Backlighting
Languages Supported	English, Dutch (Nederlands)	User Selectable

Certifications

Parameter	Comment
NMEA 2000 [®]	
Maritime Navigation and Radiocommunication Equipment &	IEC 61162-3
Systems	
Maritime Navigation and Radiocommunication Equipment &	IEC 60945
Systems	
FCC and CE Mark	Electromagnetic Compatibility

Supported Display Data Types

Description	Data Types
AC Power	Average Frequency, Average L-N Voltage, Average L-L Voltage,
	Phase A Frequency, Phase A L-N Voltage, Phase AB L-L Voltage,
	Phase B Frequency, Phase B L-N Voltage, Phase BC L-L Voltage,
	Phase C Frequency, Phase C L-N Voltage, Phase CA L-L Voltage,
Anchor	Watch
DC	Current, Voltage, Battery Temperature, Battery State of Charge,
	Battery Time Remaining, Ripple Voltage, Power
Depth	Water Depth, Water Below Transducer, Transducer Offset
Electrical	Resistance
Elec. Distribution	Switch/Breaker, Breaker Current, Hardware OFF Counter, Hardware
	ON Counter, Hardware ERROR Counter, Hardware ON Timer,
	Hardware OFF Timer, Hardware ERROR Timer
Engine Monitor Boost Pressure, Hours, Coolant Pressure, Coolant Terr	
	Gas Temp., Fuel Pressure, Fuel Rate, Oil Pressure, Oil Temp.,
	Tachometer, Tilt/Trim, Voltage, Fuel Economy, Fuel Consumption,
	Percent Load, Percent Torque, Trip Fuel Used, Warning Indicators
Environment	Barometer, Heat Index, Humidity Inside, Humidity Outside, Moon
	Phase, Sunrise, Sunset, Dew Point, Temp. Engine Room, Temp.
	Inside, Temp. Main Cabin, Temp. Outside, Temp. Sea, Twilight AM,
	Twilight PM, Weather, Wind Chill
Fluid Flow	Flow Rate, Trip Volume

Fuel Management	Distance to Empty, Time to Empty, Total Fuel Capacity, Total Fuel
_	Level, Total Fuel Consumption, Total Trip Fuel Used, Total Fuel
	Economy, Total Fuel Rate, Total Fuel Remaining
GPS	COG, Lat/Lon, SOG, DOP, Satellites, Time, Accuracy
Heading	Heading, Rate of Turn, Variation
Humidity	Inside, Outside, User Defined
Indicator	Status, Hardware OFF Counter, Hardware ON Counter, Hardware
	ERROR Counter, Hardware ON Timer, Hardware OFF Timer,
	Hardware ERROR Timer
Mechanical	dB, Force, Strain
Motion	Acceleration, Angle, Angular Velocity, Angular Acceleration,
	Distance, Rotational Rate, Velocity
Navigation	BOD, BTW, COG, XTE, DTW, ETA, Lat/Lon, Rolling Road, Set/Drift,
	SOG, TTG, VMG, Waypoint Number & Name
Pressure/Vacuum	Altimeter, Barometric, Compressed Air, Engine Boost, Engine
	Coolant, Engine Fuel, Engine Oil, Hydraulic Oil, Steam,
	Transmission Oil, User Defined, Water,
Rudder	Angle & Order
SMS	Status, Signal Strength, Indicator
Speed	Through Water, Over Ground, Total Log, Trip Log
Tanks	Capacity, Level, Remaining
Temperature	Bait Well, Battery, Engine Coolant, Engine Oil, Engine Room,
	Exhaust Gas, Freezer, Heat Index, Heating System, Inside, Live
	Well, Main Cabin, Outside, Refrigeration, Sea, Transmission Oil,
	User Defined, Wind Chill
Time	Local Date, UTC Date, Moon Phase, Sunrise, Sunset, Local Time,
	UTC Time, Twilight AM, Twilight PM
Transmission	Gear, Oil Pressure, Oil Temperature, Warning Indicators
Vessel	Heave, Pitch, Roll, Trim Tabs, Keel
Watermaker	Sea Recovery Status Display
Wind	Apparent Direction and Speed, True Direction and Speed, Ground
	Direction and Speed

NMEA 2000[®] Parameter Group Numbers (PGNs)

Description	PGN #	PGN Name	Default Bata
			Rale
Response to Requested	126464	PGN List (Transmit and Receive)	N/A
PGNs	126996	Product Information	N/A
	126998	Configuration Information	N/A
Protocol PGNs	059392	ISO Acknowledge	N/A
Received PGNs	059904	ISO Request	N/A
	060160	ISO Transport Protocol, Data Transfer	N/A
	060416	ISO Transport Protocol, Connection	N/A
		Management	
	060928	ISO Address Claim	N/A
	065240	ISO Address Command	N/A
	126208	NMEA Request/Command/Acknowledge	N/A

<u>Maretron[•]</u>

65001	Bus #1 Phase C Basic AC Quantities	N/A
65002	Bus #1 Phase B Basic AC Quantities	N/A
65003	Bus #1 Phase A Basic AC Quantities	N/A
65004	Bus #1 Average Basic AC Quantities	N/A
65005	Util. Total AC Energy	N/A
65006	Util. Phase C AC Reactive Power	N/A
65007	Util. Phase C AC Power	N/A
65008	Util. Phase C AC Basic Quantities	N/A
65009	Util. Phase B AC Reactive Power	N/A
65010	Util. Phase B AC Power	N/A
65011	Util. Phase B AC Basic Quantities	N/A
65012	Util. Phase A AC Reactive Power	N/A
65013	Util. Phase A AC Power	N/A
65014	Util. Phase A AC Basic Quantities	N/A
65015	Util. Total AC Reactive Power	N/A
65016	Util. Total AC Power	N/A
65017	Util. Avg. Basic AC Quantities	N/A
65018	Gen. Total AC Energy	N/A
65019	Gen. Phase C AC Reactive Power	N/A
65020	Gen. Phase C AC Power	N/A
65021	Gen. Phase C AC Basic Quantities	N/A
65022	Gen. Phase B AC Reactive Power	N/A
65023	Gen. Phase B AC Power	N/A
65024	Gen. Phase B AC Basic Quantities	N/A
65025	Gen. Phase A AC Reactive Power	N/A
65026	Gen. Phase A AC Power	N/A
65027	Gen. Phase A AC Basic Quantities	N/A
65028	Gen. Total AC Reactive Power	N/A
65029	Gen. Total AC Power	N/A
065030	Generator Average Basic AC Quantities	N/A
065282	Number of Channels (Maretron)	N/A
065284	DC Breaker Current (Maretron)	N/A
065286	Fluid Flow Rate (Maretron)	N/A
065287	Trip Volume (Maretron)	N/A
126992	System Time	N/A
127245	Rudder	N/A
127250	Vessel Heading	N/A
127251	Rate of Turn	N/A
127252	Heave	N/A
127257	Attitude	N/A
127258	Magnetic Variation	N/A
127488	Engine Parameters, Rapid Update	N/A
127489	Engine Parameters, Dynamic	N/A
127493	Transmission Parameters, Dynamic	N/A
127497	Trip Fuel Consumption, Engine	N/A
127498	Engine Parameters, Static	N/A
127501	Binary Switch Bank Status	N/A

	127503	AC Input Status	N/A
Ī	127504	AC Output Status	N/A
Ī	127505	Fluid Level	N/A
Ī	127506	DC Detailed Status	N/A
Ī	127508	Battery Status	N/A
Ī	127513	Battery Configuration Status	N/A
Ī	127751	DC Voltage/Current	N/A
Ī	128259	Speed, Water Referenced	N/A
Ī	128267	Water Depth	N/A
	128275	Distance Log	N/A
	129025	Position, Rapid Update	N/A
	129026	COG & SOG, Rapid Update	N/A
	129029	GNSS Position Data	N/A
	129033	Local Time Offset	N/A
[129283	Cross Track Error	N/A
	129284	Navigation Data	N/A
	129285	Navigation – Route/WP Information	N/A
	129291	Set & Drift, Rapid Update	N/A
	129302	Bearing and Distance Between Two Marks	N/A
	129538	GNSS Control Status	N/A
	129539	GNSS DOPs	N/A
	129540	GNSS Sats In View	N/A
	130306	Wind Data	N/A
	130310	Environmental Parameters	N/A
	130311	Environmental Parameters	N/A
	130312	Temperature	N/A
	130313	Humidity	N/A
	130314	Actual Pressure	N/A
	130316	Temperature, Extended Range	N/A
	130576	Trim Tab Status	N/A
	130816	Watermaker Status (Sea Recovery)	N/A
	130817	Annunciator Capabilities (Maretron)	N/A
	130818	Label (Maretron)	N/A
	130819	Alert Transmission (Maretron)	N/A
	130820	Alert Response (Maretron)	N/A
	130821	Alert Text (Maretron)	N/A
	130822	Alert Control (Maretron)	N/A
	130823	Temperature, High Range (Maretron)	N/A
_	130824	Annunciator (Maretron)	N/A
_	130825	Data Instance/Chan Correlation (Maretron)	N/A
	130826	Switch Indicator Status (Maretron)	N/A
	130828	Dometic HVAC Status (Maretron)	N/A
	130829	Dometic Icemaker Status (Maretron)	N/A
	130833	Vessel Data Recorder Status (Maretron)	N/A
	130834	SMS Status (Maretron)	N/A
	130835	SMS Text Message (Maretron)	N/A
	130836	Switch Status Counter (Maretron)	N/A

<u>Maretron</u>[•]

130837	Switch Status Timer (Maretron)	N/A
130840	Generic Sensor (Maretron)	N/A

Electrical

Parameter	Value	Comment
Operating Voltage	9 to 30 Volts	DC Voltage
Power Consumption (Maximum)	250mA	
Load Equivalence Number (LEN)	5	NMEA 2000 [®] Spec. (1LEN = 50 mA)
Reverse Battery Protection	Yes	Indefinitely
Load Dump Protection	Yes	Energy Rated per SAE J1113

Mechanical

Parameter	Value	Comment
Size	4.49" (H) x 4.49" (W) x 0.37" (Forward D) x 0.81" (Rear D)	
	114mm (H) x 114mm (W) x 9.5mm (Forward D) x 20.5mm (Rear D)	
Weight	12.2 oz. (346 g)	
Mounting	Flush Mount	

Environmental

Parameter	Value
IEC 60945 Classification	Exposed
Degree of Protection	IP67
Operating Temperature	-20°C to 70°C
Storage Temperature	-30°C to 80°C
Relative Humidity	93%RH @40°C per IEC60945-8.2
Vibration	2-13.2Hz @ ±1mm, 13.2-100Hz @ 7m/s ² per IEC 60945-8.7
Rain and Spray	12.5mm Nozzle @ 100liters/min from 3m for 30min per IEC 60945-8.8
Solar Radiation	Ultraviolet B, A, Visible, and Infrared per IEC 60945-8.10
Corrosion (Salt Mist)	4 times 7 days @ 40°C, 95%RH after 2 hour Salt Spray Per IEC 60945-
	8.12
Electromagnetic Emission	Conducted and Radiated Emission per IEC 60945-9
Electromagnetic Immunity	Conducted, Radiated, Supply, and ESD per IEC 60945-10
Safety Precautions	Dangerous Voltage, Electromagnetic Radio Frequency per IEC 60945-12



12 Installation Template

Please check the dimensions before using the following diagram as a template for drilling the mounting holes because the printing process may have distorted the template.



Figure 312 – Flush Mounting Template